
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JANUARY 23, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

January 23, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen  Oaks 
Alliance Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Certificate of Appreciation to Retiring City Employee Ardath Labriola .................. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1  No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5028 Abington 1 

D-2 Vote on Reconsidered Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester 
Road and Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) 2 



CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 3 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 3 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Proposed 3 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 3 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDeal – Bullet 
Resistant Vests..................................................................................................... 3 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Two 32,000 GVW Regenerative Air Street Sweepers Less 
Two Trade-Ins ...................................................................................................... 4 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Program ......................................................................................... 4 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Water System 
Materials ............................................................................................................... 5 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Sale of Surplus 
Parcel ................................................................................................................... 5 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Pump Replacement for Sylvan Glen Golf Course Pump 
Station .................................................................................................................. 5 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape 
Maintenance Services .......................................................................................... 6 

E-5 Private Agreement for National City Bank – Project No. 05.935.3 6 

E-6 Troy Historical Society Agreement 6 

E-7 Request for Approval to Sell City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel Located in 
Section 22, Between Troy and Frankton Streets Fronting on Big Beaver – Sidwell 
#88-20-22-357-031 7 

E-8 Certified Local Government Application 7 

E-9 Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – Sale of 3 Surplus Parcels 7 

E-10 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Long Lake and Livernois 
Concrete Pavement Replacement Project – Project No. 05.106.5 7 



PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Board of Zoning Appeals – Planning Commission Representative and Alternate; 
Cable Advisory Committee; Election Commission; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; 
Historic District Commission; Liquor Advisory Committee; Municipal Building 
Authority; and Traffic Committee 8 

F-2 Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment 17 

F-3 Approval of Poverty Exemption Guidelines 17 

F-4 Proposal from The Mercer Group, Inc. for Executive Recruitment Services; City 
Manager 17 

F-5 Request for Closed Session for the Purpose of Performance Evaluation of City 
Manager 17 

F-6 PROTEC Membership 18 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 18 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 18 

a) NextEnergy Exemptions – February 20, 2006 .................................................... 18 
b) Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 Coolidge – South of 

Maple, East of Coolidge, Section 32 – February 20, 2006 ................................. 18 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 18 

a) Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy City Code.................. 18 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 18 

H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling Requested that Staff Compile a List of State-licensed Day 
Care Facilities in Troy 18 



COUNCIL COMMENTS: 18 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 18 

REPORTS: 19 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 19 

a) Election Commission/Final – October 4, 2005.................................................... 19 
b) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 20, 2005......................................... 19 
c) Troy Youth Council/Final – October 26, 2005..................................................... 19 
d) Planning Commission/Draft – November 29, 2005............................................. 19 
e) Planning Commission/Final – November 29, 2005............................................. 19 
f) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 1, 2005 ................... 19 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 6, 2005 ........................ 19 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 6, 2005 ........................ 19 
i) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft December 7, 2005........ 19 
j) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 7, 2005..... 19 
k) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 7, 2005............................... 19 
l) Planning Commission/Draft – December 13, 2005............................................. 19 
m) Planning Commission/Final – December 13, 2005............................................. 19 
n) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 14, 

2005 ................................................................................................................... 19 
o) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 20, 2005 ........................................ 19 
p) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Draft – December 21, 2005................... 19 
q) Troy Youth Council/Draft – December 21, 2005................................................. 19 
r) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 3, 2006....................................... 19 
s) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 4, 2006 .................................. 19 
t) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 5, 2006....................... 19 
u) Election Commission/Draft – January 9, 2006.................................................... 19 

J-2 Department Reports: 20 

a) Manager’s Office – Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense 
Report for the National League of Cities’ Congress of Cities Meeting ................ 20 

b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2005............................. 20 
c) Building Department – Permits Issued July through December 2005................. 20 
d) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December 2005..... 20 
e) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-

Thumb Auctioneering, LLC................................................................................. 20 
f) Information Technology – Liberty Information Management Systems 

Enterprise Wide Content Management Software – Update ................................ 20 
g) Planning Department – Preliminary Site Plan Approval (SP 921) Briggs Park 

Condominium, East Side of Rochester, North Side of Lamb, Section 14 – R-
1T, E-P and R-1C............................................................................................... 20 

h) Manager’s Office – City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 
2005 ................................................................................................................... 20 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 20 



a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Kevin Sagan, Madison Heights Chief of 
Police, in Appreciation of the Assistance Given by the Troy Police Department 20 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Pastor David Lomasney, Zion 
Christian Church, Minister of Outreach and Missions, Regarding the 
Assistance Received from the Troy Police Department...................................... 20 

c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Gloria Gold, in Appreciation of the Efforts 
of Animal Control Officer Don Cochran .............................................................. 20 

d) Letter of Thanks to Mark Miller from John Secco, Allegra Development, 
Regarding the Assistance Received from the Planning Department and City 
Council with the Fourteen Mile Road Property Rezoning ................................... 20 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 20 

J-5  Calendar 20 

J-6  Letter from Robert C. Bendzinski, CIPFA, of Bendzinski & Co. Regarding 
Misrepresentation of Statements 20 

J-7  Letter from National League of Cities Regarding Robin Beltramini's Appointment 
as Vice Chair of the City Futures Panel on Democratic Governance for 2006 20 

STUDY ITEMS: 20 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 20 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 20 

CLOSED SESSION: 21 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 21 

RECESSED 21 

RECONVENED 21 

ADJOURNMENT 21 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 21 

Monday, February 6, 2006 Regular City Council................................................... 21 
Wednesday, February 15, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council. 21 
Monday, February 20, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 21 
Wednesday, February 22, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council. 21 



Monday, February 27, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 21 
Monday, March 6, 2006 Regular City Council ....................................................... 21 
Monday, March 20, 2006 Regular City Council ..................................................... 21 
Monday, March 27, 2006 Regular City Council ..................................................... 21 
Monday, April 3, 2006 Regular City Council.......................................................... 21 
Monday, April 17, 2006 Regular City Council........................................................ 21 
Monday, April 24, 2006 Regular City Council........................................................ 21 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen  
Oaks Alliance Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) Certificate of Appreciation to Retiring City Employee Ardath Labriola 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5028 Abington  
 
Proposed Resolution for Approval 
 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:  
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rui Cai Li, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford box truck in a residential district at 5028 Abington is hereby APPROVED for a period of 
sixty (60) days. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
D-2 Vote on Reconsidered Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester 

Road and Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) 
 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Charrington, Section 23, part of parcel 88-20-23-301-003, being 0.48 acres in 
size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of 
Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SW ¼ of Section 23 
 

Outlot “A” of Dean Estates Subdivision (Liber 119, Pages 17-18, of Oakland County 
Records) being more particularly described as: Commencing at the West ¼ corner of 
Section 23, thence S 00°09’20” W, 263.59 ft. along the west line of Section 23; thence N 
89°59’54” E, 75.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning; thence N 89°59’54” E, 140.00 ft.; thence 
S 00°09’20” W, 150.00 ft.; thence S 89°59’54” W, 140.00 ft.; thence N 00°09’20” E, 
150.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning. Containing 0.48 ac., more or less, and subject to 
easements and restrictions of record. 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of January 9, 2006 and the 
Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting of January 16, 2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDeal – Bullet Resistant 

Vests    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase bullet resistant vests from CMP Distributors 22206 
West Warren Avenue, Detroit, Michigan 48239, is hereby APPROVED through the State of 
Michigan MiDeal contract 071B5200343 under the same pricing structure, terms, and 
conditions expiring July 28, 2008, with additional purchases allowed for trauma reduction plates 
as needed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the grant along with matching funds for one-half the cost of 
the complete vest is hereby AUTHORIZED.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Two 32,000 GVW Regenerative Air Street Sweepers Less Two 
Trade-Ins    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase two 32,000 GVW regenerative air street sweepers is 
hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, W.F. Miller Company of Novi, 
MI, for an estimated total cost of $295,552.00, as detailed in the bid tabulation opened 
November 22, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fleet Maintenance Division is AUTHORIZED TO 
ACCEPT OR REJECT the trade-in offer of $35,000.00 for each sweeper, pending the results to 
offer the equipment for sale on the open market at an amount greater than $35,000.00 each.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Sanitary Sewer 

Rehabilitation Program    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to complete the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Program by June 
30, 2006 is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Insituform Technologies USA, Inc. of 
Chesterfield, MO, for an estimated total cost of $227,490.00, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened December 12, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work is required either additive or 
deductive, such changes are authorized in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project 
cost and within budgetary limitations. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Water System 
Materials   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide one-year requirements of water system materials are 
hereby AWARDED to the following low bidders: 
 
         Estimated Total Cost 

• SLC Meter Service Inc. of Davisburg, MI   $16,470.00 
• East Jordan Iron Works Inc. of Oak Park, MI   $24,578.00 
• Gunners Meters & Parts of Pontiac, MI    $  5,175.00 
• Cambridge Brass of Cambridge, Ontario Canada $50,687.00 
• National Waterworks Inc. of Shelby Township, MI  $13,687.00 

plus Mueller fire hydrant parts discounted at 5%.   
 
At unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 27, 2005, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Sale of Surplus Parcel   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to sell surplus real estate parcel #20-03-226-104 located on East 
Lovell, is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Franco C. Mancini of Shelby Township, MI, at a 
total cost of $201,000.00, as listed on the attached bid tabulation opened December 7, 2005, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department may 
EXPEND the necessary funds for title insurance and recording, to be taken from the proceeds 
of said sale, to close and record this real estate parcel; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN a 
Warranty Deed to be delivered at closing. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Pump Replacement for Sylvan Glen Golf Course Pump Station   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish all labor, tools and equipment to remove and dispose of 
existing pumps and replace them with a new prefabricated station at Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Marc Dutton Irrigation, Inc. of 
Waterford, Michigan, for an estimated total cost of $91,250.00; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape 

Maintenance Services   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
WHEREAS, On April 8, 2002, a three-year contract with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional one-year periods to provide upgraded landscape maintenance services for the Troy 
Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority was awarded to Torre & Bruglio, the 
highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2002-04-213); 
 
WHEREAS, On March 21, 2005, the first of two (2) one-year options to renew the contract 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 season was approved (Resolution 
#2005-03-126); 
 
WHEREAS, Torre & Bruglio has agreed to exercise the second of two (2) one-year options to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as for the 2005 season. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Torre & Bruglio to provide upgraded landscape maintenance services for an 
estimated cost of $209,014.00, at unit prices contained on the tabulation opened January 25, 
2002, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  In addition, 
APPROVAL IS GRANTED to purchase annual flowers for the medians on Big Beaver from I-75 
to Rochester Road and on Rochester Road medians adjoining Big Beaver Road for an 
estimated cost of $29,764.00.  
 
E-5 Private Agreement for National City Bank – Project No. 05.935.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and TTertt Associates, L.L.C., is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of water main, storm sewer and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of 
way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Troy Historical Society Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That an agreement with the Troy Historical Society is APPROVED that is intended 
to delineate the process for the City of Troy and the Historical Society to work together during 
the five-year capital fund raising campaign that the Troy Historical Society’s Heritage Campaign 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

is undertaking to expand the Troy Museum and Historic Village, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Request for Approval to Sell City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel Located in 

Section 22, Between Troy and Frankton Streets Fronting on Big Beaver – Sidwell 
#88-20-22-357-031 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the sale of the City 
remnant parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-357-031, on the north side of Big Beaver between 
Troy and Frankton Streets to Andale Investment Company, Inc. for $22,500.00, the appraised 
value, as outlined in the Agreement to Purchase, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Purchase Agreement attached, and the Warranty Deed on behalf of the City, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Certified Local Government Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy make an application to the State Historic Preservation Office 
of the Michigan Department of History, Arts and Libraries for Certified Local Government 
designation, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SUBMIT the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – Sale of 3 Surplus Parcels 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department, in conjunction with the 
Purchasing Department, is AUTHORIZED to advertise to sell by sealed bid to the highest 
bidder, at or above the minimum bid value established as the appraised value, the following 
surplus parcels:  
 
Parcel#           Sidwell#                     Appraised Value                Type Property    
15            20-23-351-001 & 002        $ 20,000.00                       Vacant B -2 
17            20-23-354-048                   $ 90,000.00                       Vacant B-3 
20            20-26-429-045                   $18,000.00                        Vacant M-1 
 
E-10 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Long Lake and Livernois 

Concrete Pavement Replacement Project – Project No. 05.106.5 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and the Board of 
Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the Long Lake and Livernois Concrete Pavement 
Replacement Project, Project No. 05.106.5, at a cost to the City of Troy not to exceed 
$602,572.00 is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Agreement.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Board of Zoning Appeals – Planning Commission Representative and Alternate; 
Cable Advisory Committee; Election Commission; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; 
Historic District Commission; Liquor Advisory Committee; Municipal Building 
Authority; and Traffic Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval - Council Alternates (2) - Term expires with term of office 
 
 Term expires with term of office 
 
 Term expires with term of office 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Szerlag, City Manager 06/30/2007 
Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 06/30/2007 
Keith Pretty, President-Walsh College 06/30/2008 
Michael M. Adamczyk, Asst. Supt. Business Services-Troy 
Schools 06/30/2008 
Robin E. Beltramini, Council Member-City of Troy 06/30/2006 
Cristina Broomfield, Council Member-City of Troy (Alternate) 11/08/2005 
David Eisenbacher, Council Member-City of Troy (Alternate) 11/08/2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME  COUNCIL TERM EXPIRES 
Cristina Broomfield 11/09/09 
Wade Fleming 11/09/09 
Martin Howrylak 11/06/07 
David Lambert 11/06/07 
Jeanne Stine 11/06/07 
Louise Schilling 11/06/07 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done 11/01/08 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Peggy Hammond 11/01/08 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) - Resigned 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Jeffrey Stewart 11/01/08 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05-01/2007 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E.  Freliga 09/21/05-09/2007 10/03/05 
O. Carlene Geier 08/10/05-08/2007 08/15/05 
Mary Sarossy 01/05/06-01/2008 01/09/06 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/06 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag (Resigned) 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber  (Does not request reappointment)  04/30/05 04/30/08 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-09/21/05-09/2004 12/02/02 
Kul B. Gauri 07/31/05-07/2007  
Dorothy A. Pietron 12/21/98-07/10/01-09/21/05-09/2007 07/23/01 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Mary Sarossy 01/05/06-01/2008 01/09/06 
Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals-Planning Commission Representative & Alternate 
Appointed by Planning Commission   (1 PC Representative & 1 PC Alternate) – 1 Year Term 
Confirmed by City Council 
 

Planning Commission Rep Term Expires 01/31/07 
 

Alt-Planning Commission Rep Term Expires 01/31/07 
 

  
NOTE: City Management requests that City Council defer the confirmation of the Planning 
Commission representative and alternate to the Board of Zoning Appeals so that the term 
expirations can be adjusted to fall after Planning Commission expiration dates. The Planning 
Commission’s current by-laws stipulate that these appointments be made at their first meeting in 
January so that they can consider all Planning Commission members. 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Kenneth L. Courtney 04/30/07 
Christopher Fejes 04/30/06 
Marcia Gies 04/30/07 
Michael W. Hutson 04/30/06 
Matthew R. Kovacs 04/30/08 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

Mark Maxwell 04/30/08 
Wayne C. Wright PC Rep (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Lynne Drake-Batts  PC Alt Rep (Does not request reappointment) 12/31/05 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
NAME PC TERM EXPIRES 
Lynn Drake-Batts (Alt PC Rep on BZA-Does not request reappointment) 12/31/06 
Mary Kerwin 12/31/08 
Fazlullah M. Khan 12/31/06 
Christopher Kulesza (Student) 07/01/06 
Larry Littman 12/31/07 
Robert M. Schultz  12/31/08 
Thomas Strat 12/31/08 
Mark J. Vleck 12/31/07 
David T. Waller 12/31/06 
Wayne C. Wright (PC Rep on BZA-Requests reappointment) 12/31/07 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 02/28/09 
 
 Term Expires 02/28/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Jerry L. Bixby 02/28/06 
Richard Hughes (Requests reappointment) 02/28/06 
Robert Lin 07/01/06 
Alan Manzon 09/30/06 
Penny Marinos 02/28/07 
Lisa Martinico 11/30/08 
W. Kent Voight 02/28/07 
Bryan H. Wehrung 02/28/08 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Alex Bennet 11/01/00-11/2002  
Robert Wilson Noce 07/11/03-09/21/05-09/2007 07/21/03-10/03/05 
Timothy P. Payne 02/25/04-02/2006 03/08/04 
Frank Shier 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Mark R. Solomon 01/21/05-02/07/05-01/2007 02/07/05 
Lon M. Ullmann 03/19/01-03/2005 04/19/01 
Brian J. Wattles 07/10/01-07/2003 07/23/01 
Nancy D. Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Election Commission  
Appointed by Council (2-Regular; 1-Charter) – 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/07 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/07 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
David C. Anderson (Republican Rep) (Requests reappointment) –Letter of 
recommendation from Oakland County Republican Party received. 01/31/06 
Tonni L. Bartholomew Charter 
Timothy Dewan (Democrat Rep) (Requests reappointment)-Letter of 
recommendation from Oakland County Democratic Party received. 01/31/06 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Carolyn Almassian 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Kenneth L. Courtney 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
Dorothy Ann Pietron 12/21/98-07/10/01-09/21/05-09/2007 07/23/01-10/03/05 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Charles J. Salgat 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Jayshree (Gita) Shah 08/28/01-04/23/04-04/2006 09/17/01-05/03/04 
Jan Zikakis 07/19/05-07/2007 08/01/05 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 & 2 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Anju Brodbine 09/30/08 
Reuben Ellis 09/30/07 
Kelly Gu (Student) 09/30/06 
LuLu Guo (Student) 09/30/06 
Michelle Haight 09/30/07 
Amini Hashmi (Not a registered voter; to submit letter of resignation) 09/30/08 
Tom Kaszubski 09/30/07 
Padma Kuppa 09/30/08 
Mark Pritzlaff 09/30/07 
Malina (Melanie) Sarma 09/30/07 
Oniell Shah 09/30/08 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05-01/2007 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/0104 
Angela Done 08/10/05-08/2007 10/17/05 
Yogesh Gusani 08/1705-08/2007 09/12/05 
Tony Y. Haddad 01/03/06-01/2008 01/09/06 
Kelly Jones 08/17/05-08/2007 09/12/05 
Awni Y. Fakhoury 10/14/05-10/2007 10/24/05 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03 
Jayshree (Gita) Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Remedios A. Solarte 08/15/05-08/2007 09/20/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Sabah Jihad 03/01/08 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Liquor Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3-Year Terms 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Henry W. Allemon (Requests reappointment) 01/31/06 
Alex Bennett  01/31/06 
Kelsey Brunette (Student) 07/01/06 
Max Ehlert (Not eligible for reappointment due to term limits) 01/31/06 
W. S. Godlewski 01/31/08 
Patrick Hall 09/20/07 
Gary Mayer  (Captain of Troy Police Dept.)  
James Peard  (Does not request reappointment) 01/31/06 
Bohdan Ukrainec 01/31/08 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Jerry E. Bloom 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Yul Woong Hyun (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/07/05-09/2007 10/06/03-09/12/05 

David Ogg 
02/09/99-04/16/01-06/09/03-
01/00/05-01/2007 04/23/01-06/16/03-01/00/05 

Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
John M. Lamerato (Asst City Manager/Finance & Admin.) Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Carolyn Almassian 01/31/06 
Victor Freliga 01/31/08 
John M. Lamerato (Asst City Manager/Finance & Admin.) 01/31/06 
Conrad Miesiak  (Does not request reappointment) 01/31/06 
Frank Shier 01/31/08 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kenneth L. Courtney 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
Michael Culpepper 12/00/97-09/00/04-09/2006 12/00/97-09/00/04 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Jayshree (Gita) Shah 01/12/03-04/23/04-04/2006 02/02/04-05/03/04 
 
Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Abraham (Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer)  
Charles Craft (Police Chief)  
John Diefenbaker (Requests reappointment) 01/31/06 
Lawrence Halsey 01/31/06 
Jan Hubbell 01/31/08 
Richard Kilmer 01/31/08 
Richard D. Minnick II  (Does not request reappointment) 01/31/06 
William Nelson (Fire Chief)  
Gordon Schepke (Requests reappointment) 01/31/06 
Katherine Tan  (Student) 07/01/06 
Peter Ziegenfelder 01/31/08 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Sarah Binkowski 12/02/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Patrick K. Karolan 12/28/04-12/2006 01/10/05 
Victor Freliga 11/29/04-10/03/05-10/2007 12/06/04-10/03/05 
Dan Kaiser 10/18/04-10/2006 11/08/04 
David Lakin 01/13/04-01/2006 02/02/04 

David Ogg 
02/09/99-04/16/01-06/09/03-
01/00/05-01/2007 04/23/04-06/16/03-01/00/05 

Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Wayne Wright 01/07/99-06/18/03-06/2005 01/00/99-06/00/03 
Gary Yousif 11/24/03-09/21/05-09/2007 01/05/04-10/03/05 
 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

No: 
 
F-2 Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules be AMENDED as recommended by City Administration by 
incorporating Rule Number 28, Electronic Communications. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Approval of Poverty Exemption Guidelines 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That pursuant to MCL 211.7u, the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES the proposed “Poverty Exemption Guidelines” for 2006, as presented by the City 
Assessor in a memorandum dated January 10, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Proposal from The Mercer Group, Inc. for Executive Recruitment Services; City 

Manager 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy ENGAGE The Mercer Group, Inc. for executive recruitment 
services for the position of City Manager in accordance with their proposal dated January 11, 
2006 for an estimated cost not to exceed $20,000.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Request for Closed Session for the Purpose of Performance Evaluation of City 

Manager 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 18 - 

Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a Closed Session is SCHEDULED for                            , 2006 at  
 _______ PM in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, 
for the purpose of performance evaluation of the City Manager. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 PROTEC Membership 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Administration’s recommendation that the City of Troy re-join 
PROTEC is hereby APPROVED and AUTHORIZES payment of the annual membership dues 
in the amount of $10,119.88.  
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) NextEnergy Exemptions – February 20, 2006  
b) Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 Coolidge – South of Maple, East of 

Coolidge, Section 32 – February 20, 2006 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy City Code 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling Requested that Staff Compile a List of State-licensed Day 
Care Facilities in Troy 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 19 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Election Commission/Final – October 4, 2005  
b) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 20, 2005 
c) Troy Youth Council/Final – October 26, 2005  
d) Planning Commission/Draft – November 29, 2005  
e) Planning Commission/Final – November 29, 2005  
f) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 1, 2005 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 6, 2005  
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 6, 2005  
i) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft December 7, 2005  
j) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 7, 2005  
k) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 7, 2005 
l) Planning Commission/Draft – December 13, 2005  
m) Planning Commission/Final – December 13, 2005  
n) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 14, 2005  
o) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 20, 2005 
p) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Draft – December 21, 2005  
q) Troy Youth Council/Draft – December 21, 2005  
r) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 3, 2006 
s) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 4, 2006  
t) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 5, 2006 
u) Election Commission/Draft – January 9, 2006  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 20 - 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Manager’s Office – Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the 

National League of Cities’ Congress of Cities Meeting  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2005  
c) Building Department – Permits Issued July through December 2005 
d) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December 2005  
e) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 

Auctioneering, LLC  
f) Information Technology – Liberty Information Management Systems Enterprise Wide 

Content Management Software – Update  
g) Planning Department – Preliminary Site Plan Approval (SP 921) Briggs Park 

Condominium, East Side of Rochester, North Side of Lamb, Section 14 – R-1T, E-P and 
R-1C  

h) Manager’s Office – City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2005 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Kevin Sagan, Madison Heights Chief of Police, in 

Appreciation of the Assistance Given by the Troy Police Department  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Pastor David Lomasney, Zion Christian Church, 

Minister of Outreach and Missions, Regarding the Assistance Received from the Troy 
Police Department  

c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Gloria Gold, in Appreciation of the Efforts of Animal 
Control Officer Don Cochran  

d) Letter of Thanks to Mark Miller from John Secco, Allegra Development, Regarding the 
Assistance Received from the Planning Department and City Council with the Fourteen 
Mile Road Property Rezoning 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted  
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Letter from Robert C. Bendzinski, CIPFA, of Bendzinski & Co. Regarding 

Misrepresentation of Statements 
 
J-7  Letter from National League of Cities Regarding Robin Beltramini's Appointment 

as Vice Chair of the City Futures Panel on Democratic Governance for 2006 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 23, 2006 
 

- 21 - 

questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, February 6, 2006 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 15, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing)....... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 20, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 22, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing)....... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 27, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 6, 2006............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 20, 2006........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 27, 2006........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 3, 2006 ............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 17, 2006 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 24, 2006 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

 
 



 
Service Commendation 

ARDATH LABRIOLA 
 
WHEREAS, Ardath Labriola began her employment with the City of Troy as a part-time Preschool 
Coordinator in the Parks and Recreation Department on February 26, 1988; and 
 
WHEREAS, As Rainbow Preschool Coordinator, Ardath’s duties were to oversee the curriculum and 
staff for the year round Rainbow Preschool program that enrolls over 330 children each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Rainbow Preschool students who were in her first classes are now 22 and 23 years old.  In 
her 26-year career, she taught approximately 6,300 children and coordinated the program here in Troy 
for over 3,400 children.  All City employees, Rainbow parents and children are sad to see Ardath retire 
after 18 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy families have been privileged to have had Ardath serve as teacher, coordinator and 
mentor all these years.  Her warm personality and diligence on the job and her willingness to go the extra 
mile everyday with a smile or kind word for everyone she encounters will be sorely missed; and   
 
WHEREAS, Ardath will now have more time to spend with her husband John, daughters Megan and 
Melissa and grandson Jonah; and 
 
WHEREAS, With time to now relax in her retirement years Ardath plans on traveling and eventually 
relocating to their condo in Kiawah, South Carolina to be closer to her daughter and grandson; and 
 
WHEREAS, During the course of her employment, Ardath has contributed many tireless hours of 
dedicated service as well as her contagious smile to the City of Troy and its citizens. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to 
express its appreciation to Ardath Labriola for her many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City 
management, and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and 
happiness to Ardath during her retirement years. 
 
Presented the 23rd day of January 2006. 
 

 
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



 
 
DATE:   January 18, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Postponed Item 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   5028 Abington 
 
 
 
 
At their January 9, 2006, meeting City Council postponed action on the request for 
appeal on the provisions for outdoor parking of a commercial vehicle at the above noted 
residential property.  Presumably, that was done in order to ascertain the outcome of a 
request for an outdoor storage facility that was pending at the Planning Commission.  
 
That first request for Special Use Approval for outdoor storage of commercial and 
recreation vehicles in conjunction with a mini storage facility was heard at the Planning 
Commission meeting of January 10, 2006.  A copy of a portion of the draft of their 
minutes is included for your reference as well as a copy of the plan that was submitted. 
 
The request to allow for the parking of up to 41 vehicles was approved at the meeting.  
We are still gathering information from the parent company in California regarding when 
these spaces may be available for lease. 
 
We have also attached for your reference the original application and cover memo as 
well as all of the public hearing responses that were received prior to the public hearing.  
In addition, we have included two additional responses that were received after the 
public hearing on January 9, 2006. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2006 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU IN SP 683-B) 
– Proposed Commercial and Recreational Vehicle Storage at existing Mini U 
Storage Facility, South side of Maple, East of Livernois (262 E. Maple Road), 
Section 34, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Special Use Request and reported that it is the recommendation of the 
City Management to approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as 
submitted.   
 
[Chair Strat exited; Schultz took Chair.] 
 
Stephen Estey of Dykema Gossett PLLC, 39577 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield 
Hills, was present on behalf of the petitioner.  Mr. Estey introduced Chris Weber, 
Executive Vice President of Dahn Corporation, Irvine, California, and managing 
agent of the property owner.   
 
Mr. Estey concurred with City Management’s review and recommendations.  He 
explained that approval of the Special Use Request would provide an opportunity to 
the Mini U Storage facility to remain competitive with similar uses.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Cynthia Wilsher of 369 E. Maple Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Wilsher asked 
what hours the facility would be open and if the proposed use would generate an 
increase in traffic.    
 
Mr. Estey said it is his understanding that the facility would comply with the City 
ordinances and there is no plan to change the hours of operation.   
 
Mr. Weber said the facility is not a 24-hour a day operation.  He said the hours 
are from 6 a.m. to 9 p.m., and extended hours have been allowed to some 
tenants at certain locations should the need arise.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-01-010 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 28.30.02.E of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed 
commercial and recreational vehicle storage, located on the south side of Maple, 
east of Livernois, Section 34, within the M-1 Zoning District, be granted, subject 
to: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2006 

 
1. An intended operating period of 6 a.m. to 9 p.m. with occasional changes 

to that if necessary.  
 
Discussion. 
 
Mr. Vleck pointed out that the Planning Department received and included in the 
Planning Commission packet one letter of objection to the Special Use Request 
from Mike Biondo. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 





 
 
DATE:   December 21, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   5028 Abington 
 
 
 
 
On October 24, 2005, information was sent to Rui Cai Li that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Ford box truck parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Li has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of January 9, 2006. 
 
The property in question is 9,945 square feet in area.  Per the restrictions of Section 
40.56.02 a detached accessory building of 649 square feet could be constructed.  The 
existing dwelling on the property has a total living area of 1,967 square feet.  Based 
upon the provisions of Section 40.56.01, attached garages up to 1,475 square feet 
could be constructed.  An attached garage, 462 square foot in area, already exists on 
the property, therefore an allowable 1,013 square feet remain available. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 







 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

























































 1 
 

 
 
DATE:  January 17, 2006 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – VOTE ON RECONSIDERED REZONING 

APPLICATION – Northeast corner of Rochester Road and 
Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) 

 
 
A public hearing was conducted for this item at the January 9, 2006 City Council 
meeting.  A valid protest petition was submitted to the City Clerk’s Office prior to 
the meeting, therefore the rezoning requires a 2/3 majority vote to approve.   
 
Resolution #2006-01-003 to approve the rezoning failed because the motion did 
not receive a 2/3 majority.   
 
City Council approved Resolution #2006-01-013 to suspend the Rules of 
Procedure for the City Council and authorize City Council to reconsider the item.   
 
City Council approved Resolution #2006-01-014 to reconsider the item. 
 
City Council approved Resolution #2006-01-015 to postpone the item until the 
January 23, 2006 City Council meeting.  
 
Note that notice of the reconsidered item was mailed to the following: 

• All owners of property within 300 feet of the subject property. 
• All residents that signed the protest petition that was submitted on January 

9, 2006, that did not reside within 300 feet of the subject property.  
• All residents that signed the original protest petition submitted in 2005. 
• Anybody who spoke on the item at the January 9, 2006 City Council 

meeting. 
 
The Rezoning Protest Petition was submitted by Gerald Emanuel to the City Clerk’s 
Office on January 9, 2006.  The reason for the protest as stated on the application is 
“Increase in hardous (sic) traffic, unwanted increase in convenience store facilities, 
noise and potential loitering, negative impact on adjacent household properties”.  
The petition was signed by twenty-eight Troy residents. 
 
The Planning Department reviewed the Rezoning Protest Petition and 
determined that it is valid.  The petition meets the standards of Section 03.21.07 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, since it is signed by the owners of twenty 

campbellld
Text Box
D-02



 2 
 

percent or more of the area of land included within an area extending outward 
100 feet from any point of the boundary of the land included in the proposed 
change (excluding publicly owned land).  While twenty-eight residents signed the 
petition, it is valid because it was signed by the owners of three properties (1055, 
1063 and 1079 Winthrop).  These three properties represent approximately 40.73 
percent of the area within the 100-foot buffer surrounding the subject property.   
 
The Planning Department provided maps to City Council on January 9, 2006 
indicating that there were only two properties within the 100 foot buffer area 
whose owners had signed the petition (1055 and 1079 Winthrop).  These two 
properties represented 26.54 percent of property within the 100-foot buffer 
therefore the petition met the 20% standard of Section 03.21.07.  The Planning 
Department inadvertently left one property out of the calculations, as the owners 
of 1063 Winthrop also signed the petition.  The additional property has no impact 
on the validity of the Protest Petition, since it was already determined that the 
petition was valid.  The maps have been amended to add the additional property. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Rezoning Protest Petition, received by City Clerk’s office on January 9, 

2006. 
2. Maps (indicating properties within 100-foot buffer). 
3. Minutes from January 9, 2006 City Council meeting (draft).  
4. Letter of opposition. 
5. Memo to City Council, dated December 20, 2005. 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z-479 C) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-479 C Charrington Marathon Station Sec 23\CC Agenda Item ZOTA 479C 1 
23 06.doc 



















11
75

11
83

11
91

10
84

11
20 11
68

12
16

11
32

10
99

11
11

11
19

11
27

11
43

11
35

11
51

12
10 12

74

12
58

12
50

12
42

12
34

12
26

12
18

1079

3498

3364

11
03

10
95

11
67

11
59

12
04

10
60

10
72

11
44

11
56

11
08

10
96 11
92

11
80

3400

3506

3500

1087

3513

1185 12211215

3480
3468

3492

3480

3468

3456

10713424
1063

3400
1055 3420

3408

3456

3334 1195

11
11

11
25

11
37

11
49

11
63

11
75

11
87

11
99

10
87

10
75

11
10

11
18

11
26

11
34

11
42

11
50

11
58

11
66

11
74

11
82

11
90

3522
3520
3516

WINTHROP

CHARRINGTON

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

A
R

D
M

O
R

E

REZONING REQUEST
EXISTING GAS STATION
FROM B-1 TO H-S
NE CORNER CHARRINGTON & ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 23  (Z-479 C)

KEY
PROTEST PETITION
SIGNERS

SITE

±0 200100
Feet













 1

 
December 20, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION 

– Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Road, 
Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and compatible with 
the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
The applicant is proposing to redevelop the existing service station and improve 
the site.  Considering the uses permitted in the H-S district, service stations are 
one of the least demanding in terms of land area.  Because of the small size of 
the subject property, the development potential is limited in terms of potential 
land uses.  
 
The site is an appropriate location for a service station given its location on a 
major thoroughfare, and further given its proximity to other service stations and 
other automobile-oriented uses.   
 
Prudent site planning suggests that consolidation of adjacent properties is 
desirable; however, the property to the east is a residential neighborhood and 
expansion of commercial zoning district into this neighborhood is undesirable and 
unlikely.   
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this item at the November 
29, 2005 public hearing.  City Management agrees with the Planning 
Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
PARCEL HISTORY 
 
On June 28, 2004, the applicant submitted an application to rezone the subject 
property from B-1 to H-S.  The application was denied by City Council on 
January 10, 2005.  The applicant has submitted a new rezoning application for 
consideration.   



 2

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The application lists the applicant and owner of the property as Andraos 
Kattouah of Space Station of Troy, Inc. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northeast corner of Rochester Road and 
Charrington Road, in Section 23. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 21,000 square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently used as a Marathon gas station, which received site 
plan approval and was constructed in 1966 and is a legal non-conforming use.  
The abutting houses to the east were constructed in 1968. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
H-S Highway Service. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to expand the convenience store.  The gasoline pump 
islands and overhead canopy are to remain as is. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Tax accountant and single-family residence. 
South: Restaurant. 
East: Single-family residence. 
West: Fast food restaurant and tire sales. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-1 Local Business and R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: B-2 General Business. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: B-3 General Business. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed H-S Highway Service Zoning District 
and Potential Build-out Scenario:  



 3

 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Retail establishments to service the needs of the highway traveler including 
such facilities as:  drug stores, convenience food stores, gift shops, and 
restaurants other than those of the drive-in or open front store type. 

 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, 
and emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  Sleeping accommodations 
may be provided in conjunction with ambulance facilities. 

 
 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 New and used automobile salesroom, showroom or office. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repairs of recreational vehicles. 
 

Banks, savings and loan associations, and credit unions which may consist 
solely of drive-up facilities. 

 
 Public utility buildings and sub-stations. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted 
uses. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

  
Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants 
permitted within this district. 
Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within H-
S districts, apart from restaurants. 

 
Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 

Automobile service stations for the sale of engine fuels, oil, and minor 
accessories only, and where no repair work is done, other than incidental 
service, but not including, steam cleaning, undercoating, vehicle body repair, 
painting, tire recapping, engine rebuilding, auto dismantling, upholstering, 
auto glass work and other such activities whose external effects could 
adversely extend beyond the property lines.  

 
Auto washes where engine fuels are sold as a significant part of the 
operation.   



 4

Auto washes, not including the sale of engine fuels, when the entire 
operation is completely enclosed within a building or structure. 

 
Uses, other than those specified in Section 23.20.06, wherein drive-up 
service facilities are the sole use of the property. 

 
 Business in the character of a drive-in restaurant. 
 
 Motel or hotel. 
 

Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second hand 
automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles. 

 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a 
completely enclosed building.   

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or 
other food service establishments. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts both Rochester Road and Charrington Road.   
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other 
utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features 
located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  
The Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 
General Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S 
Highway Service Zoning District.  The rezoning application is therefore consistent 
with the City of Troy Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
The Location Standards for the H-S District in Article 23.40.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance provides the following: 
  
 The H-S (Highway Service) District may be applied when the application of 

such a classification is consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use plan 
and policies related thereto, or with other land use policies of the City of Troy, 
and therefore, on a limited basis, may involve the following types of areas: 



 5

 23.40.02 Areas indicated on the Master Land Use Plan for non-center 
commercial use. 

 
 23.40.03 Areas within broader areas generally designated for Light 

Industrial use, where the City has established, through 
rezoning, areas to provide commercial and service uses for the 
surrounding Light Industrial area. 

 
The application is consistent with the Location Standards for the H-S District. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from November 29, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  
3. Letter from petitioner dated September 21, 2005. 
4. Letter from petitioner’s attorney, dated September 26, 2005. 
5. Letters of opposition (2). 
 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z-479 C) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-479 C Charrington Marathon Station Sec 23\CC Public Hearing ZOTA 279C 1 
9 06.doc 
 
 
 







TORPEY

HARRIS

R
O

C
H

E
STE

RTROMBLEY

COLEBROOK

VANDERPOOL

BAKER

AR
D

M
O

R
E

BOYD

CHARRINGTON

WINTHROP

M
ILLAY

CHAUCER

DICKENS

W
AKE

FIELD

D
ALEY

H
ID

D
E

N
R

ID
G

E

MADISON

PEACHTREE

±

REZONING REQUEST
EXISTING GAS STATION
FROM B-1 TO H-S
NE CORNER ROCHESTER RD. & CHARRINGTON
SEC. 23  (Z-479 C)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-1 TO H-S

0 200 400100
Feet











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 479-C) – Existing Gas Station, 
Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Drive, Section 23 – From 
B-1 (Local Business) to H-S (Highway Service) 
 
Chair Strat advised the petitioner that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a 
recommendation of approval of the rezoning request, and the petitioner has the 
option to postpone his item prior to his presentation to the Planning Commission.   
 
The petitioner indicated he would like to go forward. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of the City Manager to 
approve the rezoning request.   
 
Dennis Szokolay of 26021 Southfield Road, Lathrup Village, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Szokolay said expansion and improvement to the 
service station would enable the owner to sell a larger inventory of convenience 
items and would provide for a more aesthetically pleasing landscaped area.  He 
asked the members to look favorably on the rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Waller said improvements to the building and landscaping would enhance the 
appearance at this location.  He asked that consideration be given to the limited 
size of the property in terms of the site plan, noting property has been taken for 
the expansion of Rochester Road.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-182 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Charrington, within Section 23, being approximately 21,000 
square feet in size, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 













CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 9, 2006, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
Reverend Dr. J. Harold Ellens of First Presbyterian Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge 
of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield (Arrived: 9:24 P.M.) 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5028 Abington  
 
Proposed Resolution for Approval 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:  
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rui Cai Li, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford box truck in a residential district at 5028 Abington is hereby APPROVED for a period of 
sixty (60) days. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2006-01-001 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for Commercial Vehicle Appeal at 5028 Abington be 
POSTPONED until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, January 23, 2006. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No: Fleming  
Absent: Broomfield 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
C-2 Rezoning Application – Northwest Corner of Maple Road and Crooks Road, 

Section 29 – H-S and O-1 to B-3 (Z 711)  
 
Resolution #2006-01-002 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the H-S to B-3 rezoning request (Parcel D), parcel 88-20-29-478-010, being 
11,556 square feet in size, and the O-1 to B-3 rezoning request (Parcel B), part of parcel 88-20-
29-478-011, being 1,800 square feet in size, both parcels located on the northwest corner of 
Maple and Crooks, Section 29, are described in the following legal description and illustrated on 
the attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

Parcel D: Lot 1 except the West 14.95 feet of Supervisor’s Plat No. 23, a subdivision of 
part of the SE ¼ of Section 29, T2N R11E, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, as 
recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, Page 58, Oakland County Records. 

 
Parcel B: The Southerly 22.50 feet of the Westerly 80.00 feet of Lot 27 of “Supervisor’s 
Plat No. 23”, a subdivision of part of the SE ¼ of Section 29, T2N R11E, City of Troy, 
Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, Page 58, Oakland County 
Records. 

  
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield  
 
C-3 Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington 

Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C)  
 
Resolution #2006-01-003 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Charrington, Section 23, part of parcel 88-20-23-301-003, being 0.48 acres in 
size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of 
Survey drawing: 

 
T2N, R11E, SW ¼ of Section 23 

 
Outlot “A” of Dean Estates Subdivision (Liber 119, Pages 17-18, of Oakland County 
Records) being more particularly described as: Commencing at the West ¼ corner of 
Section 23, thence S 00°09’20” W, 263.59 ft. along the west line of Section 23; thence N 
89°59’54” E, 75.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning; thence N 89°59’54” E, 140.00 ft.; thence 
S 00°09’20” W, 150.00 ft.; thence S 89°59’54” W, 140.00 ft.; thence N 00°09’20” E, 
150.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning. Containing 0.48 ac., more or less, and subject to 
easements and restrictions of record. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes:  Fleming, Howrylak, Stine, Beltramini  
No:  Lambert, Schilling  
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:06 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:16 P.M. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-01-004 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-6 and E-8 which shall be considered after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Broomfield   
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of December 19, 2005 and 
the Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting of December 22, 2005 be APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – MITN Cooperative 

Gasoline and Diesel Fuel    
 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On January 5, 2004, two-year contracts with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years to provide gasoline and diesel fuel were awarded to the low bidders, Mansfield 
Oil Company of Gainesville, GA and Atlas Oil Company of Taylor, MI (Resolution #2004-01-
006-E-05);  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, Both awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the two-year option to renew and 
the City of Sterling Heights has approved the contracts under the same pricing structure, terms, 
and conditions for participating members of the MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 
Network) Cooperative. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with Mansfield Oil Company and Atlas Oil Company to provide gasoline and 
diesel fuel under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions for two (2) years expiring 
January 31, 2008. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Split Rail Fence    
 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install split rail fencing at Firefighters Park and the 
Troy Farm, is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, American Fence & Supply, Inc. of Oak 
Park, MI, at an estimated total cost of $12,268.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid 
tabulation opened November 30, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Member’s Travel Expenses – 2006 Michigan Municipal 
League (MML) Legislative Conference    

 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That those Council Members interested are AUTHORIZED to attend the 2006 
MML Legislative Conference on March 22, 2006 in Lansing, Michigan in accordance with 
accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
E-5 Approval of Request to Add/Drop Co-Licensees in B-Hotel Licensed Business for 

Embassy Suites Hotel – 850 Tower 
 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-5a 
 
RESOLVED, That DJONT/JPM Troy Leasing, L. L. C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) 
and FELCOR/JPM Troy Hotel, L. L. C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) to drop DT 
Management, Inc. ( An Arizona Corporation) as Co-Licensee and add Promus Hotels, Inc. (A 
Delaware Corporation) as Co-Licensee in a 2005 B-Hotel Licensed Business with a dance 
permit, official permit (food), outdoor service (1 area), 1 direct connection, 3 bars, and 251 
rooms, located at 850 Tower, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County. (Step 2) “above all others”; be 
CONSIDERED for APPROVAL. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-5b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with DJONT/JPM Troy Leasing, LLC (a Delaware Limited Liability 
Company) and FELCOR/JPM Troy Hotel, LLC (a Delaware Limited Liability Company) to drop 
DT Management, Inc. (an Arizona Corporation) as Co-Licensee and add Promus Hotels, Inc. (a 
Delaware Corporation) as Co-Licensee in a 2005 B-Hotel Licensed Business with a dance 
permit, official permit (food), outdoor service (1 area), 1 direct connection, 3 bars, and 251 
rooms, located at 850 Tower, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County,  “above all others”; and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Carrie Zanoni v. City of Troy, et al 
 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Carrie Zanoni v Rebecca Ann 
Roose aka Rebecca Ann Renaud, City of Clawson and Clawson Police Officers Bigelow and 
Weston, City of Troy and Troy Police Officers Joshua Jones and Sergeant Christopher Stout, 
and TO RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses and outside legal counsel to adequately 
represent the City.  
 
E-9 Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 01-

5477/S1 for Wattles, East and West of Rochester – Project No. 01.106.5 
 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Amendment No.1 to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 01-
5477/S1, with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) for metric to English conversion of project 
plans, specifications and cost estimate for Wattles Road, east and west of Rochester Road is 
hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost not to exceed $35,365.46, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the amendment; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

E-10 Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from the Troy High Booster Club 
for the Purpose of Obtaining a Charitable Gaming License 

 
Resolution #2006-01-004-E-10 
  
RESOLVED, That the request from the Troy High Booster Club, asking that they be recognized 
as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable 
gaming license be APPROVED as recommended by City Management, CONTINGENT upon 
receipt of the Troy High Booster Club receiving its 501(c)3 status. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-6 Allocation of 2006 Tri-Party Program Funds – Long Lake and Livernois 

Reconstruction 
 
Resolution #2006-01-005 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy allotment for the 2006 Tri-Party Program is $596,141 and 
that the City’s share is $198,713.00 and that these funds be USED, as required, for the Long 
Lake and Livernois reconstruction project. 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Broomfield  
 
Council Member Broomfield arrived at 9:24 P.M. 
 
E-8 Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 00-

5024/S1 for Rochester Road, Torpey to Barclay - Project No. 99.203.5 
 
Resolution #2006-01-006 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Amendment No.1 to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 00-
5024/S1, with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) for metric to English conversion of project 
plans, specifications and cost estimate for Rochester Road, between Torpey and Barclay is 
hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost not to exceed $60,782.94, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the amendment; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of the meeting.  
 
Yes:  All-7 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Board of 
Review; and Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments: None  

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval  (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling   
No: Broomfield, Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-2 Amendments to Taxicab and Limousine Ordinance 
 
Resolution #2006-01-008 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 65 of the Code of the City of Troy, 
which creates a licensing exemption for the purpose of accommodating increased demand for 
taxicabs and limousines during Super Bowl XL festivities, is hereby ADOPTED, as 
recommended by the City Attorney’s Office; a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

Yes:  Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling 
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-3 Amendments to Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation 
 
Resolution #2006-01-009 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 13 Section 3, is hereby ADOPTED, 
which removes the historic district designation of the property located at 2356 E. Long Lake 
Road, in the City of Troy; a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-4 Informal Quotation Process – Award of Troy Farm Barn Repair 
 
Resolution #2006-01-010 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to complete repairs on the barn at the Troy Farm is hereby 
APPROVED to David L. Ingraham of St Johns, Michigan, who submitted the lowest informal 
quotation at an estimated cost of $24,600.00; and if additional work is required that could not be 
foreseen, such additional work is authorized in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project 
cost; and    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed documents including insurance certificates and any other specified 
requirements.   
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-5 Changes to Retiree Health Insurance Benefit for Classified and Exempt Employees 

Hired after January 2, 2006; Proposed Revisions to Personnel Rules and 
Regulations 

 
Resolution #2006-01-011 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the retiree health insurance plan for employees hired on or after January 2, 
2006 be hereby APPROVED as recommended by City Management and the Personnel Board, 
and a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the revision to the Personnel Rules & Regulations for 
Classified personnel is hereby APPROVED, as recommended by City Management and the 
Personnel Board; a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-6 Election Precincts and Polling Locations 
 
Resolution #2006-01-012 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the elimination of Precinct 31, Oakland 
Park Towers, with the voters to be absorbed into Precinct 30 located at St. George Antiochian 
Orthodox Church at 2160 E. Maple, effective with the August 8, 2006 Primary Election. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #11 – 
Reconsideration of Questions. 
 
Resolution #2006-01-013 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #11 - 
Reconsideration of Questions and AUTHORIZE City Council to reconsider agenda item, C-3 
Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Road, Section 23 
– B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C).  
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Reconsider Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester 
Road and Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) 
 
Resolution #2006-01-014 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Fleming   
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-06-003, Moved by Fleming and Seconded by Beltramini, 
as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 

 
RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the 
northeast corner of Rochester and Charrington, Section 23, part of parcel 
88-20-23-301-003, being 0.48 acres in size, is described in the following 
legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of Survey 
drawing: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

T2N, R11E, SW ¼ of Section 23 
 
Outlot “A” of Dean Estates Subdivision (Liber 119, Pages 17-18, of 
Oakland County Records) being more particularly described as: 
Commencing at the West ¼ corner of Section 23, thence S 00°09’20” W, 
263.59 ft. along the west line of Section 23; thence N 89°59’54” E, 75.00 
ft. to the Point of Beginning; thence N 89°59’54” E, 140.00 ft.; thence S 
00°09’20” W, 150.00 ft.; thence S 89°59’54” W, 140.00 ft.; thence N 
00°09’20” E, 150.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning. Containing 0.48 ac., 
more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by City Management and the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes:  Fleming, Howrylak, Stine, Beltramini  
No:  Lambert, Schilling  
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION FAILED 

 
Yes:  All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone   
  
Resolution #2006-01-015 
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Stine    
 
RESOLVED, That the reconsidered Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester 
Road and Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) be POSTPONED until the 
Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, January 23, 2006. 
 
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a)  Community Center Recreation Pass Fee Recommendations for 2006 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Mayor Schilling would like to discuss the methodology to select a City Manager.  
Information from the Michigan Municipal League and a review of job description 
postings from the ICMA Newsletter are attached.  

 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule a Special Meeting 
 
Resolution #2006-01-016 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting for Monday, January 
16, 2006 at 7:30 P.M. in the Council Boardroom to for the purpose of continuation of the Goals 
and Objectives Presentation, and for the purpose of discussing the process for selecting a 
replacement City Manager. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2006-01-017 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on an item that does not appear on the agenda.  
 
Yes: All-7   
 

I-1  Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Members Broomfield and Howrylak 
 
Resolution #2006-01-018 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Broomfield’s absence at the Special City Council a meeting 
of December 22, 2005 is EXCUSED due to illness and Council Member Howrylak’s absence at 
the Special City Council a meeting of December 22, 2005 is EXCUSED due to being out of the 
county.  
 
Yes: All-7  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Personnel Board/Final – June 9, 2005 
b) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 6, 2005 
c) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – September 14, 2005  
d) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – October 4, 2005 
e) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – October 20, 2005  
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees – November 9, 2005 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 14, 2005  
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – November 15, 2005 
 
i) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – November 17, 2005  
j) Library Advisory Board/Draft – December 8, 2005 
k) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – December 12, 2005 
l) Personnel Board/Draft – December 20, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the National League of Cities’ 

Congress of Cities Meeting  
b) Mayor Schilling’s Travel Expense Report for the National League of Cities’ Congress of 

Cities Meeting  
c) City Attorney’s Office – Williams v. Ken Freund and City of Troy  
d) Request for Federal Aid Funding – FY 2009  
e) 2005 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report  
f) Super Bowl Street Banners  
g) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb Auctioneering, LLC  
h) Big Beaver Corridor Study Vision Fair   

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks from Nancy Martens Regarding the Quality Programs Provided by the 

City of Troy  
b) Letter of Thanks from Captain Gary Mayer to John Szerlag Regarding the Professional 

Efforts of Chief William Nelson While Working on the OakWIN Project 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Communication from Bill Kruse Regarding the New Kruse & Muer Restaurant in 
Troy  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-7  Communication from Stacie Clayton Regarding Superbowl XL Events in Troy 
Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 9, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

J-8  Memorandum from Futures Co-Chairs David Eisenbacher and Tom Kaszubski 
Regarding Futures Process.  Also Enclosed is a Memo from Futurist Ed Barlow 
Regarding Vision Process Activities 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Time Permitting, the City Manager Would Like to Continue the Goals and 

Objectives Presentation – Rescheduled for Special Meeting on Monday, January 16, 
2006 at 7:30 P.M. in the Council Boardroom 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:40 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 16, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 16, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 
Goals and Objectives Presentation 
 
John Szerlag, City Manager reviewed a Power Point presentation of the 2006-2008 Goals and 
Objectives with City Council. The following suggestions were made by City Council to clarify 
certain projects: Civic Center Development to Civic Center Task Force Development Projects 
and remove the reference to Long Lake form the I-75/Crooks Interchange Improvement 
project. These changes will be made to the presentation. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:20 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:30 PM. 
 
Process for Selection of City Manager 
 
City Council reviewed executive search proposals received from CB&A, The Mercer Group, 
Michigan Municipal League and Slavin Management. It was the consensus of City Council to 
seek a formal proposal from The Mercer Group as an agenda item for consideration at their 
January 23, 2006 City Council meeting. 
 
City Council will schedule a Closed Session at their Regular Meeting scheduled for Monday, 
January 23, 2006 for the purpose of conducting a performance evaluation for the City Manager 
at the request of John Szerlag. 
 
City Council will review the appointing of an Acting City Manager at their February 6, 2006 City 
Council meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT            
 
Two residents in attendance addressed the City Council. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:32 P.M. 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 

 John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager 
Finance/Administration 

 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



January 18, 2006 
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles T. Craft, Police Chief 
    
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDeal– 

Bullet Resistant Vests  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management requests approval and authorization to purchase bullet resistant 
vests for its officers on an on-going basis from CMP Distributors 22206 W. Warren 
Ave., Detroit, Michigan 48239 through the State of Michigan MiDeal contract 
#071B5200343 (see Attachment I) expiring July 28, 2008.   
 
In addition, police staff recommends the purchase of various trauma reduction plates 
at the officer’s option at the following prices: 
 
Description Unit Price 
5x8 Semi Rigid Plate $65.00 
5x8 Soft Plate $23.00 
7x10 Semi Rigid Plate $85.00 
 
Requests for price changes are submitted in writing at least ten days prior to their 
effective date, and subject to written acceptance by the State Acquisition Services 
Division before becoming effective. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Troy Police Department has received a grant through the Department of 
Justice, Bulletproof Vest Partnership Grant Program. This grant provides for 
matching funds from the Department of Justice for the purchase of bulletproof vests 
for sworn police officers. The vest we are purchasing is an American Body Armor-
Xtream, threat level II and IIIA. These vests are currently being purchased by the 
Michigan State Police for its Troopers. These vest meet or exceed the National 
Institute of Justice testing of vests and contains no Zylon, the material that was used 
in prior vests and has since been recalled.   
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are budgeted in the Police Uniform Patrol Account #401315.7978.010 
 
P
  

repared by:  Sgt. Donald Ostrowski  

 

  

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



Date:

Quantity Unit Price Total
* $437.00

* $395.00

* $372.00 **

* $457.00

* $49.50

* $570.00 **

Subtotal
Jodie Smith Shipping
CMP Distributors- Lansing location 866-721-0970 Grand Total

(2) carriers

                                      

Submitted to:  Troy Police Department
Attn: Sgt. Ostrowski
Phone:

(2) carriers and 5X8 semi rigid plate

Fax: 
Email:ostrowskd@ci.troy.mi.us

Description
American Body Armor Xtreme series vest, threat level II with

(2) carriers and 7X10 semi rigid plate

American Body Armor Xtreme series vest, threat level II with

*plate quoted is plate previously purchased
American Body Armor Xtreme series vest, threat level II with
(2) carriers and 5X8 soft plate

American Body Armor Xtreme series vest, threat level II with

American Body Armor level IIIA tactical vest with (1) standard
carrier and (1) tactical outer carrier (per MSP specifications)

ATTACHMENT I

January 5, 2005

Quotation Expires:
Terms:
Delivery:

**State of Michigan contract vest - #071B5200343

Extra carrier for above vest

Law Enforcement Equipment Specialists

CMP Distributors
Detroit Location
22206 W. Warren Ave.
Detroit, MI 48239
Phone: 313-274-2673 
Fax: 313-274-0037

CMP Distributors
Lansing Location

6539 Westland Way, Suite 21 & 22
Lansing, MI 48917

Phone: 517-721-0970
Fax: 517-721-0974



January 11, 2006 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L, Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – 

Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Two 32,000 GVW 
Regenerative Air Street Sweepers Less Two Trade- Ins 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
On November 22, 2005, bid proposals were opened to furnish Two (2)  32,000 GVW 
Regenerative Air Street Sweepers Less Two Trade- Ins. After reviewing these 
proposals, the Fleet Maintenance Division of the Public Works Department recommends 
awarding the contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, W. F. Miller Company of 
Novi, MI, at an estimated total cost of  $295,552.00 for Two TYMCO Model 600 BAH 
Regenerative Air Street Sweepers. These Sweepers are used daily, weather and 
temperature permitting.  
 
In addition, City management requests approval to accept or reject the trade-in offer of 
$35,000.00 for each sweeper, pending the results to offer the equipment for sale on the 
open market at an amount greater than $35,000.00 each 
. 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS  
W. F. Miller Company of Novi, MI, submitted an alternate bid “A” for Two TYMCO Model 600 
BAH Regenerative Air Street Sweepers with a one-year warranty on the sweeper portion.  
Due to the severe work environment and expensive replacement parts for this type of 
equipment, the City specified a two-year parts and labor warranty (sweeper portion) with a 
5-year engine(s) and transmission extended warranty to protect our investment.   
 
TRADE-INS  
W.F. Miller Company’s trade-in allowance was $35,000 per unit.  After researching the 
current market value of our sweepers for trade-in, the City may be able to benefit by 
marketing these sweepers through trade publications and websites, thereby increasing 
the trade-in value of these pieces of equipment.  If that fails, the low bidder, W.F. Miller 
Company, would extend their offer to trade-in the equipment at $35,000 per unit at the 
time of delivery of the new units. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these sweepers are available through the Motor Pool Capital Account for 
Vehicles, #565.7981. 
 
31 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
 3 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 1 Bid did not meet specifications 
 3 No Bids: (2) Companies were unable to bid at this time 

(1) Company does not manufacture products in accordance with the City’s 
specifications. 

 
 
 
Prepared by: Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Motor Pool 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-49
Opening Date -- 11/22/05 BID TABULATION Pg 1of 1
Date Prepared -- 12/15/05 TWO STREET SWEEPERS

VENDOR NAME: **

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

(2) 32,000 GVW REGENERATIVE AIR STREET SWEEPERS
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS
            COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 147,776$       295,552$       151,935$       303,870$        

Quoting On: 600 BAH
Manufactrued by: TYMCO ELGIN

LESS - TRADE-INS:
       2002 Freightliner Tymco Model #600 (35,000)$       (27,000)$        
       2002 Freightliner Tymco Model #600 (35,000)$       (27,000)$        

                         NET TOTAL: ** 225,552$        249,870$        

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES YES

LOCATION: Address 25125 TRANS-X  NOVI 48376 78 NORTHPOINTE DR LAKE ORION
Inventory of Replacement Parts 110,000$                1,000,000$             
Hrs of Operations 7-4  MON-FRI 8-5  M-F
Turn around time on Special Orders 16 HRS NEXT DAY AIR ONE DAY
Service - Hrs 24 HRS 24 HRS
Warranty Work Information  (Y or N) YES YES

TERMS: NET 10TH NET 30 DAYS

BLOWER WARRANTY: TWO YEARS TWO YEARS

ENGINE/TRANSMISSION WARRANTY:

SWEEPER WARRANTY: TWO YEARS 5YEARS P/L

DELIVERY DATE: 120 DAYS ARO 8-10 WEEKS ARO

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N YES YES

NO BIDS: ** DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
Jack Doheny Supplies Inc
Tennant DMS:  WF Miller Company - $214,788 - Reason: Warranty not as specified
VIP Truck Center            (Alternate Bid)

ATTEST:
Marla Moseley ____________________________
Charlene Mc Comb Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 05-49 Street Sweepers w/trade-ins

WF MILLER COMPANY

ATTACHED TO BID

BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY

ATTACHED TO BID

60 MONTHS / 50,000 MILES FULL SERVICE COVERAGE

CROSSWIND SERIES J+







January 12, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
      
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – 

Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On December 12, 2005, bids were received for the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
Program.  City management recommends awarding the contract to the low total bidder, 
Insituform Technologies USA, Inc. of Chesterfield, MO, for an estimated total cost of 
$227,490.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.  
 
In addition, staff requests authorization to change the quantity of work either additive or 
deductive at unit prices quoted, provided the total arithmetic dollar value of all such 
changes does not exceed 25% of the contract total and falls within budgetary limits.   
 
The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder submission of proper contract 
and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, in compliance with the Specifications for the project and Federal Contract 
Provisions.  Due to bonding requirements and grant provisions, the program was bid on 
a low total award basis.  
 
SUMMARY 
The Sanitary Sewer Rehab Program includes: 

• Cleaning, reaming, and video inspection 
• Restoring fully deteriorated structural CIPP Lining 
• Structural Spot Repair 
• Joint testing and sealing 

Certain work items are listed on the bid tab with no quantity, in order to establish a 
contract price if that type/size job is encountered during the contract.  Work is to be 
completed by June 30, 2006. 
 
Proposal A, section 18 (Part I, II, III and IV) is funded in part by a Rouge River National 
Wet Weather Demonstration Project – Round VI Part A Grant that is administered by 
the Wayne County Department of Environment.   
Proposal B, section 2 work is not included in the Grant and is for structural spot repair. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the 2005/06 budget in the Sewer Capital Fund, Rouge SSO 
Grant #535.7973.05401 and Manhole Rehabilitation Account #535.7973.984035.  
 
133 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
    4-Week Advertisement with Michigan Contractor & Builder 
    1 Vendor Walk-In 
    3 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta/Farouk, Project Construction Manager  

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-16
Opening Date -- 12/12/05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 12/19/05 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: **

Check number 0057843 452090961
Check amount $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

Proposal: City of Troy Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Contract for various locations in the City of Troy in accordance with the
Specifications.

PROPOSAL: A - SEC 18 - Part I Est Qty Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL
1. Flushing of Sanitary Sewers 0 Ft 2.00$    2.50$       1.00$       
2. Sewer close Circuit video Insp. 0 Ft 1.00$    1.30$       1.50$       
3. Sewer Calcite Reaming 0 Ft 800.00$ 3.00$       3.00$       
4. Sewer Grease Reaming/Cutting 0 Ft 800.00$ 3.00$       3.00$       
5. Sewer Roots Reaming/Cutting 4 Loc. 800.00$ 3,200.00$       4.00$       16.00$          500.00$   2,000.00$        
6. Reaming of Protruding Lateral 0 Lat. 800.00$ 150.00$   500.00$   

Total of Part I 3,200.00$       16.00$          2,000.00$        

Part II Est Qty Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL
Structural CIPP Lining

1. Manhole to Manhole CIPP - 8" 6,011 Ft 29.50$  177,324.50$   36.00$     216,396$       42.00$     252,462$         
2. Manhole to Manhole CIPP - 10" 0 Ft 38.00$  45.00$     56.00$     
3. Manhole to Manhole CIPP - 12" 273 Ft 41.00$  11,193.00$     47.00$     12,831$        71.00$     19,383$           
4. Manhole to Manhole CIPP - 15" 0 Ft 55.00$   58.00$     87.00$     

Total of Part II 188,517.50$   229,227$       271,845$         

Part III Est Qty Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL
Pipe point structural spot repair

1. 8" Diameter - 3' to 10' lenghts 16 Lengths 1,850$  29,600$          3,300$     52,800$        2,750$     44,000$           
2. 8" Diameter - 10' to 20' lenghts 0 lengths 4,320$  6,000$     3,250$     
3. 8" Diameter - 20' to 30' lenghts 0 lengths 6,170$  9,500$     4,000$     

Total of Part III 29,600$          52,800$        44,000$           

Part IV Est Qty Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL
Sewer pipe joint sealing

1. 8" Diameter - 3' to 10' lenghts 0 Lengths 14.00$  125.00$   150.00$   
2. 8" Diameter - 10' to 20' lenghts 0 lengths 14.00$  300.00$   300.00$   
3. 8" Diameter - 20' to 30' lenghts 0 lengths 14.00$  900.00$   450.00$   

Total of Part IV -$               -$              -$                 

PROPOSAL: B - SEC  2 - Part 1 Est Qty Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL

1. 8" Diameter - 3' to 10' lenghts 1 Lengths 1,850$  1,850.00$       3,300$     3,300.00$      2,750$     2,750.00$        
2. 8" Diameter - 10' to 20' lenghts 1 lengths 4,320$  4,320.00$       4,000$     4,000.00$      3,250$     3,250.00$        
3. 8" Diameter - 20' to 30' lenghts 0 lengths 6,170$  9,500$     4,000$     

Total of Part 1 6,170.00$       7,300.00$      6,000.00$        

GRAND TOTAL  - PROPOSAL A: 221,317.50$   282,043$       $ 317,845$         
GRAND TOTAL  - PROPOSAL B: 6,170.00$       7,300$          $ 6,000$             
TOTAL CONTRACT PROPOSAL (A & B) ** 227,487.50$   289,343$       $ 323,845$         

Estimated
INSURANCE Can Meet XX XX XX

Cannot Meet

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Y or N YES BLANK YES

COMPLETION DATE:
Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TECHNOLOGIES USA INC
UTILITY SERVICES

AUTHORITY LLC
LIQUIFORCE SERVICES

USA INC
INSITUFORM

930122182

MARCH 31, 2006 NO LATER THAN JUNE 30,2006



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-16
Opening Date -- 12/12/05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 12/19/05 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: **

TERMS: 90% UNTIL COMPLETION NET 30 NET 30

WARRANTY: ONE YEAR BLANK ONE YEAR

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES YES

FORMS REQUIRED TO BE COMPLETED
AT TIME OF BID SUBMISSION:

1 Non-Collusion Affidavit: Y or N YES YES YES
1 Legal Status of Bidder Y or N YES YES YES
1 Bidder Questionnaire Y or N YES YES YES
4 Federal Contract Provision   Y or N YES YES NO

ATTEST:

Marina Basta-Farouk ** DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Cheryl Stewart

Linda Bockstanz _____________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:\ ITB-COT 05-16 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Program

LIQUIFORCE SERVICES
USA INC

UTILITY SERVICES
TECHNOLOGIES USA INC

INSITUFORM
AUTHORITY LLC











January 16, 2006  
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director  
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low 

Bidders – Water System Materials 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On December 27, 2005, bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year 
requirements of Water System Materials.  After reviewing these proposals, City 
management recommends awarding contracts to the following low bidders at 
estimated total costs:   
 

• SLC Meter Service Inc. of Davisburg, MI   $16,470.00 

• East Jordan Iron Works Inc. of Oak Park, MI   $24,578.00 

• Gunners Meters & Parts of Pontiac, MI    $  5,175.00 

• Cambridge Brass of Cambridge, Ontario Canada $50,687.00 

• National Waterworks Inc. of Shelby Township, MI  $13,687.00 
plus Mueller fire hydrant parts discounted at 5%.   

 
Unit prices are contained on the attached bid tabulation.   
 
SUMMARY 
All items recommended represent the lowest bidder for each item.  Estimated 
quantities of materials shall be purchased at quoted unit prices, and ordered on 
an as needed basis.  Informal quotes will be taken for Item #10, Gas Pipe, as no 
formal bids were received. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Water Department Operating Budget. 
 
 
119 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
    5 Bid Responses Rec’d 
    1 Late Bid  
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide   

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12-27-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 9
Date Prepared --  12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

CURB BOX ITEMS
1A. 60 2 X 1 1/2" BLACK BUSHING 2.25$         135.00$          3.20$          192.00$          
1B. 500 2" MINNEAPOLIS CURB BOX W/STEMS 23.00$      11,500.00$    NO QUOTE
1C. 10 2" Curb Box (Mueller #H10300-9902) N/B 23.46$        234.60$         
1D. 20 3 1/2 x 3 BLACK BUSHING N/B NO QUOTE

MANUFACTURER GENERAL FOUNDRY AY MCDONALD
MODEL 5614
CORPORATION STOPS

2A. 500 1" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 15.53$       7,765.00$       17.72$        8,860.00$       
2B. 50 1 1/2" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 42.51$       2,125.50$       52.88$        2,644.00$       
2C. 80 2" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 74.32$       5,945.60$       87.69$        7,015.20$       

MANUFACTURER AY MCDONALD
MODEL 4701
CURB STOPS (Ball Valve Type)

3A. 500 1" CURB STOPS with nuts 32.23$       16,115.00$     34.51$        17,255.00$     
3B. 50 1 1/2" CURB STOPS with nuts 69.24$       3,462.00$       76.66$        3,833.00$       
3C. 80 2" CURB STOPS with nuts 112.03$     8,962.40$       124.49$      9,959.20$       

MANUFACTURER AY MCDONALD
MODEL 6100
FULL CIRCLE REPAIR CLAMPS

4A. 30 6" X 8" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band 57.66$       1,729.80$       101.12$      3,033.60$       
4B. 15 6" x 12" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band 81.94$       1,229.10$       144.32$      2,164.80$       
4C. 10 6" x 15" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band 93.69$       936.90$          182.68$      1,826.80$       
4D. 10 6" x 8" FS2 Range 6.84-7.64 - Double Band 69.66$       696.60$          156.05$      1,560.50$       
4E. 10 8" x 7" Range 8.99-9.79 - Double Band 58.90$       589.00$          110.51$      1,105.10$       
4F. 4 8" x 12" Range 8.99-9.79 - Double Band 86.02$       344.08$          160.74$      642.96$          
4G. 10 8" x 15" Range 8..99-9.79 -Double Band 100.49$     1,004.90$       209.15$      2,091.50$       
4H. 2 16" x 15" FS2 Range 6.84-7.64 - Double Band 182.86$     365.72$          NO QUOTE
4I. 2 3" x 12" Range 3.46-3.70 - Single Band 36.75$       73.50$            76.43$        152.86$          

MANUFACTURER FORD ROMAC
MODEL SS2
TRANSITION COUPLING

5A. 12 8" Trans Coupling Range 8.54 x 9.85 N/B 138.68$      1,664.16$       

BRASS FITTINGS
6A. 120 1" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 9.62$         1,154.40$       11.92$        1,430.40$       
6B. 60 1" x 90 Degree Bend non-swivel w/out nuts 10.30$       618.00$          12.25$        735.00$          
6C. 25 1 1/2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 26.42$      660.50$         32.71$        817.75$         
6D. 25 2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 43.10$       1,077.50$       53.36$        1,334.00$       
6E. 80 2" x 90 Degree Bend non-swivel w/out nuts 55.88$       4,470.40$       72.75$        5,820.00$       
6F. 10 3/4" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 5.50$         55.00$            6.80$          68.00$            

MANUFACTURER FORD AY MCDONALD
MODEL

NOTE: BOLD AND HIGHLIGHTED ITEMS DENOTE LOW BIDDERS

FORD

SLC METER SERVICE INC

FORD

EAST JORDAN IRON WORKS

4758 & 4761Q



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12-27-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 9
Date Prepared -- 12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

BRONZE TAPPING SADDLES
7A. 32 1" x 8" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 56.20$       1,798.40$       69.58$        2,226.56$       
7B. 50 2" x 8" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 64.41$       3,220.50$       79.75$        3,987.50$       
7C. 20 1" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 45.41$      908.20$         56.23$        1,124.60$      
7D. 10 1 1/2" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 51.92$       519.20$          64.28$        642.80$          
7E. 10 2" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 57.04$       570.40$          70.63$        706.30$          
7F. 10 1 1/2 x 12" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 91.90$       919.00$          113.80$      1,138.00$       
7G. 50 2" x 12" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 93.57$       4,678.50$       115.85$      5,792.50$       

DUCTILE IRON PIPE
7H. 10 1" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread 199.53$     1,995.30$       247.06$      2,470.60$       
7I. 3 1 1/2" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread 211.72$    635.16$         262.16$      786.48$          
7J. 10 2" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread 233.96$    2,339.60$      289.70$      2,897.00$       

CONCRETE STEEL PIPE
7K. 20 1" x 16" Service Saddle s/CC thread 207.70$      4,154.00$       
7L. 10 1 1/2" x 16" Service Saddle w/CC thread 232.75$      2,327.50$       
7M. 10 2" x 16" Service Saddle w/CC thread 255.50$      2,555.00$       

MANUFACTURER AY MCDONALD
MODEL 3825 & 452

VALVE BOX PARTS
8A. 12 24" D-BOX BOTTOM 30.30$        363.60$         
8B. 25 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE #69 29.40$        735.00$         

MANUFACTURER EJIW
MODEL 6860

WATER MAIN FITTINGS
9A. 2 12" WATER MAIN CAP - DI 54.90$        109.80$         
9B. 1 12" Mechanical Gasket cut in Sleeve - DI NO QUOTE
9C. 5 6" Mechanical Gasket cut in Sleeve - DI NO QUOTE
9D. 25 12" MJ Gasket 1.45$          36.25$           
9E. 1 6" x 11 1/4 Degree Bend 43.20$        43.20$           
9F. 1 6" MJ x 4" Spigots Reducer 32.40$        32.40$           
9G. 20 6" D.I. Gland Pack Kit Regular 11.70$        234.00$         
9H. 20 8" Gland Pack Kit Regular 13.50$        270.00$         
9I. 2 8" x 11 1/4 - Degree Bend 67.50$        135.00$         
9J. 2 8" x 22 1/4 - Degree Bend 70.65$        141.30$         
9K. 5 8" Split Rings 14.95$        74.75$           
9L. 6 6"  90-Deg MJ Anchoring Elbow 100.74$      604.44$         
9M. 25 6" - 8" Operating Nut Valve  MUVOPN8 NO QUOTE
9N. 2 3" Water Main Plug MJ - Ductile Iron 12.42$        24.84$           

MANUFACTURER TYLER/UNION
MODEL TYLER/UNION

NO BID

NO BID

EAST JORDAN IRON WORKSSLC METER SERVICE INC

NO BID



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12/27/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 9
Date Prepared -- 12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

GAS PIPE
10A. 3 lgth 1 1/4" Black Steel Pipe  FT
10B. 3 lgth 1" Black Steel Pipe FT
10C. 3 lgth 2" Black Steel Pipe FT

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

MANHOLE FRAMES & COVERS
11A. 12 1046Z  36" x 4" Frame 117.75$      1,413.00$      
11B. 12 1046ZPT  Frame 129.42$      1,553.04$      
11C. 80 1040Z  M/H Frame 135.29$      10,823.20$    
11D. 80 1040ZC M/H Cover 96.87$        7,749.60$      

MANUFACTURER EJIW
MODEL EJIW

12 PARTS FOR MUELLER FIRE HYDRANTS
DISCOUNT %
Parts Price List
Dated

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 16,470.06$    24,578.02$    

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation 7:30 - 5pm Mon-Fri 7-4pm
24 Hr Phone No. (734) 320-0215 (313) 255-3914

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 30

WARRANTY: STANDARD MFG BLANK

DELIVERY DATE: 2-4 WEEKS BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed - Y or N YES YES

AMENDMENT/ADDENDUM #1:   Y or N NO YES

ATTEST: PROPOSAL - ONE (1) YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS
 Emily Frontera
 Cheryl Stewart
 Linda Bockstanz

G:/WaterSystemMaterial ITB-COT 05-57

NO QUOTE

NO QUOTE

EAST JORDAN IRON WORKS

NO BID

NO BID

SLC METER SERVICE INC

NO BID



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12-27-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 9
Date Prepared -- 12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

CURB BOX ITEMS
1A. 60 2 X 1 1/2" BLACK BUSHING 1.25$        75.00$           2.30$          138.00$          
1B. 500 2" MINNEAPOLIS CURB BOX W/STEMS 33.00$       16,500.00$     25.05$        12,525.00$     
1C. 10 2" Curb Box (Mueller #H10300-9902) 88.00$       880.00$          30.03$        300.30$          
1D. 20 3 1/2 x 3 BLACK BUSHING 5.00$        100.00$         10.36$        207.20$          

MANUFACTURER MCDONALD AY MCDONALD
MODEL 5613

CORPORATION STOPS
2A. 500 1" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 16.00$       8,000.00$       15.87$        7,935.00$       
2B. 50 1 1/2" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 44.00$       2,200.00$       41.23$        2,061.50$       
2C. 80 2" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 77.00$       6,160.00$       75.65$        6,052.00$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

CURB STOPS (Ball Valve Type)
3A. 500 1" CURB STOPS with nuts 33.00$       16,500.00$     36.96$        18,480.00$     
3B. 50 1 1/2" CURB STOPS with nuts 72.00$       3,600.00$       72.94$        3,647.00$       
3C. 80 2" CURB STOPS with nuts 116.00$     9,280.00$       117.97$      9,437.60$       

MANUFACTURER MUELLER
MODEL H15154 / B25154

FULL CIRCLE REPAIR CLAMPS
4A. 30 6" X 8" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band 45.94$        1,378.20$      
4B. 15 6" x 12" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band 68.27$        1,024.05$      
4C. 10 6" x 15" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band 86.52$        865.20$         
4D. 10 6" x 8" FS2 Range 6.84-7.64 - Double Band 61.32$        613.20$         
4E. 10 8" x 7" Range 8.99-9.79 - Double Band 52.38$        523.80$         
4F. 4 8" x 12" Range 8.99-9.79 - Double Band 75.99$        303.96$         
4G. 10 8" x 15" Range 8..99-9.79 -Double Band 98.76$        987.60$         
4H. 2 16" x 15" FS2 Range 6.84-7.64 - Double Band 161.11$      322.22$         
4I. 2 3" x 12" Range 3.46-3.70 - Single Band 35.52$        71.04$           

MANUFACTURER SMITH BLAIR
MODEL 262 / 265

TRANSITION COUPLING
5A. 12 8" Trans Coupling Range 8.54 x 9.85 150.00$     1,800.00$       116.03$      1,392.36$       

BRASS FITTINGS
6A. 120 1" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 9.00$         1,080.00$       10.06$        1,207.20$       
6B. 60 1" x 90 Degree Bend non-swivel w/out nuts 10.00$       600.00$          10.83$        649.80$          
6C. 25 1 1/2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 25.00$      625.00$         27.77$        694.25$         
6D. 25 2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 40.00$       1,000.00$       45.31$        1,132.75$       
6E. 80 2" x 90 Degree Bend non-swivel w/out nuts 55.00$      4,400.00$      60.00$        4,800.00$       
6F. 10 3/4" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 6.00$         60.00$            5.77$          57.70$            

MANUFACTURER MUELLER
MODEL

NATIONAL WATERWORKS

MCDONALD

MCDONALD

NO BID

GUNNERS METERS & PARTS

MCDONALD



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12-27-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 9
Date Prepared -- 12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

BRONZE TAPPING SADDLES
7A. 32 1" x 8" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 58.95$        1,886.40$       
7B. 50 2" x 8" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 67.64$        3,382.00$       
7C. 20 1" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 47.62$        952.40$         
7D. 10 1 1/2" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 54.45$        544.50$          
7E. 10 2" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 59.85$        598.50$          
7F. 10 1 1/2 x 12" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 96.44$        964.40$          
7G. 50 2" x 12" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 98.20$        4,910.00$       

DUCTILE IRON PIPE
7H. 10 1" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread 217.94$      2,179.40$       
7I. 3 1 1/2" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread 231.24$      693.72$          
7J. 10 2" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread 255.54$      2,555.40$       

CONCRETE STEEL PIPE
7K. 20 1" x 16" Service Saddle s/CC thread 102.50$      2,050.00$      
7L. 10 1 1/2" x 16" Service Saddle w/CC thread 102.50$      1,025.00$      
7M. 10 2" x 16" Service Saddle w/CC thread 102.50$      1,025.00$      

MANUFACTURER
MODEL
VALVE BOX PARTS

8A. 12 24" D-BOX BOTTOM 35.68$        428.16$          
8B. 25 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE #69 33.73$        843.25$         

MANUFACTURER UNION/TYLER
MODEL 6860
WATER MAIN FITTINGS

9A. 2 12" WATER MAIN CAP - DI 60.27$        120.54$         
9B. 1 12" Mechanical Gasket cut in Sleeve - DI 594.75$      594.75$         
9C. 5 6" Mechanical Gasket cut in Sleeve - DI 246.49$      1,232.45$      
9D. 25 12" MJ Gasket 1.49$          37.25$           
9E. 1 6" x 11 1/4 Degree Bend 46.86$        46.86$           
9F. 1 6" MJ x 4" Spigots Reducer 38.07$        38.07$           
9G. 20 6" D.I. Gland Pack Kit Regular 12.69$        253.80$         
9H. 20 8" Gland Pack Kit Regular 14.95$        299.00$          
9I. 2 8" x 11 1/4 - Degree Bend 73.21$        146.42$          
9J. 2 8" x 22 1/4 - Degree Bend 76.63$        153.26$          
9K. 5 8" Split Rings 35.50$        177.50$          
9L. 6 6"  90-Deg MJ Anchoring Elbow 105.64$      633.84$          
9M. 25 6" - 8" Operating Nut Valve  MUVOPN8 11.12$        278.00$         
9N. 2 3" Water Main Plug MJ - Ductile Iron 13.50$        27.00$            

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

NATIONAL WATERWORKS

NO BID

NO BID

GUNNERS METERS & PARTS

NO BID

NO BID

NO BID



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12/27/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 9
Date Prepared -- 12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

GAS PIPE
10A. 3 lgth 1 1/4" Black Steel Pipe  FT
10B. 3 lgth 1" Black Steel Pipe FT
10C. 3 lgth 2" Black Steel Pipe FT

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

MANHOLE FRAMES & COVERS
11A. 12 1046Z  36" x 4" Frame 139.50$      1,674.00$       
11B. 12 1046ZPT  Frame 327.01$      3,924.12$       
11C. 80 1040Z  M/H Frame 160.27$      12,821.60$     
11D. 80 1040ZC M/H Cover 114.77$      9,181.60$       

MANUFACTURER EJIW
MODEL EJIW

12 PARTS FOR MUELLER FIRE HYDRANTS
DISCOUNT % 5%
Parts Price List IMPROVED HYD
Dated 1/31/2005

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 5,175.00$      13,686.83$    

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation 8-5pm 7-4pm
24 Hr Phone No. (248) 545-6304 (586) 754-5783

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: 1 YEAR MANUFACTURER

DELIVERY DATE: 1-2 WEEKS 7-10 DAYS ARO

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK LISTED IN BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed - Y or N YES YES

AMENDMENT/ADDENDUM #1:   Y or N NO NO

G:/WaterSystemMaterial ITB-COT 05-57

NO BID

NO BID

NO BID

NATIONAL WATERWORKS

NO QUOTE

GUNNERS METERS & PARTS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12-27-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 7 of 9
Date Prepared -- 12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL

CURB BOX ITEMS
1A. 60 2 X 1 1/2" BLACK BUSHING
1B. 500 2" MINNEAPOLIS CURB BOX W/STEMS
1C. 10 2" Curb Box (Mueller #H10300-9902)
1D. 20 3 1/2 x 3 BLACK BUSHING

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

CORPORATION STOPS
2A. 500 1" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 14.39$      7,195.00$       
2B. 50 1 1/2" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 39.44$      1,972.00$       
2C. 80 2" CORPORATION STOPS with nuts 64.18$      5,134.40$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

CURB STOPS (Ball Valve Type)
3A. 500 1" CURB STOPS with nuts 25.00$      12,500.00$     
3B. 50 1 1/2" CURB STOPS with nuts 56.88$      2,844.00$       
3C. 80 2" CURB STOPS with nuts 84.95$      6,796.00$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

FULL CIRCLE REPAIR CLAMPS
4A. 30 6" X 8" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band
4B. 15 6" x 12" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band
4C. 10 6" x 15" Range 6.84-7.64 -Double Band
4D. 10 6" x 8" FS2 Range 6.84-7.64 - Double Band
4E. 10 8" x 7" Range 8.99-9.79 - Double Band
4F. 4 8" x 12" Range 8.99-9.79 - Double Band
4G. 10 8" x 15" Range 8..99-9.79 -Double Band
4H. 2 16" x 15" FS2 Range 6.84-7.64 - Double Band
4I. 2 3" x 12" Range 3.46-3.70 - Single Band

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

TRANSITION COUPLING
5A. 12 8" Trans Coupling Range 8.54 x 9.85

BRASS FITTINGS
6A. 120 1" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 8.92$         1,070.40$        
6B. 60 1" x 90 Degree Bend non-swivel w/out nuts N/A
6C. 25 1 1/2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 23.90$      597.50$          
6D. 25 2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 36.30$      907.50$          
6E. 80 2" x 90 Degree Bend non-swivel w/out nuts N/A
6F. 10 3/4" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 4.63$        46.30$            

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

CAMBRIDGE BRASS

NO BID

CAMBRIDGE BRASS
302 & 301 SERIES

CAMBRIDGE BRASS
262 BALL VALVE

NO BID

NO BID

CAMBRIDGE BRASS
118 SERIES



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12-27-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 8 of 9
Date Prepared -- 12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL

BRONZE TAPPING SADDLES
7A. 32 1" x 8" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 52.09$      1,666.88$       
7B. 50 2" x 8" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 59.69$      2,984.50$       
7C. 20 1" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 43.50$      870.00$          
7D. 10 1 1/2" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 49.21$      492.10$          
7E. 10 2" x 6" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 54.07$      540.70$          
7F. 10 1 1/2 x 12" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 83.24$      832.40$          
7G. 50 2" x 12" Tap Saddle w/CC thread 84.75$      4,237.50$       

DUCTILE IRON PIPE
7H. 10 1" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread
7I. 3 1 1/2" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread
7J. 10 2" x 16" D.I. Tap Saddle w/CC thread

CONCRETE STEEL PIPE
7K. 20 1" x 16" Service Saddle s/CC thread
7L. 10 1 1/2" x 16" Service Saddle w/CC thread
7M. 10 2" x 16" Service Saddle w/CC thread

MANUFACTURER
MODEL
VALVE BOX PARTS

8A. 12 24" D-BOX BOTTOM
8B. 25 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE #69

MANUFACTURER
MODEL
WATER MAIN FITTINGS

9A. 2 12" WATER MAIN CAP - DI
9B. 1 12" Mechanical Gasket cut in Sleeve - DI
9C. 5 6" Mechanical Gasket cut in Sleeve - DI
9D. 25 12" MJ Gasket
9E. 1 6" x 11 1/4 Degree Bend
9F. 1 6" MJ x 4" Spigots Reducer
9G. 20 6" D.I. Gland Pack Kit Regular
9H. 20 8" Gland Pack Kit Regular
9I. 2 8" x 11 1/4 - Degree Bend
9J. 2 8" x 22 1/4 - Degree Bend
9K. 5 8" Split Rings
9L. 6 6"  90-Deg MJ Anchoring Elbow
9M. 25 6" - 8" Operating Nut Valve  MUVOPN8
9N. 2 3" Water Main Plug MJ - Ductile Iron

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

NO BID

810 SERIES
NO BID

NO BID

CAMBRIDGE BRASS

CAMBRIDGE BRASS

NO BID



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-57
Opening Date -- 12/27/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 9 of 9
Date Prepared -- 12/29/05 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL

GAS PIPE
10A. 3 lgth 1 1/4" Black Steel Pipe  FT
10B. 3 lgth 1" Black Steel Pipe FT
10C. 3 lgth 2" Black Steel Pipe FT

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

MANHOLE FRAMES & COVERS
11A. 12 1046Z  36" x 4" Frame
11B. 12 1046ZPT  Frame
11C. 80 1040Z  M/H Frame
11D. 80 1040ZC M/H Cover

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

12 PARTS FOR MUELLER FIRE HYDRANTS
DISCOUNT %
Parts Price List
Dated

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 50,687.18$     

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation 8-4:30pm
24 Hr Phone No. (519) 673-2810

TERMS: 2% 15th  M-F

WARRANTY: 40 YEARS

DELIVERY DATE: 7 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: 1" BALL VALVE ON CURB STOPS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed - Y or N YES

AMENDMENT/ADDENDUM #1:   Y or N NO

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/WaterSystemMaterial ITB-COT 05-57

CAMBRIDGE BRASS

NO BID

NO BID

NO BID











campbellld
Text Box
E-04e











January 16, 2006 
 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award- 

Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications- Pump Replacement for 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Pump Station 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals were opened December 29, 2005, to furnish all labor, tools and 
equipment to remove and dispose of existing pumps and replace them with a new 
prefabricated station at Sylvan Glen Golf Course. City management recommends a 
contract be awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, Marc Dutton Irrigation, Inc. of 
Waterford, Michigan, for an estimated total cost of $91,250.00. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid and 
contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
Flowtronics submitted a bid that did not meet specifications. Flowtronics proposed steel 
heads on the main pumps, which the specifications called for ductile iron heads. Also 
missing from their proposal was an emergency on the fly back-up system in the event of 
variable speed motor failure as specified in the bid document. This is an integral part of 
the pump station because it allows for the continued use of the station with variable 
speed motor capabilities, without loss of water to the golf course for irrigation purposes. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
On average, the life expectancy of a pump station similar to the system we currently 
have at Sylvan Glen is approximately 18 to 20 years.  The current pump station at 
Sylvan Glen is 19 years old and is beginning to have yearly problems.  This station 
provides irrigation water to the greens, tees, fairways, and roughs of the golf course 
during the dry periods of the golf season.  The system pumps water to irrigate 50 acres 
of the course on an as-needed basis. 
 
Initially, staff intended to recondition the existing pump station. Upon further review it 
was determined that given the age and condition of the equipment, this was not a good 
fiscal decision. The equipment currently in place would cost as much to recondition and 
refurbish as a new station. Parts, hardware, and electrical components are antiquated 
and obsolete. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this project are currently available in the Sylvan Glen Golf Course Capital 
Account #788.7974.130. 

1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04f



January 16, 2006 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Pump Replacement at Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
 
 
88 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
  2 Vendor Walk-Ins 
  4 Bid Responses Received 
  1 Bid did not meet specifications 
  2 No Bids: (1) Company does not provide this type of pump package – Golf Course specific. 
  (1) Company was not able to bid the contract as specified. 
 
 
Prepared by: Danny T. McDonald, Superintendent of Greens 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY        ITB-COT  05-55
Opening Date -- 12/29/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 1/16/06 PUMP REPLACEMENT - GOLF COURSE

VENDOR NAME: ** MARC DUTTON
IRRIGATION INC Construction Company

Check # 271593928 930151037 033067505
Amount

PROPOSAL : TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT INCLUDING CRANES TO REPLACE THE PUMPS
AT SYLVAN GLEN GOLF COURSE PUMP STATION

PROPOSAL:   PUMP REPLACEMENTS

Complete for the sum of: 91,250$    93,650$    164,000$ 

Model: NPSVX SS50X2T-2303 NPSVX SS50X2T2303
Manufactured by: Watertronics

Descriptive Literature Y or N No Yes Yes

Service:  (Warranty Work) Y or N Yes Yes Yes

Service Facility:
Location: 4720 Hatchery Rd 6256 N Telegraph Rd 4975 Technical Drive

Waterford Dearborn Heights Milford
Number of Miles from Troy 20 20
Monday - Friday 8-5 6:30-5 8-5
Saturday 8-3 8-3 8-5
24 Hr Phone # (248)674-4470 (586) 295-2333 (248) 684-1200

EXPERIENCE:
# of Years Installing Pumps 30 10 30
# of Successful Installs 50 100+ 300+

COMPLETION DATE: 72 Calendar Days 8 Weeks 150 Calendar Days

SITE INSPECTION:
Our Company visited the site XX XX
Date 12/15/2005 12/28/2005
Our Company did not visited the site XX

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: 30 Days Net 30 Days In full at completion

WARRANTY: 2 Years 2 Years 2 Years

EXCEPTIONS: None Attached to Bid Listed in Bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N Yes Yes Yes

FORMS : Non-Collusion     Y or N Yes No Yes
Legal Status of Bidder    Y or N Yes No Yes

NO BIDS: DMS: Flowtronics, PSI - ($74,217.00)
 HydroDynamics Reason: No emergency back-up system, as specified.
 Kerr Pump & Supply

ATTEST: ** DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
 Alieen Bittner
 Danny McDonald ___________________________
 Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director
G: ITB-COT 05-55 Pump Replacement - Golf Course

NATIONAL PUMP

O'Laughlin

NATIONAL PUMP

$4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

PSI - Pumps &
Systems, Inc









January 10, 2006  
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Parks and Recreation Department recommends approval of a one-year 
contract renewal option for Landscape Maintenance Services for the Downtown 
Development Authority and Civic Center with Torre & Bruglio, Inc., for an 
estimated total cost of $238,788.00.  This costs includes installation of annual 
flowers at the Troy Civic Center and in the landscaped medians of Big Beaver.  
All terms, conditions, and unit pricing will remain the same as for the 2005 
season and will expire December 31, 2006. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On April 8, 2002, the Troy City Council approved a contract to provide three – year 
requirements of upgraded landscape maintenance services for the Troy Civic Center 
and the Downtown Development Authority areas within the Big Beaver corridor.  The 
contract includes an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods to Torre & 
Bruglio, the highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value process. 
{Resolution#2002-04-213}.  
 
On March 21, 2005, Council approved the first of two (2) one-year extension options as 
well as the additional installation of annual flowers to the Big Beaver medians from I-75 
to Rochester Road and the Rochester Road medians directly north and south of Big 
Beaver {Resolution#2005-03-126}.  Staff will re-bid the landscape maintenance of the 
areas covered under this contract at the conclusion of the 2006 growing season. 
 
ADDITIONAL ANNUALS 
Two years ago, the medians on Big Beaver Road from I-75, east to Rochester 
Road were landscaped with a design of evergreen and deciduous trees, shrubs, 
and daylilies.  The landscape design also called for the use of annual flowers at 
various point throughout the design to provide constant color and uniformity with 
other medians in Troy that contain annual flower plantings.  Last year, annuals 
were included for the first time to these medians, leading to many positive 
comments by staff, residents, businesses and visitors.  
 

1 of 4 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04g



January 10, 2006 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Since the medians from I-75 to Rochester Road, had not been landscaped when 
the original Torre & Bruglio landscape contract was approved in 2002, the bid did 
not contain a cost for planting the additional annuals, prompting Council action to 
approve the cost of the annuals last season and again next season. 
 
Annual flowers are planted every spring at the entrances of parks and 
cemeteries, in planter beds at City Hall, Library, Aquatic Center, Community 
Center, Museum, Fire Stations, Nature Center, and numerous landscaped 
medians throughout the City, including Big Beaver from I-75 west to Coolidge. 
The following municipal areas contain seasonal plantings of annual flowers: 
 
Parks: 
Beach Road Park           Jaycee Park 
Beaver Trail Park     Raintree Park 
Boulan Park     Redwood 
Brinston Park     Robinwood Park 
Firefighters Park     Sylvan Glen Lake Park 
Flynn Park 
  
Municipal Facilities:   
City Hall      Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
Community Center     Union Corners Cemetery 
Family Aquatic Center    Crooks Road Cemetery 
Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center   Beach Road Cemetery 
Fire Stations      Perrin Cemetery 
Museum 
   
Landscaped Medians:  
Big Beaver, I-75 west to Coolidge  Corporate Drive and Crooks Road 
Coolidge at Big Beaver    Tower Drive at Crooks Road 
Crooks Rd. at Long Lake    Long Lake, Corporate to Abington 
Coolidge Rd. at Long Lake   John R Road, 15 Mile to14 Mile 
Corporate Drive at Long Lake  14 Mile Road, I-75 to Executive 
 
The repeat of installation of annual flowers to the landscaped section of Big 
Beaver medians from I-75 to Rochester Road will continue to tie together the 
new landscape with existing established plantings on Big Beaver, west of I-75, 
and the Civic Center.  Annual flowers provide much-needed color in the spring 
and throughout the summer.  They are an integral part of our municipal 
landscape and elicit many positive comments from residents, businesses and 
visitors alike. 
 



January 10, 2006 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 3 of 4 
 
ANNUALS VS. PERENNIALS 
Last year when Council approved the first of (2) one-year options to renew this 
contract, there was some debate over whether we should be planting perennials 
rather than annuals in the medians, and other areas where annuals are planted 
throughout the City.  Some of the issues to consider are: 
 
Appearance - Annuals provide a color that remains constant for the entire 
summer.  Perennials generally bloom for periods of only two or three weeks and 
must be planted with other perennials offering different bloom cycles to provide 
continuous color.   With perennials, the blooms that occur are generally smaller 
and less spectacular than a mass planting of annuals.  
 
Labor - Annuals must be replanted every season while perennials can be planted 
once and may not need to be divided for 3 to 5 years.  However, one should not 
assume that there would be no maintenance needed once a perennial bed is 
planted.  Perennial beds must still be weeded, woody perennials require periodic 
trimming, and all perennial beds need yearly mulching.  While annual beds also 
must be weeded, and spent blooms removed, there is no requirement for yearly 
mulching. 
 
Cost – One might assume that landscaping with perennials would be less 
expensive than with annuals since perennials are planted once, rather than 
yearly as with annual flowers.  However, this is not generally the case when 
discussing large scale planting areas, such as those covered under this contract.  
It is recommended that perennial plantings be divided every 3 to 5 years, 
requiring complete renovation of the planting area.  This would add considerably 
to the overall cost of landscaping with perennials. 
 
For example, the cost to have Torre & Bruglio plant annuals on the landscaped 
Big Beaver medians, as well as at City Hall and the Community Center will be 
$87,964.  Planting perennials in the areas covered by this contract that have 
been previously planted with annuals would result in an initial cost estimated at 
$555,970.  A renovation of the perennial beds every 3 to 5 years would require 
and additional minimum estimated cost of $200,000. 
 
Staff recommends continuing planting with annuals rather than perennials in the 
landscaped medians of Big Beaver Road, Civic Center and Community Center, 
as well as all of the other areas throughout the city currently planted with 
annuals.  While perennials are an excellent choice in a labor-intensive home 
garden utilizing free manpower, they are not a cost efficient substitute for annuals 
in a large, commercial type setting. 
  



 
January 10, 2006 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
SUMMARY 
Torre & Bruglio, Inc. has agreed to renew the contract landscape maintenance 
services for the Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority landscaped 
medians for the 2006 season under the 2005 unit pricing as follows: 
 
Landscape maintenance services      $151,814 
Annual flowers, including installation      $  57,200 
          $209,014 
 
Additional annual flowers, including installation for 
Big Beaver (DDA) medians, I-75 to Rochester Rd.   $  29,764 
               ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR 2006   $238,778 
 
Torre & Bruglio has done an exceptional job of providing superior landscape 
maintenance for the City of Troy.  Staff recommends exercising the second of 
two (2) one-year options to renew the contract, and also requests approval of 
annual flower installation in the DDA median landscaping east of I-75. 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
Due to utilizing the best value process in evaluating the request for proposal, a 
market survey was not deemed necessary, since price is only one aspect of the 
criteria used in making the award.  Quality is a major component of this contract 
and Torre & Bruglio has been able to consistently deliver quality services. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Parks and Recreation operating budget for the 
renewal of this contract for the 2006 season.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final                                                March 21, 2005 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: 
None; b) City Council Appointments: None 

 
F-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – 

Landscape Maintenance Services 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, On April 8, 2002, a three-year contract with an option to renew for 
two (2) additional one-year periods to provide upgraded landscape maintenance 
services for the Troy Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority was 
awarded to Torre & Bruglio, the highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value 
process (Resolution #2002-04-213); and 
 
WHEREAS, Torre & Bruglio has agreed to exercise the first of two (2)  one (1) 
year options to renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 
season. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is 
hereby EXERCISED with Torre & Bruglio to provide upgraded landscape 
maintenance services for an estimated cost of $209,014.00, at unit prices 
contained on the tabulation opened January 25, 2002, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  In addition, approval is 
GRANTED to purchase annual flowers for the medians on Big Beaver from I-75 
to Rochester Road and on Rochester Road medians adjoining Big Beaver Road 
for an estimated cost of $29,764.00.   
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-03-125 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by removing the appropriation 
for the planting of flowers along the entire Big Beaver Corridor and DIRECT City 
Administration to send a proposal for the planting of annuals out for bid. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No: Lambert, Stine, Beltramini  
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
MOTION FAILED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final                                                March 21, 2005 
Vote on Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-03-126 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, On April 8, 2002, a three-year contract with an option to renew for 
two (2) additional one-year periods to provide upgraded landscape maintenance 
services for the Troy Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority was 
awarded to Torre & Bruglio, the highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value 
process (Resolution #2002-04-213); and 
 
WHEREAS, Torre & Bruglio has agreed to exercise the first of two (2) one (1) 
year options to renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 
season. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is 
hereby EXERCISED with Torre & Bruglio to provide upgraded landscape 
maintenance services for an estimated cost of $209,014.00, at unit prices 
contained on the tabulation opened January 25, 2002, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  In addition, approval is 
GRANTED to purchase annual flowers for the medians on Big Beaver from I-75 
to Rochester Road and on Rochester Road medians adjoining Big Beaver Road 
for an estimated cost of $29,764.00.   
 
Yes: Stine, Beltramini, Lambert    
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



March 1, 2005  
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Parks and Recreation Department recommends approval of a one-year 
contract renewal option for Landscape Maintenance Services for the Downtown 
Development Authority and Civic Center with Torre & Bruglio, Inc., for an 
estimated total cost of $209,014.00. All terms, conditions, and unit pricing will 
remain the same as for the 2004 season and will expire December 31, 2005. 
 
In addition, staff requests the approval of annual flowers for the section of 
landscaped medians on Big Beaver, from I-75 to Rochester Road and on the 
Rochester Road medians adjoining Big Beaver Road at an additional cost of 
$29,764.00 for a total cost for this contract for the 2005 season of $238,778.00 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
On April 8, 2002, the Troy City Council approved a contract to provide three – year 
requirements of upgraded landscape maintenance services for the Troy Civic Center 
and the Downtown Development Authority areas within the Big Beaver corridor. The 
contract includes an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods to Torre & 
Bruglio, the highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value process. 
{Resolution#2002-04-213}.   
 
ADDITIONAL ANNUALS 
Last year, the medians on Big Beaver Road from I-75, east to Rochester Road 
were landscaped with a design of evergreen and deciduous trees, shrubs, and 
daylilies. The landscape design also called for the use of annual flowers at 
various point throughout the design to provide constant color and uniformity with 
other medians in Troy that contain annual flower plantings. While the bulk of the 
plant material for the project was installed through contract to be completed by 
the end of the calendar year of 2003, the installation of annuals were scheduled 
to be included with the rest of the annual flower planting in the spring by the 
landscape maintenance contractor, Torre & Bruglio, Inc. 
 

1 of 4 



March 1, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Since the medians from I-75 to Rochester Road, had not previously been 
planted, the Torre & Bruglio landscape bid did not contain a cost for the 
additional annuals. Last year’s cost for the additional annuals exceeded the 10% 
built into the contract for additional work and item was therefore taken to City 
Council for approval. Council denied the request and no annuals were planted on 
the newly planted medians from I-75 to Rochester Road in 2004. 
 
Annual flowers are planted every spring at the entrances of parks and 
cemeteries, in planter beds at City Hall, Library, Aquatic Center, Community 
Center, Museum, Fire Stations, Nature Center, and numerous landscaped 
medians throughout the City, including Big Beaver from I-75 west to Coolidge. 
The following municipal areas contain seasonal plantings of annual flowers: 
 
Parks: 
Beach Road Park           Jaycee Park 
Beaver Trail Park     Raintree Park 
Boulan Park     Redwood 
Brinston Park      Robinwood Park 
Firefighters Park     Sylvan Glen Lake Park 
Flynn Park 
  
Municipal Facilities:   
City Hall      Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
Community Center     Union Corners Cemetery 
Family Aquatic Center    Crooks Road Cemetery 
Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center   Beach Road Cemetery 
Fire Stations      Perrin Cemetery 
Museum 
   
Landscaped Medians:  
Big Beaver, I-75 west to Coolidge   Corporate Drive and Crooks Road 
Coolidge at Big Beaver    Tower Drive at Crooks Road 
Crooks Rd. at Long Lake    Long Lake, Corporate to Abington 
Coolidge Rd. at Long Lake    John R Road, 15 Mile to14 Mile 
Corporate Drive at Long Lake  14 Mile Road, I-75 to Executive 
 
The addition of annual flowers to the newly landscaped section of Big Beaver 
medians east of I-75 will complete the intended landscape design and tie 
together the new landscape with existing established plantings on Big Beaver, 
west of I-75, and the Civic Center. Annual flowers provide a much-needed splash 
of color in the spring and throughout the summer. They are an integral part of our 
municipal landscape and elicit many positive comments from residents and 
visitors alike. 
 



March 1, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 3 of 4 
 
LEVELS OF MAINTENANCE 
The areas covered by this contract with Torre & Bruglio receive the highest level 
of service of any landscaped medians in Troy. The DDA median design includes 
a number of annual flowerbeds to provide visual interest and color. Large 
expanses of grass, trees, and some shrubs comprise most of the other 
landscaped medians in Troy. Annual beds are included at some major 
intersections. The level of service of those medians is generally lower than that 
provided by Torre & Bruglio for the DDA medians, since many do not contain 
irrigation, require only mowing.  
 
The maintenance of those medians is administered through a separate contract 
with another vendor. City Parks and Recreation personnel currently maintain all 
flowerbeds other than those on the DDA medians and Civic Center site. 
 
Cost savings could be realized on the maintenance of the DDA medians and 
Civic Center site by reducing the level of service, eliminating annual flowers, 
cutting back on irrigation, or converting flower beds to turf. However, a reduction 
in service level at these locations will result in a corresponding reduction in the 
overall appearance and appeal of the landscape. 
 
SUMMARY 
Torre & Bruglio, Inc. has agreed to renew the contract landscape maintenance 
services for the Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority landscaped 
medians for the 2005 season under the 2004 unit pricing as follows: 
 
Landscape maintenance services      $151,814 
Annual flowers, including installation      $  57,200 
          $209,014 
 
Additional annual flowers, including installation for 
Big Beaver (DDA) medians, I-75 to Rochester Rd. 
not planted previously       $  29,764 
               ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR 2005   $238,778 
 
Torre & Bruglio has done an exceptional job of providing superior landscape 
maintenance for the City of Troy. Staff recommends exercising the first of two (2) 
one-year options to renew the contract, and also requests approval of annual 
flower installation in the DDA median landscaping east of I-75. 



March 1, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 4 of 4 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
Due to utilizing the best value process in evaluating the request for proposal, a 
market survey was not deemed necessary, since price in only one aspect of the 
criteria used in making the award.  Quality is a major component of this contract 
and Torre & Bruglio has been able to consistently deliver quality services. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Parks and Recreation operating budget for the 
renewal of this contract for the 2005 season.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 

















1 

March 18, 2002 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Contract Award – Best Value Proposal 

Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
On January 25, 2002, request for qualifications (RFQ) and request for proposals 
(RFP) were opened for Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services at the Civic 
Center and Big Beaver medians from Rochester Road to Golfview. Staff is 
recommending that the contract be awarded to the lowest priced, most qualified 
bidder receiving the highest score, Torre & Bruglio, Inc. at an estimated three-
year cost of $507,488.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation 
opened 1/25/02. The length of the contract is three years, with two (2) one-year 
options to renew the contract based upon mutual consent of both parties under 
the same terms and conditions. 
 
If approved by Council, this bid shall be awarded to the recommended bidder 
contingent upon submission of proper contract and bid documents, including 
insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS: 
A total of one hundred thirty-nine (139) letters were sent to prospective bidders 
with eight (8) bidders returning responses. Two (2) bidders did not pass the 
minimum requirements:  All State Tree & Lawn Service, Inc. and Owens 
Landscaping.  All State Tree had indicated they were subcontracting a major 
component of the contract, mowing; and the evaluation committee deemed this 
unacceptable.  Owens Landscaping did not have personnel for the required 
certified Arborist position.  In addition, their insurance company did not submit 
the required letter stating Owens could meet the insurance specifications if 
awarded a contract.  The remaining six (6) bidders were evaluated based upon 
weighted criteria including the RFP responses and price. The final weighted 
score calculation was determined as follows: 
 
  50% x Price Score 
  20% x Vendor Questionnaire Score 
  20% x Equipment Review and Interview Score (Optional) 
  10% x Other Score 
  = Final Weighted Score 
 
Utilizing this selection process, Torre & Bruglio, Inc. was the highest rated 
vendor. 



2 

March 18, 2002 
 
To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Re: Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services 
 
 
BUDGET: 
Funds for this contract are available in the Parks Operating Accounts for 
Contractual Services #756.7802.070 and #783.7802.070.  
 
 
139 Proposals Sent 

8  Proposal Responses Rec’d 
2  Proposals did not meet minimum requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY–  
UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 
STATISTICS: 
 

u 139 letters were sent to prospective bidders  
u 8 responses were received 
u Torre & Bruglio was the most qualified bidder by 

receiving the highest score 
 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final 
scores: 
 
COMPANY  SCORE 
Torre & Bruglio 70 
Davey Commercial Grounds 
Management 

54 

Troy Clogg Landscape 
Associates, Inc. 

51 

Rasins Landscape Inc. 50 
United Landscape Inc. 26 
Cal Fleming Landscaping & 
Tree Service Inc. 

  9 

 
Two Bidders did not pass the minimum requirements: 
 
1. All State Tree & Lawn Service, Inc. 

Ø Their company would subcontract the mowing portion of the 
contract.  Since the specifications required approval to subcontract 
and mowing is a major component of the contract, it was deemed 
unacceptable. 

2. Owens Landscaping 
Ø The list of personnel assigned to the City of Troy account was 

incomplete as it did not include the required certified Arborist. 
Ø Their insurance company did not submit a letter stating that they 

would meet the insurance specifications if awarded a contract. 
 

Attachments: 
Weighted Final Scoring 
Evaluation Process 
Weighted Rating:  Vendor Evaluation and Other 
 



WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  
UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENCE SERVICES 

 
Final Score Calculation: 
 

50% x   Price Score 
20% x   Vendor Questionnaire Score 
20% x   Equipment Review and Interview Score (Optional) 
10% x   Other Score 
 
Final Weighted Score 

 
* In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, 

the prices had to be converted into a score with the base of 100 
 
 
VENDORS:     Davey Cal Fleming Rasins Torre & Bruglio Troy Clogg United Landscape 
Score 
 

      

       
PRICE SCORE:                             (x .50) =   
  

75 x.50 =       38 0 x .50 =       0 75 x .50 =     38 100 x .50 =     50 75 x .50 =      38 25 x .50 =      13 

       
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE 
SCORE:                                        (x  .20) =    

 
64  x .20 =     13  

 
47 x .20 =     9   

 
59 x .20 =     12 

 
77 x .20 =       15    

 
64 x .20 =      13 

 
63 x .20 =      13 

       
EQUIPMENT REVIEW AND OPTIONAL 
INTERVIEWS*:                             ( x  .20) = 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

       
OTHER:                                        ( x  .10) = 28 x .10          3   50 x .10 =         5   
       
       
 

FINAL  
WEIGHTED   
SCORE: 54 9 50 70** 51         26 
 
** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
 
 
* The Evaluation Committee agreed to reverse the order of Phase 3 and 4 at the request of the 
Facilitator for the project (Purchasing Department representative).  Since the committee was 
familiar with many of the vendor’s equipment, it was deemed appropriate to evaluate the pricing 
information before reviewing equipment or conducting the optional interviews if deemed 
necessary.  It was not deemed necessary to conduct interviews or review equipment. 
 
 
G:/BidAward 01-02/RFP UpgradedLandscapeMaintServices WeightedRatingSummary 02-02.doc 



COMMITTEE USE  
 
Evaluation Process – Upgraded Landscape Manageme nt Services 
 
Phase 1:   Evaluation of Proposals – Must meet minimum requirements.   
 
Bidders will be required to meet minimum specified requirements.  The initial pass/ fail evaluation will be made by a 
designated Committee representative. 
 
Phase 2:  Evaluation Process.   
 
The evaluating committee will review the Vendor Questionnaire and the proposal (minus the Pricing Section).  A 
score will be calculated from the review using the Evaluation Sheet – Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services.  
Short -list may be developed from this phase if deemed appropriate at the evaluation time.   
  
Phase 3:  Price *  
 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
1.   The proposals shall be arranged from lowest proposal to highest proposal 
2.   High Proposal (-) Low Proposal = Range 
3. A mean or average will be calculated from the data, as well as the variance and standard deviation.  This 
information will be used to compare and interpret the measures of location and variability within the population.  
Points will be given based upon the number of standard deviations that the bid price is from the mean or average. 
 
Phase 4:  Equipment Inspection and Interviews  - (Interviews are Optional) * 
 
An equipment inspection will be conducted of those companies short -listed.   
 
Optional:  The Committee using the Interview tool prepared by the Purchasing Department and approved by the 
Parks and Recreation Department may conduct interviews of the Short -listed firms.  A score will result from the 
process. The score will be averaged if both an equipment inspection and interview are conducted. 
 
Phase 5:  Other    

A company may be assessed “Other” points for items not specified, but for which the Evaluation Committee deems 
as outstanding. 
    
Phase 6: Phase Final Scoring Including Consultant Selection 
 
The final score for each qualified Short-listed bidder from Phase 2 will be determined as follows: 
 
 50% x Price Score  = 
 20% x Vendor Questionnaire Score  = 
 20% x Equipment Inspection and Interview Score - Optional = 
 10% x Other  = 
 
 100%  Final Weighted Score  
 
 
* The Evaluation Committee agreed to reverse the order of Phase 3 and 4 at the request of the Facilitator - 
Purchasing Department.  Since the committee was familiar with many of the vendor’s equipment that were 
part of the process, it was deemed appropriate to evaluate the pricing information before reviewing 
equipment or conducting the optional interview if deemed necessary.  It was not deemed necessary to 
conduct interviews or review equipment. 



WEIGHTED RATING –  
UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: 
Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
1.   Davey 

Commercial 
Grounds Mgt. 

82 54 57 64 
2.   Cal Fleming 

Landscaping &  
      Tree Service Inc. 

63 26 53 47 
3.  Rasins Landscape 

Inc. 66 54 56 59 
4.  Torre & Bruglio 

Inc. 
 

96 72 63 77 
5.  Troy Clogg 

Landscape Assoc. 
Inc. 

74 56 62 64 
6.  United Landscape 

Inc. 68 54 66 63 
 
OTHER - SCORES: 
Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     

Davey Commercial 
Grounds Mgt. 
 

 30 25 28 
2.  Cal Fleming   

Landscaping &  
      Tree Service Inc. 

    
3. Rasins Landscape 

Inc. 
 

    
4.  Torre & Bruglio 

Inc. 
 

30 70 50 50 
5.  Troy Clogg 

Landscape Assoc. 
Inc. 

    

United Landscape 
Inc.     

      



0
100000
200000
300000
400000
500000
600000
700000
800000
900000

1000000

COSTS

1 3 5 7 9 11
VENDOR

UPGRADED LANDSCAPE SERVICES

Vendor Cost
Mean



STANDARD
KEY VENDOR COST MEAN DIFFERENCE D2 VARIANCE DEVIATION POINTS

1 Torre 507488 702,027       194,539          37845422521 -2 100

3 Troy Clogg 630640 702,027       71,387            5096103769 -1 75

5 Rasins 661200 702,027       40,827            1666843929 -1 75

7 Davey 696360 702,027       5,667              32114889 -1 75
0 (Mean) 50

9 United 718,970$       702,027       (16,943)           287065249 1 25

11 Cal Fleming 997,505$       702,027       (295,478)         87307248484 2 0
4,212,163$    132,234,798,841 22039133140 148455.8289

G:\EXCEL LIST: StandardDeviationUpgradedLandscapeServices.xls

UPGRADED LANDSCAPE SERVICES
ANALYSIS



CITY OF TROY RFP 01-43
Opening Date -- 1-25-02 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 6
Date Prepared -- 3/6/02 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

Check number 013973303-7
Check amount 14,325.00$ 14,325.00$   14,325.00$    

Proposal: For Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services for the Downtown Development Authority and Civic Center
Area.

Bidder Questionnaire: Returned filled XX XX XX
Returned Unfilled
Not returned

Years in Business: 54 8 8

Organization ever declared Bankruptcy:
Yes or No NO NO NO

Number of Public Sector References: 4 5 5

Use of Subcontractors:    Yes or No NO YES YES

Number of Private References for Landscape Maint. Work:
5 5 5

List of Landscape Maintenance Equipment:
Yes or No YES YES YES

EMPLOYEES:
Business Pesticide Applicator: Yes or No YES YES YES
Applicator - Turf Grass Yes or No YES YES YES
Applicator - Ornamentals Yes or No YES YES YES
Applicator - Right of Ways Yes or No YES YES YES
Arborist Yes or No YES YES - DIFFERENT NAME YES
Landscape Architect Yes or No BLANK BLANK NO

RESPONSE TIME: Type: PERSONAL ON SITE SUPERVISOR VISIT LAWN

Hours: 1 0.5 24
Type: RETURN PHONE CALL TREES

Hours: 0.25 24
Type: CONSULTATION

Hours: 24

UNIFORMS FOR EMPLOYEES Yes or No YES YES YES
Color: LONG PANTS; SHIRTS TAN/GREEN DARK GREEN/TAN

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Alternate Insurance +$10,000 CURRENT POLICY DOES CONTAIN +$3,000

INCIDENTAL POLLUTION COVERAGE

SITE VISIT  Yes or No YES YES YES
Date: 1/24/02 1/17,18,23,24 1/17,18

14232902034945

RASINS LANDSCAPECAL FLEMING

W/COMPANY NAME

LANDSCAPING
UNITED LAWNSCAPE



CITY OF TROY RFP 01-43
Opening Date -- 1-25-02 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 6
Date Prepared -- 3/6/02 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL A:  All Services  4/1 to 11/30/02 All Acreage - Irrigated & Non-Irrigated
Complete for the Sum of: Year 2002 273,120.00$     168,335.00$        175,000.00$         

Year 2003 248,582.00$     168,335.00$        160,000.00$         
Year 2004 251,368.00$     172,550.00$        160,000.00$         

Total 773,070.00$     509,220.00$        495,000.00$         

/month/acre
Cost Per Acre: Year 2002 97.00$        650.00$        155.00$        

Year 2003 97.00$        650.00$        155.00$        
Year 2004 97.00$        670.00$        155.00$        

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:
Additional Mowings-before 4/1 after 11/30

Year 2002 4,252.00$   65.00$          115.00$        
Year 2003 4,252.00$   65.00$          115.00$        
Year 2004 4,252.00$   67.00$          115.00$        

Additional Edging-before 4/1 after 11/30
Year 2002 950.00$      15.00$          20.00$          
Year 2003 950.00$      15.00$          20.00$          
Year 2004 950.00$      15.50$          20.00$          

Additional Trimming-before 4/1 after 11/30
Year 2002 500.00$      15.00$          20.00$          
Year 2003 500.00$      15.00$          20.00$          
Year 2004 500.00$      15.50$          20.00$          

PROPOSAL B:  Furnish Annual Flowers & Bedding Plants including Installation
Annuals including Installation - Based upon 2,200 flats

Year 2002 50,600.00$       44,000.00$          49,000.00$           
Year 2003 51,106.00$       44,000.00$          49,000.00$           
Year 2004 52,129.00$       45,100.00$          49,000.00$           

Total 153,835.00$     133,100.00$        147,000.00$         

Add or delte flats Including Installation differing from the base amount
Year 2002 23.00$        $ 20.00$          21.00$          
Year 2003 23.50$        $ 20.00$          21.00$          
Year 2004 24.00$        $ 20.50$          21.00$          

PROPOSAL C:  FOUR GARDENS LANDSCAPE MAINTENACE SERVICES 
Complete for the Sum of: Year 2002 23,400.00$       $ 25,325.00$          6,400.00$             

Year 2003 23,600.00$       $ 25,325.00$          6,400.00$             
Year 2004 23,600.00$       $ 26,000.00$          6,400.00$             

Total 70,600.00$       76,650.00$          19,200.00$           

GRAND TOTAL ALL PROPOSALS: 997,505.00$     718,970.00$        661,200.00$         

COST PER SERVICE COST PER ACRE COST PER ACRE

UNITED LAWNSCAPE RASINS LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPING
CAL FLEMING



CITY OF TROY RFP 01-43
Opening Date -- 1-25-02 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 6
Date Prepared -- 3/6/02 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:       Callout Cost per Man Hour
Additional -before 4/1 after 11/30
Regular Time: 8 to 5 Year 2002 45.00$        $30/$35.00 35.00$          

Year 2003 45.00$        $30/$35.00 35.00$          
Year 2004 45.00$        $31/$36.00 35.00$          

Additional -before 4/1 after 11/30
Overtime: Non regular hours Year 2002 45.00$        $52.50/$45 52.50$          

Year 2003 45.00$        $52.50/$45 52.50$          
Year 2004 45.00$        $54/$46.50 52.50$          

Additional -before 4/1 after 11/30
Holiday Time Year 2002 45.00$        $70/$60.00 52.50$          

Year 2003 45.00$        $70/$60.00 52.50$          
Year 2004 45.00$        $72/$62.00 52.50$          

G:\Upgraded Landscape Maintenace Ser RFP 01-43

UNITED LAWNSCAPE RASINS LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPING
CAL FLEMING



CITY OF TROY RFP 01-43
Opening Date -- 1-25-02 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 6
Date Prepared -- 3/6/02 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: DAVEY TREE

Check number 428011083 CHECK ON FILE, MOVE FORWARD

Check amount 14,325.00$  14,325.00$  14,325.00$  
Proposal: For Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services for the Downtown Development Authority and Civic Center

Area.

Bidder Questionnaire: Returned filled XX XX XX
Returned Unfilled
Not returned

Years in Business: 93 15 20

Organization ever declared Bankruptcy:
Yes or No NO NO NO

Number of Public Sector References: 5+ 3 5

Use of Subcontractors:    Yes or No NO YES NO

Number of Private References for Landscape Maint. Work:
5+ 3 2

List of Landscape Maintenance Equipment:
Yes or No YES YES YES

EMPLOYEES:
Business Pesticide Applicator: Yes or No YES YES YES
Applicator - Turf Grass Yes or No YES YES YES
Applicator - Ornamentals Yes or No YES YES YES
Applicator - Right of Ways Yes or No YES YES YES
Arborist Yes or No YES YES YES
Landscape Architect Yes or No YES N/A YES

RESPONSE TIME: Type: EMERGENCY LAWN CARE CLIENT REQUEST

Hours: 1 4 0.5
Type: MISSED WORK TREE WORK HAZARD REPAIR

Hours: 8 4 0.5
Type: MISC CONCERNS IRRIGATION OFF HOUR REQUESTS

Hours: 24 6 1

UNIFORMS FOR EMPLOYEES Yes or No YES YES YES
Color: CINTAS BLACK/TAN KHAKI/GREEN

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Alternate Insurance XX BLANK BLANK

SITE VISIT  Yes or No YES YES YES
Date: 1/15,21,23 1/21/02 1/14, 15. 17

CITY OF TROY RFP 01-43
Opening Date -- 1-25-02 BID TABULATION Page 5 of 6
Date Prepared -- 3/6/02 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

679209414

TROY CLOGG
LANDSCAPE ASSOC

**TORRE & BRUGLIO



VENDOR NAME: DAVEY TREE

PROPOSAL A:  All Services  4/1 to 11/30/02 All Acreage - Irrigated & Non-Irrigated
Complete for the Sum of: Year 2002 175,400.00$       138,688.00$      127,188.00$      

Year 2003 175,400.00$       138,688.00$      117,000.00$      

Year 2004 175,400.00$       140,264.00$      118,100.00$      

Total 526,200.00$       417,640.00$      362,288.00$      

Cost Per Acre: * Year 2002 (5,364.85)$      167.65$       (4,400.00)$           137.50$       (4,034.53)$              126.08$       
* Year 2003 (5,364.85)$      167.65$       (4,400.00)$           137.50$       (3,714.28)$              116.07$       
* Year 2004 (5,364.85)$      167.65$       (4,450.00)$           139.06$       (3,746.03)$              117.06$       

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:
Additional Mowings-before 4/1 after 11/30

Year 2002 (3,140.00)$      $     * 99.62 66.00$        72.00$         
Year 2003 (3,140.00)$      $     * 99.62 66.00$        72.00$         
Year 2004 (3,140.00)$      $     * 99.62 68.00$        72.00$         

Additional Edging-before 4/1 after 11/30
Year 2002 (1,350.00)$      $     * 42.83 9.00$          100.00$       
Year 2003 (1,350.00)$      $     * 42.83 9.00$          100.00$       
Year 2004 (1,350.00)$      $     * 42.83 10.00$        100.00$       

Additional Trimming-before 4/1 after 11/30
Year 2002 127.00$       30.00$         
Year 2003 127.00$       30.00$         
Year 2004 130.00$       30.00$         

PROPOSAL B:  Furnish Annual Flowers & Bedding Plants including Installation
Annuals including Installation - Based upon 2,200 flats

Year 2002 50,600.00$         52,800.00$        44,000.00$        

Year 2003 50,600.00$         52,800.00$        44,000.00$        

Year 2004 50,600.00$         55,000.00$        57,200.00$        

Total 151,800.00$       160,600.00$      145,200.00$      

Add or delte flats Including Installation differing from the base amount
Year 2002 23.00$         24.00$        20.00$         
Year 2003 23.00$         24.00$        20.00$         
Year 2004 23.00$         25.00$        26.00$         

PROPOSAL C:  FOUR GARDENS LANDSCAPE MAINTENACE SERVICES 
Complete for the Sum of: Year 2002 6,120.00$    17,400.00$  

Year 2003 6,120.00$    17,400.00$  
Year 2004 6,120.00$    17,600.00$  

Total 18,360.00$  52,400.00$  -$            
GRAND TOTAL ALL PROPOSALS: 696,360.00$       630,640.00$      507,488.00$      

* Price Verification

CITY OF TROY RFP 01-43
Opening Date -- 1-25-02 BID TABULATION Page 6 of 6
Date Prepared -- 3/6/02 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: DAVEY TREE

COST PER SERVICE COST PER ACRE COST PER ACRE

TROY CLOGG **TORRE & BRUGLIO

INCLUDED IN PROPOSAL A
INCLUDED IN PROPOSAL A

INCLUDED IN MOWING

INCLUDED IN MOWING

INCLUDED IN MOWING

LANDSCAPE ASSOC

TROY CLOGG **TORRE & BRUGLIO

LANDSCAPE ASSOC

INCLUDED IN PROPOSAL A



ADDITIONAL SERVICES:       Callout Cost per Man Hour
Additional -before 4/1 after 11/30
Regular Time: 8 to 5 Year 2002 28.00$         32.00$        22.00$         

Year 2003 28.00$         32.00$        22.00$         
Year 2004 28.00$         33.00$        22.00$         

Additional -before 4/1 after 11/30
Overtime: Non regular hours Year 2002 42.00$         48.00$        28.00$         

Year 2003 42.00$         48.00$        28.00$         
Total

Additional -before 4/1 after 11/30
Holiday Time Year 2002 42.00$         64.00$        $ 28.00$         

Year 2003 42.00$         64.00$        $ 28.00$         
Year 2004 42.00$         64.00$        $ 28.00$         

ATTEST:
  Cheryl Morrell ** Denotes Best Value Proposal
  Mary Peltier
  Linda Bockstanz
  Susan Leirstein

_____________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:\Upgraded Landscape Maintenace Ser RFP 01-43



EVALUATION SHEET – Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services 
NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CITY/ STATE/ ZIP: 
PHONE / FAX NUMBER:         
VENDORS:       A     B        C 

OBJECTIVES: Pass / Fail 
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
Question # referenced  

INFORMATION Go/No INFORMATION Go/No INFORMATION Go/No 

1. 5 Years Experience       
2.     Bankruptcy - NO       
5. Positive Public Sector  

References 
      

6.     Subcontractors – approved  areas 
only 

      

7. Positive References  - Private  
         Contracted Landscape 

Maintenance 

      

10. List of Equipment to perform 
the Contract 

      

12.    Employees and Credentials       
13.    Response Time       
15.    Uniforms       
19. INSURANCE – Insurer’s Letter       
OBJECTIVES:  
Non-Mandatory Requirements                                            

Point  
Value 

INFORMATION Score 
 

INFORMATION Score 
 

INFORMATION Score         
 

3.     Municipal Clients – Scope of 
        work 

15 Points 
Max. 

      

4.     Experiences with Public Sector 
        clients 

15 Points 
Max. 

      

12. References – Landscape  
Installation 

5 Points  
Max. 

      

9.     Description of Projects 
         Landscape Installation 

5 Points  
Max. 

      

11.   Project Manager and Credentials 
Points 

5 Points 
Max. 

      

14.   Communication Equipment issued 
to Contact Person 

10 Points 
Max. 

      

16.   Conflict Resolution Skills 
 

10 Points 
Max. 

      

17.   Proof of Quality  
 

5 Points 
Max. 

      

18.   Added Value 5 Points 
Max. 

      



20.   Site Visit 10 Points 
Max. 

      

21.  Invoicing 15 Points  
Max. 

      

Designated Value = Highest Rating          1   = Lowest Rating      MAXIMUM SCORE:  100  



A T MAINTENANCE
325 MUSKOKA
COMMERCE TWP  MI  48382

ALLIED-EAGLE SUPPLY
150 PARSONS AVENUE
DETROIT  MI  48201-2002

AMBASSADOR LAWN CUTTING SERVICE
P O BOX 174
CLAWSON  MI  48017

AMERICAN LAND DEVELOPMENT CO
13957 HALL ROAD, STE 322
SHELBY TOWNSHIP  MI  48315

ATTN  LEE WILBAND
TRUE GREEN*CHEMLAWN COMMERCIAL SERV
P.P. BOX 930709
WIXOM  MI  48393-0709

ATTN CHRISTIAN DEL BELLO
PREMIER LAWN & SNOW, INC
P O BOX 877
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48311

B & L LANDSCAPING
21151 MEYERS ROAD
OAK PARK  MI  48237-3209

B & P LANDSCAPING
6355 LILLEY RD
CANTON  MI  48187-3628

B&D LAWN CARE & SNOW REMOVAL
2308 HORSESHOE DRIVE
WEST BLOOMFIELD  MI  48322

BACK TO BASICS LAWN SERVICE
3035 NEWPORT
TROY  MI  48084

BRANCH TREE SERVICE INC
24195 MOUND ROAD
WARREN  MI  48091

BRIER HILL CORPORATION
21176 FLEETWOOD
HARPER WOODS  MI  48225

BRUCE M SAUNDERS & SONS
47515 RYAN ROAD
SHELBY TOWNSHIP  MI  48317

BUSHWACKERS LANDSCAPING
12115 WORMER
REDFORD  MI  48239



BUSY BEAVER TREE SERVICE
2043 E PARKWAY AVENUE
BURTON  MI  48529

C & H LANDSCAPE
5220 WILLIAMS LAKE ROAD
WATERFORD  MI  48329-3556

C EDDY SNOWPLOWING & LAWN MAINTENANCE
P O BOX 99462
TROY  MI  48099-9462

CAL FLEMING LANDSCAPING & TREE SERVICE
29725 GROESBECK
ROSEVILLE  MI  48066-1980

CAREFREE LAWN CENTER
2805 VAN HORN
TRENTON  MI  48183

CARSO INC
404 S VINE ST
P O BOX 139
CAMARGO  IL  61919-0139

CHEMSEARCH - NATIONAL
1001 CRAIG RD
ST LOUIS  MO  63146

COMMERCIAL LANDSCAPE SUPPLY INC
1821 REYNOLDS AVE
IRVINE  CA  92614

COMMERCIAL LAWNMOWER
32098 PLYMOUTH ROAD
LIVONIA  MI  48150-1489

CURTIS JORGENSON
735 E LINCOLN
MADISON HEIGHTS  MI  48071

D & J LAWN AND SNOW SERVICE
22750 MACOMB INDUSTRIAL DRIVE
CLINTON TWP  MI  48036

D & M LANDSCAPING & SNOW REMOVAL
206 E GRAND RIVER  STE 504
DETROIT  MI  48226

DESIGN LANDSCAPE
409 E HUDSON
ROYAL OAK  MI  48067

DESIGNED LANDSCAPE
409 E  HUDSON
ROYAL OAK  MI  48067



DIAMOND LAWN SERVICE
631 MINNESOTA
TROY  MI  48083

DINO'S LANDSCAPING
7520 PONTIAC TRAIL
WEST BLOOMFIELD  MI  48323

ELITE LANDSCAPE INC
P O BOX 94092
WASHINGTON  MI  48094

ENGLISH COUNTRYSIDE LANDSCAPE
49819 SCHOENHERR
SHELBY TOWNSHIP  MI  48315

EVERGREEN LAWN
P O BOX 597
KEEGO HARBOR  MI  48320-0597

F & J LANDSCAPE COMPANY
926 W WATTLES
TROY  MI  48098

FARMINGTON LANDSCAPE SERVICE
P O BOX 363
WALLED LAKE  MI  48390

FLORENCE CEMENT COMPANY
1970 BRINSTON
TROY  MI  48083

FORSEE'S LAWN SERVICE
23528 JOHN R
HAZEL PARK  MI  48030-1409

FOUGNIE PROFESSIONAL LAWN MAINTENANCE
151 BLANCHE
TROY  MI  48098

FOXFIRE LANDSCAPE
50857 CARD RD
MACOMB  MI  48044-1415

GARY McCAFFREY INC
747 DREON DR
CLAWSON  MI  48017

GENE'S LANDSCAPE SERVICE
4101 BARHAM
DETROIT  MI  48224

GREAT LAKES LANDSCAPE DESIGN INC
P O BOX 47715
OAK PARK  MI  48237



GREATER DETROIT LANDSCAPE SERVICE
21000 FAIRFIELD
WARREN  MI  48089

GREEN & GROW INC
P O BOX 426
STERLING HGTS  MI  48311-0426

GREENLANDS LAWN SOLUTIONS
19169 BEECH DALY
REDFORD  MI  48240

GREENLAWN PRO
19986 HOLIDAY
GROSSE POINTE WOODS  MI  48236

GREENLAWN SERVICES LTD
3424 ROWLAND CT
TROY  MI  48083

GREENTREES TREE & LAWN CARE
2614 LEACH
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48309

H & D LAWN MAINTENANCE INC
12044 PREST
DETROIT  MI  48227

JAMES LANDSCAPING CO
36031 LUCERNE
CLINTON TOWNSHIP  MI  48035

K & F LAWN MAINTENANCE
226 LOVELL
TROY  MI  48085

K B LANDSCAPING
5993 SLATE
TROY  MI  48085

K K TREE SERVICE
575 S LAKE PLEASANT ROAD
ATTICA  MI  48412

KATHLEEN LESNAU
584 SARA DRIVE
TROY  MI  48098

KDS LANDSCAPE
156 W MOREHOUSE
HAZEL PARK  MI  48030

KEVINS LAWN CARE & SNOW REMOVAL INC
3633 RATTLE RUN ROAD
ST CLAIR  MI  48079-4718



KOCH ENTERPRISES INC
59700 OMO ROAD
NEW HAVEN  MI  48048

LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC
22798 INTERSTATE DRIVE
CLINTON TOWNSHIP  MI  48035-3712

LANDSCAPERS SUPPLY COMPANY
750 CHESTNUT RIDGE ROAD
P O BOX 459
SPRING VALLEY  NY  10977-0459

LAWN & TREE ASSOCIATES INC
3600 LAPEER ROAD
PONTIAC  MI  48055

LAWN CARE PLUS
19799 PONCIANA
REDFORD  MI  48240

LAWN CREW INC
3077 W AUBURN ROAD
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48309

LEISURE LAWN
179 NORTHPOINTE DRIVE
LAKE ORION  MI  48359

LESCO INC #442
1889 LARCHWOOD
TROY  MI  48083

LIBERTY SERVICES
P O BOX 26003
34090 JAMES J. POMPO
FRASER  MI  48026

M E G A LAWN MAINTENANCE
26553 DARTMOUTH
MADISON HEIGHTS  MI  48071

MARINE CITY NURSERY COMPANY
P O BOX 189
MARINE CITY  MI  48039

MASTERS GREEN INC
6350 N STERLING DRIVE
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48312-4552

MCEWEN LANDSCAPING
P O BOX 99696
TROY  MI  48099-9696

MCWILLIAMS LANDSCAPING
930 OTTAWA
TROY  MI  48085



METRO LAWN CARE
37300 W  8 MILE ROAD
FARMINGTON HILLS  MI  48335

METRO LAWN SPRAY
P O BOX 317
NEW BALTIMORE  MI  48047

METRO SWEEP
4557 HIGHLAND RD
WATERFORD  MI  48328

MICHIGAN STATE SEED SOLUTIONS
717 NORTH CLINTON
GRAND LEDGE  MI  48837

MICHIGREEN INC
16171 31 MILE ROAD
ROMEO  MI  48096

MICHLIN DIAZO PRODUCTS CORP
10501 HAGGERTY STREET
DEARBORN  MI  48126

MIDWEST CHEMICAL COMPANY
300 FENWAY DRIVE
FENTON  MI  48430

MIDWEST LANDSCAPE GROUP INC
5470 HURON HILLS DR
COMMERCE  MI  48382

MILLER W F TURF& INDUSTRIAL EQUIPMENT CO
25125 TRANS-X
P O BOX 605
NOVI  MI  48376-0605

NATURAL WAY ORGANIC LAWN CARE
2191 AVON INDUSTRIAL DR
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48309

NEWPORT LAWN - ATN: FRANK
3035 NEWPORT COURT
TROY  MI  48084

NUTRI-TURF LAWN & TREE CARE
28505 LORNA
WARREN  MI  48092

OWEN SPECIALTY SERVICES INC
300 FENWAY
FENTON  MI  48430

PARMENTER & ANDRE INC
1042 MICHIGAN NE
GRAND RAPIDS  MI  49503



PINNACLE LANDSCAPING INC
1100 N  OPDYKE
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326

PIONEER LAWN MAINTENANCE
27577 FAIRFIELD
WARREN  MI  48093

PREMIER CUT LANDSCAPING SERVICES INC
1971 SHADY DRIVE
WARREN  MI  48092

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CONTRACTORS INC
970 N ROCHESTER ROAD
LEONARD  MI  48367

PROSOURCE ONE
4790 PELTON ROAD
CLARKSTON  MI  48346

PROTURF LAWN SPRAY CORPORATION
17236 E WARREN
DETROIT  MI  48224

QUALITY GREEN LAWN SPRAYING & FERTILIZIN
2690 E MAPLE
TROY  MI  48084

QUALITY LANDSCAPE,FERTILIZING,IRRIGATION
P O BOX 214869
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48321

R & D TRACTOR SERVICE
2217 ZENIA
TROY  MI  48084

R & L LANDSCAPING
30045 NORTHGATE
SOUTHFIELD  MI  48076

R & R PRODUCTS
3334 E MILBER ST
TUCSON  AZ  85714

RANGER OUTDOOR MAINTENANCE
135 KALHAVEN
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48307

RASINS LANDSCAPE INC
2271 METAMORA ROAD
OXFORD  MI  48371

RAY'S NURSERY AND LANDSCAPE
15577 30 MILE ROAD
RAY  MI  48046



RIS CONTRACTORS
1208 SYLVERTIS
WATERFORD  MI  48328

RODGES & SONS LANDSCAPING & LAWN SERVICE
517 AUBURN
PONTIAC  MI  48342

RP'S LAWN SERVICE
148 CARTER
TROY  MI  48098

RUDGATE LANDSCAPING
4502 W CORNWALL
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48310

S & T LAWN & LANDSCAPE INC
5580 GATEWOOD  STE 106
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48312

SCENESCAPE: KODIAK GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
12776 33 MILE ROAD
ROMEO  MI  48065-5438

SIMPLOT PARTNERS
24800 N INDUSTRIAL DRIVE
FARMINGTON HILLS  MI  48335

SOUTHLANE LANDSCAPE EQUIPMENT
P.O. BOX  1036
ROYAL OAK  MI  48068

SPRINKLER SERVICES CO
30017 8 MILE ROAD
P  O  BOX 530693
LIVONIA  MI  48152-1811

STEWART LANDSCAPING
3840 ESTATES DRIVE
TROY  MI  48084

SULLIVAN CORPORATION
21 E  LONG LAKE ROAD  STE 214
BLOOMFIELD HILLS  MI  48304

TARR'S TREE SERVICE
2009 MILVERTON
TROY  MI  48083

TERMINIX INTERNATIONAL
21353 BRIDGE STREET
SOUTHFIELD  MI  48034-4910

TERRA INDUSTRIES
3847 LONG MEADOW LANE
ORION  MI  48359



THE DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY
3381 LAPEER ROAD WEST
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326

THE GROUND CREW
1564 MUER STREET
TROY  MI  48084

THE SCOTTS COMPANY
9120 SANDISON
WHITE LAKE  MI  48386

TORRE & BRUGLIO
850 FEATHERSTONE
PONTIAC  MI  48342-1723

TRI VALLEY LANDSCAPING
2363 SOUTH MILLER ROAD
SAGINAW  MI  48609

TRI-COUNTY TREE EXPERT COMPANY
P O BOX 335
454 E SAINT CLAIR STREET
ROMEO  MI  48065-0335

TRI-MARK LANDSCAPING
1053 HENDRICKSON
CLAWSON  MI  48017

TROY LANDSCAPING INC
4837 HEATHERBROOK
TROY  MI  48098

TRU-GREEN CHEMLAWN
13033 FAIRLANE
LIVONIA  MI  48150

TRU-GREEN CHEMLAWN
6503 19-1/2 MILE ROAD
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48314

TRUGREEN*CHEMLAWN
P O BOX 81880
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48309-1880

TURF CHEMICALS INC
1011 E  MAIN STREET
P  O  BOX 451
OWOSSO  MI  48867

TURF GUARD LAWN SPRAYING
1500 STONE ROWE
MILFORD  MI  48380

TURF PRO LAWN CARE
31147 MAPLEWOOD
GARDEN CITY  MI  48135



TURF TECH INC
10252 E  BIRCH RUN ROAD
BIRCH RUN  MI  48415

TURFGRASS INC
28064 PONTIAC TRAIL
P O BOX 667
SOUTH LYON  MI  48178

UNCLE LUKE'S FEED STORE
6691 LIVERNOIS
TROY  MI  48098

UNITED HORTICULTURAL SUPPLY
ATTN  DAVE POLEN
15515 KNOBHILL DRIVE
LINDEN  MI  48451

UNITED LAWNSCAPE INC
47091 RYAN ROAD
SHELBY TWP  MI  48317

UNITED SOILS INC
16171 31 MILE RD
RAY TOWNSHIP  MI  48096

VALLEY TURF INC
11711 E GRAND RIVER ROAD
BRIGHTON  MI  48116-8534

WAYSIDE LAWN SERVICE
36235 MORAVIAN
CLINTON TWP  MI  48035-1150

WESTLAKE DEVELOPMENT INC
4605 22 MILE ROAD
UTICA  MI  48317

WILLIAMS WEED MOWING INC
450 GRANGE HALL ROAD
ORTONVILLE  MI  48462

WOLVERINE LAWN MAINTENANCE & 
LANDSCAPING
P O BOX 877
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48311

WOOD CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE LLC
1900 SAND BEACH RD
BAD AXE  MI  48413

YALE MATERIALS HANDLING
28990 WIXOM ROAD
WIXOM  MI  48393



campbellld
Text Box
E-05















January 16, 2006 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag , City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Troy Historical Society Agreement 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is the recommendation of staff that the City of Troy enter into this agreement 
with the Troy Historical Society concerning the efforts to expand the Troy 
Museum and Historic Village through the Society’s Troy Heritage Campaign.  
 
SUMMARY 
The Troy Historical Society’s Heritage Campaign has developed a detailed 
business plan to raise funds for the expansion of the Troy Museum and Historic 
Village through five distinct projects. These projects include the move of the 
Niles/Barnard House to the Village Green, the acquisition and relocation of an 
historic barn to the Village Green, the adaptive re-use of the Museum’s main 
building, the creation of a permanent endowment fund to support the Museum, 
and the creation of a suitable gateway to the Museum. 
 
This agreement is intended to delineate the processes that the Troy Historical 
Society and the City of Troy intend to work through during the five-year fund 
raising campaign.  The Historical Society intends to use this document to provide 
assurance to prospective donors that their financial contributions will be used on 
the five projects and that the City of Troy will own the completed projects at the 
Troy Museum and Historic Village. 
 
 
 
Reviewed for form and legality 
 
_________________________ 
 
Lori Grigg Bluhm 
City Attorney 
   

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



THS Jan. 13, 2006 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE TROY HISTORICAL SOCIETY AND THE CITY OF TROY 

TO EXPAND THE TROY MUSEUM & HISTORIC VILLAGE 
 
 
 
 This agreement is made this _____ day of __________, 2006 by and between 

The Troy Historical Society, hereafter referred to as "THS", a Michigan non-profit 

corporation, the address of which is 60 W. Wattles, Troy, Michigan 48098, and the City 

of Troy, hereafter referred to as "TROY", a Michigan municipal corporation, the address 

of which is 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084.   

 

RECITALS 

 

A. Harriet Barnard has donated her historic house, located at 5945 

Livernois Rd. in the City of Troy, to TROY, so that it can be moved 

to the Troy Museum & Historic Village, hereafter referred to as 

"MUSEUM", a municipal facility owned and operated by TROY, 

located at 60 W. Wattles Road, Troy, Michigan.  Under her gift 

agreement with TROY, Mrs. Barnard will allow a five-year period to 

secure funding from public and private sources to pay the costs of 

relocating the house to the MUSEUM and to pay the costs of 

acquiring additional land as needed to accomplish such relocation 

in accordance with all applicable statutes, codes and ordinances.   

 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 2

B. The City Council of TROY has by appropriate resolutions accepted 

Mrs. Barnard's gift and the terms of her gift agreement with TROY, 

including Mrs. Barnard's and TROY's respective responsibilities for 

maintaining the historic house until it has been relocated to the 

MUSEUM, and the use of portions of TROY's MUSEUM "barn fund" 

as needed for carrying out TROY's part, if any, of such 

maintenance responsibilities.   

 

C. The THS has by resolutions unanimously adopted by its Board of 

Trustees agreed to raise the funds to pay the costs of relocating 

Mrs. Barnard's historic house to the MUSEUM within the five-year 

period specified in her gift agreement with TROY.   

 

D. The THS has by resolutions unanimously adopted by its Board of 

Trustees agreed to raise the funds to pay the costs of TROY's 

acquisition of the two parcels of land adjoining the western 

boundary of the MUSEUM, pursuant to the terms of purchase 

agreements negotiated by TROY with the owners of said parcels 

and signed by the owners and TROY.   

 

E. The City Council of TROY has by appropriate resolutions approved 

the purchase agreements to acquire for TROY the two parcels of 

land adjoining the western boundary of the MUSEUM.  Upon 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 3

completion of the purchases, TROY intends that the parcels will be 

used for the expansion of the MUSEUM and the siting of 

Mrs. Barnard's historic house at the MUSEUM.   

 

F. Mrs. Barnard's gift of her historic house to TROY has served as a 

catalyst for capital fund raising by the THS to expand the MUSEUM 

in a public-private partnership with TROY, without further significant 

cost to TROY.  In addition to raising the funds to carry out the intent 

of Mrs. Barnard's gift to TROY and to purchase suitable land for it, 

the THS proposes to raise funds for the adaptive re-use by the 

MUSEUM of Mrs. Barnard's historic house contemplated by her gift 

agreement with TROY, and for four other major joint TROY-THS 

MUSEUM projects to be hereafter referred to, together with the 

total Barnard house project, as the "THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN".   

 

G. The four other projects to be funded by the THS HERITAGE 

CAMPAIGN, in addition to carrying out Mrs. Barnard's gift to TROY, 

are the acquisition and relocation to the MUSEUM of a historic 

barn, the adaptive re-use of the MUSEUM's main building for 

principal use as permanent exhibit galleries for the MUSEUM, the 

creation of a permanent endowment fund to assist TROY with the 

expenses of maintaining the MUSEUM's buildings, and the creation 

of a suitable gateway to the MUSEUM.   



THS Jan. 13, 2006 4

 

H. The THS has calculated the projected costs of each of the projects 

based on the actual costs of the recent relocation to the MUSEUM 

of the Old Troy Church and its parsonage and of their restoration.   

 

I. The THS has created a detailed business plan that describes all 

five of these major projects.  It is estimated that their total cost will 

be $7.7 million dollars.  The THS will ask corporations, individuals, 

foundations and governmental agencies for cash and in-kind 

contributions to the THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN.  The THS 

anticipates that many of the contributors will want assurances that 

the funds they give to the THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN will be used 

for the expansion and adaptive re-use, and as a supplement to the 

operation of the MUSEUM through the five major projects of the 

THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN, and that TROY and the THS are in 

full accord as to the completion of those projects.   

 

J. This agreement is intended to set forth the terms of that accord, to 

delineate the respective responsibilities of the THS and TROY, and 

for the reassurance of major contributors to the THS HERITAGE 

CAMPAIGN.   

 

 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 5

 

COVENANTS 

 

In consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, it is mutually agreed by 

the parties as follows:   

 

 1. As soon as practicable after the execution of this agreement, TROY 

intends to initiate the process of rezoning of the two parcels of land adjoining the 

western boundary of the MUSEUM to allow for the properties to be used for MUSEUM 

purposes.  TROY also intends to initiate the process to include the two parcels, once 

acquired by TROY, as a part of a designated historic district, so that they can be used 

for MUSEUM purposes.  These processes will involve public hearings, and THS 

representatives agree to attend these public hearings, as long as THS receives 

notification of the public hearings in advance.   

 

 2. As soon as practicable after the execution of this agreement, TROY 

intends to initiate the process of issuing a Request for Qualification ("RFQ") and then a 

Request for Proposal ("RFP") for a site planner/architect to advise TROY and THS 

regarding a preliminary site plan for the Barnard historic house and historic barn 

projects of the THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN.   

 

 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 6

 3. The issuance of RFQ's and RFP's for other providers to carry out the work 

of the THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN, including but not limited to a construction manager 

for its projects, will be the undertaking of TROY, as requested from time to time by the 

THS, or as deemed necessary by the City Manager of TROY.   

 

 4. The THS will assist TROY in the drafting and writing of RFQs and RFPs 

and selection of sources of supply and services from issuing each such RFQ and RFP, 

to be approved by the THS before issuance.  The THS will be responsible for paying the 

costs of these supplies and services selected from the responses to such RFQs and 

RFPs.   

 

 5. The THS will be responsible for selecting the site planner/architect 

pursuant to paragraph 2, and the construction manager pursuant to paragraph 3, guided 

by TROY guidelines and best value selection procedures, from the respondents to their 

RFQ's and RFP's.  TROY will be responsible for selecting all other providers from the 

respondents to their RFQ's and RFP's.  TROY will be the contracting party with all 

selected providers including the site planner/architect and the construction manager.   

 

 6. The City Manager of TROY will be responsible for selecting the project 

manager for the four projects of the THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN other than the 

permanent endowment fund.  The responsibilities and duties of the project manager are 

set forth in Appendix A of this agreement.   

 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 7

 7. TROY intends to provide suitable in-kind TROY staff support and 

reasonable TROY staff time towards the THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN projects.   

 

 8. The THS will continue in its efforts to raise the funds to pay the costs of 

relocating Mrs. Barnard's historic house to the MUSEUM and the costs to acquire the 

parcels of land adjoining the MUSEUM property, to raise the funds for the adaptive 

re-use by the MUSEUM of Mrs. Barnard's historic house, and to raise the funds for the 

other four projects of the THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN, as long as this agreement 

remains in effect.   

 

 9. The THS will manage and invest the permanent endowment fund and will 

control all disbursements from the fund.  TROY may request disbursements from the 

fund for direct payments to contractors designated by TROY for maintaining the 

MUSEUM's buildings, and for amounts charged by other TROY departments to the 

MUSEUM for maintaining its buildings.   

 

 10. All restorations and adaptive re-use involved in the projects of the THS 

HERITAGE CAMPAIGN will follow National Park Service Guidelines where feasible, 

and will follow all codes and ordinances of TROY.  TROY in consultation with the THS 

will be responsible for the management and direction of any and all restorations, 

adaptive re-use and construction involved in the projects.   

 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 8

 11. TROY will designate special accounts for projects relating to development 

of the MUSEUM.  These special accounts will be used as the conduit for deposit and 

expenditure of funds by the THS for work completed by contractors on all projects of the 

THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN except the permanent endowment fund.  The THS will 

raise funds and transfer them into the designated special account used by TROY to pay 

for supplies and services as they are approved by the project manager designated 

pursuant to paragraph 6, and the construction manager designated pursuant to 

paragraph 5.   

 

 12. After completion and acceptance, TROY will be the recipient of and own 

all work completed for the four projects of the THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN other than 

the permanent endowment fund.   

 

 13. All inspections of the completed work on the said four projects will be the 

responsibility of TROY.   

 

 14. The THS will be responsible for the form of recognition of donors to the 

THS HERITAGE CAMPAIGN at the MUSEUM, in accordance with applicable codes 

and ordinances of TROY.   

 

 

 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 9

 15. This agreement may be amended at any time by written agreement 

between the THS and TROY.   

 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED:   
 
 
 
By:       
 
Its:       

TROY HISTORICAL SOCIETY, 
a Michigan non-profit corporation 
 
 
 
By:       
 
Its:       
 

  
 
 
_______________ acknowledged the foregoing instrument before me on this _____ 
day of __________, 2006.   
 
 
 
  

       
Notary Public 
________________ County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:   

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
       

CITY OF TROY, 
a Michigan municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By:       
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
 
       

 
 
 
By:       
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 10

 
 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor of the City of Troy, and Tonni L. Bartholomew, Troy City 
Clerk, acknowledged the foregoing instrument before me on this _____ day of 
__________, 2006.   
 
 
  

 
       
Notary Public 
________________ County, Michigan 
Acting in Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:   

  
 
 



THS Jan. 13, 2006 11

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE THS AND TROY TO EXPAND THE MUSEUM 

 
Appendix A 

Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager will:   

1. Be an employee of TROY selected by its City Manager for the duration of the 

four capital projects.   

2. Approve payments to the architect, site planner, construction manager, and 

subcontractors.   

3. Act as a liaison between TROY, the THS, the Troy Historical Commission, Troy 

Historic District Commission and other agencies as necessary.   

4. Oversee appropriate approval processes for the four capital projects of the 

HERITAGE CAMPAIGN by the Troy Historical Commission, Troy Historic District 

Commission, and City Council.   

5. Participate in all pre-construction and construction meetings .   

6. Work with the THS to implement the THS deposit schedule to the designated 

special city account and appropriate expenditures of THS funds.   

7. Report project status to the City Manager as required.   

8. Perform other duties as required.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BLOOMFIELD  99998-244  703878v6 



campbellld
Text Box
E-07











campbellld
Text Box
E-08





















































































campbellld
Text Box
E-09









campbellld
Text Box
E-10















   Memorandum 
 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: January 18, 2006 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment  

 
  
 
In response to City Council’s request regarding the limitation of electronic 
communications during City Council meetings, an altered version of Council Rules 
with proposed changes in red was prepared. 
 
The proposed Rules provide a new Rule Number 28, Electronic Communications. 
Rule 28 cites the Open Meetings Act and prohibition to electronic communications 
by City Council members during City Council meetings. 
 
A recommended motion to incorporate this change would be as follows: 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules be AMENDED as recommended by City 
Administration by incorporating Rule Number 28, Electronic Communications. 
 
 
 
Reviewed and Approved:  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 11-14-05 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
In the event of an absence of a Council Member at a meeting, the City Manager is directed to 
supply such absent Council Member with information about any special meetings that may 
have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5)-minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon prior to the meeting. Inappropriate material will be prohibited. 

26 CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 
 

28. ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS 
All communications between Council Members are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, 
therefore the City Council shall not engage in any form of electronic communication during any 
meeting of the Council. 
 



January 10, 2006 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item – Regular Business – Approval of Poverty Exemption 

Guidelines   
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that you present the attached 2006 
Poverty Exemption Guidelines to City Council, along with the attached resolution, 
for approval. 
 
Detail:  MCL 211.7u states:  “The real property of persons who in the opinion of 
the Supervisor and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to 
contribute toward the public charges is exempt from taxation under this act.” 
 
The Assessing Department has updated the guidelines that assist in determining 
if a person qualifies for an exemption from real property taxation for a one year 
period. 
 
The Michigan Tax Tribunal has ruled that income guidelines may not be set 
below the Federal Poverty guidelines.  As is the case since 2001, our guidelines 
still average approximately $3,700 higher, per category, than the 2006 Federal 
guidelines.   
 
Staff, again, recommends no change to our established income guidelines, until 
the Federal income guidelines catch up to ours. 
 
Staff again proposes increasing the maximum assessed value limit of the 
homestead by the average increase in residential values in the City (3.3%).  This 
will set the 2006 Assessed Value limit at $115,640 (from $111,950). 
 
Staff proposes to set the total asset limit of $270,650 (including the home, 
excluding an automobile). 
 
There were 20 Poverty Exemptions applied for in 2005, and 17 of them were 
approved (exemptions may also be applied for at the July and December Boards 
of Review).  This number is relatively constant over the last 10 years.  
Approximately $984,710 in Taxable Value was exempted, at an estimated cost of 
$9,306 to the City of Troy. 
 
NL/nl 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES 

INCOME STANDARDS 2006  
 
 
 The following are the Poverty thresholds as of 12-31-05 for use in setting poverty 
 exemption guidelines for 2006 assessments: 
 
 
Number of Persons Poverty  
Residing in Homestead Threshold 
 
1 person                                                                  13,959 
2 persons     16,531 
3 persons 18,470 
4 persons    22,761 
5 persons    26,419 
6 persons    29,636 
7 persons    33,347 
8 persons    36,704  
9 persons (or more) add 3,180 for each additional person     

 



 
CITY OF TROY 

POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES – 2006  
 

MCL 211.7u The real property of persons who in the judgment of the 
Supervisor and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to 
contribute toward the public charges is exempt from taxation under this 
Act. 

 
   The City of Troy’s standard for approving an exemption under the statute is 
based on an individual determination of hardship. 
 
   This is an exemption from taxes.  If you claim poverty under the statute, you 
must file your claim with a Poverty Exemption Affidavit.  This exemption is good 
for one year. 
 
STANDARD #1 Applicants must file a Poverty Exemption Affidavit in order to    

be considered for any exemption.  Documentation such as, 
Income Tax Forms, W-2 Forms, Deeds or Land Contracts 
and personal identification is mandatory, and must be 
attached to the Affidavit. 

 
STANDARD #2 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the household 

income is greater than the Income Standards Guideline. 
 

STANDARD #3 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the Assessed 
Value of the home exceeds $115,640. 

 
STANDARD #4 Applicants total assets cannot exceed $270,650.  This 

includes the value of your home. 
 
 
 
*The Board of Review may require a home audit and inspection, done by the 
Assessing Department, as part of the exemption process. 
 
 



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION AFFIDAVIT (for 2006 A/V Year) 

 
_________________________  ___________________ 
(Address)                        (Sidwell #) 

 
1. Household Income:  List all prior year income from: 

a)Wages/Tips                                 ________________ 
b) Social Security                            ________________ 
c) Soc. Sec. for resident minors       ________________ 
d) Pensions                                      ________________ 
e) Interest/Dividends                       ________________ 
f) Unemployment Compensation   ________________ 
g) Sub-Pay                                      ________________ 
h) Workman's Compensation         ________________ 
i) Aid to Dependent Children          ________________ 
j) Medical Disability Benefits         ________________ 
k) Lottery/Contest/Raffle               ________________ 
l) Annuities                                    ________________ 
m) Governmental Assistance          ________________ 
n) Insurance/Lawsuit Payouts        ________________ 
o) Alimony/Child Support              ________________ 
p) Rental Income                            ________________ 

 
2. Supplemental Assistance:   List monthly amount of: 

a) Food Stamps                              ________________ 
b) Surplus Food                              ________________ 
c) Transportation                            ________________ 

 
3. Residence Information: 

Is your home paid for?         Yes____    No____ 
  If No: 
  What is your mortgage/land contract balance? ___________ 
  What is your monthly payment?                        ___________ 
  Who holds your mortgage/land contract?          ___________ 
  Do you own any other property?             Yes______  No____ 
  If Yes: Attach a copy of your last tax bill. 

 
4. Employment information: 

Are you or your spouse currently employed? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Are your or your spouse unable to work (disability, etc.) ? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
If Yes: Is this condition permanent? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Provide medical documentation of the disability. 



 
 
5. Children/Relatives/Boarders: 

How many children, relatives, or non-related boarders share 
your home?                                              _____________________ 
Do any of the above, or anyone outside of your home, contribute 
Financially to your living expenses?           Yes ___   No___ 
If Yes:  How much:   per month __________  year_____________ 
 

6. Transportation: 
Do you own any automobiles?                           Yes____    No____ 
If Yes:  Please provide the following information: 

 
Year & Make  Price to you    Balance          Monthly payment 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 

 
 
7. Additional Assets: 

Please provide information about any additional assets listed. 
Checking Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
I.R.A.         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Keogh         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Deferred Comp        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Annuities        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Stocks/Bonds/Funds      Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Money Market       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Treasury Bills       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Bonds       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 

 
 
8. Attach copies of the following: 

a) Federal Income Form 
b) State Income Tax Form 
c) Property Tax Credit Form 
d) W-2 Forms 
e) Copy of Deed or Land Contract 
f) Identification: Driver's License 
g) A listing of your household living expenses for the prior year.   
(examples: heat, electric, insurance, etc.) 

 
You must provide proof of income and other records to be considered for 
an exemption. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
I (We), __________________________________________[print name(s)] 

the undersigned, do hereby affirm that the above information is, 
to the best of my (our) knowledge, true. 
______________________________ 
(Signed) 
______________________________ 
(Signed) 
 

Subscribed and sworn to me this _____ day of _________,   _______. 
My commission expires________________ 
Notary Public   ___________________________ 

 
APPROVED:     NOT APPROVED: 
Assessor:  _______________ Assessor:              ___________ 
Board Chairperson __________ Board Chairperson___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 

 
Year______ Assessment________  Board of Review A/V________ 

 
  

 



January 17, 2006 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Proposal from The Mercer Group, Inc. for Executive  

Recruitment Services; City Manager 
 
 
 
I have been advised that the attached proposal from The Mercer Group which you 
received earlier constitutes the formal proposal from that search firm.  In addition, I 
spoke to Ms. Jan Lazar and she indicated that either Tom Dority or herself are available 
to meet with City Council to discuss a City Manager profile on the following dates: 
 
January 
 
21, 23 
 
February  
 
6, 7 
 
Please feel free to call if you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\01.23.06 - Mercer Group Proposal 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



  
The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Consultants to Management   

4520 W. 14th Street Drive 

 M 
Greeley, CO  80634 

970-378-1781 
FAX 970-378-1831 

tomdority@comcast.net 
 
 
 
January 11, 2006 
 
John Szerlag 
City Manager 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI  48084-5285 
 
Dear Mr. Szerlag:   Re:  Executive Search for City Manager 
 

Thank you for your enquiry about the services of The Mercer Group, Inc., to 
assist the Mayor and City Council in their recruitment of a new City Manager.  We are pleased to 
submit this abbreviated proposal for the City to evaluate our qualifications.  We are very inter-
ested in assisting with this critical project, and if selected to conduct the search, would be 
prepared to begin the work by mid-to-late February, following your contract approval.  We 
believe we can accomplish this project in a knowledgeable and efficient manner.   

 
The purpose of engaging the services of an executive search firm is to seek out 

and recruit experienced candidates and to assist the City in selecting highly qualified individuals 
who meet the profile and needs of the City and who might not otherwise apply.  The Mercer 
Group, Inc. is exceptionally well qualified to assist the City with this project.  We have conduct-
ed recent searches for city managers in similar communities nationwide.  We have also enjoyed 
assisting the following clients more recently with executive recruitment: 
 
Greeley  Colorado  Deputy City Manager   2006 
Vail Valley Chamber & Tourism  President/CEO   2006 
Parker   Colorado  Town Administrator   2006 
Granville  Ohio   Village Manager   2005 
Howell   Michigan  Several Key Positions   2005 
Eagle County  Colorado  County Administrator   2005 
Michigan Municipal League   Executive Director   2005 
Piqua   Ohio   City Manager    2005 
Kent   Ohio   City Manager    2004 
Jackson  Michigan  City Manager    2004 
Joplin   Missouri  City Manager    2004 
Clayton  Missouri  City Manager    2004 
Boulder  Colorado  City Manager, City Attorney  2003 
Ann Arbor  Michigan  City Administrator     1988, 1995, 2002 
Lapeer   Michigan  City Manager    2002 



 
John Szerlag 
City Manager  
January 11, 2006   page 2 
 
SOCRRA/SOCWA Michigan  General Manager   2002 
Flint   Michigan  City Administrator   2001 
Jackson  Michigan  President, Community Foundation 2000 
Grand Ledge  Michigan  City Manager, others   1999 
Southfield  Michigan  City Administrator   1999 
South Haven  Michigan  City Manager    1999 
Jackson  Michigan  President, The Enterprise Group 1997 
 

We are well experienced and very deliberate in determining the standards 
expected by elected officials, so that the recruitment is well founded from the beginning.  I was a 
city manager in 4 states over 23 years, including East Lansing, and have conducted searches 
nationwide since 1994.  We are very familiar with Michigan law regarding recruitment, open 
meetings and public information.  Please contact our many references about our record of 
successful searches.   
 

This proposal is designed to provide an indexed and easily usable document for 
the City of Troy to assess the qualifications of The Mercer Group, Inc. to handle this critical 
work. It contains the following sections:  Table of Contents; Introduction, Background, and 
Objectives; Our Approach, Work Plan and Schedule; Firm History, Qualifications and Staffing; 
Why You Should Select The Mercer Group, Inc.; and an Acceptance/Signature page.  Appendi-
ces include our abbreviated list of Previous Search Clients (we will be happy to provide the 
entire list of all positions); References and Questions and Answers about Executive Search.  Our 
performance guarantees are described on p. 23.   
 

I will conduct this search personally with professional support from Mr. Mercer in 
establishing effective recruitment networks and channels.  Susan Gapter-Dority of this office will 
assist with research and continuity.  Jan Lazar of our Lansing, Michigan office is also available 
for liaison if necessary to the continuity of our services.  We are able to draw upon the leads and 
contacts also of seven other Mercer associates across the country. 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to this important assignment.  It would 
be our pleasure to be of service to the City of Troy.  This proposal is valid for ninety (90) days 
from receipt by the City of Troy.  Please call me at 970-378-1781 with any questions. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 
 
T.C. Dority 
 
Thomas C. Dority 
Senior Vice President 
 
Enclosures 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
CITY OF TROY 
  
 
 
 
 Proposal for 
 Executive Recruitment Services 
 for the Position of 
 
 CITY MANAGER 
 
 
 
 January 11, 2006 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 
 
Michigan Office:          Colorado Office: 

 
2313 Northampton Way         4520 W. 14th Street Drive  
Lansing, MI   48912 Greeley, CO  80634-3147 
517-487-4575 970-378-1781 
FAX 517-482-8750 FAX 970-378-1831 
 



 
 
 
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Section Page No.
 
  Cover Letter 
 
  RFP Required Submittals 
 
 I. INTRODUCTION, BACKGROUND, AND OBJECTIVES ..................................... 1-3 
 

A. Introduction and Background 
B. Objectives of the Search Process 

 
 II. OUR APPROACH, WORK PLAN AND SCHEDULE........................................... 4-12  

A. Approach 
B. Work Plan 

1. Position Analysis 
2. Recruitment Process 
3. Resume Review 
4. Candidate Screening 
5. Background Investigation 
6. Interview Process 
7. Negotiation and Follow-up 

C. Schedule 
 
 III. COST PROPOSAL  ............................................................................................... 13-14 
 
 IV. FIRM HISTORY, QUALIFICATIONS AND STAFFING ................................... 15-18 
 

A. Firm Qualifications  
B. Resumes of Our Key Search Staff 

 
 V. WHY YOU SHOULD SELECT THE MERCER GROUP, INC. .......................... 19-21 
 
   VI. ACCEPTANCE ............................................................................................ . . . .        22 
 
 APPENDICES 
 
 A. Abbreviated list of Previous Searches..................................................................... 23-29 
 B. References    ........................................................................................................... 30-32 
 C. Questions and Answers About Executive Search ................................................... 33-34 
  
 
 LIST OF EXHIBITS 
 

I. The Mercer Group, Inc. Sample Candidate Evaluation Matrix 
II. Search Schedule 
III. Schedule of Meetings with City Council 



  
 
      Proposal to the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006         page 1 

 I.   INTRODUCTION, BACKGROUND, AND OBJECTIVES 

 
This section presents our understanding of the City of Troy's requirements for this search, as well as 
the objectives and scope of the project. 
 

A. Introduction and Background

The City of Troy, Michigan, enjoys a thriving economy of corporate headquarters and offices, 
premier retail business, valuable and diverse neighborhoods and a strong, diverse population of 
over 80,000.  Its property value is second only to Detroit, and it is located in the very prosperous 
Oakland County.   

The City of Troy operates with a Council-Manager system. The City Council is composed of 
seven members, and the Mayor is a member of Council who serves as its chairperson.  The 
Council establishes policies, enacts ordinances, approves rules and regulations, and gives policy 
direction .  

The City Manager, appointed by the City Council, is responsible for the strategic management of 
the operating, administrative and public safety services and for executing the policies and laws of 
the Council.  
It is our understanding that: 

 
 It is the intention of the City Council to provide an efficient, deliberate selection 

process for the new City Manager.  The Council wishes to appoint a new City 
Manager promptly, following a deliberate professional search.  City Manager John 
Szerlag will retire at the end of February. 

 
 The City Council will consider assistance from a recruitment and search firm 

immediately in order to act promptly in recruiting a new City Manager.   
 

 The City is considering "turn-key" executive search services and support in 
connection with the recruitment of a new City Manager.  We are prepared also for 
coordination with any supplemental search committee appointed by the Council. 

 
 Services required include position analysis and preparation of a position profile; 

recruitment for the position; inviting potential candidates to apply; reviewing and 
screening applications; conducting preliminary interviews and background checks of 
selected candidates; recommending a list of final candidates; preparing the Council 
and coordinating final interviews; negotiating; and following up. 

 



  
 
      Proposal to the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006         page 2 

 The City wishes to conduct a comprehensive recruitment process, to ensure the best 
qualified candidates are found and that the best qualified individuals who are 
acceptable can be hired. 

 
 The annual salary and benefits package for the position will be discussed with the 

City Council. 
 

B. Objectives

 
The objectives that we will meet in order to help find the best qualified candidates for the position 
are as follows: 
 

 To conduct on-site needs assessment for the new City Manager. 
 

 To develop a comprehensive position profile. 
 

 To reconcile any differences in points of view with regard to specifications for the 
position. 

 
 To encourage top level people to apply who might otherwise be reluctant to respond 

to an advertisement. 
 

 To save a considerable amount of the Council’s and staff's time in establishing a 
position profile and reviewing applicants. 

 
 To comply with appropriate personnel regulations and laws (i.e., EEO and ADA). 

 
 To independently and objectively assess the qualifications and suitability of 

candidates for the position. 
 

 To recommend a pool of finalist candidates to the Council. 
 

 To coordinate finalist candidate interviews with the Council. 
 

 To mail an information packet supplied by the City to all qualified applicants. 
 

 To respond to all candidate inquiries and produce all correspondence throughout the 
search. 

 
 To preserve the confidentiality of inquiries to the degree possible under Michigan 

law. 
 



  
 
      Proposal to the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006         page 3 

 To assist the Council in reaching a final decision. 
 

 To assist in negotiating a compensation package with the successful candidate on 
behalf of the City. 

 
 To assist the Council in establishing performance expectations and evaluating the 

new City Manager's performance. 
 

 To follow-up with the Council and the new City Manager during the first year to 
determine if adjustments need to be made. 

 
 To keep the Council closely involved in key decisions and informed of our progress.



  
 
      Proposal to the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006         page 4 

 II.   OUR APPROACH, WORK PLAN AND SCHEDULE 
This section presents our approach, work plan and schedule for the search project. 

 

A. Approach

Our approach and style are interactive.  That is, we form a partnership with our client to conduct a 
project.  The Mayor, Councilmembers and others you may ask to participate in the process, will 
benefit through ease of implementation and by gaining more in-depth knowledge of the professional 
screening and selection of candidates.   
 

B. Work Plan

We recommend a seven (7)-step search process as follows: 
1. Position Analysis   We will study and define work relationships, job qualifications 

and requirements for the position, update our knowledge of the community and City 
organization and create a "Position Profile." 

2. Recruitment Process   We will recruit regionally and nationally (more than just 
advertising) for the position and network to locate qualified candidates. 

3. Resume Review   We will identify qualified candidates. 
4. Candidate Screening   We will carefully screen prospective finalists according to the 

selection criteria contained in the Position Profile. 
5. Background Investigation We will thoroughly evaluate the professional 

accomplishments, strengths and weaknesses, education and other records of 
prospective finalists prior to your interviews. 

6. Interview Process   We will coordinate interviews with the Council and facilitate 
selection. 

7. Negotiation and Follow-up   We will facilitate employment and follow-up to ensure 
complete integrity of the process. 

 

Each step in this process for the City Manager is described below.  

  

1. Position Analysis

We will have extensive consultation with the Mayor, Councilmembers, and City staff as well 
as other individuals or groups (if you wish) to learn the City's current vision/mission, goals 
and objectives, the needs and issues, requirements of the job, and to verify information about 
the environment within which the position functions.  We will spend a considerable amount 
of time at the beginning of the process in Troy in order to update our knowledge of the 
community and the City organization. 

 



  
 
      Proposal to the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006         page 5 

During this process, we will initiate individual interviews with Councilmembers, the Mayor, 
department heads and key staff, and other community leaders if you wish, to identify 
expectations, perceptions, and issues regarding the position, as well as the expected 
characteristics of the next successful City Manager.  If the Council wishes to appoint a 
citizens’ search committee or similar community group, we will establish the same initial 
process with that committee.   

 
Based on those meetings and interviews, we will prepare a draft position profile and review 
it with the Council in order to arrive at a general agreement regarding the specifications for 
the position.  The final position profile will include information about the City, the 
community, major issues to be faced, the position, and the selection criteria established.  Our 
Position Profiles are found to be thoroughly informative to prospective candidates.   

 

 2. Recruitment Process

Because we have recently completed similar searches, we will review our database to 
determine those candidates whom we may already know and/or already have on file who 
may meet the City's specifications. 

 
Although this process is valuable, we will rely most heavily on our own contacts in the city 
management field and on our own experience.  In other words, through "networking" (not 
just advertising), we will conduct a regional or nation-wide professional search for the best 
qualified candidates and invite them to apply for the position.  The Position Profile is a very 
effective tool during this phase of direct recruitment. 

 
We will also provide the Council with advertising alternatives.  Based on those discussions, 
we will place ads in professional journals, in national, in-state and local newspapers to 
encourage applicants to apply.  We are accustomed to using professional sources also that are 
relied upon by minority and women candidates.  Here is an initial list of resources where we 
would expect to advertise.  We will be open to other productive resources typically used by 
the City of Troy. 

 ICMA Newsletter and web site 
 MML web site 
 Public Sector Jobs Bulletin and web site 
 Mercer’s and Troy’s web sites 
 State associations of city managers, web sites and listserves 
 Direct recruitment and networking nationally 

 

3. Resume Review

We will review and analyze each applicant's background and experience against the position 
description criteria.  We will acknowledge all resumes received and keep candidates 
informed of their status. 



  
 
      Proposal to the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006         page 6 

 

 4. Candidate Screening

Criteria for the preliminary screening will be contained in the approved "Position Profile".  
They may include such items as education, technical knowledge, experience, accomplish-
ments, management style, personal traits, etc.  Screening of candidates against those criteria 
will be based on data contained in the resumes and other data provided by the candidates and 
on our knowledge of the organizations in which they work.  At this stage, each must meet the 
minimum qualifications specified in the Position Profile. 

 
We will be responsible for screening the applications received.  This initial screening will be 
conducted by telephone with both the prospective candidate and with references who may 
know the candidate's background and expertise. 

 
Once the initial screening is completed, we will identify prospective candidates who most 
closely match the criteria established by the City Council.  We will contact leading 
candidates and personally talk with each.  We will closely examine their experience, 
qualifications and achievements in view of the selection criteria and our professional 
expertise in evaluating the quality of such qualifications and achievements.   
 
The output of this step in the process will be a matrix display of top candidates showing how 
each rates against the selection criteria established by the Council (Exhibit I).  This matrix 
will be reviewed with the Council and guidance obtained prior to proceeding.  It will include 
“thumbnail” comments about each proposed finalist with respect to some of the key selection 
criteria.  Based on the preceding steps, a recommended list of finalists for the position of 
City Manager will be compiled.  We will meet with City Council to review the 
recommended list of finalists and seek your indication of the most promising few to invite 
for interviews.   

 

5. Background Investigations

As part of our process in evaluating your most promising candidates, we make detailed and 
extensive reference checks.  In conducting these, it is our practice to speak directly to 
individuals who are now or have previously been in positions to evaluate the candidate's job 
performance. 



 

 

A = Significant Experience 
B = Some Experience 
C = No Working Knowledge 

 EXHIBIT I 
 
 THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 
 SAMPLE CANDIDATE EVALUATION MATRIX 
 
 
 
 

 
Selection Evaluation Criteria 

 
 
 
CANDIDATE 

 
Community 
Relations 

 
Strategic 
Management 

 
Negotiation 
Skills 

 
Team-Building 
Skills 

 
Performance 
Budget 

 
Communications 
Skills 

 
John Jones 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

 
Mary Jackson 

 
C 

 
B 

 
A 

 
A 

 
B 

 
A 

 
Juan Perez 

 
B 

 
A 

 
C 

 
B 

 
C 

 
A 

 
Joe Washington 

 
A 

 
B 

 
B 

 
B 

 
C 

 
B 

 
Susan Jones 

 
A 

 
C 

 
B 

 
C 

 
C 

 
C 

 
William Jefferson 

 
C 

 
B 

 
C 

 
C 

 
B 

 
A 

 
Linda Chong 

 
B 

 
C 

 
C 

 
C 

 
B 

 
B 

 
Jenny Olson 

 
B 

 
A 

 
B 

 
B 

 
B 

 
B 

 
Reuben Marconi 

 
B 

 
A 

 
A 

 
B 

 
A 

 
C 

 
Stan Goldberg 

 
A 

 
B 

 
A 

 
B 

 
C 

 
A 

 
Michelle Walinski 

 
A 

 
C 

 
C 

 
A 

 
B 

 
A 

 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  8 

We ask each candidate to provide us with a few key references.  We then network references 
to other persons we believe to be familiar with the experience of the candidate.  In this way, 
we thoroughly evaluate each candidate using a 360 degree approach.  We have talked to as 
many as 23 references concerning a single finalist candidate.  These references and 
evaluations are combined to provide frank and objective appraisals of the top candidates.  
We also verify past employment difficulties, if any, including any legal action filed against 
former employers. 

 
As part of our evaluation process, we verify undergraduate and graduate college degrees.  As 
an additional option, we can arrange for credit checks, criminal checks, psychological (or 
similar) testing of the candidates that may be desired.  (These may be extra cost items.)   

 

6. Interview Process

We will prepare a written summary on each of your finalists.  The information will cover, 
but not be limited to, 1) present position, 2) total years experience, 3) salary requirements, 4) 
education, 5) previous positions held, 6) notable projects, 7) management style, 8) skills and 
abilities, 9) interests, and 10) professional goals.  This information will be presented to the 
Council in a detailed written format combined with the results of the background 
investigation and candidate screening.   

 
Our report will be presented in a meeting with the City Council in which we will discuss our 
findings and provide background information, sample questions and a rating form for the 
interviews.  Targeted questions will be recommended regarding management concepts and 
competencies as well work experience.   

 
We will also provide the Council with our recommendations relative to timing, sequencing, 
location, setting, format, and conduct of interviews with the finalists.  We will provide 
information about trends in employment, employment contracts and agreements, relocation 
expenses, perquisites, appropriate role for spouses, receptions, etc.  We will arrange 
schedules for top candidate interviews with the Council and will coordinate the process.   

 
During the time candidates are in Troy for interviews, it can be effective to schedule a public 
reception for residents and other City leaders to meet the candidates.  Such a reception can be 
arranged informally at a convenient time and place.  Councilmembers often gain valuable 
feedback from those attending and from observing the interactions with Manager candidates. 
Community members gain confidence from meeting and talking with the candidates.  
Feedback may also be forthcoming from those who observe the open interviews. 
 

Other successful interview steps include an opportunity for each finalist candidate to talk 
with the top City staff members and to take a guided tour of City facilities and community 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Tr
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006 

oy for Executive Recruitment Services 

       page  9 

assets.  For a thorough interview process that helps City Council to reach a sound 
conclusion, we can discuss many other procedural options. 

 

 7. Negotiation and Follow-up

We will also assist in mediating the process relative to salary, benefits and other conditions 
of employment if you wish.  This may allow the Council and the new City Manager to avoid 
beginning their work together with an adversarial relationship.  We can be especially helpful 
also because we have proposed a fixed fee rather than one based on a percentage of salary.   
 
One contingency here is that an agreement may not be able to be arranged.  If that is the case, 
we will work with the Council to select an alternate candidate. 

 
We are prepared to handle any and all media relations.  Unless otherwise directed, it is our 
standard practice to tell all media that we are working on behalf of the City of Troy and that 
any public statement should come directly from the Council.  We will maintain 
confidentiality of candidate information, to the extent desired by the City and to the degree 
possible under Michigan law.   

 

Finally, we will notify by letter all unsuccessful candidates who were not recommended for 
interview of the final decision reached.  We suggest, however, that it is more appropriate for 
the Council to directly notify all unsuccessful candidates whom they interviewed of the final 
result. 

 
Once the new City Manager has been on board for 30 days or so, we are available to 
conduct a session with the Council and the new City Manager in order to establish mutual 
performance criteria and goals for the position.  In this regard, we will work with the 
Council to help define the role of the new City Manager.  We will follow up periodically 
with the City during the first year in order to make any adjustments that may be 
necessary.

 
We will keep the City Council closely informed and involved in decisions concerning the 
search process at all times.  We will prepare and send periodic reports that describe the  
progress on the recruitment, specific steps to be taken to meet the City's deadlines and an 
itemization of expenses incurred to date and expected to be incurred during each succeeding 
project step.   
 
Support from the City will be needed, as follows: 

Arranging interviews with Councilmembers, other community members and staff  
Providing budget, organization charts and other documents 
Place of contact for the search 
Processing invoices for payment



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  10 

C. Schedule 
 
We propose the following 100-day schedule (Exhibit II) from start date to the Council’s 
appointment of the new City Manager:  With the Council’s contract approval by mid February, 
for example, we would expect to begin the search promptly, with position analysis and profile 
research initiated during late February.  Advertising and recruitment would be conducted through 
mid April.  This would allow us to report the top finalists by the end of April.  City Council 
should be in a position to select a few finalists in April.  Following our background checks and 
other preparation, interviews could be arranged in Troy by late May.  A selection could be made 
by the City Council in May.  This should allow a new City Manager to be on the job in by about 
July 1.  
  
This schedule can be altered further in order to meet the City's requirements.  Our proposed 
schedule of meetings with City Council is shown in Exhibit III. 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  11 

SCHEDULE OF CITY MANAGER SEARCH  PROCESS

PROJECT STEPS 0 days 30 days 60 days 90 days

1.

2.

Develop Search Process,
Recruitment Profile and
Advertisement Program
for Council approval.

Evaluate Prospective
Candidates.

Identify Qualified Candi-
dates, Review Database,
Network, Conduct Intensive
Recruitment, Receive and
Review Resumes.

3.

Written Progress Report.4.

Background Investigation
of Prospective Candidates.

5.

Make Final Recommendations,
Assist in Selection, Facilitate
Employment

6.

Establish Performance
Measures and Follow-up.

7.

Meetings with City Council:
1. Interviews, public meetings
about Profile

2. Approve Profile

3. Review final 10-12 candidates

4. Present report of finalists

5. Interview finalists

8.

March April

EXHIBIT  II

May June

120 days

 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  12 

 

 

 EXHIBIT III 

 

 
 

 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS WITH THE CITY COUNCIL  

 
 
 
1. Individual interviews with the Mayor, Councilmembers, department 

heads, community members and others. 
 
2. Meeting with City Council to finalize position profile. 
 
3. Possible meeting with Council to discuss top 8 to 10 candidates and 

solicit feedback. 
 
4. Meeting with Council to present Final Report on top 3 to 5 candidates. 
 
5. Facilitate Council's interviews with each finalist candidate. 
 
6. Meeting with Council to assist/facilitate selection of new City Manager. 
 
7. Possible follow-up meeting with City Council and new City Manager 30 

to 60 days after start of work for purposes of establishing mutual 
goals, performance objectives. 

 



 

 III.   COST PROPOSAL 
Our discounted fees for the services outlined to recruit the new City Manager are $15,000 plus not-

to-exceed direct expenses of $5,000.  Our fees are broken down as follows: 

Job Analysis, Position Profile.................................................................................... $ 3,850 

Advertising and Recruitment ......................................................................................   1,600 

Resume Review ...........................................................................................................  1,200 

Candidate Screening ...................................................................................................   2,000 

Background Investigation............................................................................................  2,850 

Interview Process.........................................................................................................  2,500 

Negotiation and Follow-up .......................................................................................     1,000

TOTAL FEE .................................................................................................$15,000 

MAXIMUM DIRECT EXPENSES. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         5,000

MAXIMUM FEES AND EXPENSE, CITY MANAGER  . . . . . . . . . . . . .       $20,000 

 

Direct expenses are for advertising sources, consultant travel, telephone, correspondence, and report 
preparation.   
 
Because of our other ongoing consulting in and near Michigan, expenses can be kept to a minimum. 
The cost for final candidates to travel to interview with the Council is not included.  Such costs are 
typically paid by the City on a reimbursement basis, directly to the candidates.  These costs are 
difficult to estimate because they depend on where the candidates are located.  Out-of-state costs run 
as high as $750 to $1,000 per person. 
 
The City of Troy's cost for The Mercer Group, Inc. for services rendered under this agreement will 
not exceed the agreed upon price unless an increase is authorized by the City in writing.  We will 
submit invoices for fees and expenses.  It is our practice to bill one-third at the start of the search, 
one-third after 30 days, and one-third upon successful negotiation with the Council's selected 
candidate.  Each invoice will be payable upon receipt for professional services.  Expenses will be 
billed in addition and shown as a separate figure.   
 
We will comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of federal, state and local government 
entities.  Our ability to carry out the work required will be drawn greatly from our past experience in 
providing similar services to others, and we expect to continue such work in the future.  We will, to 
the degree possible, preserve the confidential nature of any information received from you or 
developed during the work in accordance with our professional standards. 
 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  13 



 
We assure you that we will devote our best efforts to carrying out this engagement.  The results 
obtained, our recommendations and any written material provided by us will represent our best 
judgment based on the information available to us.  Our liability, if any, will not be greater than the 
amount paid to us for the services rendered. 
 
This proposal constitutes the agreement between us.  It cannot be modified except in writing by both 
parties.  Our agreement will be interpreted according to the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  14 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  15 

 IV.   FIRM HISTORY, QUALIFICATIONS AND STAFFING 
 

This section presents our qualifications to conduct projects of this type and describes the staff to be 
assigned to the search. 
 
A. Firm Qualifications
 
The Mercer Group, Inc. is an independent management consulting firm incorporated in the State of 
Georgia and operating nation-wide.  The firm was founded by James L. Mercer, a long-term public 
management consultant. 
 
Mr. Mercer started his own firm in 1981 and, in 1984, merged it with another consulting firm, Wolfe 
& Associates, Inc.  On June 1, 1986, Mr. Mercer acquired the Human Resource and Organizational 
Consulting Practice of Wolfe & Associates, Inc.  This acquisition formed the basis for Mercer, 
Slavin & Nevins, Inc.  He sold his interest in Mercer, Slavin & Nevins, Inc. early in 1990 and 
founded The Mercer Group, Inc. 
 
The Mercer Group, Inc. provides exceptionally high quality management consulting services to state 
and local governments, transit authorities, health care providers, utilities, special districts, and 
private sector clients.  Specialty practice areas include:  executive recruitment, organization and 
operations analysis, productivity improvement, strategic planning, management systems, 
compensation/classification/policy studies, privatization, budget evaluation services, government 
consolidation and organization development, training, and general management consulting.  Our key 
consultants have conducted successful searches for hundreds of public sector organizations 
nationally and can offer numerous references as testimony of our work.  Public sector clients 
constitute over 90% of our business. 
 
James L. Mercer has conducted or assisted in the conduct of more than 250 successful executive 
searches in recent years.  Mr. Mercer is the Chief Executive Officer of our firm and can be located at 
our Santa Fe office as follows: 
 

 James L. Mercer, President 
 The Mercer Group, Inc. 
 28 Sierra del Sol 
 Santa Fe, NM  87505 
 Telephone: 505-466-9500; FAX: 505-466-1274 
 Federal Tax ID No.:  58-1877068 
 mercer@mindspring.com 
 www.mercergroupinc.com



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  16 

 

B. Resumes of Our Key Staff 

 

1. James L. Mercer, President 

Mr. Mercer holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of 
Nevada, Reno, and a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Management from the same 
institution.  He has also received a Certificate in Municipal Administration from the 
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and is a graduate of the Executive Development 
Program at Cornell University.  Mr. Mercer is a Certified Management Consultant (CMC) 
and has more than 23 years of experience in executive search and management consulting.  
He has authored or co-authored five books and has written more than 200 articles on various 
management topics.  His experience covers the following functional areas:  executive search, 
organization and operations analysis, management systems, productivity improvement, semi-
nars/training, goal setting, strategic planning, privatization, government, consolidation, and 
general consulting. 
 
Prior to founding The Mercer Group, Inc., Mr. Mercer held positions as President of Mercer, 
Slavin & Nevins, Inc.; Regional Vice President of Wolfe & Associates, Inc.; as Partner and 
Vice President of Korn/Ferry International; General Manager of Battelle Southern 
Operations; National Program Director for Public Technology, Inc.; and Assistant City 
Manager of Raleigh, North Carolina.   

 

 

 2.  Thomas C. Dority,  Senior Vice President 

Mr. Dority is a career city manager with over 30 years experience in public policy 
development, finance, budgeting, employee relations and management of public safety, 
public works and community development.  He is a past member of the Board of Directors of 
the Michigan City Management Association. A member of the adjunct faculties of Eastern 
and Western Michigan Universities, he was associated with the Institute for Community and 
Regional Development for Council goal-setting and has taught a graduate seminar in local 
government administration.  He has published articles in Ohio and Michigan municipal 
publications.  Mr. Dority is a past member of the Boards of the Michigan Association of 
Community Arts Agencies and the Museum Associates of Michigan State University.  He is 
currently on the Board of A Woman’s Place.  His experience and qualifications include the 
following: 
 
 Top manager in five local governments, employing over 400 people, designing and executing 

major public policies, building successful working relationships with elected Boards. 
 Experienced facilitator of volunteer and elected Boards, mission planning, goals and 

consensus. 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  17 

 Experienced change agent of organization structure, continuous improvement and team 
building. 

 Recruited, hired key professionals in high profile community positions. 
 Evaluated professional staff for fifteen years and helped plan for their professional growth. 

 
Mr. Dority holds a Master of Public Administration from the University of Colorado, 1971 
and a Bachelor of Science, Business Administration, from the University of California, 1966. 
He was City Manager in East Lansing, Michigan for ten years and in Oxford, Ohio for five 
years.  Mr. Dority served as a consultant to Ohio municipalities with Deloitte Haskins + Sells 
and held top City and County positions in Finance, Human Resources and general 
management in Colorado and Oregon.  He served with the U.S. Air Force in Southeast Asia.   

 
Mr. Dority has conducted many searches as a career city manager and has been the principal 
consultant for over eighty executive searches during the past ten years.  He is President of 
Tom Dority & Associates, Inc., a municipal consulting business incorporated in Michigan.  
His firm represents The Mercer Group, Inc., for many professional engagements under a 
standing Subcontractor Agreement.  He serves as Senior Vice President of our firm and 
manages our Michigan and Colorado offices as follows: 
 

 Thomas C. Dority 
 The Mercer Group, Inc. 
 4520 W. 14th Street Drive 
 Greeley, CO  80634-3147 
 Telephone: 970-378-1781; FAX: 970-378-1831 
 e-mail: tomdority@comcast.net  
 

Thomas C. Dority 
Janet Lazar 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
2313 Northampton Way, Lansing, MI  48912 

Telephone: 517-487-4575; FAX: 517-482-8750 
e-mail: tomdority@comcast.net  

 

3. Susan Gapter-Dority, Senior Consultant 

Susan Gapter-Dority will assist in the research, profile interviews and continuity during this 
project.  Ms. Gapter-Dority has over 20 years experience as a C.P.A. in public practice, most 
recently a partner in the regional accounting firm, Kennedy and Coe, LLC.  She served as 
personnel partner, hiring, training and mentoring staff.  Her emphasis has been in human 
resources, employee benefits, facilitation and mediation, organizational structure and tax.  
During her public accounting career, she has managed many municipal audits.  With the 
Mercer Group, Inc., Ms. Gapter-Dority has assisted with many searches and provided the 
lead on others. 

mailto:tomdority@comcast.net
mailto:tomdority@comcast.net


 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  18 

 
Ms. Gapter-Dority holds a Business Administration degree in Accounting, Summa Cum 
Laude, from the University of Northern Colorado, 1980.  She obtained an undergraduate 
degree in microbiology from Colorado State University in 1964.  She has served on the 
Boards of the Community Foundation, Hospice, Chamber of Commerce and is a past-
president the University of Northern Colorado Foundation and her Rotary club. 

 

4. Janet Lazar, Senior Vice President, Lansing, Michigan 

Ms. Lazar is a recruiting and compensation consultant with The Mercer Group, Inc., and 
manages the Lansing office.  She has over 25 years experience in municipal management.  
She served in financial management roles with the City of Lansing, Michigan, resulting in 
her appointment as Director of the Budget/Deputy Finance Director in that City in 1993.  
Since 1984, she has also served as a consultant to municipalities for executive search, 
financial planning, budgeting and employee compensation and benefit evaluation.  She is 
president of Benefit, Evaluation & Retirement Services, Inc., since 1993, serving municipal 
clients directly and in a standing subcontractor role with The Mercer Group, Inc. 

 
 Ms. Lazar holds a BA in Political Science and Math, cum laude, and an M.A. in Political 
Science from Northern Illinois University.  She also holds an M.P.A. from NIU and is a 
certified financial planner.  Her consulting experience with The Mercer Group, Inc., includes 
the Cities of Bay City and Rochester Hills, the City of Henderson, Nevada, Charleston, SC, 
Board of Public Works and the St. Paul Utilities Board, Minnesota. 
   

 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  19 

 V.   WHY YOU SHOULD SELECT THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 
We believe some advantages to using The Mercer Group, Inc. which you may wish to consider are: 
 

1. Critical Path Method  The Mercer Group, Inc. uses a "critical path" search process 
which is designed to allow our clients to focus their attention on the selection process 
rather than on recruiting and screening candidates.  We have learned that each client's 
need for key executives is different and that there is no one "best" person for all 
situations.  The best prospects are most frequently happily employed and are not 
responding to advertisements.  These people typically need to be sought out and 
encouraged to become candidates.  They are understandably reluctant to apply for 
positions if their interest could become a matter of public information prior to being 
assured that they will be finalist candidates.  Our approach to this assignment will 
reflect the unique qualities of the City of Troy.  It will honor the interests of candi-
dates to the extent possible under Michigan law. 

 
2. Reasonable Fees  Our practice was formed to provide exceptional quality 

recruitment services to our clients.  Our system is designed to allow us to extend 
reasonable fees to our non-profit and governmental clients and still be within our 
profit margins on each assignment. 

 
3. Experience   Our search specialists are among the most experienced recruiters in the 

United States.  We are also conducting similar consulting assignments currently.    
 

4. Repeat Engagements  We have received a considerable amount of repeat business 
from our clients during the recent past. 

 
5. Unique Skills and Services  We offer a valuable combination of skills and services 

which is unique in our industry.  Our firm is nationally respected in the areas of 
organization analysis and development, team building, strategic planning, goal 
setting, and productivity analysis.   

 
6. Performance Guarantees  We guarantee that we will not recruit candidates for other 

clients from the City of Troy unless, for some reason, you specifically authorize us to 
do so.  We further guarantee that if all the steps of our proposal are approved and 
carried out, should the selected candidate leave your employ within the first year of 
employment, we will redo the search for the cost of our expenses only.  Our other 
guarantees include never attempting to recruit our placement without your permission 
and continuing the search until you are satisfied. 

 
7. Strategic Locations  We are a national firm and serve the United States from our 

offices nationwide.  We will be in Troy when you need us. 
 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  20 

8. Specialists in Search  We are specialists in public sector and related executive search 
and will devote our most experienced consultants to this project.  We will not 
delegate any important aspect of the work to less experienced staff.    

 
9. Positive Track Record  We have a positive track record of placements on all of our 

search assignments and have satisfied clients as references. 
 

10. Objectivity and Custom Tailored Services  We do not use the same cadre of 
candidates again and again.  And, we have no allegiances which preclude our total 
objectivity respective of any candidate. 

 
11. Thorough Work Product  We check references, we verify education and our work 

product is most thorough and of the highest quality. 
 

12. Contemporary Organization Analysis Insight  We have contemporary organization 
analysis experience with similar organizations and will share our insights about your 
organization as we proceed with the search. 

 
13. Proven Satisfaction  Over 90 percent of our placements during the past five years are 

still in their same positions. 
 

14. Ethical Standards  We have participated in the establishment of ethical standards for 
public sector executive search firms, and we abide by those standards.  We also abide 
by the Ethical Standards of the Institute of Management Consultants and the 
International City/County Management Association. 

 
15. Objective Evaluation  We are experienced in objectively evaluating internal and 

local candidates. 
 

16. Contacts  We have the local, state-wide and national contacts to expedite the search 
process. 

 
17. Database  We have a large database of well-qualified candidates which can be 

searched. 
 

18. Minority/Women Placements  We have a number of minority and women 
placements. 

 
19. Diagnostic Techniques  We use diagnostic techniques to determine the needs of our 

clients and to determine how candidates match up with those needs. 
 

20. Position Dimensions Analysis  We use a technique which allows for the 
determination of dimensions that are important in a City Manager's position and then 
determine specific questions that we should ask prospective candidates that will allow 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  21 

us to systematically determine whether or not those individuals have those 
characteristics.  (For example, one dimension might be negotiating skills; leadership 
skills might be another, etc.) 

 
21. Dimensions Matrix  We also use a matrix approach to display the candidates along a 

number of dimensions and then review the top 10 or so of those individually with the 
Council  to get their involvement and feedback prior to us spending City resources to 
interview a large number of candidates.  This helps better target the search and 
produces a much more effective result. 

 
22. Group Process Techniques  In addition, we use a number of group process 

techniques to assist the Council and the new City Manager to better settle in and 
focus on a set of mutual performance criteria once the new person has been selected 
and comes on Council. 

 
23. Never Say "No"  We almost never say "no" to our clients. 

 
24. Keep You Involved  We will keep the Mayor and Council actively involved in the 

search process at all times. 
 

25. Ready to Go  We are ready to begin work immediately and proceed rapidly to 
complete this assignment.  We can meet your schedule. 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  22 

 VI.   ACCEPTANCE 

 
This proposal is accepted for the City of Troy, Michigan by: 

 

 

SIGNATURE:                                                                                            

 

NAME:                                                                                             

 

TITLE:                                                                                             

 

DATE:                                                                                             

 

 

* * * * * 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  23 

 APPENDIX A:   PREVIOUS SEARCHES 
 

For brevity, an abbreviated list of our executive search experience follows.  We will be happy to provide the 
entire list of hundreds of clients and positions. 
* Executive search work performed by a current staff member while working for another firm. 

 
1. PUBLIC SECTOR
 

City Managers/Administrators
 

Akron, Ohio - Assistant to the Mayor (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Alachua, Florida - City Manager - 2001 
Albany, Georgia - Assistant City Manager (Limited scope search) - 2000 
Angel Fire, New Mexico - Town Administrator (Limited scope search) - 2000 
Andrews, Texas - City Manager - 2000 
Ann Arbor, Michigan - City Administrator - 1988 
Ann Arbor, Michigan - City Administrator - 1995 
Ann Arbor, Michigan - City Administrator - 2001 
Arlington, Texas - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Aspen, Colorado - City Manager - 1989 
Athens/Clarke County Unified Government, Georgia - Manager - 1995 
Athens/Clarke County Unified Government, Georgia - Manager - 2000 
Aurora, Colorado - City Manager - 1989 
Austin, Texas - City Manager - 1988 
Avondale, Arizona - City Manager - 2000 
Barrington, Illinois - Village Manager - 1998 
Bay City, Michigan - City Manager - 2003 
Beavercreek, Ohio - City Manager - 1985 
Beavercreek, Ohio - City Manager - 2003 
Belding, Michigan - City Manager - 1999 
Bellaire, Texas - City Manager - 1996 
Billings, Montana - City Administrator - 2003 
Billings, Montana - City Administrator - 1999 
Billings, Montana - Assistant City Administrator - 2003 
Billings, Montana - Deputy City Administrator - 2003 
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan - City Manager - 2001 
Boca Raton, Florida - Assistant City Manager - 1989 
Boulder, Colorado - City Manager - 2002 
Boynton Beach, Florida - City Manager - 1999 
Cairo, Georgia - City Manager - 1995 
Cape Coral, Florida - City Manager - 1996 
Carpentersville, Illinois - Village Manager - 2001 
Carrboro, North Carolina - Town Manager - 2003 
Casa Grande, Arizona - City Manager - 2003 
Casselberry, Florida - City Manager (Limited scope search) - 2003 
Centennial, Colorado - City Manager - 2001 
Charlotte, North Carolina - City Manager - 1981 
Charlotte, North Carolina - City Manager - 1996 
Charlotte, North Carolina - Deputy City Manager (Limited scope search) - 2000 
Chesapeake, Virginia - City Manager - 1996 
Clayton, Missouri - City Manager - 2003 
*Cloverdale, California - City Manager - 2001 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  24 

College Park, Georgia - City Manager - 2002 
College Park, Maryland - City Manager - 2004 
College Park, Maryland - City Manager - 2002 
*Colma, California - City Manager - 1998 
Columbia, South Carolina - City Manager - 1997 
Columbus, Georgia - City Manager - 1995 
Concord, North Carolina - City Manager - 1999 
Coral Springs, Florida - Assistant City Manager - 2000 
*Cotati, California - City Manager - 1997 
Culpeper, Virginia - Town Manager - 2000 
*Daly City, California - Assistant City Manager - 1995 
Danville, Virginia - City Manager - 1999 
Davie, Florida - Town Administrator - 1999 
Daytona Beach, Florida - City Manager - 2002 
Decatur, Illinois - City Manager - 1987 
Deerfield Beach, Florida - City Manager - 1989 
DeKalb, Illinois - City Manager - 1998 
Delaware, Ohio - City Manager - 1998 
Delray Beach, Florida - City Manager - 1986 
Del Rio, Texas - City Manager (Limited scope search) - 1995 
Derby, Kansas - City Manager - 2001 
Dothan, Alabama - City Manager - 2002 
Durham, North Carolina - City Manager - 2004 
East Point, Georgia - City Manager - 1996 
East Point, Georgia - City Manager - 1999 
Elkhart, Kansas - City Administrator (Limited scope search) - 2000 
Eloy, Arizona - City Manager - 2000 
El Paso, Texas - City Manager 2004 
Enid, Oklahoma - City Manager - 1997 
*Encinitas, California - City Manager - 1999 
Eugene, Oregon - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Evanston, Illinois - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973  
Evanston, Illinois - City Manager - 1996 
Fairmont, Minnesota - City Administrator - 1988 
Federal Heights, Colorado - City Manager - 2004 
Federal Way, Washington - City Manager - 1999 
Flint, Michigan - City Administrator - 2001 
Florence, South Carolina - City Manager - 1996 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida - City Manager - 1998 
Fountain Hills, Arizona - Town Manager - 2002 
Frankfort, Kentucky - City Manager - 2003 
Franklin Village, Michigan - Village Administrator - 1998 
Gainesville, Florida - City Manager - 1995 
Glencoe, Illinois - Village Manager - 2000 
Glendale, Arizona - Deputy City Manager (2 Positions) - 2004 
Glenview, Illinois - Village Manager - 2004 
Goldsboro, North Carolina - City Manager - 2004 
Grand Ledge, Michigan - City Administrator - 1999 
Green Cove Springs, Florida - City Manager (Limited scope search) - 1997 
*Greenfield, California - City Manager - 1998 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  25 

Greensboro, North Carolina - Assistant City Manager (Limited scope search) - 1996 
Gulfport, Florida - City Manager - 2003 
Gulfport, Florida - City Manager - 1989 
Hampton, Virginia - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Hampton, Virginia - City Manager - 1984 
*Healdsburg, California - City Manager - 1995 
Highland Park, Michigan - Interim City Manager - 2002-2003 
High Point, North Carolina - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Howell, Michigan - Deputy City Manager for Financial Services - 2004 
Huber Heights, Ohio - City Manager - 2000 
Hudson, Ohio - City Manager - 1997 
Independence, Missouri - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Indian Rocks Beach, Florida - City Manager (Limited scope search) - 1997 
Jackson, Michigan - City Manager - 1996 
Jackson, Michigan - City Manager - 2004 
Jacksonville, North Carolina - City Manager - 1998 
Jersey City, New Jersey - Assistant Business Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Johnson City, Tennessee - City Manager - 2005 
Joplin, Missouri - City Manager - 2004 
Kent, Ohio - City Manager – 1997, 2005 
Kettering, Ohio - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Kingsport, Tennessee - City Manager -1999 
Lakeland, Florida - City Manager - 2003 
Lakeland, Florida - Assistant to the City Manager - 2004 
*Lakeport, California - City Manager - 2001 
Laurinburg, North Carolina - City Manager - 1999 
Lapeer, Michigan - City Manager - 2002 
League City, Texas - City Administrator - 2004 
*Livermore, California - City Manager - 2000 
*Livermore, California - Assistant City Manager - 2001  
Longboat Key, Florida - Town Manager - 1993 
Longboat Key, Florida - Town Manager - 1997 
Longboat Key, Florida - Assistant Town Manager - 1996 
*Los Altos, California - City Manager - 1998 
Louisville, Ohio - City Manager - 2001 
Lower Merion Township, Pennsylvania - Assistant Township Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Manistee, Michigan - City Manager - 2001 
Martinsville, Virginia - City Manager - 2004 
Matthews, North Carolina - Town Manager - 2002 
Melbourne, Florida - City Manager - 2002 
Middletown, Ohio - City Manager - 1984 
Middletown, Pennsylvania - Borough Manager - 2001 
*Mill Valley, California - City Manager - 1999 
Minneapolis, Minnesota - Assistant City Coordinator (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Minnetonka, Minnesota - City Manager - 2000 
Minster, Ohio - Village Administrator - 1986 
Monroe, Michigan - City Manager - 1992 
Montgomery, Illinois - Village Manager - 2000 
*Morgan Hill, California - City Manager - 1996 
Mound, Minnesota - City Manager - 2000 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  26 

Naples, Florida - City Manager - 2003 
Negaunee, Michigan - City Manager - 2004 
Norfolk, Virginia - City Manager - 1999 
North Miami, Florida - City Manager - 2002 
Northglenn, Colorado - City Manager - 2001 
Northville Township, Michigan - Township Administrator - 1999 
North Myrtle Beach, South Carolina - City Manager - 2003 
North Myrtle Beach, South Carolina - City Manager - 1997 
North Port, Florida - Assistant City Manager (Limited scope search) - 2003 
North Port, Florida - Assistant City Manager (Limited scope search) - 2002 
*Novato, California - Assistant City Manager - 2002 
Oak Ridge, Tennessee - City Manager - 2003 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma - City Manager - 1986 
*Oxnard, California - City Manager - 1997 
Pasadena, California - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Payson, Arizona - Town Manager - 2002 
*Petaluma, California - City Manager - 1996 
Phoenix, Arizona - City Manager - 1989 
Plainview, Texas - City Manager - 2003 
Ponce Inlet, Florida - Town Manager - 2001 
Port Huron, Michigan - City Manager - 1997 
Portsmouth, Virginia - City Manager - 2000 
Pueblo, Colorado - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Punta Gorda, Florida - City Manager - 1995 
Punta Gorda, Florida - City Manager - 1998 
Punta Gorda, Florida - City Manager - 2004 
Raleigh, North Carolina - Assistant to the City Manager - 1971 
Raleigh, North Carolina - City Manager - 2000 
Reading, Pennsylvania - Managing Director - 2003 
*Reno, Nevada - City Manager 1995 
Richland, Washington - City Manager - 1998 
Richland, Washington - City Manager (Limited scope search) - 2000 
Richmond, Michigan - City Manager - 1998 
Rio Rancho, New Mexico - City Administrator - 2003 
Roanoke, Virginia - City Manager - 1999 
Rock Hill, South Carolina - City Manager - 2001 
Rock Hill, South Carolina - City Manager - 1993 
Rockville, Maryland - City Manager - 1998 
St. Pete Beach, Florida - City Manager - 2001 
St. Petersburg, Florida - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
St. Petersburg, Florida - Deputy City Manager Public Works - 1988 
San Diego, California - Deputy City Manager - 1988 
*San Diego, California - Assistant City Manager - 2000  
San Jose, California - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
*San Rafael, California - City Manager - 1996 
*Santa Rosa, California - City Manager - 2000 
Sarasota, Florida - City Manager - 1986 
*Saratoga, California - City Manager - 1997 
Saratoga, California - City Manager - 2000 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  27 

Savannah, Georgia - City Manager - 1994 
Sioux City, Iowa - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
*Solana Beach, California - City Manager - 2002 
South Brunswick Township, New Jersey - Township Administrator - 1987 
South Haven, Michigan - City Manager - 1999 
Southlake, Texas - Assistant City Manager - 2005 
South Miami, Florida - City Manager - 2003 
Southfield, Michigan - City Administrator - 1999 
Sparks, Nevada - City Manager - 1989 
Spartanburg, South Carolina - City Manager - 1984 
Spartanburg, South Carolina - City Manager - 1995 
Spartanburg, South Carolina - City Manager - 2001 
Suffolk, Virginia - City Manager - 2002 
Sun’n Lake Sebring Improvement District, Florida - General Manager - 2004 
Sun’n Lake Sebring Improvement District, Florida - General Manager - 2002 
Sunrise, Florida - City Manager - 1989 
Swartz Creek, Michigan - City Manager - 2000 
Takoma Park, Maryland - City Manager - 2004 
Talladega, Alabama - City Manager - 2003 
Tallahassee, Florida - City Manager - 1994 
*The Sea Ranch - Community Manager - 2002 
*Tiburon, California - City Manager - 2000 
Tifton, Georgia - City Manager - 1996 
Topeka, Kansas - Assistant to the Mayor (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Topeka, Kansas - Chief Administrative Officer - 2002 
*Tracy, California - Deputy City Manager - 1999 
Traverse City, Michigan - City Manager - 1987 
Treasure Island, Florida - City Manager - 2004 
Treasure Island, Florida - City Manager - 1996 
Tucson, Arizona - City Manager - 2004 
Tucson, Arizona - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
*Union City, California - City Manager - 1995 
Vero Beach, Florida - City Manager - 2004 
Virginia Beach, Virginia - City Manager - 1991 
Virginia Beach, Virginia - Deputy City Manager - 1987 
West Hartford, Connecticut - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Westminster, Colorado - City Manager - 2000 
West Palm Beach, Florida - City Manager - 1988 
Wilmington, North Carolina - City Manager - 2002 
Wilmington, North Carolina - Deputy City Manager - 2003 
Wilson, North Carolina - City Manager - 2004 
Winter Haven, Florida - City Manager - 1986 
Winter Haven, Florida - City Manager - 2001 
Worcester, Massachusetts - Assistant City Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Worcester, Massachusetts - City Manager - 1993 
Worthington, Minnesota - City Manager - 1988 
Wylie, Texas - City Manager - 2004 
York, Pennsylvania - Business Administrator & Assistant Solicitor - 2000 

 
 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  28 

 
County Managers/Administrators

 
Alachua County, Florida - County Manager  - 1999 
Alachua County, Florida - County Manager - 1984 
Arapahoe County, Colorado - County Administrator – 1999 
Archuleta County, Colorado – County Administrator – 2006  
Athens/Clarke County Unified Government, Georgia - Manager - 1995 
Athens/Clarke County Unified Government, Georgia - Manager - 2001 
Beaufort County, South Carolina - County Administrator - 1992 
Broward County, Florida - Assistant to the County Administrator for Affordable Housing -  

 2004 
Charleston County, South Carolina - County Administrator - 1998 
Charlotte County, Florida - County Administrator - 2002 
Charlotte County, Florida - County Administrator - 1995 
Chesterfield County, Virginia - County Administrator - 1983 
Clarke County, Georgia - County Administrator - 1984 
Collier County, Florida - County Administrator (Limited scope search) – 2000 
Eagle County, Colorado – County Administrator – 2005  
Fairfax County, Virginia - County Executive - 1980 
Grady County, Georgia - County Administrator (Limited scope search) - 1999 
Gwinnett County, Georgia - County Manager - 1987 
Gwinnett County, Georgia - Executive Assistant to the Board - 1985 
Henrico County, Virginia - Assistant County Manager (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Henry County, Georgia - County Administrator - 1984 
Hernando County, Florida - County Administrator - 2000 
Hillsborough County, Florida - County Administrator - 1986 
Hillsborough County, Florida - Deputy County Administrator - 2004 
Hillsborough County, Florida - Assistant County Administrator for Human Services - 2004 
Incorporated County of Los Alamos, New Mexico - County Administrator - 1998 
Indian River County, Florida - County Administrator - 1987 
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana - Assistant to the Parish President (Technology Agent) -1973 
Johnson County, Kansas - County Administrator - 1998 
Lee County, Virginia - County Administrator - 1991 
Leon County, Florida - County Administrator - 1989 
Leon County, Florida - Assistant County Administrator - 1989 
Los Alamos County, New Mexico - County Administrator - 2003 
Los Alamos County, New Mexico - County Administrator - 1999 
Lowndes County, Georgia - County Manager - 2001 
Manatee County, Florida - County Administrator - 1984 
Manatee County, Florida - County Administrator - 1993 
Nashville/Davidson County , Tennessee - Assistant to the Mayor (Technology Agent) - 1973 
Northampton County, Virginia - County Administrator - 1999 
*Nye County, Nevada - County Manager - 1998 
Orange County, North Carolina - County Manager - 1987 
Osceola County, Florida - County Administrator - 2003 
Palm Beach County, Florida - County Administrator - 1985 
Polk County, Florida - County Administrator - 1989 
Prince William County, Virginia - County Executive - 1990 
Ramsey County, Minnesota - County Manager - 1999 



 
St. Louis County, Minnesota - County Administrator - 1987 
Santa Rosa County, Florida - County Administrator - 1988 
Spartanburg County, South Carolina - County Administrator - 1999 
Stafford County, Virginia - County Administrator - 2002 
Summit County, Colorado - County Manager - 2001 
Union County, North Carolina - County Manager - 2001 
Volusia County, Florida - County Manager - 1995 
Wise County, Virginia - County Administrator - 2001 

 
 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  29 



 

 APPENDIX B:  REFERENCES 
 
You may contact any of the following for references on the professional work of Mr. Dority: 
 

Robert DeBrosse      Georgia Fojtasek   
Mayor        President and CEO    
City of Piqua       W.A. Foote Memorial Hospital  
201 W. Water Street      205 N. East Avenue   

 Piqua, OH  45256      Jackson, MI  49201 
937-773-1481       517-788-4942    

 City Manager search      Search for President/CEO  
         The Enterprise Group   
         

 
Mayor Kathleen Novak     Mayor Mark Ruzzin  
City Manager Phillip Nelson     Joann Roberts Stacy, H.R. Director 
City of Northglenn      City of Boulder 
population 28,000      1777 Broadway 
11701 Community Center Dr.     Boulder, CO  80306 
Northglenn, CO  80233     303-441-3011 
303-451-8326       City Manager, City Attorney Search  

 City Manager, Police Chief, Finance 
  

     
Mayor Martin Griffin      City Administrator Marc Ott 
City Manager William Ross     (now Dep.C.M., Fort Worth, TX  
City of Jackson       817-871-6111) 
Population: 37,500      City of Rochester Hills 
161 W. Michigan Ave.      population:  64,200 
517-788-4035       1000 Rochester Hills Dr. 
City Manager,        Rochester Hills,  MI  48309-3033 
Police and Fire Chiefs      810/656-4600 
Other Community searches     Multiple Searches, Compensation Study 
 
 
Village President Irwin A. Bock    Margene Ann Scott 
Marc G. Hummel, Village Manager   President 
Population: 38,500      Michigan Municipal League 
2121 W. Lake St.      1675 Green Road 
Hanover Park,  IL  60103     Ann Arbor, MI  48106-1487 
630-372-4210       734-669-6303 
Multiple Searches      Executive Director search 

 
 
  

 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  30 



 
You may contact any of the following for references on the professional work of The Mercer Group, 
Inc.: 

 
 
Mayor John Hieftje 
Jane Lumm, former City Councilmember 
City of Ann Arbor, Michigan; population: 109,592 
100 N. Fifth St.,  Ann Arbor,  MI  48107-8647 
(313) 994-2766 
City Administrator Search 

 
Mayor Nancy Heil 
City of Westminster, CO; population: 99,081 
4800 W. 92nd Avenue 
Westminster, CO  80031 
City Manager Search 

 
Mayor Randy Pye 
City of Centennial, CO; population: 103,500 
7777 E. Arapahoe Rd. 
Centennial, CO  80112 
303-734-4567 
City Manager Search 

  
Mr. Michael Lary 
Personnel Director 
Volusia County; population:  385,000 
123 W. Indiana Ave. 
Deland, Florida   32720-4612 
(904) 736-5951 
County Manager Search 

 
Mayor Meyera Oberndorf 
City of Virginia Beach; population:  308,664 
City Hall Building 
Virginia Beach, Virginia   23456 
(804) 427-5445 
City Manager Search, Deputy City Manager, City Attorney, 
  and Director of Personnel Searches 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  31 



 
 
 
 
 Commissioner Stephen T. Patton, District 1 

City of Worcester; population:  169,759 
16 Haygood Road 
Worcester, Massachusetts   01605 
(508) 852-3475 
City Manager Search 

 
Mr. Robert J. O'Neill, Jr. 
Former City Manager 
City of Hampton; population:  133,793 
Now Executive Director, ICMA 
202-289-4262 
Various Searches 

 
Mr. David R. Sollenberger 
City Manager 
City of Sarasota; population:  50,961 
P. O. Box 1058 
Sarasota, Florida   33578 
(813) 954-4102 
Police Chief and Director of Human Resources Searches 

 
Mayor Lorraine Morton 
City of Evanston 
2100 Ridge Ave. 
Evanston,  IL  60204 
(708) 328-2100 
City Manager Search 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  32 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  33 

 
 APPENDIX C: 
 
 QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT 
 
 
1. Why should a public sector organization utilize an executive recruiter? 
 

We have the experience, time and a vast array of national contacts in public agencies.  This 
will save your organization time and money in filling key positions with candidates of 
exceptional quality. 

 
The trend is that more and more public agencies, both large and small, are turning to 
executive search firms to recruit key executives and managers who may be happy and 
successful elsewhere.  This trend has developed because of the complexity and time 
consuming nature of locating and selecting high quality persons for public sector 
organizations and by the tremendous success of specialty firms such as ours in meeting client 
needs quickly and efficiently. 

 
2. How is an executive recruitment conducted? 
 

Our methods have been successfully tested over a number of years.  We normally meet with 
the key clients and appointed officials who engage us in order to determine the selection 
criteria for the position.  These criteria usually include education and professional 
development, related experience, management style and abilities, and personal characteris-
tics.  We then seek out exceptionally well-qualified individuals and invite them to become 
candidates.  We screen candidates against the selection criteria and thoroughly evaluate the 
background of the most promising candidates.  We submit to you a detailed report on the top 
five or so candidates who best meet the criteria. 

 
We arrange interviews of the candidates with you, attend the interviews ourselves, negotiate 
with selected finalists if you wish, and notify remaining applicants of your decision.  
Throughout the process, we acknowledge all applicants and keep you informed of progress.  
We will also conduct a goal and objective-setting session with you and the key executive to 
fully establish him/her within the organization.  Where possible, we maintain confidentiality 
of all information in accordance with our professional standards. 

 
3. When can results be expected? 
 

A national search process normally takes 90 days from agreement to submission of the final 
report.  Interviews can be conducted immediately after the report is submitted and 
negotiations with the selected candidate can be concluded shortly thereafter.  More limited 
searches can usually be completed more quickly. 



 

  
 
      Proposal for the City of Troy for Executive Recruitment Services 
      for the Position of City Manager 
     The Mercer Group, Inc., 2006        page  34 

 
4. What are the chances of success? 
 

We have an outstanding success rate on all of our executive recruitment assignments and will 
be pleased to offer numerous references as tributes to our work. 

 
5. What will the electorate think? 
 

They are concerned with excellent quality and timeliness of service and with cost efficiency.  
Our process assures you that these constituent objectives are being met most effectively. 

 
6. What is the role of the client? 
 

The client is the key decision-maker.  We will not usurp the client's authority relative to the 
process and the key decisions.  We work closely with our client to assure that final results are 
highly acceptable. 

 
7. What does it cost? 
 

We charge a fixed professional service fee that does not depend upon salary paid.  In 
addition, our consulting expenses usually are an additional 40 percent of the professional 
service fee.  Our fees vary according to local circumstances. 

 
8. What other services are provided? 
 

If, for some reasons, the selected candidate leaves within the first year, we guarantee that we 
will conduct a replacement search for expenses only.  In addition, we guarantee that we will 
not attempt to recruit any of the client's key people for other positions for a period of two 
years from the completion of the search. 

 
9. What about EEO requirements? 
 

The Mercer Group, Inc. is an equal opportunity recruiter.  We will not discriminate against 
any person on the basis of race, religion, creed, color, gender, handicap, sexual orientation or 
national origin.  We have had numerous women and minority candidates and placements. 



January 17, 2006 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Request for Closed Session for the Purpose of 
   Performance Evaluation of City Manager 
 
 
 
I am requesting a Closed Session be scheduled for the purpose of having a 
performance evaluation, pursuant to State Statute MCLA 15.268, Section (a). 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to call me. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEM\2006\01.23.06 \ Request for Closed Session for Performance Evaluation of City Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance & Administration
Cynthia Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

DATE: January 17, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: PROTEC Membership  
 

 
  

 
PROTEC, the Michigan Coalition to Protect Public Rights-of-Way, has asked the City of Troy 

to re-join as a member of the coalition.  PROTEC has been at the vanguard of the efforts to protect 
municipal interests in the telecommunications field, especially in light of the increasing attacks on 
franchise fees and the ability of municipalities to protect our rights of way.  At both the state and 
federal level, there has been a lot of activity that could severely impede municipal interests.  
PROTEC needs additional funding to adequately represent the municipal interests, especially in light 
of the significant industry funding that is being used for lobbying state and federal legislators.   

 
In spite of the increasing funding demands this year, PROTEC has actually reduced their 

fees in an effort to increase their membership.  They have also approached other local coalitions, 
such as the ICCA, to join together to protect the joint interests against federal and state legislative 
challenges.  At a recent ICCA meeting, the discussion about the proposed federal legislation (known 
as BITS II), highlighted the losses that municipalities could suffer with the proposed legislation.  
PROTEC’s efforts to advocate for municipalities will continue, but they are asking for all ICCA 
members, including the City of Troy, to join in the effort.  Troy was one of the initial supporters of 
PROTEC, but we have not maintained our membership during the past few years.  However, there 
have been increasing legislative targets to municipal interests, which makes this a critical time.  The 
financial impacts of adverse legislation to the City could be large, especially since the City of Troy 
receives approximately $800,000 in franchise fees each year.   

 
It is therefore City Administration’s recommendation that the Troy City Council re-join 

PROTEC, and authorize the payment of the annual dues in the amount of $10,119.88 (membership 
dues are based on population figures of $0.125 per resident, and is capped at $12,500).  This 
amount has been already budgeted in account number 210.7959- membership and dues.   

 
If you have any questions, please let us know.   

campbellld
Text Box
F-06









January 13, 2006 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item –  Announcement of Public Hearing, NextEnergy 

Exemptions 
 
 
Recommendation:   
Staff requests the scheduling of Public Hearings for three (3) Michigan 
NextEnergy Exemptions on February 20, 2006.  
 
 
Detail: 
The Michigan NextEnergy Authority (MNEA) has certified three companies as 
Alternative Energy Technology Businesses.  They have approved Personal 
Property Exemptions for these companies, subject to verification of the Personal 
Property by the local Assessor, and subject to City Council approval. 
 
The companies are Compact Power, Inc., at 1857 Technology, Ovonic Battery 
Company at 1414 Combermere, and United Solar Ovonic Corporation at 1100 W 
Maple (who has an existing exemption). 
 
Public Hearings must be scheduled within 60 days of the MNEA action for City 
Council action.  The announcement at this time will allow public notification 
requirements to be met. 
 
 
 
 
NL/nl 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



You may express your comments regarding this matter by e-mail to licarila@ci.troy.mi.us, by 
writing to this office, or by attending the Public Hearing. 
 

      
 ____________________________________ 

       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk  
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of 
the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City Hall, 

500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, February 20, 2006, at 7:30 p.m., or as 

soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider Alternative Energy Personal Property 

Exemptions approved by the Michigan NextEnergy Authority for the following three locations 

in the City of Troy: 

 

T2N, R11E, Section 28 
 
1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan United Solar Ovonic Corp. 
 
 

T2N, R11E, Section 34 

1414 Combermere, Troy, Michigan Ovonic Battery Company 

 

T2N, R11E, Section 35 

1857 Technology, Troy, Michigan Compact Power, Inc. 

 

This hearing is held in compliance with Act 198, Public Acts of 1974, as amended. 

 

                                                                         
        
 



OVONIC MEDIA LLC DAVID HIEBER 
2956 WATERVIEW DR OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
ROCHESTER HILLS MI 48309 250 ELIZABETH LAKE #1000W 
 PONTIAC MI 48231 

 

 

UNITED SOLAR OVONIC CORP PATRICK DOHANY 
1100 W MAPLE  OAKLAND CO PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
TROY MI 48084-5352 1200 N TELEGRAPH 49W 

 PONTIAC MI 48231-0049 
 

 

OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2100 PONTIAC LAKE RD GEORGE A BEE ADMIN CNTR 
WATERFORD MI 48328-2735 2480 OPDYKE 
 BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266 

 

MICHAEL ADAMCZYK WARREN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 31300 ANITA 
4400 LIVERNOIS WARREN  MI  48093-1697 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

 
 

 COMPACT POWER INC MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS   
  1857 TECHNOLOGY DRIVE            44001 GARFIELD 
  TROY MI  48083             CLINTON TWP, MI 48038-1100  
 
 
(Avery 5160 Labels) 



campbellld
Text Box
G-01b





TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: January 18, 2006 

  

SUBJECT: Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy City Code  
 

 
After the Troy City Council approved the Municipal Civil Infraction Ordinance, our office 

completed training of the involved City officials and members of the 52-4 District Court.  We are now 
at the point where Troy ordinances need to be amended to designate certain ordinance violations as 
municipal civil infractions.  Enclosed please find some proposed revisions of the Troy ordinances 
that would accomplish this designation- specifically: Chapter 2 (House Numbering and Street 
Naming), 3 (Administrative Service), 13 (Historic Preservation), 34 (Sidewalks and Driveway 
Approaches), 79 (Building Regulations), 80 (Soil Removal and Fill), 82 (Property Maintenance), 82-
A (Rental and Dwelling Inspection), 85 (Signs), 86 (Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control), 88 
(Nuisances), and 93 (Fire Prevention).  The Planning Commission has also reviewed proposed 
municipal civil infraction amendments to Chapter 39 (Zoning).  These recommendations will be 
presented to Council under separate cover.   

 
These proposed amendments would designate violations of the ordinances as municipal civil 

infractions, which would subject violators to the penalties and procedures set forth in the Municipal 
Civil Infractions Ordinance, Chapter 100 of the City Code.  The Municipal Civil Infractions Ordinance 
is a tool that allows the City to decriminalize zoning, building, property maintenance and other 
ordinance violations.  For the designated offenses, City officials could issue a municipal civil 
infraction violation.  Persons that are not contesting the commission of the violation could then pay a 
scheduled fine directly to the City, as opposed to involving the 52-4 District Court.  Under Chapter 
100, the Municipal Ordinance Violations Bureau (under the supervision of the City Treasurer’s 
Office) can accept these direct payments in resolution of the matter. The Municipal Civil Infraction 
Ordinance also preserves the right of either the cited individual or the City to seek relief from the 
Court, as opposed to allowing the direct payment in resolution of the matter.  However, for most 
cases, municipal civil infractions will expedite the resolution of matters that were previously 
adjudicated through the district court criminal misdemeanor process.  Perhaps most importantly, the 
municipal civil infraction process allows the City to seek equitable relief from the District Court when 
appropriate.  This equitable relief is not generally available in criminal misdemeanor cases, which 
frustrates the City’s goal of obtaining compliance.   
 

Under state statute, there are some offenses in Chapter 88 (Nuisances) that cannot be 
converted to municipal civil infractions.  It is for this reason that the language in Chapter 88 is 
different than the other proposed amendments, which designate violations of any provision in the 
chapter as a municipal civil infraction, except as otherwise provided.  
 
 In addition to addressing the municipal civil infractions, there are other clean-up amendments 
that are proposed.  In Chapter 3, we removed references to ordinances that are no longer in effect, 
as well as references to non-existent City officials.  It is our recommendation that Council adopt the 
proposed amendments.  Please let us know if you have any questions concerning this matter. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 2 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 2, 
House Numbering and Street Naming, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Chapter 2, House Numbering and Street Naming, shall be amended by adding 
Section 16 as follows: 

 

16.      Penalties for Violations 

 Except as otherwise provided in specific sections of this Chapter, a 
violation of any section of Chapter 2 is a Municipal Civil Infraction 
subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of 
Troy.  Each day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal 
Civil Infraction violation.  Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 2 
shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and 
injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

 

Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance 
with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 



 2

invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 

 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 – 
Administrative Service, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 3, Sections 1.141(1), 1.141(3), 1.141(5), 1.141(6), 1.141(7), 1.141(8), and 
1.141(9) are amended as follows, and Section 1.141(4) is repealed: 
 
 
1.141(1) A City of Troy Police Service Aide assigned to Road Patrol Duty shall have 

authority to issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal 
civil infraction notice of violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if 
he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a 
violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish  
 
Chapter 26: Parks - General Regulations  
 
Chapter 29: Cemetery  
 
Chapter 39: Zoning (provisions related to the parking of vehicles)  
 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts  
 
Chapter 48: Litter  
 
Chapter 75: Pet Shops  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 90: Animals  

 
Chapter 98.07.01: Hunting  

 
Chapter 98-07.02 Trapping  

 
Chapter 106: Traffic (Provisions related to the parking of vehicles)  



1.141(3) A City of Troy Animal Control Officer shall have authority to issue and serve 
upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 26: Parks - General Regulations  
 
Chapter 75: Pet Shops  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 90: Animals  

 
Chapter 98.07.01: Hunting  
 
Chapter 98.07.02: Trapping  
 
Chapter 98.06.05: Willfully and knowingly torture, etc., any dog used by 

the City of Troy Police Department.  
 

Chapter 106 § 8 Stopping, Standing and Parking Violations  
 

1.141(4) A City of Troy Weighmaster shall have authority to issue and serve upon a 
person an appearance ticket if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the 
person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy 
City Code:  

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility  
 
Chapter 21: Underground Electric Lines  
 
Chapter 33: Streets  
 
Chapter 34: Sidewalks  
 
Chapter 48: Litter  
 
Chapter 81: Moving of Buildings  
 
Chapter 85: Signs  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 94: Axle Load 
 
 

1.141(5) A City of Troy Water Division Inspector shall have the authority to issue and 
serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 



cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility  

 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 

 
Chapter 33: Streets 

 
 

1.141(6) A City of Troy Building Department Inspector shall have authority to issue and 
serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code.  

 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 

             
Chapter 13: Historic Preservation 

            
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility 

 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 

 
Chapter 39: Zoning Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 

 
Chapter 48: Litter Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 

 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 

 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 

 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 

 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 

 
Chapter 71: Auto Wash 

 
Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 

 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 

 
Chapter 79-A: One and Two Family Dwellings 

 
Chapter 81: Moving of Buildings  



 
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations  
 
Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement  

 
Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings  
 
Chapter 83: Fences  
 
Chapter 85: Signs  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 93: Fire and Explosives Fire Prevention (provisions related to 

building codes)  
 
Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades  

 
 

1.141(7) A City of Troy Fire Department Staff Lieutenant, Division Assistant Chief or 
Chief shall have authority to issue and serve upon a person an appearance 
ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of violation, and/or a municipal civil 
infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person 
has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 
Code:  

 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming  
 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places (provisions related to 

fire safety)  
 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses (provisions related to 

fire safety)  
 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners (provisions related 

to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations (provisions related to fire 

safety)  
 
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations (provisions related to fire 

safety)  
 
Chapter 82-A. Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement 

(provisions related to fire safety)  
 

Chapter 82-B. Dangerous Buildings (provisions related to fire safety)  
 



Chapter 84: Garbage, Rubbish, and Refuse Transfer Station (provisions 
related to fire safety)  

 
Chapter 88: Nuisances (provisions related to fire safety)  
Chapter 93: Fire and Explosives Fire Prevention 
 
Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades (provisions 

related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 106: Traffic (provisions related to fire safety) 
 

1.141(8) A City of Troy Engineering Inspector. Inspection Supervisor, Engineering 
Technician or Environmental Specialist shall have authority to issue and serve 
upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code: 

 
Chapter 17: Rubbish Fill Operation 
 
Chapter 34: Sidewalks 
 
Chapter 42: Flood Plain Management 
 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 
 
Chapter 80: Soil Removal and Fill 
 
Chapter 86: Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control  

 
 1.141(9) A City of Troy Foreman of Parks Maintenance Division, Superintendent of 

Public Grounds, or Director of Parks and Recreation shall have authority to issue 
and service upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction 
notice of violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has 
reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of 
the following provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 28: Tree Regulations 

 
Chapter 29: Cemetery 

 
Chapter 39: Zoning (provisions related to landscaping) 

 
Chapter 41: Subdivision Control (provisions related to landscaping) 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 



proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 13 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 13 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation, Section 15, is amended as follows:   
 
(Underlining denotes changes). 
 
  15. ENFORCEMENT; VIOLATIONS 

 
A. After issuance of a certificate of appropriateness or notice to proceed or if a 

violation of this article is suspected, the city’s designated representative may 
from time to time inspect the exterior of properties covered by this article. 

 
B. The enforcement of this ordinance shall be the responsibility of this Historic 

District Commission, in conjunction with the Director of Building and Zoning 
of the city.  A person, individual, partnership, firm, corporation, organization, 
institution or agency of government that violates this act is responsible for 
committing a Misdemeanor and subject to the penalties as provided by law for 
Misdemeanors Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 
100 of the Code for the City of Troy.  Each day a violation continues is a 
separate Municipal Civil Infraction Violation.  Sanctions for violation shall 
include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as 
authorized by Chapter 100.  The Director of Building and Zoning or his or her 
representative is hereby legally authorized to issue a citation for a violation of 
this chapter. 

 
C. A person, individual, partnership, firm, corporation, organization, institution, 

or agency of government that violates this act may be ordered by the court to 
pay the costs to restore or replicate a resource unlawfully constructed, added 
to, altered, repaired, moved, excavated, or demolished. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 



 

  

2

specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may 
be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be 
continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of 
such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 34, Sidewalks and 
Driveway Approaches, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 34, of the Troy City Code is hereby amended by the addition of a new section 34.14 to 
read as follows: 
 
34.14  Penalties for Violation 
 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, a violation of any section of 

Chapter 34 is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 
100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation continues is a 
separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation.  Sanctions for each violation of 
Chapter 34 shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and 
injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

    
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance 
shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution 
hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective 
date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 



 

  

2

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _______________. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 79 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 79, 
General Building Regulations, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Chapter 79, General Building Regulations, shall be amended by adding Article 
29, Section 2900 as follows: 

 

                                            Article 29 

    Penalties for Violations 

2900 Except as otherwise provided in other sections or articles of this 
Chapter, a violation of any section, article or provision of Chapter 79 
is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 
100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation 
continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation.  
Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 79 shall include a fine of not 
more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized 
by Chapter 100. 

 

Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance 
with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 



 2

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 

 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 80 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 80, 
Soil Removal and Fill, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Section 8.192 of Chapter 80, Soil Removal and Fill, shall be amended to read as 
follows  

 

8.192 Penalties for Violations  ViolationPenalties. Any person, firm, or 
corporation who shall violate this Chapter or any provision thereof 
shall be punished by a fine not exceeding five hundred ($500.00) 
dollars or by imprisonment in the County Jail or any place of 
imprisonment provided by the City or the laws of the State of 
Michigan, for a period not exceeding ninety (90) days, or both such 
fine and imprisonment in the discretion of the Court.  Except as 
otherwise provided in specific sections of this Chapter, a violation of 
any section of Chapter 80 is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to 
the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each 
day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction 
violation.  Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 80 shall include a 
fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as 
authorized by Chapter 100.   

 

Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance 



 2

with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 82 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 82, 
Property Maintenance Code, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Chapter 82, Property Maintenance Code, shall be amended by adding Section 4 
as follows: 

4. Penalties for Violations:  Except as otherwise provided by other 
sections of this Chapter, a violation of any section of Chapter 82 is a 
Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of 
the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation continues is a 
separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation.  Sanctions for each 
violation of Chapter 82 shall include a fine of not more than $500, 
costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 



 2

 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 82-A 
OF THE CODE OF THE 

CITY OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 82-
A, Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Chapter 82-A, Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement, shall be 
amended by adding Section 10 as follows: 

10. Penalties for Violations:  Except as otherwise provided by other 
sections of this Chapter, a violation of any section of Chapter 82 -A 
is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 
100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation 
continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation.  
Sanctions for each violation of  Chapter 82-A shall include a fine of 
not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as 
authorized by Chapter 100. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 



 2

 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 
    AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
    CHAPTER 85 OF THE CODE 
    OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 85, 
Signs, of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 85, Signs, Section 85.01.09 (A) is amended to read as follows: 
 
A. It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, maintain, 

enlarge, alter, move, or convert any sign in the City of Troy, or cause 
or permit the same to be done, contrary to or in violation of any of the 
provisions of this Chapter.  Any person violating any of the provisions 
of this Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction 
of any such violation, shall be punished with a fine of between $50 
and $500 and/or incarceration of up to 90 days.  responsible for 
committing a municipal civil infraction subject to the provisions of 
Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation 
continues is deemed a separate municipal civil infraction.  Sanctions 
for each violation of Chapter 85 shall include a fine of not more than 
$500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 
100.  Any sign constituting an immediate hazard to health and safety 
is deemed a nuisance and may be removed by the Building Inspector 
at the expense of the owner of the sign or other responsible party, in 
the discretion of the Building Inspector. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at 
the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, 
or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under 
any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending 
at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior 
to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of 



 
  

2

any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
                                       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk    



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 86 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 86, 
Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Section 7(C) of Chapter 86, Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control, is amended 
to read as follows: 

C. Penalties for Violations 

1.  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof, 
shall be subject to a fine of not more than $500.00 and the costs of 
prosecution or, in default thereof, shall be punished by imprisonment in 
the County Jail for a period not to exceed 90 days for each offense, or 
by both such fine and imprisonment in the discretion of the court, 
together with the costs of such prosecution.  Except as otherwise 
provided in specific sections of this Chapter, a violation of any section 
of Chapter 86 is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of 
Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Sanctions for each 
violation of Chapter 86 shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, 
damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

2.  A default in the payment of a civil fine or costs ordered under this 
ordinance or an installment of the fine or cost may be remedied by any 
means authorized under the revised judicature act of 1961, being 
Sections 600.101 to 600.9947 of the Michigan Compiled Laws., as 
amended. 

3. Fines, ImprisonmentCosts, Damages, Injunctive Orders: 

The owner of any land, premises or part thereof, where any condition in 
violation of this Chapter shall exist or shall be created, and who has 
assisted knowingly in the commission of such violation shall be guilty 
of responsible for a separate offense and upon conviction a finding or 
admission of responsibility for such offense thereof shall be liable to 
the responsible for payment of fines, costs and damages and subject to 
each applicable injunctive orderimprisonment herein provided. 

4. Each Day a Separate Offense: 



 2

A separate offense shall be deemed committed upon each day during or 
when a violation occurs or continues. 

5. Rights and Remedies are Cumulative: 

The rights and remedies provided herein are cumulative and in addition 
to any other remedies provided by law. 

6.  If any part of this ordinance is declared by a court to be invalid, the 
invalid part shall not affect the remaining parts of the ordinance which 
can be given effect without the invalid part.  The validity of the 
ordinance as a whole, or in part, shall not be affected other than the part 
invalidated. 

 Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance 
with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 
    AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
    CHAPTER 88 OF THE CODE 
    OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 88, 
Nuisances, of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 88 is hereby amended by the addition of a new section 24 as follows: 
 

24.      Municipal Civil Infractions 
 

A violation of sections 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.5, 9.9, 9.13, 9.14, 9.15, 9.17, 9.18, 
9.20, and 15 of this Chapter is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to 
the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each 
day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction 
violation.  Sanctions for each violation of said sections shall include a 
fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as 
authorized by Chapter 100. 

. 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at 
the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, 
or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under 
any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at 
the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to 
the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of 
any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 



 
  

2

 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
                                       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk    
 
 



   
   

1

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 93 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 93, Fire 
Prevention, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
(Underlining denotes changes). 
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 109.3 of Chapter 93 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows: 
 
109.3 Penalties for Violations.Violations Penalties. Persons who shall violate a provision of this 

code or shall fail to comply with any requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, 
repair, service, test or do work in violation of the approved construction documents or 
directive of the fire code official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions of this 
code, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable  responsible for a Municipal Civil 
Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code for the City of Troy.by a fine 
of not more than five hundred (500) dollars, or by imprisonment not exceeding ninety (90) 
days, or both such fine and imprisonment as determined by a judge in a court of law.  Each 
day that a violation continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed a separate 
offense.  Sanctions for each violation shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, 
damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100.   

 
 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or 
amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to 
the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance 
in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 



   
   

2

 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, _______. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



1

Mary F Redden

From: Mark S Stimac
Sent: Thursday, January 12, 2006 4:27 PM
To: Mary F Redden
Subject: RE: Response to Mayor Schilling's inquiry

 -----Original Message-----
From: Brian P Murphy  
Sent: Thursday, January 05, 2006 10:33 AM
To: Mary F Redden; John M Lamerato; John Szerlag
Subject: Response to Mayor Schilling's inquiry

Mark Stimac has compiled the following list of State licensed Day Care facilities located in Troy.  The list gives 
information on all 151 locations in sortable form.  

In summary, there are 43 Day Care Family Homes, 20 Day Care Group Homes, 49 Day Care Centers, 5 Adult Foster 
Care Family Homes, 30 Adult Foster Care Small Group Homes, 1 Adult Foster Care Large Group Homes, and 3 
Homes for the Aged.

To sort by type, go to the arrow on license type and select the type you wish to view.  If you want additional 
information on an individual record (such as license term and capacity), click on the individual Facility Name, and you 
will be directed to the Statewide Detail provided on the Department of Human Services website.

-B

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



License Number License Type Facility Name Provider Name Address Street City State Zip Code Phone
DC630275809 Day Care Center AVONDALE EARLY LEARNING CENTER-WOODLAND Avondale School District 6465 Livernois TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-537-6990

DC630020791 Day Care Center BABES IN TOYLAND Marilyn Van Dusen 885 E. Long Lake TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-689-8009

DF630048286 Day Care Family Home BACKERS, ANNA Anna Backers 6626 Woodcrest TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-828-3836

DF630268780 Day Care Family Home BARB'S SMALL WORLD Barbara Webb 787 Marengo TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-6812

DC630020142 Day Care Center BARNARD SCHOOL Troy School District 3601 Forge TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-680-8950

DF630048505 Day Care Family Home BECKER, SUSAN Susan Becker 1001 Norwich TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-433-3947

DC630018858 Day Care Center BEMIS SCHOOL Troy School District 3571 Northfield Pkwy TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-823-4126

DG630275560 Day Care Group Home BEST OF CARE Deborah Bogle 543 Vanderpool TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-529-0308

DF630246432 Day Care Family Home BHATIA, MANJU Manju Bhatia 1063 Chopin TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-680-2344

DF630266983 Day Care Family Home BOEHMS MELISSA Melissa Boehms 5653 Firwood TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-641-7583

DG630094063 Day Care Group Home BONNIE JOHNSTON Bonnie Johnston 1510 Boulan TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-643-8419

DF630048677 Day Care Family Home BRINKMAN LINDA Linda Brinkman 5746 Whitfield TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-641-7034

DC630256138 Day Care Center BROOKFIELD ACADEMY-TROY CAMPUS Bright Horizons Childrens Centers Inc 3950 Livernois TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-9565

DF630048184 Day Care Family Home BROWN VICKI Vicki Brown 318 Starr TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-4620

DF630262392 Day Care Family Home CASTILLOUX, DEANE Diane Castilloux 90 Chopin TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-2496

DC630077865 Day Care Center CHILDRENS WORLD LEARNING CENTER #555 Knowledge Learning Group 5480 Rochester TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-828-0630

DC630018605 Day Care Center CHILDRENS WORLD LEARNING CENTER #819 Knowledge Learning Group 1064 E. Wattles TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-689-5711

DG630247036 Day Care Group Home CHILDS NICHOL Nichol Childs 1931 Atlas Ct TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-743-0536

DC630018719 Day Care Center CHILDTIME CHILDREN'S CENTER Childtime Child Care Inc. 150 E. Long Lake TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-528-1780

DF630048548 Day Care Family Home COHN-LADUKE, SANDRA Sandra Cohn-Laduke 360 Randall TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-740-0710

DG630062449 Day Care Group Home COLLINS JUDITH Judith Collins 5410 Hertford TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-3912

DC630020143 Day Care Center COSTELLO SCHOOL Troy School District 1333 Hamman TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-689-7970

DF630243722 Day Care Family Home CZUBAY TOBI Tobi Czubay 2231 Garry TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-740-8484

DF630261634 Day Care Family Home DELUCA, LAURA Laura Deluca 176 E. Long Lake TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-689-0973

DG630062403 Day Care Group Home DEPAUW MARLYA Kari Depauw 1830 E. Long Lake TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-689-8684

DC630017940 Day Care Center DISCOVERY CORNER Discovery Corner Inc 3633 W. Big Beaver TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-645-6448

DG630091292 Day Care Group Home DOYLE JOYCE Joyce Doyle 1834 Farmbrook TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-641-8933

DG630062589 Day Care Group Home DUFORD KIMBERLY Kimberly Duford 3141 McClure TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-816-9881

DF630048896 Day Care Family Home DUNLEAVY CAROLINE Caroline Dunleavy 1866 Sutton Place TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-641-5185

DF630274214 Day Care Family Home EISENHARDT, SARAH Sarah Eisenhardt 2395 Kettle TROY MI 48083 -8083 586-873-7562

DC630016748 Day Care Center FAITH LUTHERAN COOP AND PRESCH Faith Lutheran Church 37635 Dequindre TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-4664



Facility Name 
AVONDALE EARLY LEARNING CENTER-WOODLAND

BABES IN TOYLAND

BACKERS, ANNA

BARB'S SMALL WORLD

BARNARD SCHOOL

BECKER, SUSAN

BEMIS SCHOOL

BEST OF CARE

BHATIA, MANJU

BOEHMS MELISSA

BONNIE JOHNSTON

BRINKMAN LINDA

BROOKFIELD ACADEMY-TROY CAMPUS

BROWN VICKI

CASTILLOUX, DEANE

CHILDRENS WORLD LEARNING CENTER #555

CHILDRENS WORLD LEARNING CENTER #819

CHILDS NICHOL

CHILDTIME CHILDREN'S CENTER

COHN-LADUKE, SANDRA

COLLINS JUDITH

COSTELLO SCHOOL

CZUBAY TOBI

DELUCA, LAURA

DEPAUW MARLYA

DISCOVERY CORNER

DOYLE JOYCE

DUFORD KIMBERLY

DUNLEAVY CAROLINE

EISENHARDT, SARAH

FAITH LUTHERAN COOP AND PRESCH

Mailing Address Mailing City
Mailing 
State

Mailing 
Zip Code

260 S. Squirrel Auburn Hills MI 48326
6950 High Oaks Troy MI

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

4400 Livernois Troy MI

200 Talcott Avenue South Watertown MA 48506

650 NE Holladay Suite 1400 Portland OR 97232
650 NE Holladay Suite 1400 Portland OR 97232

21333 Hagerty Rd Suite 300 Novi MI 48375

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098



License Number License Type Facility Name Provider Name Address Street City State Zip Code Phone
DC630016694 Day Care Center FIRST BAPTIST CHILD CARE CENTER First Baptist Church 2601 John R TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-4555

DG630086358 Day Care Group Home FULLER PAULETTE Paulette Fuller 301 Redwood TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-589-2384

DG630269549 Day Care Group Home GEORGIYEVA, NATALIYA AND  VALENTINA Nataliya & Valentian Georgiyeva 2320 Isabell TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-740-2780

DC630271777 Day Care Center GIGGLE GANG DAYCARE & PRESCHOOL Life Christian Center 3193 Rochester TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-9929

DG630275721 Day Care Group Home GOD'S PRECIOUS CREATIONS Lenique Gibson 685 E. Maple TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-526-0163

DF630266584 Day Care Family Home GOSSELIN JAN Jan Gosselin 5773 Sussex TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-641-7744

DC630096647 Day Care Center GRACE CHRISTIAN LEARNING CENTER Rita Howard 2051 E. Big Beaver TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-989-0045

DF630262135 Day Care Family Home GUIRGUIS, MANAL Manal Guirguis 5220 Babbit TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-457-1162

DC630020498 Day Care Center HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Troy School District 5625 Northfield Pkwy TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-649-3020

DG630081102 Day Care Group Home HAQUE TALAT ARA Ara Talat Haque 1033 Redding TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-1577

DC630019841 Day Care Center HILL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Troy School District 4600 Forsyth TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-689-3130

DF630256579 Day Care Family Home INEZ WHITEHEAD Inez Whitehead 75 Woodslee TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-740-0761

DF630049812 Day Care Family Home KELLETT BRENDA GAYE Brenda Gaye Kellett 5782 Hilmore TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-828-3893

DC630254463 Day Care Center KENSINGTON COMMUNITY PRESCHOOL Kensington Community Church 1825 E. Square Lake TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-786-0600

DC630250933 Day Care Center KID'S LEARNING CONNECTION Joan Morris 5940 John R TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-0286

DF630255318 Day Care Family Home KIDDIE KORNER DAY CARE Kathleen McDonald 196 Birchwood TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-524-9537

DG630261849 Day Care Group Home KIECA, DOREEN Doreen Kieca 151 Kenyon TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-577-9087

DF630096768 Day Care Family Home KIMBERLY KAYE MARVIN Kimberly Kaye Marvin 1268 Glaser TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-743-0915

DC630016731 Day Care Center KINDER AND CARE LEARNING CENTER 44 Kindercare Learning Centers, Inc. 5135 Coolidge TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-641-8480

DC630020281 Day Care Center KINDER CARE LEARNING CTR #1345 Kindercare Learning Centers, Inc. 5877 John R TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-6341

DF630048017 Day Care Family Home KLINE MONICA Monica Kline 2060 Garry TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-524-9266

DF630279706 Day Care Family Home KOZY HOME DAY CARE Abeer Dalal 2302 Camilla Dr. TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-524-9423

DG630066523 Day Care Group Home KRISCOVICH KAREN Karen Kriscovich 3784 Forge TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-5029

DF630243166 Day Care Family Home LADOUCEUR MARY Mary Ladouceur 3376 Alpine TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-649-2455

DC630019842 Day Care Center LEONARD SCHOOL Troy School District 4401 Tallman TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-680-1066

DF630262860 Day Care Family Home MAAROUF, NELLY Nelly Maarouf 587 Hartland TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-526-9641

DG630250938 Day Care Group Home MANNING GROUP DAY CARE HOME Sharon Manning 2651 E. Square Lake TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-1009

DC630018860 Day Care Center MARTELL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Troy School District 5666 Livernois TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-823-3800

DF630272794 Day Care Family Home MCCOMB, LINDA MARIE Linda Marie McComb 78 Evaline TROY MI 48098 -4727 248-689-9432

DC630016715 Day Care Center MEADOWBROOK NURSERY SCHOOL Meadowbrook Nursery School 6995 Livernois TROY MI 48099 -8099 248-879-0473

DF630257317 Day Care Family Home MICHELLE L. SINUTKO Michelle L. Sinutko 2331 Cumberland TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-835-7057



Facility Name 
FIRST BAPTIST CHILD CARE CENTER

FULLER PAULETTE

GEORGIYEVA, NATALIYA AND  VALENTINA

GIGGLE GANG DAYCARE & PRESCHOOL

GOD'S PRECIOUS CREATIONS

GOSSELIN JAN

GRACE CHRISTIAN LEARNING CENTER

GUIRGUIS, MANAL

HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

HAQUE TALAT ARA

HILL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

INEZ WHITEHEAD

KELLETT BRENDA GAYE

KENSINGTON COMMUNITY PRESCHOOL

KID'S LEARNING CONNECTION

KIDDIE KORNER DAY CARE

KIECA, DOREEN

KIMBERLY KAYE MARVIN

KINDER AND CARE LEARNING CENTER 44

KINDER CARE LEARNING CTR #1345

KLINE MONICA

KOZY HOME DAY CARE

KRISCOVICH KAREN

LADOUCEUR MARY

LEONARD SCHOOL

MAAROUF, NELLY

MANNING GROUP DAY CARE HOME

MARTELL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

MCCOMB, LINDA MARIE

MEADOWBROOK NURSERY SCHOOL

MICHELLE L. SINUTKO

Mailing Address Mailing City
Mailing 
State

Mailing 
Zip Code

507 Misty Brook Hills MI 48307

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

650 NE Holladay Suite 1400 Portland OR 97232
650 NE Holladay Suite 1400 Portland OR 97232

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

8220 Reese Rd. Clarkston MI 48348



License Number License Type Facility Name Provider Name Address Street City State Zip Code Phone
DF630048241 Day Care Family Home MONRO SUZANNE Suzanne Monro 390 Carter TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-689-5815

DF630275720 Day Care Family Home MOORE, STACEY LYNN Stacey Lynn Moore 5543 Patterson TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-5979

DC630019840 Day Care Center MORSE SCHOOL Troy School District 475 Cherry TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-680-1380

DC630022231 Day Care Center NILES PRESCHOOL Troy School District 201 W. Square Lake TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-7599

DF630049518 Day Care Family Home NOLAN LANI Lani Nolan 6814 John R TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-0935

DC630017853 Day Care Center NORTH HILLS CHILD CARE CENTER North Hills Church 3150 N. Adams TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-645-1811

DC630072505 Day Care Center OAKLAND CHILDREN'S ACADEMY Thomas Sherin 2160 E. Maple TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-589-3590

DF630047312 Day Care Family Home ODDY GAYLE Gayle Oddy 762 Robinwood TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-5451

DF630049504 Day Care Family Home ODDY SHANNON BROOKE Shannon Brooke Oddy 87 Chopin TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-689-2114

DC630259964 Day Care Center OLHSA TROY HEAD START Oakland Livingston Human Service 475 Cherry TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-680-8953

DF630279044 Day Care Family Home PATNEY, VANI Vani Patney 5771 Cliffside TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-7016

DC630017247 Day Care Center PEMBROKE PRESCHOOL AND LATCHKEY Birmingham Public School 955 N. Eton TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-203-3880

DG630062578 Day Care Group Home PETERSON KATHLEEN Kathleen Peterson 1175 Garwood TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-689-5782

DC630021876 Day Care Center RAINBOW CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER Rainbow Child Development Center, Inc. 4533 Crooks TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-952-1920

DC630017656 Day Care Center RAINBOW PRE SCHOOL Troy Parks & Recreation 3179 Livernois TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-524-3484

DC630019241 Day Care Center RENAISSANCE MONTESSORI CENTER Roy James Michael 5475 Livernois TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-828-8140

DG630062384 Day Care Group Home REYNOLDS DEBORAH Deborah Reynolds 1285 W. Wattles TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-649-4595

DG630062373 Day Care Group Home SAIDE JANICE Janice Saide 1865 Crimson TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-5753

DF630259839 Day Care Family Home SATAPATHY, DIVYMANI Divymani, Satapathy 3416 Colwell TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-743-0045

DG630062527 Day Care Group Home SCHAFER SHARON Sharon Schafer 5593 Mandale TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-9249

DC630258026 Day Care Center SCHOOLHOUSE MONTESSORI OF TROY Schoolhouse Montessori of Troy LLC 3305 Crooks TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-649-6149

DC630018951 Day Care Center SCHROEDER SCHOOL Troy School District 3541 Jack Dr. TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-649-6615

DF630047336 Day Care Family Home SCYPHERS WENDY Wendy Scyphers 2843 Sparta TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-8737

DF630086596 Day Care Family Home SHAIKH NOORUNNISA Shaikh Noorunnisa 2873 Chippewa TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-3720

DF630048246 Day Care Family Home SHERMAN RENE Rene Sherman 3810 Bristol TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-0419

DF630049607 Day Care Family Home SMITH DONNA Donna Smith 2860 Charnwood TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-9374

DC630272543 Day Care Center SOMERSET ACADEMY Somerset Academy 3333 Coolidge Hwy TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-643-8404

DC630083081 Day Care Center ST AUGUSTINE LUTHERAN PRESCHOOL Charlene Goshgarian 5475 Livernois TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-2893

DC630016683 Day Care Center ST STEPHENS COOP NURSERY St Stephens Coop Nursery, Inc. 5500 N. Adams TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-641-8080

DC630258979 Day Care Center ST. MARY'S CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER St. Marks Orthodox Church 3615 Livernois TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-619-0530

DF630274698 Day Care Family Home STEFUT, ANGELA Angela Stefut 5261 Abington TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-689-0406



Facility Name 
MONRO SUZANNE

MOORE, STACEY LYNN

MORSE SCHOOL

NILES PRESCHOOL

NOLAN LANI

NORTH HILLS CHILD CARE CENTER

OAKLAND CHILDREN'S ACADEMY

ODDY GAYLE

ODDY SHANNON BROOKE

OLHSA TROY HEAD START

PATNEY, VANI

PEMBROKE PRESCHOOL AND LATCHKEY

PETERSON KATHLEEN

RAINBOW CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER

RAINBOW PRE SCHOOL

RENAISSANCE MONTESSORI CENTER

REYNOLDS DEBORAH

SAIDE JANICE

SATAPATHY, DIVYMANI

SCHAFER SHARON

SCHOOLHOUSE MONTESSORI OF TROY

SCHROEDER SCHOOL

SCYPHERS WENDY

SHAIKH NOORUNNISA

SHERMAN RENE

SMITH DONNA

SOMERSET ACADEMY

ST AUGUSTINE LUTHERAN PRESCHOOL

ST STEPHENS COOP NURSERY

ST. MARY'S CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER

STEFUT, ANGELA

Mailing Address Mailing City
Mailing 
State

Mailing 
Zip Code

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098
4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

189 E. Long Lake Hills MI 48304

196 Oakland Avenue Pontiac MI 48343

550 W. Merrill Birmingham MI 48009

17550 W. Eleven Mile
p

Village MI 48076

9380 Warwick Detroit MI 48228

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

8121 Broken Ridge East Springs MI 49740

3603 Livernois Troy MI 48083



License Number License Type Facility Name Provider Name Address Street City State Zip Code Phone
DF630047009 Day Care Family Home STEIMEL NANCY Nancy Steimel 6190 Silverstone TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-828-7257

DG630064396 Day Care Group Home SUNSHINE HOME DAY CARE Syeda A Mohiuddin 6150 Country Ridge TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-5150

DC630018540 Day Care Center SUSICK ELEM PRESCHOOL Warren Consolidated Schools 2200 Castleton TROY MI 48084 -8084 586-825-2665

DC630247072 Day Care Center SUSICK ELEMENTARY HEAD START MCCSA Head Start 2200 Castleton TROY MI 48083 -8083 586-825-2665

DF630078084 Day Care Family Home SWEESY SUSAN R Susan R. Sweesy 790 Robinwood TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-524-1104

DF630260964 Day Care Family Home SZCZEPANEK, JULIE Julie Szdzepanek 836 Hidden Ridge TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-2784

DF630253674 Day Care Family Home TERRY LEETTA OLEJNICZAK Olejniczak Terry Leeta 1563 Banmoor TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-649-6081

DC630277616 Day Care Center TROY ADVENTIST ACADEMY PRESCHOOL Troy Adventist Academy 2777 Crooks TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-649-3122

DC630017178 Day Care Center TROY ATHENS LAB NURSERY SCHOOL Troy School District 4333 John R TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-689-8515

DC630016708 Day Care Center TROY COOPERATIVE PRESCHOOL Troy Cooperative Preschool 6363 Livernois TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-6363

DC630022593 Day Care Center TROY LITTLE SCHOLARS Tori Inc 6952 John R TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-8097

DC630020146 Day Care Center TROY UNION SCHOOL Troy School District 1340 E. Square Lake TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-7576

DF630259411 Day Care Family Home TYE, LINDA Linda Tye 2144 Orpington TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-740-9054

DF630260589 Day Care Family Home VYAS, USHA Usha Vyas 1285 Kirts Blvd #48 TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-273-1083

DC630018877 Day Care Center WASS ELEMENTARY Troy School District 2340 Willard TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-823-3900

DC630018862 Day Care Center WATTLES ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Troy School District 3555 Ellenboro TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-823-3426

DC630273229 Day Care Center WOODSIDE BIBLE PRESCHOOL Woodside Bible Church 6600 Rochester TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-8533

DG630062602 Day Care Group Home ZIEHM, JENNIFER Jennifer Ziehm 731 Lovell TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-835-5238

DC630087794 Day Care Center ZION CHRISTIAN PRESCHOOL & CHILD CARE Zion Christian Church 3668 Livernois TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-524-2400

AS630081709
p

Home 1ST GENERATION HOME Generational Living Inc. 875 E. Square Lake TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-9852

AS630082322
p

Home ADAMS HOME Ladd Inc. 4609 Butler TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-524-1275

AS630015668
p

Home ADAMS HOUSE Adams House Inc. 4094 Rouge TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-540-1450

AF630085714 Adult Foster Care Family Home ALAM FOSTER CARE Alam Malek 3185 Alpine TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-649-7624

AS630270844
p

Home ALIDA HOUSE Alternative Services Inc 2766 Renshaw TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-680-9537

AH630236937 Home for the Aged ALTERRA CLARE BRIDGE OF TROY Alterra Healthcare Corp 4900 Northfield Pkwy TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-267-9500

AH630236943 Home for the Aged ALTERRA WYNWOOD OF TROY Alterra Healthcare Corp 4850 Northfield Pkwy TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-952-5533

AS630084901
p

Home AUBURN HILLS D A Residential 2448 Terova TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-689-7572

AS630274298
p

Home AVON GROUP HOME Elite Alternatives 275 Lesdale TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-879-6120

AS630014729
p

Home CAMBRIA HOUSE Homestaed Residence Inc 6825 Barabeau TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-2777

AS630270845
p

Home CANMOOR HOUSE Alternative Services Inc 6015 Canmoor TROY MI 48098 -8098 810-606-1220

AS630271035
p

Home CASTLETON HOME Neighborhood Residential Inc 1675 Castleton TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-680-9513



Facility Name 
STEIMEL NANCY

SUNSHINE HOME DAY CARE

SUSICK ELEM PRESCHOOL

SUSICK ELEMENTARY HEAD START

SWEESY SUSAN R

SZCZEPANEK, JULIE

TERRY LEETTA OLEJNICZAK

TROY ADVENTIST ACADEMY PRESCHOOL

TROY ATHENS LAB NURSERY SCHOOL

TROY COOPERATIVE PRESCHOOL

TROY LITTLE SCHOLARS

TROY UNION SCHOOL

TYE, LINDA

VYAS, USHA

WASS ELEMENTARY

WATTLES ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

WOODSIDE BIBLE PRESCHOOL

ZIEHM, JENNIFER

ZION CHRISTIAN PRESCHOOL & CHILD CARE

1ST GENERATION HOME

ADAMS HOME

ADAMS HOUSE

ALAM FOSTER CARE

ALIDA HOUSE

ALTERRA CLARE BRIDGE OF TROY

ALTERRA WYNWOOD OF TROY

AUBURN HILLS

AVON GROUP HOME

CAMBRIA HOUSE

CANMOOR HOUSE

CASTLETON HOME

Mailing Address Mailing City
Mailing 
State

Mailing 
Zip Code

31300 Anita Warren MI 48093
21885 Dunham Road, Suite 10 Clinton Twp MI 48036

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

46719 Hayes Shelby Twp MI 48315
4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098
4400 Livernois Troy MI 48098

5677 Folkstone Troy MI 48098
8054 Ortonville Clarkston MI 48348
26900 Franklin Southfield MI 48034

32625 W Seven Mile Suite 10 Livonia MI 48152
6737 W Washington Suite 2300 Milwaukee WI 53214
6737 W Washington Suite 2300 Milwaukee WI 53214
1530 Elk St Port Huron MI 48060
3330 Primary Auburn Hills MI 48326
3820 Packard Suite 180 Ann Arbor MI 48108
32625 W Seven Mile Suite 10 Livonia MI 48152
523 N Marias Clawson MI 48017



License Number License Type Facility Name Provider Name Address Street City State Zip Code Phone
AS630012523

p
Home COREY HOME Family Living Center Inc 1863 Flemington TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-641-7848

AS630269688
p

Home CRABTREE LANE Michigan Outreach Corp 2000 Crabtree TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-0094

AS630264341
p

Home EDEN HOUSE O & D Investments LLC 1924 Westwood TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-457-9017

AS630270846
p

Home FOREST HEIGHTS Alternative Services Inc 4232 Forsyth TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-467-1961

AS630275038
p

Home HALSTEAD Mentors of Michigan 4254 Beach TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-632-3534

AS630268907
p

Home HARMONY CARE CENTER Harmony Care LLC 1841 Crimson TROY MI 48083 -8083 --

AS630015129
p

Home HARMONY HOME Leonor Mandap Corp 3402 Harmony TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-689-8374

AF630271336 Adult Foster Care Family Home HOME AWAY FROM HOME Donna and Eddie Whisnant 3103 Cedar Crest TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-583-9205

AS630238207
p

Home HOME SWEET HOME Laze Ana 1547 Rockfield TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-740-1326

AS630012447
p

Home J A DITTY TUTBURY HOME J A Ditty Associates 6372 Tutbury TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-828-2750

AS630012699
p

Home LAKELAND HOUSE Lakeland House Inc 1052 Byron TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-952-5821

AS630012380
p

Home LANGE CLF Lutheran Social Services of Michigan Inc 330 Lange TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-524-0148

AS630012398
p

Home LEETONIA GROUP HOME Judson Center 179 Leetonia TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-528-2070

AS630012627
p

Home LIFESTYLES GROUP HOME Family Living Center Inc 6580 Livernois TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-2504

AF630236882 Adult Foster Care Family Home N-GALLA HOME CARE SVCS. Binta Ngalla 1151 Hartland TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-743-0798

AS630079486
p

Home NORTON HOME Ultra Care Inc 6887 Norton TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-828-8527

AL630007317
g p

Home OAK MANOR Oak Manor Inc 2316 John R TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-689-7755

AF630015135 Adult Foster Care Family Home PEREZ AFC Ebenezer and Jimemah Perez 2971 Wagonwheel TROY MI 48085 -3762 248-740-8919

AS630270847
p

Home PERRY PLACE Alternative Services Inc 129 Birchwood TROY MI 48083 -8083 810-619-0312

AS630255559
p

Home RAMSBURY HOUSE Team Rehabilitation Services LLC 2520 Ramsbury TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-879-2519

AS630012747
p

Home SOUTH BOULEVARD GROUP HOME Elite Alternatives 706 E South Blvd TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-828-2919

AS630272608
p

Home SPANISH LAKE Synod Residential Services 5183 Dayton TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-352-4050

AH630237663 Home for the Aged SUNRISE ASSISTED LIVING OF TROY Sunrise Assisted Living LLC 6870 Crooks TROY MI 48098 -8098 248-293-1200

AS630089164
p

Home THREE LAKES Friends and Family Inc 1462 Three Lakes TROY MI 48085 -8085 248-828-3910

AS630084424
p

Home TREVINO HOME Special Tree Residential Centers LTD 1192 Trevino TROY MI 48174 -8174 248-879-4542

AS630077887
p

Home VAN ELSLANDER HOME Angel's Place Inc 2075 Derby TROY MI 48084 -8084 248-643-7506

AF630263290 Adult Foster Care Family Home VANDERPOOL ADULT FOSTER CARE Daniel and Silvia Bora 856 Vanderpool TROY MI 48083 -8083 248-524-4958



Facility Name 
COREY HOME

CRABTREE LANE

EDEN HOUSE

FOREST HEIGHTS

HALSTEAD

HARMONY CARE CENTER

HARMONY HOME

HOME AWAY FROM HOME

HOME SWEET HOME

J A DITTY TUTBURY HOME

LAKELAND HOUSE

LANGE CLF

LEETONIA GROUP HOME

LIFESTYLES GROUP HOME

N-GALLA HOME CARE SVCS.

NORTON HOME

OAK MANOR

PEREZ AFC

PERRY PLACE

RAMSBURY HOUSE

SOUTH BOULEVARD GROUP HOME

SPANISH LAKE

SUNRISE ASSISTED LIVING OF TROY

THREE LAKES

TREVINO HOME

VAN ELSLANDER HOME

VANDERPOOL ADULT FOSTER CARE

Mailing Address Mailing City
Mailing 
State

Mailing 
Zip Code

132 Franklin Suite 101 Pontiac MI 48341

33241 Karin Apt 108
g

Heights MI 48310
32625 W Seven Mile Suite 10 Livonia MI 48152
19460 Glenn Roseville MI 48066
21415 Civic Center Suite 209 Southfield MI 48076
1781 Lakewood Troy MI 48083

1709 John R Troy MI 48083
26900 Franklin Southfield MI 48034
8131 E Jefferson Detroit MI 48214
4410 W 13 Mile Royal Oak MI 48073
132 Franklin Suite 101 Pontiac MI 48341

841 Eckford Troy MI 48098

32625 W Seven Mile Suite 10 Livonia MI 48152g
200 Dearborn MI 48124
3330 Primary Auburn Hills MI 48326
980465 Ypsilanti MI 48198
7902 West Park McLean VA 22102
122 S Rawles Suite 112 Romeo MI 48065
39000 Chase Romulus MI 48174
25240 Lasher Suite 2 Southfield MI 48034



CR
OO

KS
CR

OO
KS

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

E FOURTEEN MILEW FOURTEEN MILE

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

AD
AM

S

E MAPLEW MAPLE

W LONG LAKE

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

E BIG BEAVER

E LONG LAKE

W BIG BEAVER

75

W SOUTH BLVD

CO
OL

ID
GE

HW
Y

E WATTLESE WATTLES

E SQUARE
LAKE

JO
HN

 R

W SQUARELAKE

E SOUTH
BLVD

W WATTLES

CO
OL

ID
GE

 H
W

Y
CO

OL
ID

GE
 H

W
Y

JO
HN

 R

W SQUARE
LAKE

LIV
ER

NO
IS

JO
HN

 R

ST
EP

HE
NS

ONMA
IN

Legend
Day Care Family Home
Day Care Group Home
Day Care Center

Adult Foster Care Family Home
Adult Foster Care Small Group Home
Adult Foster Care Large Group Home

Home for the Aged

January 9, 2006

Child Day Care 
 

Day Care Family Home 
 

"Family day care home" means a private home in which 1 but fewer than 7 minor children are 
received for care and supervision for periods of less than 24 hours a day, unattended by a parent 
or legal guardian, except children related to an adult member of the family by blood, marriage, or 
adoption. Family day care home includes a home that gives care to an unrelated minor child for 

more than 4 weeks during a calendar year. 
 

Day Care Group Home 
 

"Group day care home" means a private home in which more than 6 but not more than 12 minor 
children are given care and supervision for periods of less than 24 hours a day unattended by a 

parent or legal guardian, except children related to an adult member of the family by blood, 
marriage, or adoption. Group day care home includes a home that gives care to an unrelated 

minor child for more than 4 weeks during a calendar year. 
 
 

Child Day Care Center  
 

"Child care center" or "day care center" means a facility, other than a private residence, receiving 
1 or more preschool or school age children for care for periods of less than 24 hours a day, and 
where the parents or guardians are not immediately available to the child. Child care center or 
day care center includes a facility that provides care for not less than 2 consecutive weeks, 
regardless of the number of hours of care per day.  
 
  

Adult Foster Care 
 
 
Adult Foster Care - Family Home - Capacity1 - 6 licensee resides on-site 
 
Adult Foster Care - Small Group - Capacity 1 - 6 may reside off-site 
 
Adult Foster Care - Large Group - Capacity 13 - 20 
 
 
 

Home for the Aged 
 

A supervised personal care facility, that provides room, board, and supervised personal care to 
21 or more unrelated non-transient, individuals 60 years of age or older. 
 
 
 
Source: Michigan Department of Human Services   



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Final OCTOBER 4, 2005 
 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Tuesday, October 4, 2005, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
7:01 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: None 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of September 15, 2005  
 
Resolution # EC-2005-10-12 
Motion by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of September 15, 2005, are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 

Approval of Precinct Inspector Appointments 
 

 
Resolution #EC-2005-10-13 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors, as presented by the City Clerk, be hereby 
APPOINTED for the City of Troy Regular General Election scheduled for Tuesday, 
November 8, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-3 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:04 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT October 20, 2005 
 
Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. at Troy City Hall. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 

Present: Penny Marinos  Bryan Wehrung 
  Richard Hughes  Lisa Martinico 

Kent Voigt   Alan Manzon  
Robert Lin   Cindy Stewart 
 

Absent:  Jerry Bixby 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Motion to approve minutes of August 18, 2005. Motion by Voigt, seconded by Manzon. 
Approved unanimously. 

 
New Business 
  
Oliver Visperas, Comcast – Has been the Governmental Affairs Rep for the past 5 years. 
Future projections: The Comcast CEO has pledged to roll out one new product each year.  
Digital cable products rolled out in recent years.  Multiple increases in speed for the 
Internet, video on-demand movies like rental VCR are popular.  Video On Demand has 
seen 560 million hits in 2004 and one billion hits to date 2005. 

  
HDTV (High Definition TV) – high resolution picture image, CD-quality sound and wide 
screen display. 

  
 Digital Television – new type of broadcasting technology.  Target date of 12/31/06 t 
rollout.  DTV will offer TV with movie quality and sound.  Clearer signal, more 
programming.  Converting to DTV will also free up parts scarce and valuable broadcast 
spectrum.  Those portions of the spectrum can then be used for other important services 
such as advanced wireless (cellular) and public safety services (police, fire, rescue).   

  
Other new future products could be video conferencing, interactive TV/computer.  
Overtime will all analog TV will go away?  Eventually those old models will become 
obsolete. 

  
Cable is not a utility/lifeline service.  People choose to have cable. Seniors who have been 
told they have to upgrade to digital can just upgrade to Enhanced Basic. 

  
Troy Area – 10% off cable plus is offered to seniors 62 and older. 

  
What Comcast would like the city to do? 

  
Phone companies have expressed great interest into having their own video products.  
Asking support that like services treated alike. If SBC wants to come in with video they 
should enter into a franchise agreement with the City like Comcast and WOW. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT October 20, 2004 
 
 

 2

  
Just ask support from a regulatory standpoint like cable companies do. 

  
MI Telecommunication Act – issue in Lansing now hopefully franchising won’t be gone. 
The Michigan Chamber took no position asking local chambers to do the same. 

  
Is Comcast entering into phone area?  Yes.  Comcast digital voice rolled out in Flint, 
Macomb County.  No date yet for Troy. They will most likely offer a bundled package. 

  
Question – if we lose cable service, will phones go out?  You will have backup battery 
power built in (minimum 8 hrs). 

  
Backbone for WOW is fiber and copper into house.  The backbone for Comcast is hybrid – 
still running copper in many areas. 

  
What about when server goes down and lose signal, will phones go out?  Yes if lose 
connection w/network will lose service.  Valid concern for residents – losing phone service. 

  
Does using phone over Internet set you up to be a common carrier?  Probably not since 
it’s our own managed network.  Comcast digital voice would have caller ID go through TV. 

  
Board members commend Comcast – few years ago when they talked about offering so 
many high quality services it seemed far-fetched but has come to fruition.  Stewart 
reported that in the last few weeks both WOW and Comcast customers have been calling 
the City with complaints they can’t get through.  Increase of services – more calls, longer 
phone calls/customers. 

  
Comcast’s solutions:  increased staffing 15%.  Looking to expand Macomb Call Center, 
which handles Troy, calls – completion 2006.  18,000 square feet $4.5 mil expansion in 
Sterling Heights.  Call Centers in Sterling Heights & Plymouth.  Internet support center is in 
Ann Arbor. 

  
Question:  Internet Service - Customers having problem with virus.  Any virus protection 
service?  Yes, provide McAfee is free but you have to register for service information on 
Comcast.net. 

  
Troy – Oakland County going wireless – any comments?  Comcast met with IT staff from 
Oakland County but have decided not to participate in process as a provider. 

  
Customers interested in new cable channels – that other providers have – how do they 
submit these ideas?  Submit to marketing department at Comcast.  It is difficult to 
determine demographics and factors in adding new channels.  They consider negotiation 
factor and cost.  Most expensive channel to offer is ESPN.  

  
Commend Comcast for offering recent channels additions in other languages.  First in 
nation to offer Call Center workers who speak Arabic and Spanish.  JD Powers customer 
satisfaction showed Comcast on bottom third of list.   

  



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT October 20, 2004 
 
 

 3

Comcast has launched local customer satisfaction program “Think Customer First” 
campaign.   Just hired regional vice president for customer service Kate Nottman.  
Comcast records all calls coming in now with upgrade in technology, can assist when 
customers complain.  Comcast has 3300 employees in Michigan. 

  
 
 

Correspondence 
  

1. Comcast - Cable Line Up Adjustments – August 10, 2005: Court TV will remain 
on channel 47/B4. 

2.   WOW - JD Powers Rankings – Sept. 2, 2005:   #1 in overall customer  
       satisfaction.  WOW ranked highest in 3 of 6 factors – customer service    
       performance, reliability and billing.    Satellite TV service increasing 27%  
3.  Comcast - Cable Lineup Adjustments – Sept. 12, 2005:  Adding Japanese, 

               Latino, Black family channel, Arabic, Italian programming. 
 
Articles  
 
Comcast Expands, Will Add New Jobs – Detroit news – October 6, 2005 
  
Old Business  
 
Report on web publications - continue to search for anything new in the cable industry.  
Cindy has provided a large number of articles, but members should try and supplement for 
the group.  Upcoming information on telecommunication franchising. 

  
Staff Report 
  
Email member listing and WTRY cable guide to members each meeting.  Schedule a 
WOW representative at the January meeting. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Motion to adjourn by Voigt, second by Manzon. Meeting adjourned 8:38 pm. 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Bryan Wehrung, CAC Chairman 

 
 

_______________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   October 26, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on October 26, 2005 at 7:00 PM 
at the Lloyd Stage Nature Center, 6685 Coolidge Hwy.  Alexandra Bozimowski and Neil 
Shaw called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski (co-chair) 

Maxine D’Amico 
Jia (Lisa) Luo 
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall 
Neil Shaw (co-chair) 
Katie Thoenes 
Nicole Vitale  
Karen Wullaert 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Andrew Corey, Jessica Kraft, Rishi Joshi, 
Maxine D’Amico (late) 

VISITORS: Charles Barnes, Lloyd Stage Nature Center Manager 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2005-10-20 
  Moved by Vitale 
  Seconded by Wullaert 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 28, 2005 be approved. 

   
  Yes: All – 9 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 4  - Corey, D’Amico, Joshi, Kraft 

 
3. Attendance Report: Updated through September meeting - To note and file 
     
4. Membership Update:  

Resolution #TY-2005-10-21    
Moved by Wullaert 
Seconded by Thoenes 
  
RESOLVED, That Troy Youth Council hereby corrects the name of the 
applicant to be designated as the first alternate nomination to serve on 
Troy Youth Council should a vacancy occur as it appears in the April 27, 
2005 minutes from Patrick Niemic to Joseph Niemiec. 
  
Yes:  All - 9 
No:    0 
Absent:   4  - Corey, D’Amico, Joshi, Kraft 

     
  Welcome to Joseph Niemiec. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   October 26, 2005 
 
 

 2

5. Visitor: 
 Charles Barnes, Lloyd Stage Nature Center Manager: 

1. Power point presentation on what the nature center has to offer 
2. History of center and name 
3. Upcoming programs 
4. Tour of center to follow meeting 
 

6. Term Limits 
Resolution #TY-2005-10-22 
Moved by Randall 
Seconded by Luo 

 
RESOLVED, that each member of the Troy Youth Council shall not serve 
more than two consecutive terms; any portion of a term served shall 
constitute one full term and this resolution shall apply only to terms 
starting after June 1, 2006: 
 
Yes: 0 
No: All - 10 
Absent: 3 – Corey, Joshi, Kraft 

  
 

7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2005-10-23 

  Moved by Wullaert 
  Seconded by Bozimowski 

  
 RESOLVED that Andrey Corey and Jessica Kraft are excused. 

   
  Yes: All - 10 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 3 – Corey, Joshi, Kraft 

   
  

8. Youth Council Comments - None 
9. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 P.M. 
 
_______________________________ 
Alexandra Bozimowski, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott E. Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
 
 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: November 30th at 7:00 P.M. @ Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on November 29, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Fazal Khan 
Lynn Drake-Batts Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-176 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan, Littman and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Miller announced that ZOTA 201 (Commercial Recreation in Light Industrial 
Zoning Districts) and ZOTA 215-A (Accessory Building Definitions and Provisions) 
were added as Agenda items #12 and #13, consecutively, and that the Planning 
Commission By-Laws Agenda item was moved to item #14.  Mr. Miller stated the 
change was a result of actions taken by City Council at its November 28, 2005 
meeting, 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-177 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as amended. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-178 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 25, 2005 Special (6:00 p.m.) Meeting minutes 
as published. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Miller requested that the October 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes be 
corrected to reflect that Mr. Khan, not Mr. Vleck, was absent for Resolution # PC-
2005-10-166 and Resolution # PC-2005-10-167. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-179 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
revised. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-180 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 1, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Wright 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 711) – Proposed Shopping 

Center, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Crooks Road, Section 29 – From H-S 
(Highway Service) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) to B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of the City Management 
to approve the rezoning request.  A communication received by the Planning 
Department from the owner of Shield’s Restaurant was distributed to the members 
prior to tonight’s meeting.  The owner voiced concerns with the impact of a multiple 
story building and decreased visibility to westbound traffic.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked that the small rectangular parcel of the subject rezoning request 
be addressed with respect to creating a non-conformity use for the existing building.  
Mr. Schultz noted that a multi story building could be constructed on the parcel to 
the east of Shield’s Restaurant because it is zoned B-3. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the parcel to the east of Shield’s Restaurant is zoned B-
3 and that the setback requirements are the same along Maple Road.  Mr. Savidant 
briefly addressed the site plan submitted with the rezoning request.  He noted it 
appears the parking space requirements might not be met.   
 
Hathem Hannawa of H&H Design Consultants, 5600 E. Nine Mile Road, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Hannawa said the rectangular piece of 
property is being acquired from the office building to the north.  Mr. Hannawa said a 
survey of the parking spaces was completed, and they are acquiring just enough 
property to accommodate their parking needs.  He stated that the site plan would 
show that parking requirements are met by each property owner and would meet all 
site plan requirements.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Tom Hannawa of 4534 W. Quarton Road, Bloomfield, was also present.  He 
addressed the existing O-1 parcel that is not maintained and currently a shrubbed 
area.  It was noted that the shrubbed property does not comply with the approved 
site plan on file. 
 
Mr. Miller said the usage of the property would not change the existing parking.  He 
encouraged the petitioner to pursue a legal lot split with the City before executing a 
transfer of property.  Mr. Miller briefly addressed the review process as relates to lot 
splits.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-181 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the H-S and O-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located on the northwest 
corner of Maple and Crooks, within Section 29, being approximately 13,356 square 
feet in size, be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 479-C) – Existing Gas Station, 
Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Drive, Section 23 – From B-1 
(Local Business) to H-S (Highway Service) 
 
Chair Strat advised the petitioner that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a 
recommendation of approval of the rezoning request, and the petitioner has the option 
to postpone his item prior to his presentation to the Planning Commission.   
 
The petitioner indicated he would like to go forward. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Dennis Szokolay of 26021 Southfield Road, Lathrup Village, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Szokolay said expansion and improvement to the 
service station would enable the owner to sell a larger inventory of convenience 
items and would provide for a more aesthetically pleasing landscaped area.  He 
asked the members to look favorably on the rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Waller said improvements to the building and landscaping would enhance the 
appearance at this location.  He asked that consideration be given to the limited 
size of the property in terms of the site plan, noting property has been taken from 
the City for the expansion of Rochester Road.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-182 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Charrington, within Section 23, being approximately 21,000 square 
feet in size, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 331) – Proposed 
Volvo Service Facility and Expansion of the Planned Auto Center, South side of 
Maplelawn, North of Maple, West of Crooks (1785 Maplelawn), Section 29, Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed special use and site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as submitted with 
the condition that the screened dumpster is relocated to the southeast corner of the 
property.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Chuck Bennett of 25601 W. Eight Mile, Redford, was present to represent the 
petitioner.  Mr. Bennett agreed to relocate the dumpster to the southeast corner of 
the property.  He stated the service capabilities of the Volvo facility would be 
expanded.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was a brief discussion on the required number of parking spaces.  Mr. 
Savidant provided an explanation of the parking layout and indicated there would be 
more than the required number of parking spaces provided.  Mr. Savidant reported 
that a Building Department representative said the department is comfortable with 
the status of the building permits.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-183 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 28.30.07 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Volvo 
Service Facility, located on the south side of Maplelawn, north of Maple, west of 
Crooks, Section 29, within the M-1 Zoning District, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 

 
1. That the screened dumpster will be relocated to the southeast corner of the 

property. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 843-B) – Proposed Dry Cleaning Store and Coffee Shop 
with Drive Up, East side of Rochester Road, South of Wattles, Section 23 – Zoned 
B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted, subject to two conditions:  (1) That the pear 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

trees in the greenbelt are replaced with an approved tree per the Parks and 
Recreation Analyst; and (2) that the sidewalk is striped on the asphalt walkway 
linking the concrete walks at the northeast corner of the building.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain addressed the on-site storm water detention.  He asked if the 
current usage, or past usage, had parking lot storage of storm water; and if not, why 
can’t the petitioner do that.  Mr. Chamberlain said this is a perfect example why 
storm water detention on a parking lot should not be allowed and the engineering 
development standards should be changed.   
 
Mr. Miller said it would take further investigation to answer Mr. Chamberlain’s 
question.  Mr. Miller said there is a depression area on the northeast corner of the 
property and it does not appear to be an organized detention basin. 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the parking in front of the building on the Rochester Road 
side.  He asked if a variance is in existence to allow the parking spaces that do not 
comply to the zoning standards for 19 feet in depth and 9.5 feet in width.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that it has been City policy for a number of years that the 19-
foot depth requirement can be met with a 2-foot overhang, provided the overhang 
does not reduce the width of the required sidewalk less than 5 feet.   
 
Mr. Schultz said they have two parking spaces that are only 9 feet wide.   
 
Mr. Savidant said a variance is the only way to reduce the required width standard.   
 
The petitioner, Richard Atto of Atto Construction, 2150-B Franklin Road, Bloomfield 
Hills, was present.  Mr. Atto briefly provided an overview of the use ($1.89 Dry 
Cleaning Depot national franchise).  Mr. Atto addressed the parking spaces and 
storm water detention.  He said the required 9.5 foot width for parking spaces could 
be met for all the spaces by utilizing space from extra parking spaces.  Mr. Atto said 
he is probably more against parking lot detention than anyone on the Planning 
Commission, and he would accommodate as much retention underground as 
possible.  Mr. Atto said he could not authenticate whether the retention shown on 
the survey currently exists because he did not prepare the survey.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that, as part of the approval process, the green area be 
recessed and meet green standards to avoid any water problems that would result 
from a parking lot detention.   
 
Mr. Atto said he would have no problem with a site plan approval condition that the 
storm water detention would be a combination of the oversized pipes and the 
greenbelt.  
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked the City Attorney if the design meets Zoning Ordinance 
requirements.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Motzny replied that is more an engineering question than a legal question.  Mr. 
Motzny said the petitioner is required to meet the requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance and that conditions could not be placed on site plan approval unless the 
petitioner is in agreement.   
 
Mr. Schultz said the petitioner would be a better neighbor if vegetation or deciduous 
trees were provided along the east end of the parking lot that abuts residential 
property.   
 
Mr. Atto said there is an existing 6-foot wall there.  Mr. Atto said he had planned 
landscaping in the rear, but the City would not count it under the landscaping 
ordinance.  The landscaping would have resulted in lost parking spaces and a 
reduction in the building size.  Mr. Atto said property is too expensive not to be used 
to its highest and best use.  Mr. Atto said he brought the matter to the Planning 
Department’s attention.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-184 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Dry Cleaning Store and Coffee Shop with Drive Up, located on the east side of 
Rochester and south of Wattles, located in Section 23, on approximately 1.51 acres, 
within the B-3 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Replace the 6 proposed Bradford Pear trees in the greenbelt with an 

approved tree, as per the Parks and Recreation Analyst.  
2. Provide sidewalk striping on the asphalt walkway linking the concrete walks 

at the northeast corner of the building. 
3. Have all of the grassy area lowered below the top height of the paving with 

access for water to run into that area to improve the permeability of the 
property. 

4. All parking spaces shall meet the 9.5-foot width zoning ordinance 
requirement.   

 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Waller asked the Planning Department to advise the Planning Commission 
members should it appear that the Engineering Department would override any 
condition placed on a site plan approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Miller said he would.  He said technically the petitioner must adhere to the 
conditions placed on a site plan approval.   
 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 903-B) – Proposed TCF Bank, East side of Coolidge, 
South of Maple, Section 32 – Zoned B-3 (General Business) and M-1 (Light 
Industrial) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to recommend 
approval of the site plan as submitted.   
 
Michael Rein of Bowers & Rein Associates, 2400 S. Huron Parkway, Ann Arbor, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Rein provided site elevations, building 
materials and a color site plan of the proposed project.  He addressed the two cross 
access easements to the north and the one cross access easement to the south.  
He said it is understood that all three easements come right to the property line. 
 
A brief discussion followed on the cross access easements.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed a small piece of M-1 property at the south edge of the 
property.   
 
Mr. Rein said the bank would maintain the property and if desirable, deciduous 
trees could be planted in the area.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-185 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
TCF Bank, located on the east side of Coolidge, south of Maple, located in Section 
32, on approximately 2.02 acres, within the B-3 and M-1 zoning districts, is hereby 
granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. That all three cross access easements to the north and one to the south be 

registered.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 766-B) – Proposed Addition to Banks Vacuum and 
Sewing, Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Glaser, Section 14 – Zoned B-1 
(Local Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Ken Bank of 16152 Maplewood Court, Northville Township, was 
present.  Mr. Bank asked for clarification on the submittal process of a sidewalk 
waiver.   
 
Mr. Miller advised the petitioner that sidewalk waivers are processed through the 
City’s Traffic Committee and that he could contact the Planning Department for 
assistance.   
 
There was a brief discussion on exterior lighting and the location and use of an 
existing light pole on the site.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-186 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Addition to Banks Vacuum and Sewing, located on the southeast corner of 
Rochester and Glaser, located in Section 14, on approximately 18,750 square feet 
acres, within the B-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
condition: 
 
1. That the light pole that was required by somebody previously is non-intrusive 

to the neighbor to the east.  If new lighting is installed at the rear of the 
building for security purposes, it shall also be non-intrusive to the neighbor to 
the east.  

 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:09 p.m. 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed ZOTA and cited four issues raised 
by City Management. 

1. Eliminate the requirement that Family and Group Day Care Homes require 
fenced or screened play areas. 

2. Eliminate the requirement that Group Day Care Homes must register with 
the City Clerk and re-register annually. 

3. Eliminate all inspection and code requirements. 
4. Eliminate the requirement that a Group Day Care Home shall not be located 

within 1,500 feet of another State licensed residential facility.  
 
A thorough discussion followed on City Management’s concerns.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Chan Chung of 1189 Garwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Chung lives next to a 
day care home provider and shared his concerns relating to traffic, parking, noise, 
usage of City services and privacy.  Mr. Chung distributed written text and 
photographs that relate to his concerns.   
 
Kathleen Peterson of 1175 Garwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Peterson, a State-
licensed group day care provider, is Mr. Chung’s neighbor.  Ms. Peterson cares for 8 
children.  On a daily basis, 6 cars come to her home between the hours of 7 a.m. and 
9 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. and 5:30 p.m.  Ms. Peterson said that after 6 years, she just 
recently became aware of Mr. Chung’s concerns.  Ms. Peterson attempted to address 
Mr. Chung’s concerns; i.e., front door entrance only by clients, clients’ consideration 
with respect to noise, and screening with trees and flowering trellis.  Ms. Peterson said 
Mr. Chung did not have her permission to photograph her home or her clients, and 
she is offended by his actions.   
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer addressed 
the recommendation of City Management to restrict State licensed residential facilities 
to a 1,500-foot distance of each other.  She stressed the thoroughness of a State 
inspection.  She questioned the necessity of a City inspection and the differences 
between a State and City inspection. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Miller said a municipality is the body that enforces the Michigan building code with 
respect to building methods, construction safety, classifications and codes.  He said 
that is basically the difference between a State and City inspection. 
 
Chair Strat emphasized the qualifications of the City inspectors.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00  Arts and 
Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in Light Industrial Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Wright stated that the members just received tonight the documentation 
pertaining to Agenda items #12 and #13 and the members have not had a chance 
to read it. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-187 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, To table both Agenda items #12 and #13 until next week to give the 
members a chance to read it.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Schultz felt the tabling motion was premature, and it would be appropriate to 
have an overview of the Agenda items.   
 
Chair Strat and Ms. Drake-Batts agreed with the comments of Mr. Schultz.  
 
Mr. Miller made a brief presentation on Agenda item #12 with respect to the 
definitions of “performance studio” and “performance theater”.  City Council 
postponed ZOTA 201 to allow an opportunity to develop proper definitions of 
“performance studio” and “performance theater” and further review of the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment by the Planning Commission.   
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Wright said he is not prepared to vote on the item because he has not read the 
documentation provided by the Planning Department.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain agreed that the members have not discussed performance 
theaters.  He said the City has a major problem with over 1,500 acres of industrial 
property that is vacant and not drawing any tax revenue.  Mr. Chamberlain said a 
large performing arts theater that might be proposed in the industrial district should 
be discussed thoroughly by the Planning Commission.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-188 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

RESOLVED, To table this item until next week to provide the members an 
opportunity to read the documentation.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat concurred with Mr. Chamberlain’s comments.   
 
 

13. UPDATE ON ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 
04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00 – 40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller reported that City Council passed a Resolution last night that directs City 
Management to refer ZOTA 215-A to the Planning Commission for further 
consideration and recommendations by no later than the scheduled meeting of 
February 6, 2006.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief history of the zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
A short discussion followed relating to the Planning Commission’s recommendation 
on ZOTA 215-A and the prioritization of tasks charged to the Planning Commission.   
 
 

14. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
Mr. Waller reported he would have the material available for review at the next 
meeting. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-189 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To table this item until the next meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items on the Agenda 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed 
ZOTA 215-A relating to monster garages.  He shared his viewpoint of what 
happened at the City Council meeting where City Council changed the 
recommendations sent forward by the Planning Commission.  Mr. Schafer said he is 
well aware how the Planning Commission struggled with the math to come up with a 
valid recommendation for City Council.  He said City Council unwittingly undid 
everything the Planning Commission sent forward and were not made aware of the 
struggle, the refinement and the homework that was done by the Planning 
Commission.  Mr. Schafer noted that no one from the Planning Commission was at 
that meeting to defend the recommendations sent forward, and he thought that was 
a shame.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Waller wished safe and good hunting to Members Chamberlain and Khan. 
 
Mr. Miller hoped everyone had a good Thanksgiving.  
 
Chair Strat echoed Mr. Miller’s comments.   
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:10 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\11-29-05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on November 29, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Fazal Khan 
Lynn Drake-Batts Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-176 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan, Littman and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Miller announced that ZOTA 201 (Commercial Recreation in Light Industrial 
Zoning Districts) and ZOTA 215-A (Accessory Building Definitions and Provisions) 
were added as Agenda items #12 and #13, consecutively, and that the Planning 
Commission By-Laws Agenda item was moved to item #14.  Mr. Miller stated the 
change was a result of actions taken by City Council at its November 28, 2005 
meeting, 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-177 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as amended. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-178 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 25, 2005 Special (6:00 p.m.) Meeting minutes 
as published. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Miller requested that the October 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes be 
corrected to reflect that Mr. Khan, not Mr. Vleck, was absent for Resolution # PC-
2005-10-166 and Resolution # PC-2005-10-167. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-179 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
revised. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-180 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 1, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Wright 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 711) – Proposed Shopping 

Center, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Crooks Road, Section 29 – From H-S 
(Highway Service) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) to B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of the City Management 
to approve the rezoning request.  A communication received by the Planning 
Department from the owner of Shield’s Restaurant was distributed to the members 
prior to tonight’s meeting.  The owner voiced concerns with the impact of a multiple 
story building and decreased visibility to westbound traffic.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked that the small rectangular parcel of the subject rezoning request 
be addressed with respect to creating a non-conformity use for the existing building.  
Mr. Schultz noted that a multi story building could be constructed on the parcel to 
the east of Shield’s Restaurant because it is zoned B-3. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the parcel to the east of Shield’s Restaurant is zoned B-
3 and that the setback requirements are the same along Maple Road.  Mr. Savidant 
briefly addressed the site plan submitted with the rezoning request.  He noted it 
appears the parking space requirements might not be met.   
 
Hathem Hannawa of H&H Design Consultants, 5600 E. Nine Mile Road, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Hannawa said the rectangular piece of 
property is being acquired from the office building to the north.  Mr. Hannawa said a 
survey of the parking spaces was completed, and they are acquiring just enough 
property to accommodate their parking needs.  He stated that the site plan would 
show that parking requirements are met by each property owner and would meet all 
site plan requirements.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Tom Hannawa of 4534 W. Quarton Road, Bloomfield, was also present.  He 
addressed the existing O-1 parcel that is not maintained and currently a shrubbed 
area.  It was noted that the shrubbed property does not comply with the approved 
site plan on file. 
 
Mr. Miller said the usage of the property would not change the existing parking.  He 
encouraged the petitioner to pursue a legal lot split with the City before executing a 
transfer of property.  Mr. Miller briefly addressed the review process as relates to lot 
splits.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-181 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the H-S and O-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located on the northwest 
corner of Maple and Crooks, within Section 29, being approximately 13,356 square 
feet in size, be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 479-C) – Existing Gas Station, 
Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Drive, Section 23 – From B-1 
(Local Business) to H-S (Highway Service) 
 
Chair Strat advised the petitioner that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a 
recommendation of approval of the rezoning request, and the petitioner has the option 
to postpone his item prior to his presentation to the Planning Commission.   
 
The petitioner indicated he would like to go forward. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Dennis Szokolay of 26021 Southfield Road, Lathrup Village, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Szokolay said expansion and improvement to the 
service station would enable the owner to sell a larger inventory of convenience 
items and would provide for a more aesthetically pleasing landscaped area.  He 
asked the members to look favorably on the rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Waller said improvements to the building and landscaping would enhance the 
appearance at this location.  He asked that consideration be given to the limited 
size of the property in terms of the site plan, noting property has been taken from 
the City for the expansion of Rochester Road.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-182 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Charrington, within Section 23, being approximately 21,000 square 
feet in size, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 331) – Proposed 
Volvo Service Facility and Expansion of the Planned Auto Center, South side of 
Maplelawn, North of Maple, West of Crooks (1785 Maplelawn), Section 29, Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed special use and site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as submitted with 
the condition that the screened dumpster is relocated to the southeast corner of the 
property.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Chuck Bennett of 25601 W. Eight Mile, Redford, was present to represent the 
petitioner.  Mr. Bennett agreed to relocate the dumpster to the southeast corner of 
the property.  He stated the service capabilities of the Volvo facility would be 
expanded.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was a brief discussion on the required number of parking spaces.  Mr. 
Savidant provided an explanation of the parking layout and indicated there would be 
more than the required number of parking spaces provided.  Mr. Savidant reported 
that a Building Department representative said the department is comfortable with 
the status of the building permits.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-183 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 28.30.07 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Volvo 
Service Facility, located on the south side of Maplelawn, north of Maple, west of 
Crooks, Section 29, within the M-1 Zoning District, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 

 
1. That the screened dumpster will be relocated to the southeast corner of the 

property. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 843-B) – Proposed Dry Cleaning Store and Coffee Shop 
with Drive Up, East side of Rochester Road, South of Wattles, Section 23 – Zoned 
B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted, subject to two conditions:  (1) That the pear 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

trees in the greenbelt are replaced with an approved tree per the Parks and 
Recreation Analyst; and (2) that the sidewalk is striped on the asphalt walkway 
linking the concrete walks at the northeast corner of the building.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain addressed the on-site storm water detention.  He asked if the 
current usage, or past usage, had parking lot storage of storm water; and if not, why 
can’t the petitioner do that.  Mr. Chamberlain said this is a perfect example why 
storm water detention on a parking lot should not be allowed and the engineering 
development standards should be changed.   
 
Mr. Miller said it would take further investigation to answer Mr. Chamberlain’s 
question.  Mr. Miller said there is a depression area on the northeast corner of the 
property and it does not appear to be an organized detention basin. 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the parking in front of the building on the Rochester Road 
side.  He asked if a variance is in existence to allow the parking spaces that do not 
comply to the zoning standards for 19 feet in depth and 9.5 feet in width.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that it has been City policy for a number of years that the 19-
foot depth requirement can be met with a 2-foot overhang, provided the overhang 
does not reduce the width of the required sidewalk less than 5 feet.   
 
Mr. Schultz said they have two parking spaces that are only 9 feet wide.   
 
Mr. Savidant said a variance is the only way to reduce the required width standard.   
 
The petitioner, Richard Atto of Atto Construction, 2150-B Franklin Road, Bloomfield 
Hills, was present.  Mr. Atto briefly provided an overview of the use ($1.89 Dry 
Cleaning Depot national franchise).  Mr. Atto addressed the parking spaces and 
storm water detention.  He said the required 9.5 foot width for parking spaces could 
be met for all the spaces by utilizing space from extra parking spaces.  Mr. Atto said 
he is probably more against parking lot detention than anyone on the Planning 
Commission, and he would accommodate as much retention underground as 
possible.  Mr. Atto said he could not authenticate whether the retention shown on 
the survey currently exists because he did not prepare the survey.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that, as part of the approval process, the green area be 
recessed and meet green standards to avoid any water problems that would result 
from a parking lot detention.   
 
Mr. Atto said he would have no problem with a site plan approval condition that the 
storm water detention would be a combination of the oversized pipes and the 
greenbelt.  
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked the City Attorney if the design meets Zoning Ordinance 
requirements.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Motzny replied that is more an engineering question than a legal question.  Mr. 
Motzny said the petitioner is required to meet the requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance and that conditions could not be placed on site plan approval unless the 
petitioner is in agreement.   
 
Mr. Schultz said the petitioner would be a better neighbor if vegetation or deciduous 
trees were provided along the east end of the parking lot that abuts residential 
property.   
 
Mr. Atto said there is an existing 6-foot wall there.  Mr. Atto said he had planned 
landscaping in the rear, but the City would not count it under the landscaping 
ordinance.  The landscaping would have resulted in lost parking spaces and a 
reduction in the building size.  Mr. Atto said property is too expensive not to be used 
to its highest and best use.  Mr. Atto said he brought the matter to the Planning 
Department’s attention.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-184 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Dry Cleaning Store and Coffee Shop with Drive Up, located on the east side of 
Rochester and south of Wattles, located in Section 23, on approximately 1.51 acres, 
within the B-3 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Replace the 6 proposed Bradford Pear trees in the greenbelt with an 

approved tree, as per the Parks and Recreation Analyst.  
2. Provide sidewalk striping on the asphalt walkway linking the concrete walks 

at the northeast corner of the building. 
3. Have all of the grassy area lowered below the top height of the paving with 

access for water to run into that area to improve the permeability of the 
property. 

4. All parking spaces shall meet the 9.5-foot width zoning ordinance 
requirement.   

 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Waller asked the Planning Department to advise the Planning Commission 
members should it appear that the Engineering Department would override any 
condition placed on a site plan approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Miller said he would.  He said technically the petitioner must adhere to the 
conditions placed on a site plan approval.   
 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 903-B) – Proposed TCF Bank, East side of Coolidge, 
South of Maple, Section 32 – Zoned B-3 (General Business) and M-1 (Light 
Industrial) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to recommend 
approval of the site plan as submitted.   
 
Michael Rein of Bowers & Rein Associates, 2400 S. Huron Parkway, Ann Arbor, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Rein provided site elevations, building 
materials and a color site plan of the proposed project.  He addressed the two cross 
access easements to the north and the one cross access easement to the south.  
He said it is understood that all three easements come right to the property line. 
 
A brief discussion followed on the cross access easements.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed a small piece of M-1 property at the south edge of the 
property.   
 
Mr. Rein said the bank would maintain the property and if desirable, deciduous 
trees could be planted in the area.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-185 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
TCF Bank, located on the east side of Coolidge, south of Maple, located in Section 
32, on approximately 2.02 acres, within the B-3 and M-1 zoning districts, is hereby 
granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. That all three cross access easements to the north and one to the south be 

registered.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 766-B) – Proposed Addition to Banks Vacuum and 
Sewing, Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Glaser, Section 14 – Zoned B-1 
(Local Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Ken Bank of 16152 Maplewood Court, Northville Township, was 
present.  Mr. Bank asked for clarification on the submittal process of a sidewalk 
waiver.   
 
Mr. Miller advised the petitioner that sidewalk waivers are processed through the 
City’s Traffic Committee and that he could contact the Planning Department for 
assistance.   
 
There was a brief discussion on exterior lighting and the location and use of an 
existing light pole on the site.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-186 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Addition to Banks Vacuum and Sewing, located on the southeast corner of 
Rochester and Glaser, located in Section 14, on approximately 18,750 square feet 
acres, within the B-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
condition: 
 
1. That the light pole that was required by somebody previously is non-intrusive 

to the neighbor to the east.  If new lighting is installed at the rear of the 
building for security purposes, it shall also be non-intrusive to the neighbor to 
the east.  

 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:09 p.m. 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed ZOTA and cited four issues raised 
by City Management. 

1. Eliminate the requirement that Family and Group Day Care Homes require 
fenced or screened play areas. 

2. Eliminate the requirement that Group Day Care Homes must register with 
the City Clerk and re-register annually. 

3. Eliminate all inspection and code requirements. 
4. Eliminate the requirement that a Group Day Care Home shall not be located 

within 1,500 feet of another State licensed residential facility.  
 
A thorough discussion followed on City Management’s concerns.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Chan Chung of 1189 Garwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Chung lives next to a 
day care home provider and shared his concerns relating to traffic, parking, noise, 
usage of City services and privacy.  Mr. Chung distributed written text and 
photographs that relate to his concerns.   
 
Kathleen Peterson of 1175 Garwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Peterson, a State-
licensed group day care provider, is Mr. Chung’s neighbor.  Ms. Peterson cares for 8 
children.  On a daily basis, 6 cars come to her home between the hours of 7 a.m. and 
9 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. and 5:30 p.m.  Ms. Peterson said that after 6 years, she just 
recently became aware of Mr. Chung’s concerns.  Ms. Peterson attempted to address 
Mr. Chung’s concerns; i.e., front door entrance only by clients, clients’ consideration 
with respect to noise, and screening with trees and flowering trellis.  Ms. Peterson said 
Mr. Chung did not have her permission to photograph her home or her clients, and 
she is offended by his actions.   
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer addressed 
the recommendation of City Management to restrict State licensed residential facilities 
to a 1,500-foot distance of each other.  She stressed the thoroughness of a State 
inspection.  She questioned the necessity of a City inspection and the differences 
between a State and City inspection. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Miller said a municipality is the body that enforces the Michigan building code with 
respect to building methods, construction safety, classifications and codes.  He said 
that is basically the difference between a State and City inspection. 
 
Chair Strat emphasized the qualifications of the City inspectors.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00  Arts and 
Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in Light Industrial Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Wright stated that the members just received tonight the documentation 
pertaining to Agenda items #12 and #13 and the members have not had a chance 
to read it. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-187 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, To table both Agenda items #12 and #13 until next week to give the 
members a chance to read it.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Schultz felt the tabling motion was premature, and it would be appropriate to 
have an overview of the Agenda items.   
 
Chair Strat and Ms. Drake-Batts agreed with the comments of Mr. Schultz.  
 
Mr. Miller made a brief presentation on Agenda item #12 with respect to the 
definitions of “performance studio” and “performance theater”.  City Council 
postponed ZOTA 201 to allow an opportunity to develop proper definitions of 
“performance studio” and “performance theater” and further review of the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment by the Planning Commission.   
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Wright said he is not prepared to vote on the item because he has not read the 
documentation provided by the Planning Department.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain agreed that the members have not discussed performance 
theaters.  He said the City has a major problem with over 1,500 acres of industrial 
property that is vacant and not drawing any tax revenue.  Mr. Chamberlain said a 
large performing arts theater that might be proposed in the industrial district should 
be discussed thoroughly by the Planning Commission.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-188 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

RESOLVED, To table this item until next week to provide the members an 
opportunity to read the documentation.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat concurred with Mr. Chamberlain’s comments.   
 
 

13. UPDATE ON ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 
04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00 – 40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller reported that City Council passed a Resolution last night that directs City 
Management to refer ZOTA 215-A to the Planning Commission for further 
consideration and recommendations by no later than the scheduled meeting of 
February 6, 2006.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief history of the zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
A short discussion followed relating to the Planning Commission’s recommendation 
on ZOTA 215-A and the prioritization of tasks charged to the Planning Commission.   
 
 

14. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
Mr. Waller reported he would have the material available for review at the next 
meeting. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-189 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To table this item until the next meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items on the Agenda 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed 
ZOTA 215-A relating to monster garages.  He shared his viewpoint of what 
happened at the City Council meeting where City Council changed the 
recommendations sent forward by the Planning Commission.  Mr. Schafer said he is 
well aware how the Planning Commission struggled with the math to come up with a 
valid recommendation for City Council.  He said City Council unwittingly undid 
everything the Planning Commission sent forward and were not made aware of the 
struggle, the refinement and the homework that was done by the Planning 
Commission.  Mr. Schafer noted that no one from the Planning Commission was at 
that meeting to defend the recommendations sent forward, and he thought that was 
a shame.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Waller wished safe and good hunting to Members Chamberlain and Khan. 
 
Mr. Miller hoped everyone had a good Thanksgiving.  
 
Chair Strat echoed Mr. Miller’s comments.   
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:10 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\11-29-05 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Dec. 1, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Dec. 1 
2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at  
1 PM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair David Ogg, Member 
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Pauline Noce, Member excused, Jo Rhoads, Member excused   
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Wade Fleming 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-12-001 
Moved by Bud Black  
Seconded by Merrill Dixon  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Nov. 3, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 5       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming reported on new school programs and upcoming band concerts. 
 
Wade Fleming thanked the committee for their support and encouraged them to contact him at 
any time. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill reported that the exact construction date is as of yet 
unknown, but it still planned for 2006.  Carla will announce it in the newsletter as soon as we 
have a better idea of when it will open.  
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla handed out a correspondence from Carol 
Anderson explaining how City Council did acknowledge receiving their letter in September.  
The Committee has fulfilled their role of advising City Council, and city staff is working with 
Emerald Food Service to address the Committee’s concerns.  Carla will keep the committee 
updated on the negotiations with the caterer.   
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Dec. 1, 2005 

2 

 
 
New Business 
 
None 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that they discussed changing their meeting date and 
development of the parcel of land at Square Lake and Livernois where the fire station used to 
be.  
 
Medi-Go:  No report 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that there will be people on site to help seniors register for 
the Medicare Prescription Drug Program as well as speakers and educational programs - 
details in the January newsletter.  Fifty-eight seniors attended a program on this topic in 
November, and we held a volunteer training session here on November 28.   There were 58 
vendors at the craft show on November 18 and 32 exhibitors at the Fine Art Show on 
November 30. 
 
OLHSA:  No report  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion that there be a senior rate for 
all parks and recreation classes - Dance It in particular.  She has advised the writer about the 
low-income scholarship program and passed the suggestion on the person in charge of the 
adult fitness classes.  Dance It is $105 for a 12 week session ($4.37 per class).  By 
comparison, the senior muscle conditioning class is $55 for 10 weeks ($2.75 per class).  
Dance It does allow flexible class attendance.   A discussion was held about what the minimum 
age for a senior should be.   
 
Comments:   
 
James Berar expressed his appreciation for the leaf raking service.   
 
Merrill Dixon suggested canceling the January meeting but the committee decided they would 
meet in January.   The committee will cancel their meeting if the Troy Schools are closed due 
to inclement weather. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:05 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair              Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 6, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was scheduled to meet 
at 7:30 p.m. on December 6, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lawrence Littman Gary Chamberlain 
Thomas Strat Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mark J. Vleck Fazal Khan 
David T. Waller Robert Schultz 
 Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Sue Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

At 7:35 p.m., Chair Strat announced the meeting would not be conducted for lack of a 
quorum.   
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\12-06-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 6, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was scheduled to meet 
at 7:30 p.m. on December 6, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lawrence Littman Gary Chamberlain 
Thomas Strat Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mark J. Vleck Fazal Khan 
David T. Waller Robert Schultz 
 Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Sue Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

At 7:35 p.m., Chair Strat announced the meeting would not be conducted for lack of a 
quorum.   
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\12-06-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
DECEMBER 7, 2005 

 1

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, December 7, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:04 P.M. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member A. Done, member  
   A. Fuhrman, alternate P. Hammond, member 
   T. House, member  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate 
   J. Stewart, member  S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: S Burt, member EA  
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF NOVEMBER 2, 2005 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of  November 2, 2005 be approved as 
amended.  Supported by Stewart.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Lusa Zhou was our guest.  Lusa is a student and on the Board of the National Honor 
Society at Troy High School. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
Buchanan and Werpetinski attended the Troy Special Services PTO meeting on 
12/1/05.  This organization provides disability awareness to all 4th grade students in the 
Troy school system as well as funding for Special Olympics, scholarships, etc.  They 
are also creating a support group for parents of children with disabilities.  This group will 
meet on the 2nd Tuesday of each month.  We have been invited to participate in one or 
both.  If you have questions, contact the President, Natalie Luyckx at 248-816-1815. 
 
Done contacted Lawrence Technology Institute and spoke with Dr. Orlowski, Assistant 
Dean and extended an invitation for an architect or instructor to come to one of our 
meetings to discuss awareness of needs of disabled persons.  
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Buchanan will attend the City Council meeting on 12/19/05. 
 
Done phoned Troy Athens High School and spoke with Amy Buchanan re: student 
members for our Committee.  She also was given the name of Alex Xie and Lusa, who 
attended our meeting, from Troy High School.  Hammond was given the name of Lusa, 
who attended our meeting, and Alex Xie, both from Troy High School. 
 
Pietron called Birmingham to inquire if they have a Disability Committee and has not 
gotten an answer back. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
DECEMBER 7, 2005 

 2

ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
A copy of the Committee’s pamphlet was passed out to all members in attendance for 
further discussion of the Mission Statement. 
 
Werpetinski reported that at the last election, magnifying glasses were not provided in 
election worker packets and the lighting was not improved at the St. Joseph Chaldean 
precinct.  Otherwise, the election voting process ran quite smoothly. 
 
Kathy Davisson was contacted re:millage money for playgrounds.  The money will 
primarily be used to bring existing playgrounds up to ADA standards.  Nothing will be 
done until the end of the school year. 
 
Werpetinski will contact Dave Lambert regarding the parking ratio for handicapped 
spaces when parking variances are approved by City Council.  Also, Grusnick will get 
direction from Mark Stimac regarding his 7/23/04 letter addressing this issue. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Hammond will compose an editorial and send to local papers regarding the hardships 
caused by able-bodied people using the handicapped parking spots. 
 
Discussion on the importance of Committee members participating in Troy Futures task 
force.  Stewart and Werpetinski explained that several proposals from the last Troy 
Futures planning meetings have been implemented or are under consideration.  Stewart 
signed up for subcommittee participation and encourages other members’ involvement. 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Werpetinski reported that Council is considering closed captioning for City cable 
broadcasts.  They have requested that Mr. Szerlag provide cost estimates for 
implementation of this system.  Councilman Lambert suggested this Committee’s input 
as to the need for closed caption broadcasting.  This Committee unanimously supports 
getting feedback from Troy residents.  Perhaps a questionnaire could be enclosed with 
the next water bill or mailed out separately.  As requested, this Committee is submitting 
a letter supporting citizen input to Mr. Szerlag. 
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
House made a motion to adjourn at 9:05 which was seconded by Fuhrman. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
DECEMBER 7, 2005 

 1

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, December 7, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:04 P.M. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member A. Done, member  
   A. Fuhrman, alternate P. Hammond, member 
   T. House, member  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate 
   J. Stewart, member  S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: S Burt, member EA  
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF NOVEMBER 2, 2005 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of  November 2, 2005 be approved as 
amended.  Supported by Stewart.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Lusa Zhou was our guest.  Lusa is a student and on the Board of the National Honor 
Society at Troy High School. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
Buchanan and Werpetinski attended the Troy Special Services PTO meeting on 
12/1/05.  This organization provides disability awareness to all 4th grade students in the 
Troy school system as well as funding for Special Olympics, scholarships, etc.  They 
are also creating a support group for parents of children with disabilities.  This group will 
meet on the 2nd Tuesday of each month.  We have been invited to participate in one or 
both.  If you have questions, contact the President, Natalie Luyckx at 248-816-1815. 
 
Done contacted Lawrence Technology Institute and spoke with Dr. Orlowski, Assistant 
Dean and extended an invitation for an architect or instructor to come to one of our 
meetings to discuss awareness of needs of disabled persons.  
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Buchanan will attend the City Council meeting on 12/19/05. 
 
Done phoned Troy Athens High School and spoke with Amy Buchanan re: student 
members for our Committee.  Hammond was given the name of Lusa, who attended our 
meeting, and Alex Xie, both from Troy High School. 
 
Pietron called Birmingham to inquire if they have a Disability Committee and has not 
gotten an answer back. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
DECEMBER 7, 2005 

 2

ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
A copy of the Committee’s pamphlet was passed out to all members in attendance for 
further discussion of the Mission Statement. 
 
Werpetinski reported that at the last election, magnifying glasses were not provided in 
election worker packets and the lighting was not improved at the St. Joseph Chaldean 
precinct.  Otherwise, the election voting process ran quite smoothly. 
 
Kathy Davisson was contacted re:millage money for playgrounds.  The money will 
primarily be used to bring existing playgrounds up to ADA standards.  Nothing will be 
done until the end of the school year. 
 
Werpetinski will contact Dave Lambert regarding the parking ratio for handicapped 
spaces when parking variances are approved by City Council.  Also, Grusnick will get 
direction from Mark Stimac regarding his 7/23/04 letter addressing this issue. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Hammond will compose an editorial and send to local papers regarding the hardships 
caused by able-bodied people using the handicapped parking spots. 
 
Discussion on the importance of Committee members participating in Troy Futures task 
force.  Stewart and Werpetinski explained that several proposals from the last Troy 
Futures planning meetings have been implemented or are under consideration.  Stewart 
signed up for subcommittee participation and encourages other members’ involvement. 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Werpetinski reported that Council is considering closed captioning for City cable 
broadcasts.  They have requested that Mr. Szerlag provide cost estimates for 
implementation of this system.  Councilman Lambert suggested this Committee’s input 
as to the need for closed caption broadcasting.  This Committee unanimously supports 
getting feedback from Troy residents.  Perhaps a questionnaire could be enclosed with 
the next water bill or mailed out separately.  As requested, this Committee is submitting 
a letter supporting citizen input to Mr. Szerlag. 
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
House made a motion to adjourn at 9:05 which was seconded by Fuhrman. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                           
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          DECEMBER 7, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, December 7, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   William Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 2, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 2, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MONDRIAN PROPERTIES, WESTON DOWNS 
CONDOMINIUM, SOUTHEAST CORNER OF WATTLES AND FINCH, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect a second 99 square foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
erect a second 99 square foot ground sign.  Section 85.02.05, C, 2 of Chapter 85 limits 
signs in Multiple Family Housing or Cluster Housing Developments to one sign that will 
not exceed 100 square feet in area and one additional sign not to exceed 36 square feet 
in area.  A permit has already been issued for a 99 square foot ground sign at the 
southeast corner of Wattles and Finch.  A second sign is proposed for the northeast 
corner of the intersection of Finch and the new private street Seabiscuit. The proposed 
sign exceeds the 36 square foot limit on the second ground sign per Chapter 85. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of November 2, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the Building Department to publish a new Public Hearing.  It was 
discovered that the Parcel I.D. number on the original Public Hearing notice was 
incorrect and a new Public Hearing notice was required.  The corrected Public Hearing 
notice was sent out in accordance with the requirements of the Sign Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties was present and said that this proposed sign 
would be identical to the ground sign at Wattles and Finch.  The sign would consist of  

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          DECEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
metal sign letters on a rock wall.  Because the wall is considered to be part of the sign, it 
exceeds the size of a second sign as allowed by the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the wall that supports the lettering is counted as part of the 
allowable signage.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this sign would be the same as the other sign and Mr. Maniaci 
said that the raised lettering will be the same on both walls. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that six (6) objections have been received regarding this request, 
although most of the objections were regarding the flags and the lights.  The proposed 
sign would have letters that are 10’ wide and 1 ½’ high for a total of 15 square feet.  
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the wall that the letters would be placed on is 5’ high and 18’ 
long.  The Ordinance states that the sign is what differentiates it from the background.  
Mr. Stimac also stated that the petitioner could come back to the Board and ask for a 
variance for the wall, as Chapter 83 states that a fence in the front setback could only 
be 30” in height.  If a variance was granted for the height of the wall, the petitioner could 
put the sign lettering on it and they would comply with the Ordinance.  Either way a 
variance would be required from this Board   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are six (6) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Maniaci stated that he would be more than willing to put a dimmer switch on the 
lighting for the flagpoles to try and eliminate some of the objections by the neighbors.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he was hoping that the people that objected to this request 
would have come to the meeting to express their opinions, because he does not believe 
the wall or the sign are the problem.  He believes it is the flags and the lighting.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what recourse the petitioner would have if this request was denied.  
Mr. Maniaci said that he would probably come back to the Board asking for a variance 
regarding the brick wall.    Mr. Maniaci also said that he feels that they have tried their 
best to work with the neighbors by adding more tress and putting in a landscape barrier 
between their property and the property in this petition.  Mr. Maniaci said that they have 
exceeded the landscape requirements and this would be a natural rock wall.  He is 
more than willing to put the lights on a timer and would also be willing to put in lower 
wattage light bulbs.   
 
Mr. Richnak said that sometimes when there is nothing in an area, and all of a sudden 
there is a new development, the neighbors don’t always feel that this is an  

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          DECEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
improvement.  Mr. Richnak also said that he did not believe this second sign would be 
objectionable to people driving in the area. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson  
 
MOVED, to grant Mondrian Properties, Weston Downs Condominium, southeast corner 
of Wattles and Finch, relief of Chapter 85 to erect a second 99 square foot ground sign 
at the intersection of Finch and Seabiscuit. 
 

• Petitioner adjusts the lighting of the flagpoles in consideration of the surrounding 
neighbors. 

• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
 

Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  BASEMENT EXPERTS, 4451 REILLY DR., for 
relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to convert a basement to habitable area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to convert the basement at 4451 Reilly to habitable area.  The plans 
submitted indicate installation of a suspended ceiling over a majority of the basement 
with a 6’-10” finished ceiling height and a ceiling dropped to a height of 6’-3” under 
existing ductwork.  Section R 305 of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code, requires a 7’ 
minimum ceiling height in habitable rooms and 6’-6” minimum ceiling height for dropped 
areas under ductwork and beams. 
 
David Shipley of Basement Experts was present and stated that this is the same 
concept as presented in other variance requests.  The present basement is 7’ from floor 
to the bottom of the floor joists.  There is an existing I-beam that they are planning to 
cover with ½” finished grade plywood.  They will attempt to snug everything up as much 
as possible. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked why they needed to put in a suspended ceiling rather than a drywall 
ceiling.  Mr. Shipley stated that the Corning system is designed to hold a suspended 
ceiling and a dry walled ceiling would not allow access to gas lines or water lines.  
Basically there is a 1” difference between dry wall and the dropped ceiling.  
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they could design something where they would not require a 
dropped ceiling and Mr. Shipley said that the owner wants part of this basement to used 
as a craft room for his wife, and the other part of the basement would accommodate his  

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          DECEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
pool table.  Mr. Shipley also said that they will elevate the ceiling into the stairway and 
will maintain clearance at the bottom of the stairs. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the homeowner could be present the next time such a variance is 
sought and Mr. Stimac indicated that staff could not mandate that the homeowner 
attend the meeting, however, Building Department staff would strongly urge them to 
attend.  Mr. Shipley also stated that they try to convince them to come also. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the petitioner had talked to Owens Corning about the possibility of 
submitting to have this part of the State Code changed.  Mr. Shipley said that Owens 
Corning had changed the State Law in Ohio regarding ceiling height of basements and 
presently are trying to change the Ordinance in the State of Michigan. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Basement Experts, 4451 Reilly Dr., for relief of the 
2003 Michigan Residential Code to convert a basement to habitable area, which will 
result with a 6’-10” finished ceiling height and a ceiling dropped to height of 6’-3” under 
existing ductwork. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this petition. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Dziurman wished everyone a Happy Holiday. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:52 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 4



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:35 p.m. on December 13, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Robert Schultz 
Lynn Drake-Batts David T. Waller 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative (arrived 8:35 p.m.) 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-190 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Schultz and Waller are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-191 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, To move Agenda item #10 before Agenda Item #8. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Township, was present.  Mr. Wilson, 
chairman of the Economic Development Committee for the Troy Chamber of 
Commerce, provided a status report of the Maple Road Corridor Study sub-
committee.   
 
 

4. PLANNING COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Wright provided a brief report on the November 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) meeting.   
 
Chair Strat announced that this would be a new Agenda item, on a trial basis, to 
provide an opportunity for members to speak on items of interest.   
 
 

5. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
Mr. Motzny submitted a written response to specific questions that were set forth in a 
November 20, 2005 communication from the Chair and Vice Chair.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that the By-laws codify authority to the Planning 
Commission to prepare the agenda.   
 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00  Arts 
and Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning 
District 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to commercial indoor recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District.   
 
Discussion followed on the following: 
• Negative affects of large performance theaters; i.e., parking, intense land use, 

design.  
• Current vacancy rate. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

• Tax base. 
• Existing zoning district that allows large performance theaters [B-2 and B-3]. 
• Future of industrial area. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said large performance theaters are a consumer-oriented type of use 
that would produce more traffic mixed with the industrial style traffic.  Mr. Carlisle 
recommended that the members refine and create specific requirements in the 
Zoning Ordinance with respect to large performance theaters.   
 
Tennis bubbles, art studio/galleries, and motion picture theaters were discussed 
with respect to the definitions of performance studio and performance theater. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-192 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, That the definitions for performance studio and performance theater 
provided by City Management are acceptable to the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-  (motion withdrawn) 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Paragraph 04.20.73, Indoor Commercial Recreation Facility, include 
both performance studios and performance theaters as well as all the other uses that 
are proposed in the text in front of us tonight.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked that the motion be amended to include the word “may” before 
“include both performance studios and performance theaters” so the activities are 
not limited and also to include the term “art studios”.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain, with agreement from Mr. Vleck, withdrew the motion on the floor, 
and restated it as follows.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-193 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

RESOLVED, The City of Troy has a problem in its industrial zone of a multitude of 
vacancies and the tax base is being eroded; therefore the Planning Commission 
hereby recommends to the City Council that Paragraph 04.20.73, Indoor 
Commercial Recreation Facility, include performance studios, performance theaters 
and art studios, and that other facilities may be included in this paragraph as well as 
the facilities named in that paragraph in the language in front of us tonight.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 921) – Proposed Briggs Park Condominium, North side of 
Lamb, East side of Rochester Road, Section 14 – R-1T, R-1C and E-P 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Briggs Park Condominium, and reported that it is the recommendation of 
the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted with the condition 
that the 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road is concrete, as 
opposed to asphalt as shown on the site plan.   
 
Mr. Savidant provided clarification on the setbacks.   
 
The petitioner, Brad Byarski of Michigan Homes Builders, 13400 Canal, Sterling 
Heights, was present.  Mr. Byarski provided a brief history of the site and addressed 
a previous submission of which the Planning Commission had concerns relating to 
density, sidewalks, guest parking, and an easement variance.  Mr. Byarski reviewed 
the new site plan and presented drawings and elevations of the proposed 
development.  He agreed to change the sidewalk on the east side of Rochester 
Road from asphalt to concrete.   
 
[Mr. Kulesza arrived at 8:35 p.m.] 
 
Discussion followed with respect to guest parking, on-street parking, snow removal, 
and storm water management.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-194 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Briggs Park Condominium, located on the north side of Lamb, east of Rochester, 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

located in Section 14, on approximately 12.13 acres, within the R-1T, E-P and R-1C 
zoning districts, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road shall be concrete, 

as per City of Troy Engineering Standards. 
2. That on-street parking is provided opposite the fire hydrants especially in the 

area on the north side of the island. 
3. Provide bioswales. 
 
Discussion. 
 
Members of the audience asked to speak.  Chair Strat said public comment on a 
site plan review is at the discretion of the Chair, and the floor would not be opened 
at this time.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman 
No: Strat, Wright 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Vleck abstained because he thought the public should have an opportunity to 
speak on the matter.   
 
Mr. Wright indicated his no vote was for the same reason.   
 
Chair Strat voted no because the petitioner did not adhere to the recommendations 
of the Environmental Specialist as relates to storm water management.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-195 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider the issue with public input, not limited to what the 
Chairman chooses. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Ms. Drake-Batts said the submission has been before this body three times, with no 
participation from the public yet.  They have had three times to give their piece.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Jim McCauley of 4435 Harold, Troy, was present.  Mr. McCauley is President of the 
Shallowbrook Homeowners Association.  He said they have been before this body at 
the time of the rezoning requests, but notices were not sent out on the proposed 
development and site plan review.  Mr. McCauley provided a brief history of the 
previous rezoning requests, in which an agreement was worked out with the 
developer to provide a buffer for the single family homes in the area.  Mr. McCauley 
distributed an informational handout to the members and addressed potential 
violations/conflicts with the Zoning Ordinance, specifically Article 12.50.05 as relates 
to a required 60-foot right of way for property over 10 acres in size and Article 
12.50.08 as relates to rear perimeter setbacks.  Mr. McCauley said they are not 
against condominiums but they want an appropriate buffer zone provided between the 
medium density and single family homes, as originally negotiated.   
 
John Moran of 1110 Robertson, Troy, was present.  Mr. Moran expressed concern 
with the 8-foot retention pond, specifically the potential danger to children.  He said 
there is not a market for condominiums and he would prefer to see site condominiums 
going in there.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked for comment from the Assistant City Attorney on the 
setback concern addressed by the first speaker. 
 
Mr. Motzny replied that he discussed the setback matter with the Planning Director, 
and Mr. Miller indicated that the setback provisions are being complied with.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that a yard is measured from the structure to the property line, and 
noted that the definition of yard is in the definition section of the Zoning Ordinance.  
Mr. Miller said there is nothing in the ordinance that requires the subject property to 
be under all one zoning district.  He said the proposed setback is equal to, or 
greater than, the single family setback requirement. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts questioned why residents were not notified of the meeting.  
 
Mr. Miller replied that site plan approval does not require public notification.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she shares the concern of the 8-foot depth of the pond. 
 
Mr. Miller said there are provisions for ponds as long as certain engineering 
standards are met.  Mr. Miller said the depth of a pond is not a zoning issue but is 
regulated under the engineering development standards. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Chair Strat shared his concern with the pond’s accessibility and potential 
vulnerability.  Chair Strat said there are many areas of the site plan that could be 
improved upon. 
 
It was noted that the site plan indicates a 1:6 slope on the pond and no fence would 
be required.   
 
Mr. Khan stated that people pay premiums to purchase lots that back up to lakes 
and he has no problem with the pond. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-196 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Briggs Park Condominium, located on the north side of Lamb, east of Rochester, 
located in Section 14, on approximately 12.13 acres, within the R-1T, E-P and R-1C 
zoning districts, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road shall be concrete, 

as per City of Troy Engineering Standards. 
2. The water mains will be moved to the outside of the island area to provide for 

on-street parking within the island area.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Vleck, Wright 
No: Strat 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat voted no because none of the environmental standards requested by the 
Environmental Specialist are being implemented into the site plan.   
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

10. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 5) – Proposed Caswell Town Center 
including 14 single family homes, 74 condominium units, ±19,000 s.f. retail space 
and the existing Petruzzello’s banquet center, Southeast corner of Rochester Road 
and South Blvd., Section 2 – B-3 (General Business), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and 
R-1D (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller said that, in general, City Management views the proposed PUD as a good 
development plan and feels it would be a dramatic improvement for the area.  Mr. 
Miller said reviews by City departments and the Planning Consultant have identified 
some issues that need to be resolved.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Carlisle complimented the petitioner on a thorough PUD submission.  Mr. Carlisle 
provided findings on Caswell Town Center with respect to site location, access, traffic 
impact, PUD eligibility, and Master Plan consistency.  Mr. Carlisle said items to be 
addressed are detailed in his report and, in his opinion, are issues of detail, not policy 
differences.  He noted one of those items is the parking.   
 
Mr. Kulesza asked if gateway signage would be considered for the development. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said gateway signage would be appropriate at this location.   
 
Mr. Savidant noted the Planning Department report lists gateway signage as an item 
to be addressed.   
 
The petitioners, John Hennessey of Hennessey Engineers and Brad Byarski of 
Michigan Home Builders, were present.  They addressed gateway signage and the 
environmental features of the development.   
 
The members gave direction to the Planning Department to set a Public Hearing on 
the proposed PUD at the January meeting.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:27 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:40 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – 

Article 10.25.02 and 10.30.10, Family Child Care Homes and Group Child Care 
Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reported City Management is neutral on the issue and has not issued a 
recommendation.  Mr. Miller said City Management has the responsibility to 
consider options, recognize certain cause and effect, and insure that the Planning 
Commission makes a recommendation to City Council, who in turn will make the 
community value decision regarding Group Child Care Homes.  
 
Mr. Miller briefly discussed four items in the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment:  (1) Fencing or screening regulations; (2) Registration with the City 
Clerk’s office; (3) Compliance with Michigan Building Code; and (4) a 1,500-foot 
distance requirement from any State residential licensed facility.  He displayed a 
map that demonstrated the 1,500-foot distance requirement and noted that only 5 of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

the 20 existing group child care homes would meet the requirement.  Mr. Miller 
referenced the list of existing licensed group child care homes which are less than 
1,500 feet from a State licensed residential facility.  
 
Brief discussion followed on: 
• 1,500-foot distance requirement in relation to the City and Village Zoning Act. 
• Anticipated legislative action. 
• Michigan Building Code inspections.  
 
Chair Strat announced guidelines that would be utilized for the Public Hearing; 
specifically, a time limit of 3 minutes per speaker, no redundancy, and comments 
limited to the four points discussed by the Planning Director.  Chair Strat designated 
Mr. Savidant as the timekeeper. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed the 
proposed requirements with respect to fencing, license registration, and a 1,500-
foot distance from other State residential licensed facilities.  He concurs with City 
Management that the requirements are not necessary.  Mr. Schafer said that should 
the City determine a distance is necessary between licensed facilities, a reduction in 
the distance should be considered.  He encouraged the members to send a 
recommendation to the City Council so the matter could be resolved. 
 
An attorney was present to represent Chan Chung of 1189 Garwood, Troy.  The 
attorney addressed concerns of Mr. Chung as a neighbor of a group child care 
home facility.  A handout was distributed to the members that detailed concerns of 
noise, privacy, aesthetics, traffic, parking and safety.  Mr. Chung, a professor at 
Lawrence Tech University, teaches in the evening and is home during the day.  The 
attorney pointed out that 50% of the residents in the subdivision are Oriental and 
because of the language barrier, they might be intimidated to voice their opinions on 
the matter.   
 
Syed Mohiuddin of 6150 Country Ridge, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mohiuddin 
addressed the proposed requirements on fencing and a 1,500-foot distance 
between licensed facilities.  He noted that his subdivision does not allow fences.  
Mr. Mohiuddin supports the position of City Management.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs agrees with City 
Management that the proposed requirements should be eliminated.  Mr. Childs 
addressed State inspections, the intent of proposed language in House Bill 4398, 
traffic, and noise.  He said group child care homes are not commercializing 
neighborhoods; they look like residential homes.  Referencing a comment that some 
residents might not voice their opinions, Mr. Childs, a police officer by profession, 
said people are not afraid to make complaints.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Carol McBratnie of 1130 Larkmoor Blvd., Berkley, was present.  Ms. McBratnie 
asked for clarification on the type of fencing that would be required.  Ms. McBratnie 
addressed the 1,500-foot distance between licensed facilities and asked if a 
grandfather clause would be considered for the group child care homes currently in 
existence.   
 
Barbara Webb of 787 Marengo, Troy, was present.  Ms. Webb agrees with the 
comments of City Management.  Ms. Webb asked that the members take into 
consideration individuals who care for one or two children of a friend or relative and 
individuals who receive assistance from the State (FIA).   
 
Tony Anderanin of 3777 Root, Troy, was present.  Mr. Anderanin asked for a 
favorable recommendation to change the zoning ordinance language to allow group 
child care homes in residential areas.   
 
Nancy Regan of 120 Gordon, Troy, was present.  Ms. Regan spoke in support of 
group child care homes.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Mr. Miller clarified the difference between the Michigan Building Code requirements 
and the State licensing requirements.   
 
Mr. Wright said it appears that the State is not enforcing some of its own 
requirements; i.e., the 1,500-foot distance between licensed facilities.  Mr. Wright 
said he is not in favor of recommending any changes to City Council to the Zoning 
Ordinance to allow commercial enterprises to operate in residential zoning.  Mr. 
Wright addressed the State requirement of additional employee(s) for the operation 
of a group child care home.  He said a change like that would place the City’s home 
occupation ordinance in jeopardy.  Mr. Wright said he could hire someone to help 
him prepare tax returns in his home, or his neighbor could hire a secretary to assist 
him in his law practice in his home, and either one of those operations would 
generate less traffic and noise than a group child care home.  Mr. Wright said an 
ordinance change to allow group child care homes could have a devastating impact 
on the City’s residential zoning ordinance. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said public hearings sometimes draw only the people who are in 
support of a particular ordinance change.  Mr. Chamberlain said he feels the 
Planning Commission owes it to the residents who bought a home in a residential 
neighborhood to keep the residential character of that neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Vleck said his concern is not the traffic that is generated in the neighborhood, 
but the potential impact that a group child care home has on the direct neighboring 
properties.  Mr. Vleck said his goals are to get a recommendation to City Council 
and to provide City Council with as much information as possible on the research 
undertaken by the Planning Commission.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-12-197 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan as provided by Public Act 207 of 1921 and 
Public Act 285 of 1931 and subsequent changes thereto provides for city planning 
and authorizes Planning Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to approve matters coming before it and to make 
recommendations to City Council, where the Council holds the approval power for 
themselves. 
 
THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission does not 
recommend to the City Council the changing of Articles IV and X, pertaining to 
Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts, for the following 
reasons: 
 
WHEREAS, It has been demonstrated by public input, letters and photos that family 
and group day care homes do have a negative impact on the neighboring property 
owners.  
 
WHEREAS, According to City of Troy Assistant Attorney, Allan Motzny, and City of 
Troy Director of Building & Zoning, Mark Stimac, any building or structure or portion 
thereof that is used for the education, supervision or personal care services for 
more than five (5) children older than 2-1/2 years of age would be classified as a 
Group E occupancy.  This has significant implications on the ability of the structure 
to comply with building code requirements such as automatic sprinklers in 
basements, Michigan barrier-free design and the Federal Americans with 
Disabilities Act.   
 
WHEREAS, There is nothing within the child care licensing law that exempts these 
facilities from the Michigan Building Code provisions. 
 
WHEREAS, The current ordinance allows for family day care homes but limits 
enrollment thus permitting a needed service while minimizing the intrusion and 
negative impact on neighboring properties. 
 
BE IT ALSO ADVISED TO CITY COUNCIL, That if the current zoning is revised, 
the Planning Commission makes the following recommendations: 
 
10.25.02 Family Day Care Homes, as defined in Section 04.20.60, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

A. The number of children so cared for who are not a part of the family residing 
in the subject dwelling unit shall not exceed six (6). 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

B. The conditions applicable to Home Occupations, as defined in Section 
04.20.71 and as listed in Section 10.25.01 shall not apply to Family Day 
Care Homes. 

C. The resident-operator of the Family Day Care Home shall be licensed in 
accordance with applicable State Law. 

D. To maximize the safety and the privacy for the neighboring properties, there 
shall be no dropping off of children between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
6:00 a.m. 

E. To maximize the safety and the privacy for the neighboring properties, if the 
outdoor play area is located on the premises, the play area shall be fenced 
or screened with a 6-foot high privacy fence. 

F. No structural changes or exterior alterations shall be made which would alter 
the residential character of the dwelling except as required by the State of 
Michigan licensing rules. 

G. No sign shall be used on the premises to identify the Family Day Care 
Home. 

H. Family Day Care Homes with vehicular access on a major or secondary 
thoroughfare shall be required to have a circular drive or an unobstructed 
turnaround to allow for the safe egress of vehicles. 

 
10.30.10 Group Day Care Homes, as defined in Section 04.20.69, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

A. To maximize the safety and the privacy and to minimize noise for the 
neighboring properties, Group Day Care Homes shall be allowed on 
properties greater than one-half acre in size and having a minimum side 
yard setback of 20 feet. 

B. The number of children so cared for who are not a part of the family residing 
in the subject dwelling unit shall not exceed twelve (12). 

C. The resident-operator of the Group Day Care Home shall be licensed in 
accordance with applicable State Law.   

D. To maximize the safety and the privacy for the neighboring properties, there 
shall be no dropping off of children between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
6:00 a.m. 

E. No structural changes or exterior alterations shall be made which would alter 
the residential character of the dwelling except as required by the State of 
Michigan licensing rules. 

F. No sign shall be used on the premises to identify the Group Day Care 
Home. 

G. The conditions applicable to Home Occupations, as defined in Section 
04.20.71 and as listed in Section 10.25.01, shall not apply to Group Day 
Care Homes. 

H. Group Day Care Homes with vehicular access on a major thoroughfare shall 
be required to have a circular drive or an unobstructed turnaround area to 
allow for the safe egress of vehicles. 

I. The Planning Director may waive any required site plan information provided 
it can be determined that the application meets the Group Day Care Home 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

requirements of Section 10.30.10 and the general Special Use Approval 
standards of Section 03.31.05. 

J. To maximize the safety and the privacy for the neighboring properties, if the 
outdoor play area is located on the premises, the play area shall be fenced 
or screened with a 6-foot high privacy fence. 

K. The licensee shall register with the City upon commencing operation and 
on an annual basis each January thereafter, and the licensed premises 
shall be subject to a fire and building department inspection and shall 
provide a smoke detector in all daytime sleeping areas and otherwise 
comply with applicable building and fire codes. 

L. The applicant shall identify the entrance(s) for drop-offs and pickups.  The 
parking and drop-off areas shall be designed to maximize safety and privacy 
for the neighboring properties.   

M. To prevent the commercialization of residential districts, Group Day Care 
Homes shall be not be located within 1,000 feet of another state licensed 
residential facility. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Miller questioned if the condition to require a circular drive or unobstructed 
turnaround area could be placed on Family Child Care Homes that have vehicular 
access on a major or secondary thoroughfare. 
 
Mr. Motzny, upon further review, said he believed it is a valid condition should the 
Planning Commission reason that it is a public health, safety and welfare concern.   
 
At the request of Ms. Drake-Batts, Mr. Vleck provided a brief overview of the motion. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed requirements with respect to the one-half acre 
lot size and the 1,500-foot distance between licensed facilities would make the 
existence of Group Child Care Homes almost impossible.  She said, however, that 
the Commission owes it to the residents to get the matter up to City Council for a 
final decision.  Ms. Drake-Batts said she would vote in favor of the motion even 
though she does not agree with a lot of the proposed conditions.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Littman 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman agreed that a recommendation should go to the City Council.  Mr. 
Littman said Group Child Care Homes should be provided for, and the basic part of 
the Resolution is a recommendation against them.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 221) – 
Articles 02.50.01, 02.50.02, 02.50.03 and 02.50.04  Municipal Civil Infractions 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to municipal civil infractions.   
 
Mr. Motzny reviewed the reasons that the City Attorney’s Office recommends 
approval of the ZOTA.   
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-198 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article II, pertaining to Municipal Civil Infractions, be amended as printed 
on the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 5) – Refer to page 7. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. REQUEST TO REVISE HISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARIES  - 2356 E. LONG LAKE 
– Preliminary and Final Reports by Historic District Study Committee concerning the 
2356 E. Long Lake 
 
Mr. Miller said it was determined that the subject property was placed in historic 
district boundaries in error, and the property owner has requested elimination of the 
historic district classification.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-12-199 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission has no opposition to eliminating the 
Historic District classification for 2356 East Long Lake Road, as recommended in 
the Preliminary and Final Reports of the Historic Study Committee. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items on the Agenda 
 
Dave Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present to address group child care 
homes.  Mr. Schafer said he was disappointed.  He said the members’ discussion 
tonight after the Public Hearing should have happened last week, but didn’t 
because of a lack of quorum.  Mr. Schafer said it is unfair that they have not had an 
opportunity to comment on the new thoughts that were introduced in the motion.  
Mr. Schafer said this council has bamboozled them once again, and he thinks it is a 
travesty. 
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present to address group child care 
homes.  Ms. Schafer said it is a bittersweet night for her and others who depend on 
day care in the City.  She is happy that the matter is going to City Council, but 
disappointed with the Planning Commission’s recommendation and extra 
stipulations that were never mentioned to them before.  Ms. Schafer referenced an 
earlier discussion with respect to Troy’s changing industrial area, and said the need 
for child care has changed also for Troy families.  Ms. Schafer said the majority of 
people are in favor of group child care homes, and the City is making a decision 
based on 3 or 4 people who are not in support of them.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present to address group child care 
homes.  Mr. Childs said he is glad the matter is going to City Council, but he is 
disappointed in the language.  He said to say that group child care homes have a 
negative impact on residential neighborhoods is wrong based on the positive 
response received from the public.   
 
Carol McBratnie of 1130 Larkmoor Blvd., Berkley, was present to address group 
child care homes.  Ms. McBratnie said the requirement to put up privacy fences 
appears to be overkill.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Kulesza addressed the status of the amendments to the By-laws.   
 
Chair Strat said they would address that matter at the next Study session. 
 
Mr. Miller asked that the Planning Department be kept in the loop with the most recent 
proposed changes to the By-laws. 
 
There was discussion on whether to hold a January 3, 2006 Special/Study meeting. 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-12-200 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission not meet on January 3, 2006.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Ms. Drake-Batts reiterated her position on the group child care home matter.  Ms. Drake-
Batts concurs with the recommendation of City Management.  She said the members 
owed it to the child care providers to get the matter to City Council for a final decision.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed group child care homes.  Mr. Vleck intended to discuss the new 
stipulations placed in the recommendation to City Council at the previous Study meeting, 
but could not because of lack of a quorum.  His intent this evening was to get the matter to 
City Council with as much information from the Commission as possible.  Mr. Vleck said 
his concern with group child care homes in residential areas is the impact they have on 
direct neighboring properties.  He said, after talking to many people, it is his opinion that 
group child care homes are not always the rosy scenario that they have been painted out 
to be.   
 
Mr. Khan said the City is not eliminating child care homes in Troy.  He said family child 
care homes are allowed in the City, and anyone operating a group child care home could 
operate a family child care home should City Council decide not to allow group child care 
homes. 
 
Mr. Miller provided status reports on Troy Futures and the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  
 
Chair Strat said he is glad the group child care home matter is on its way to City Council 
for a decision.   
 
Mr. Motzny wished everyone a happy holiday. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain announced that tonight is his last meeting.  He said it has been a 
pleasure to serve this Board.  
 
Messrs. Strat, Vleck, Miller, Motzny, Khan, Wright, Littman and Kulesza thanked Mr. 
Chamberlain for his many years of service to the City.  Mr. Chamberlain’s experience, 
knowledge and insight are only a few of his attributes that would be missed.  
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\12-13-05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:35 p.m. on December 13, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Robert Schultz 
Lynn Drake-Batts David T. Waller 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative (arrived 8:35 p.m.) 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-190 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Schultz and Waller are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-191 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, To move Agenda item #10 before Agenda Item #8. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Township, was present.  Mr. Wilson, 
chairman of the Economic Development Committee for the Troy Chamber of 
Commerce, provided a status report of the Maple Road Corridor Study sub-
committee.   
 
 

4. PLANNING COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Wright provided a brief report on the November 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) meeting.   
 
Chair Strat announced that this would be a new Agenda item, on a trial basis, to 
provide an opportunity for members to speak on items of interest.   
 
 

5. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
Mr. Motzny submitted a written response to specific questions that were set forth in a 
November 20, 2005 communication from the Chair and Vice Chair.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that the By-laws codify authority to the Planning 
Commission to prepare the agenda.   
 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00  Arts 
and Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning 
District 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to commercial indoor recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District.   
 
Discussion followed on the following: 
• Negative affects of large performance theaters; i.e., parking, intense land use, 

design.  
• Current vacancy rate. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

• Tax base. 
• Existing zoning district that allows large performance theaters [B-2 and B-3]. 
• Future of industrial area. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said large performance theaters are a consumer-oriented type of use 
that would produce more traffic mixed with the industrial style traffic.  Mr. Carlisle 
recommended that the members refine and create specific requirements in the 
Zoning Ordinance with respect to large performance theaters.   
 
Tennis bubbles, art studio/galleries, and motion picture theaters were discussed 
with respect to the definitions of performance studio and performance theater. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-192 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, That the definitions for performance studio and performance theater 
provided by City Management are acceptable to the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-  (motion withdrawn) 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Paragraph 04.20.73, Indoor Commercial Recreation Facility, include 
both performance studios and performance theaters as well as all the other uses that 
are proposed in the text in front of us tonight.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked that the motion be amended to include the word “may” before 
“include both performance studios and performance theaters” so the activities are 
not limited and also to include the term “art studios”.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain, with agreement from Mr. Vleck, withdrew the motion on the floor, 
and restated it as follows.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-193 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

RESOLVED, The City of Troy has a problem in its industrial zone of a multitude of 
vacancies and the tax base is being eroded; therefore the Planning Commission 
hereby recommends to the City Council that Paragraph 04.20.73, Indoor 
Commercial Recreation Facility, include performance studios, performance theaters 
and art studios, and that other facilities may be included in this paragraph as well as 
the facilities named in that paragraph in the language in front of us tonight.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 921) – Proposed Briggs Park Condominium, North side of 
Lamb, East side of Rochester Road, Section 14 – R-1T, R-1C and E-P 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Briggs Park Condominium, and reported that it is the recommendation of 
the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted with the condition 
that the 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road is concrete, as 
opposed to asphalt as shown on the site plan.   
 
Mr. Savidant provided clarification on the setbacks.   
 
The petitioner, Brad Byarski of Michigan Homes Builders, 13400 Canal, Sterling 
Heights, was present.  Mr. Byarski provided a brief history of the site and addressed 
a previous submission of which the Planning Commission had concerns relating to 
density, sidewalks, guest parking, and an easement variance.  Mr. Byarski reviewed 
the new site plan and presented drawings and elevations of the proposed 
development.  He agreed to change the sidewalk on the east side of Rochester 
Road from asphalt to concrete.   
 
[Mr. Kulesza arrived at 8:35 p.m.] 
 
Discussion followed with respect to guest parking, on-street parking, snow removal, 
and storm water management.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-194 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Briggs Park Condominium, located on the north side of Lamb, east of Rochester, 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

located in Section 14, on approximately 12.13 acres, within the R-1T, E-P and R-1C 
zoning districts, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road shall be concrete, 

as per City of Troy Engineering Standards. 
2. That on-street parking is provided opposite the fire hydrants especially in the 

area on the north side of the island. 
3. Provide bioswales. 
 
Discussion. 
 
Members of the audience asked to speak.  Chair Strat said public comment on a 
site plan review is at the discretion of the Chair, and the floor would not be opened 
at this time.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman 
No: Strat, Wright 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Vleck abstained because he thought the public should have an opportunity to 
speak on the matter.   
 
Mr. Wright indicated his no vote was for the same reason.   
 
Chair Strat voted no because the petitioner did not adhere to the recommendations 
of the Environmental Specialist as relates to storm water management.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-195 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider the issue with public input, not limited to what the 
Chairman chooses. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Ms. Drake-Batts said the submission has been before this body three times, with no 
participation from the public yet.  They have had three times to give their piece.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Jim McCauley of 4435 Harold, Troy, was present.  Mr. McCauley is President of the 
Shallowbrook Homeowners Association.  He said they have been before this body at 
the time of the rezoning requests, but notices were not sent out on the proposed 
development and site plan review.  Mr. McCauley provided a brief history of the 
previous rezoning requests, in which an agreement was worked out with the 
developer to provide a buffer for the single family homes in the area.  Mr. McCauley 
distributed an informational handout to the members and addressed potential 
violations/conflicts with the Zoning Ordinance, specifically Article 12.50.05 as relates 
to a required 60-foot right of way for property over 10 acres in size and Article 
12.50.08 as relates to rear perimeter setbacks.  Mr. McCauley said they are not 
against condominiums but they want an appropriate buffer zone provided between the 
medium density and single family homes, as originally negotiated.   
 
John Moran of 1110 Robertson, Troy, was present.  Mr. Moran expressed concern 
with the 8-foot retention pond, specifically the potential danger to children.  He said 
there is not a market for condominiums and he would prefer to see site condominiums 
going in there.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked for comment from the Assistant City Attorney on the 
setback concern addressed by the first speaker. 
 
Mr. Motzny replied that he discussed the setback matter with the Planning Director, 
and Mr. Miller indicated that the setback provisions are being complied with.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that a yard is measured from the structure to the property line, and 
noted that the definition of yard is in the definition section of the Zoning Ordinance.  
Mr. Miller said there is nothing in the ordinance that requires the subject property to 
be under all one zoning district.  He said the proposed setback is equal to, or 
greater than, the single family setback requirement. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts questioned why residents were not notified of the meeting.  
 
Mr. Miller replied that site plan approval does not require public notification.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she shares the concern of the 8-foot depth of the pond. 
 
Mr. Miller said there are provisions for ponds as long as certain engineering 
standards are met.  Mr. Miller said the depth of a pond is not a zoning issue but is 
regulated under the engineering development standards. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Chair Strat shared his concern with the pond’s accessibility and potential 
vulnerability.  Chair Strat said there are many areas of the site plan that could be 
improved upon. 
 
It was noted that the site plan indicates a 1:6 slope on the pond and no fence would 
be required.   
 
Mr. Khan stated that people pay premiums to purchase lots that back up to lakes 
and he has no problem with the pond. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-196 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Briggs Park Condominium, located on the north side of Lamb, east of Rochester, 
located in Section 14, on approximately 12.13 acres, within the R-1T, E-P and R-1C 
zoning districts, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road shall be concrete, 

as per City of Troy Engineering Standards. 
2. The water mains will be moved to the outside of the island area to provide for 

on-street parking within the island area.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Vleck, Wright 
No: Strat 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat voted no because none of the environmental standards requested by the 
Environmental Specialist are being implemented into the site plan.   
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

10. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 5) – Proposed Caswell Town Center 
including 14 single family homes, 74 condominium units, ±19,000 s.f. retail space 
and the existing Petruzzello’s banquet center, Southeast corner of Rochester Road 
and South Blvd., Section 2 – B-3 (General Business), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and 
R-1D (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller said that, in general, City Management views the proposed PUD as a good 
development plan and feels it would be a dramatic improvement for the area.  Mr. 
Miller said reviews by City departments and the Planning Consultant have identified 
some issues that need to be resolved.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Carlisle complimented the petitioner on a thorough PUD submission.  Mr. Carlisle 
provided findings on Caswell Town Center with respect to site location, access, traffic 
impact, PUD eligibility, and Master Plan consistency.  Mr. Carlisle said items to be 
addressed are detailed in his report and, in his opinion, are issues of detail, not policy 
differences.  He noted one of those items is the parking.   
 
Mr. Kulesza asked if gateway signage would be considered for the development. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said gateway signage would be appropriate at this location.   
 
Mr. Savidant noted the Planning Department report lists gateway signage as an item 
to be addressed.   
 
The petitioners, John Hennessey of Hennessey Engineers and Brad Byarski of 
Michigan Home Builders, were present.  They addressed gateway signage and the 
environmental features of the development.   
 
The members gave direction to the Planning Department to set a Public Hearing on 
the proposed PUD at the January meeting.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:27 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:40 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – 

Article 10.25.02 and 10.30.10, Family Child Care Homes and Group Child Care 
Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reported City Management is neutral on the issue and has not issued a 
recommendation.  Mr. Miller said City Management has the responsibility to 
consider options, recognize certain cause and effect, and insure that the Planning 
Commission makes a recommendation to City Council, who in turn will make the 
community value decision regarding Group Child Care Homes.  
 
Mr. Miller briefly discussed four items in the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment:  (1) Fencing or screening regulations; (2) Registration with the City 
Clerk’s office; (3) Compliance with Michigan Building Code; and (4) a 1,500-foot 
distance requirement from any State residential licensed facility.  He displayed a 
map that demonstrated the 1,500-foot distance requirement and noted that only 5 of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

the 20 existing group child care homes would meet the requirement.  Mr. Miller 
referenced the list of existing licensed group child care homes which are less than 
1,500 feet from a State licensed residential facility.  
 
Brief discussion followed on: 
• 1,500-foot distance requirement in relation to the City and Village Zoning Act. 
• Anticipated legislative action. 
• Michigan Building Code inspections.  
 
Chair Strat announced guidelines that would be utilized for the Public Hearing; 
specifically, a time limit of 3 minutes per speaker, no redundancy, and comments 
limited to the four points discussed by the Planning Director.  Chair Strat designated 
Mr. Savidant as the timekeeper. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed the 
proposed requirements with respect to fencing, license registration, and a 1,500-
foot distance from other State residential licensed facilities.  He concurs with City 
Management that the requirements are not necessary.  Mr. Schafer said that should 
the City determine a distance is necessary between licensed facilities, a reduction in 
the distance should be considered.  He encouraged the members to send a 
recommendation to the City Council so the matter could be resolved. 
 
An attorney was present to represent Chan Chung of 1189 Garwood, Troy.  The 
attorney addressed concerns of Mr. Chung as a neighbor of a group child care 
home facility.  A handout was distributed to the members that detailed concerns of 
noise, privacy, aesthetics, traffic, parking and safety.  Mr. Chung, a professor at 
Lawrence Tech University, teaches in the evening and is home during the day.  The 
attorney pointed out that 50% of the residents in the subdivision are Oriental and 
because of the language barrier, they might be intimidated to voice their opinions on 
the matter.   
 
Syed Mohiuddin of 6150 Country Ridge, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mohiuddin 
addressed the proposed requirements on fencing and a 1,500-foot distance 
between licensed facilities.  He noted that his subdivision does not allow fences.  
Mr. Mohiuddin supports the position of City Management.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs agrees with City 
Management that the proposed requirements should be eliminated.  Mr. Childs 
addressed State inspections, the intent of proposed language in House Bill 4398, 
traffic, and noise.  He said group child care homes are not commercializing 
neighborhoods; they look like residential homes.  Referencing a comment that some 
residents might not voice their opinions, Mr. Childs, a police officer by profession, 
said people are not afraid to make complaints.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Carol McBratnie of 1130 Larkmoor Blvd., Berkley, was present.  Ms. McBratnie 
asked for clarification on the type of fencing that would be required.  Ms. McBratnie 
addressed the 1,500-foot distance between licensed facilities and asked if a 
grandfather clause would be considered for the group child care homes currently in 
existence.   
 
Barbara Webb of 787 Marengo, Troy, was present.  Ms. Webb agrees with the 
comments of City Management.  Ms. Webb asked that the members take into 
consideration individuals who care for one or two children of a friend or relative and 
individuals who receive assistance from the State (FIA).   
 
Tony Anderanin of 3777 Root, Troy, was present.  Mr. Anderanin asked for a 
favorable recommendation to change the zoning ordinance language to allow group 
child care homes in residential areas.   
 
Nancy Regan of 120 Gordon, Troy, was present.  Ms. Regan spoke in support of 
group child care homes.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Mr. Miller clarified the difference between the Michigan Building Code requirements 
and the State licensing requirements.   
 
Mr. Wright said it appears that the State is not enforcing some of its own 
requirements; i.e., the 1,500-foot distance between licensed facilities.  Mr. Wright 
said he is not in favor of recommending any changes to City Council to the Zoning 
Ordinance to allow commercial enterprises to operate in residential zoning.  Mr. 
Wright addressed the State requirement of additional employee(s) for the operation 
of a group child care home.  He said a change like that would place the City’s home 
occupation ordinance in jeopardy.  Mr. Wright said he could hire someone to help 
him prepare tax returns in his home, or his neighbor could hire a secretary to assist 
him in his law practice in his home, and either one of those operations would 
generate less traffic and noise than a group child care home.  Mr. Wright said an 
ordinance change to allow group child care homes could have a devastating impact 
on the City’s residential zoning ordinance. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said public hearings sometimes draw only the people who are in 
support of a particular ordinance change.  Mr. Chamberlain said he feels the 
Planning Commission owes it to the residents who bought a home in a residential 
neighborhood to keep the residential character of that neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Vleck said his concern is not the traffic that is generated in the neighborhood, 
but the potential impact that a group child care home has on the direct neighboring 
properties.  Mr. Vleck said his goals are to get a recommendation to City Council 
and to provide City Council with as much information as possible on the research 
undertaken by the Planning Commission.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-12-197 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan as provided by Public Act 207 of 1921 and 
Public Act 285 of 1931 and subsequent changes thereto provides for city planning 
and authorizes Planning Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to approve matters coming before it and to make 
recommendations to City Council, where the Council holds the approval power for 
themselves. 
 
THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission does not 
recommend to the City Council the changing of Articles IV and X, pertaining to 
Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts, for the following 
reasons: 
 
WHEREAS, It has been demonstrated by public input, letters and photos that family 
and group day care homes do have a negative impact on the neighboring property 
owners.  
 
WHEREAS, According to City of Troy Assistant Attorney, Allan Motzny, and City of 
Troy Director of Building & Zoning, Mark Stimac, any building or structure or portion 
thereof that is used for the education, supervision or personal care services for 
more than five (5) children older than 2-1/2 years of age would be classified as a 
Group E occupancy.  This has significant implications on the ability of the structure 
to comply with building code requirements such as automatic sprinklers in 
basements, Michigan barrier-free design and the Federal Americans with 
Disabilities Act.   
 
WHEREAS, There is nothing within the child care licensing law that exempts these 
facilities from the Michigan Building Code provisions. 
 
WHEREAS, The current ordinance allows for family day care homes but limits 
enrollment thus permitting a needed service while minimizing the intrusion and 
negative impact on neighboring properties. 
 
BE IT ALSO ADVISED TO CITY COUNCIL, That if the current zoning is revised, 
the Planning Commission makes the following recommendations: 
 
10.25.02 Family Day Care Homes, as defined in Section 04.20.60, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

A. The number of children so cared for who are not a part of the family residing 
in the subject dwelling unit shall not exceed six (6). 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

B. The conditions applicable to Home Occupations, as defined in Section 
04.20.71 and as listed in Section 10.25.01 shall not apply to Family Day 
Care Homes. 

C. The resident-operator of the Family Day Care Home shall be licensed in 
accordance with applicable State Law. 

D. To maximize the safety and the privacy for the neighboring properties, there 
shall be no dropping off of children between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
6:00 a.m. 

E. To maximize the safety and the privacy for the neighboring properties, if the 
outdoor play area is located on the premises, the play area shall be fenced 
or screened with a 6-foot high privacy fence. 

F. No structural changes or exterior alterations shall be made which would alter 
the residential character of the dwelling except as required by the State of 
Michigan licensing rules. 

G. No sign shall be used on the premises to identify the Family Day Care 
Home. 

H. Family Day Care Homes with vehicular access on a major or secondary 
thoroughfare shall be required to have a circular drive or an unobstructed 
turnaround to allow for the safe egress of vehicles. 

 
10.30.10 Group Day Care Homes, as defined in Section 04.20.69, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

A. To maximize the safety and the privacy and to minimize noise for the 
neighboring properties, Group Day Care Homes shall be allowed on 
properties greater than one-half acre in size and having a minimum side 
yard setback of 20 feet. 

B. The number of children so cared for who are not a part of the family residing 
in the subject dwelling unit shall not exceed twelve (12). 

C. The resident-operator of the Group Day Care Home shall be licensed in 
accordance with applicable State Law.   

D. To maximize the safety and the privacy for the neighboring properties, there 
shall be no dropping off of children between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
6:00 a.m. 

E. No structural changes or exterior alterations shall be made which would alter 
the residential character of the dwelling except as required by the State of 
Michigan licensing rules. 

F. No sign shall be used on the premises to identify the Group Day Care 
Home. 

G. The conditions applicable to Home Occupations, as defined in Section 
04.20.71 and as listed in Section 10.25.01, shall not apply to Group Day 
Care Homes. 

H. Group Day Care Homes with vehicular access on a major thoroughfare shall 
be required to have a circular drive or an unobstructed turnaround area to 
allow for the safe egress of vehicles. 

I. The Planning Director may waive any required site plan information provided 
it can be determined that the application meets the Group Day Care Home 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

requirements of Section 10.30.10 and the general Special Use Approval 
standards of Section 03.31.05. 

J. To maximize the safety and the privacy for the neighboring properties, if the 
outdoor play area is located on the premises, the play area shall be fenced 
or screened with a 6-foot high privacy fence. 

K. The licensee shall register with the City upon commencing operation and 
on an annual basis each January thereafter, and the licensed premises 
shall be subject to a fire and building department inspection and shall 
provide a smoke detector in all daytime sleeping areas and otherwise 
comply with applicable building and fire codes. 

L. The applicant shall identify the entrance(s) for drop-offs and pickups.  The 
parking and drop-off areas shall be designed to maximize safety and privacy 
for the neighboring properties.   

M. To prevent the commercialization of residential districts, Group Day Care 
Homes shall be not be located within 1,000 feet of another state licensed 
residential facility. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Miller questioned if the condition to require a circular drive or unobstructed 
turnaround area could be placed on Family Child Care Homes that have vehicular 
access on a major or secondary thoroughfare. 
 
Mr. Motzny, upon further review, said he believed it is a valid condition should the 
Planning Commission reason that it is a public health, safety and welfare concern.   
 
At the request of Ms. Drake-Batts, Mr. Vleck provided a brief overview of the motion. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed requirements with respect to the one-half acre 
lot size and the 1,500-foot distance between licensed facilities would make the 
existence of Group Child Care Homes almost impossible.  She said, however, that 
the Commission owes it to the residents to get the matter up to City Council for a 
final decision.  Ms. Drake-Batts said she would vote in favor of the motion even 
though she does not agree with a lot of the proposed conditions.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Littman 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman agreed that a recommendation should go to the City Council.  Mr. 
Littman said Group Child Care Homes should be provided for, and the basic part of 
the Resolution is a recommendation against them.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 221) – 
Articles 02.50.01, 02.50.02, 02.50.03 and 02.50.04  Municipal Civil Infractions 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to municipal civil infractions.   
 
Mr. Motzny reviewed the reasons that the City Attorney’s Office recommends 
approval of the ZOTA.   
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-198 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article II, pertaining to Municipal Civil Infractions, be amended as printed 
on the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 5) – Refer to page 7. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. REQUEST TO REVISE HISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARIES  - 2356 E. LONG LAKE 
– Preliminary and Final Reports by Historic District Study Committee concerning the 
2356 E. Long Lake 
 
Mr. Miller said it was determined that the subject property was placed in historic 
district boundaries in error, and the property owner has requested elimination of the 
historic district classification.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-12-199 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission has no opposition to eliminating the 
Historic District classification for 2356 East Long Lake Road, as recommended in 
the Preliminary and Final Reports of the Historic Study Committee. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items on the Agenda 
 
Dave Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present to address group child care 
homes.  Mr. Schafer said he was disappointed.  He said the members’ discussion 
tonight after the Public Hearing should have happened last week, but didn’t 
because of a lack of quorum.  Mr. Schafer said it is unfair that they have not had an 
opportunity to comment on the new thoughts that were introduced in the motion.  
Mr. Schafer said this council has bamboozled them once again, and he thinks it is a 
travesty. 
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present to address group child care 
homes.  Ms. Schafer said it is a bittersweet night for her and others who depend on 
day care in the City.  She is happy that the matter is going to City Council, but 
disappointed with the Planning Commission’s recommendation and extra 
stipulations that were never mentioned to them before.  Ms. Schafer referenced an 
earlier discussion with respect to Troy’s changing industrial area, and said the need 
for child care has changed also for Troy families.  Ms. Schafer said the majority of 
people are in favor of group child care homes, and the City is making a decision 
based on 3 or 4 people who are not in support of them.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present to address group child care 
homes.  Mr. Childs said he is glad the matter is going to City Council, but he is 
disappointed in the language.  He said to say that group child care homes have a 
negative impact on residential neighborhoods is wrong based on the positive 
response received from the public.   
 
Carol McBratnie of 1130 Larkmoor Blvd., Berkley, was present to address group 
child care homes.  Ms. McBratnie said the requirement to put up privacy fences 
appears to be overkill.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Kulesza addressed the status of the amendments to the By-laws.   
 
Chair Strat said they would address that matter at the next Study session. 
 
Mr. Miller asked that the Planning Department be kept in the loop with the most recent 
proposed changes to the By-laws. 
 
There was discussion on whether to hold a January 3, 2006 Special/Study meeting. 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-12-200 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission not meet on January 3, 2006.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Ms. Drake-Batts reiterated her position on the group child care home matter.  Ms. Drake-
Batts concurs with the recommendation of City Management.  She said the members 
owed it to the child care providers to get the matter to City Council for a final decision.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed group child care homes.  Mr. Vleck intended to discuss the new 
stipulations placed in the recommendation to City Council at the previous Study meeting, 
but could not because of lack of a quorum.  His intent this evening was to get the matter to 
City Council with as much information from the Commission as possible.  Mr. Vleck said 
his concern with group child care homes in residential areas is the impact they have on 
direct neighboring properties.  He said, after talking to many people, it is his opinion that 
group child care homes are not always the rosy scenario that they have been painted out 
to be.   
 
Mr. Khan said the City is not eliminating child care homes in Troy.  He said family child 
care homes are allowed in the City, and anyone operating a group child care home could 
operate a family child care home should City Council decide not to allow group child care 
homes. 
 
Mr. Miller provided status reports on Troy Futures and the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  
 
Chair Strat said he is glad the group child care home matter is on its way to City Council 
for a decision.   
 
Mr. Motzny wished everyone a happy holiday. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain announced that tonight is his last meeting.  He said it has been a 
pleasure to serve this Board.  
 
Messrs. Strat, Vleck, Miller, Motzny, Khan, Wright, Littman and Kulesza thanked Mr. 
Chamberlain for his many years of service to the City.  Mr. Chamberlain’s experience, 
knowledge and insight are only a few of his attributes that would be missed.  
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\12-13-05 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final December 14, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, December 14, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  (Departed @ 3:00pm) 
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise E. Schilling 
 John Szerlag  
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 12 - 046 
Moved by Calice   
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the November 9, 2005 and November 17, 2005 meetings 
be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREMENT REQUESTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 12 - 047 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the board approve the following retirement requests: 
David W. Black, DB, 1/21/06, 35 years 1 month  
Martin Eccles, DC, 1/19/06, 33 years 1 month 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final December 14, 2005 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – FORD & EARL PROPERTY UPDATE 
 
The Board reviewed a video tape of the November 28, 2005 City Council meeting in which 
resident Victor Lenivov addressed the City Council with concerns and allegations on the 
sale of the Ford & Earl property, a video tape of the December 5, 2005 City Council 
meeting was also shown where Chairman Thomas Houghton refuted the statements made 
by Victor Lenivov.  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That a written apology is requested of Victor Lenivov to the Employees 
Retirement Board for the statement made at the November 21, 2005 City Council meeting 
regarding the sale of the Ford & Earl property by the board. 
 
 
 
VOTE ON RESOLUTION TO AMEND 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 12 - 048  
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the request for a written apology be amended to also require a public 
apology be made at a City Council meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
VOTE ON ORIGINAL RESOLUTION AS AMENDED 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 12 - 049 
Moved by Pallotta  
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That a written apology is requested of Victor Lenivov to the Employees 
Retirement Board for statements made at the November 28, 2005 City Council meeting 
regarding the sale of the Ford & Earl property and that a public apology also be made at a 
City Council meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final December 14, 2005 
 
 

 3

OTHER BUSINESS – OPTION WRITING AUTHORITY 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 12 - 050 
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That if an option position has not been established by December 21, 2006, 
the authorization for that position will expire. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREE NEWSLETTER 
 
The board reviewed the final draft of the retiree newsletter and will forward a copy to all 
retirees in January.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS – ELECTION UPDATE 
 
Michael Geise was the only candidate meeting the filing deadline of Wednesday, 
December 7, 2005 at noon.  Due to receiving only one candidate for the position of 
Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees with a term beginning on January 1, 
2006 and ending December 31, 2008, there will not be an election. 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 12 - 051  
Moved by Houghton 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board sell and purchase the following securities:   
 
Sell:   Mindspeed Technologies; Neenha Paper; PHH Corporation and Progressive 

Corporation 
 
Purchase:   $1,000,000 Prudential Financial Notes, 5.95% due 12/10/10 and $1,000,000 

John Hancock Notes, 6.00% due 12/15/05  
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Calice 
 
VISITORS 
 
Five visitors in attendance addressed the board relative to the Ford & Earl property sale. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final December 14, 2005 
 
 

 4

 
The next meeting is January 11, 2006 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:10 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\12-14-05 Minutes_Final.doc 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, December 20, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Wayne Wright (arrived at 7:35 P.M.) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs and Mr. Maxwell from this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS AND MR. MAXWELL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 15, 2005 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 15, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Gies, Hutson, Courtney, Fejes 
Absent: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH #5 
 
RESOLVED, that Items #4 and  #5 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEMS #4 AND #5 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  COMMUNITY BOWLING CENTERS, 1950 E. 
SQUARE LAKE, for renewal of relief to maintain a 6’ high earth berm in lieu of the 6’ 
high masonry-screening wall required at the west property line, which abuts residential 
zoning. 
 
MOVED, to grant Community Bowling Centers, 1950 E. Square Lake, a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief to maintain a 6’ high earth berm in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall required at the west property line which abuts residential zoning. 
 

• The adjacent property is used for a purpose other than a single-family residence. 
• We have no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ST. LUCY CROATIAN CATHOLIC CHURCH, 
200 E. WATTLES, for renewal of relief of the required 4’-6” high masonry screening wall 
along the east and west sides of off-street parking where this property abuts residential 
zoned property. 
 
MOVED, to grant St. Lucy Croatian Catholic Church, 200 E. Wattles, a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief to maintain a 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall along the east and 
west sides of their off-street parking. 
 

• The adjacent property is used for a purpose other than a single-family residence. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  TROY CHRISTIAN CHAPEL, 400 E. LONG 
LAKE, for renewal of relief to maintain a fence and landscaped berm in lieu of the 
required 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall along a portion of the south and west 
property lines that abut residential zoning. 
 
Petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by this Board, since 1986, for 
relief to maintain a fence and landscaped berm in lieu of the required 4’-6” high 
masonry-screening wall along a portion of the south and west property lines that abut 
residential zoning.  This relief was originally granted based on the fact that the abutting 
neighbors requested the berm and fence in lieu of the required masonry wall.  This item 
last appeared before this Board at the meeting of December 2002 and was granted a 
three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no 
complaints or objections on file. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Troy Christian Chapel, 400 E. Long Lake, for 
renewal of relief to maintain a fence and landscaped berm in lieu of the required 4’-6” 
high masonry-screening wall along a portion of the south and west property lines that 
abut residential zoning until the meeting of January 17, 2006. 
 

• To allow the Building Department the opportunity to publish a Public Hearing to 
consider the possibility of making this a permanent variance. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JANUARY 17, 
2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  JLJ INVESTMENTS, LLC, 4048-4060 
ROCHESTER ROAD, for an interpretation, per Section 43.75.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, that a facility that provides for the sales, rental, and service of musical 
instruments along with music lessons is a permitted use in the B-1 (Local Business) 
Zoning District. 
 
The Building Department is in receipt of a letter from the Petitioner asking that this item 
be withdrawn. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of JLJ Investments, LLC, 4048-4060 
Rochester Road for an interpretation per Section 43.75.00 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL REQUEST APPROVED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LAHKMAN AL-HAKIM, 1553 E. MAPLE, 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new hotel on a B-3 
zoned parcel that is 2.5 acres in size where Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 requires a 
minimum 3 acre parcel; and, also to have the “tower” portion of the building 52’-6” high, 
where Section 30.20.06 limits the height of buildings to no more than 40’. 
 
The petitioner asked that this item be moved to the end of the agenda to allow the 
opportunity for their architect to be present.  Mr. Fejes moved this request to Item #11. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  CHRISTOPHER ENRIGHT ARCHITECTS, 1600 
WEST MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing building.  The site plan 
submitted indicates that there is not a sidewalk provided along the northwest and a 
portion of the west side of the building.  Section 39.70.03 requires that a 5’ wide 
sidewalk be provided between the building face and a vehicular use area (parking or 
drive); and in addition, Section 40.25.03 requires a minimum 24’ wide, two-way 
driveway width.  The site plan submitted indicates that a portion of the drive adjacent to 
the boiler room will only be 20’ in width.       
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval to alter an existing 
building.  This building, although originally designed and constructed as an industrial 
building, has recently, at the petitioner’s request, been rezoned to the B-3 (General 
Business) Zoning District.  Section 39.70.03 requires that a 5’ wide sidewalk be 
provided between the building face and a vehicular use area (parking or drive).  No 
such sidewalk is provided along the northwest and a portion of the west side of the 
building.  In addition, Section 40.25.03 requires a minimum 24’ wide, two-way driveway 
width.  The site plan submitted indicates that the portion of the drive adjacent to the 
boiler room will only be 20’ in width.       
 
Mr. Courtney asked if pavement was in the area where the sidewalks were to be 
eliminated.  Mr. Stimac said that there is pavement along the bump out of the building, 
and also around a portion of the northwest section of the building.  The rest of this area 
will be landscaping in order for them to meet the minimum landscape area 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Enright stated that this is an existing building that was used as a manufacturing 
facility.  His client wants to use the existing factory, warehouse space as a gymnastic 
studio and the front of the building would be available for lease.  At the moment they do 
not have any tenants with a signed contract to lease this space.  They plan to remove a 
portion of the northeast side of the building and also plan to fill in an existing truck well.  
The rest of the lot will be striped for parking spaces.  Due to the fact that this area has  
moved from the Industrial Zoning District to the Business Zoning District  they wanted to 
limit the number of variances that would be required and they wanted to make sure that 
the area met the landscaping requirements.  By eliminating the sidewalk on the 
northwest portion of the building they will save approximately (thirteen) parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Enright informed the Board that the “bump out” indicated on the building is currently 
the machinery area housing a boiler which heats the front portion of the building as well 
as the water meter and water service and there and an air handling unit.  They were 
hoping to be able to maintain this portion of the building as is.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many parking spaces are required and how many are present 
on the site.  Mr. Enright said that there are 73 parking spaces shown on the proposed 
plan and 73 parking spaces is the required number of parking spaces. 
 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how tight the driveway is compared to the size of a normal drive.  
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner’s plans indicate that the proposed driveway 
would be 19.11’ wide and normally a two-way driveway with adjacent parking is 24’.  Mr. 
Courtney asked how wide a normal residential street is.  Mr. Stimac said that it is 26’ of 
pavement, but includes one lane of parallel parking.   
 
Mr. Enright also said that this is an existing condition, and they are hoping to be able to 
maintain that condition.  Mr. Courtney said that although it is an existing condition, the 
petitioner is hoping to create more traffic that could cause problems down the road. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what types of businesses are allowed in this area.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that B-3 Zoning allows for any type of retail business, in addition, you can 
have many types of automotive retail stores, such as tire stores.  Mr. Fejes then asked 
how large trucks would access this lot.  Mr. Stimac said that there is access from both 
Maple and Blaney. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked about the “bump out” in this building and asked if a variance was 
required to allow them to use this area as an entrance and egress.  Mr. Stimac said that 
he had done extensive research and the building pre-dates most of our records.  
Although this is considered a non-conforming building, he was unable to find any 
previous site plan approval. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he is leery in granting a variance for this width in an area that will 
have retail businesses.  He did not have a problem with granting a variance for the 
elimination of the sidewalk.    
 
Mr. Hutson agreed with Mr. Courtney and stated that he did not have a problem with the 
elimination of the sidewalk, however, he is also concerned about increased traffic in this 
area, especially with parents picking up and dropping off children for the gymnastic 
center.  Mr. Hutson asked if a semi truck would be able to get through this area.  Mr. 
Enright said that it is wide enough for a truck to get through this area.  Mr. Enright also 
said that it is his understanding that all the deliveries will be coming in off of Blaney. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked how the building was used in the past and Mr. Enright stated that he 
did not know because when he came to this site, the building was vacant.  Mr. Enright 
also said that he thought the main entrance was proposed to be from Blaney.  Mr. Fejes 
asked what they would do if the variance was not granted for the driveway width.  Mr. 
Enright said he was not certain but one option was to remove the parking spaces in the  
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
front of the building.  Mr. Enright also said that it would not be an easy option to 
eliminate the “bump out” due to the fact that it houses the mechanical room.  Mr. Fejes  
said that he thought Mr. Enright might like to consider asking for a postponement for the 
driveway width as it takes four members to grant a variance. 
 
Mr. Enright asked if they could still submit a site plan approval if the request for 
driveway width was postponed.  Mr. Stimac said that the Planning Commission can 
consider reduced parking spaces depending on the use of the property.  The petitioner 
has submitted a request to consider as part of their request for site approval, a 
reduction in the number of required parking spaces.  Mr. Stimac went on to say that as 
he sees it there are two (2) alternatives available to the petitioner: One is to eliminate 
that portion of the building that protrudes or, two, is to eliminate parking spaces adjacent 
to that portion of the building and meet the driveway width.  It would eliminate between 
two and five parking spaces in that area. It would then be up to the Planning 
Commission to consider the further reduced parking as part of this request. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the Planning Commission has approved the reduced parking and 
Mr. Stimac said that it has not gone before the Planning Commission at this time.  Mr. 
Fejes then asked who would handle the request for a parking variance and Mr. Stimac 
said that if a parking variance was required it would have to go before City Council. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Christopher Enright Architects, 1600 W. Maple, for 
relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing building, which will result in the elimination of 
a sidewalk along the northwest and a portion of the west side of the building. 
 

• A sidewalk would serve no purpose at this location. 
• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR THE SIDEWALK CARRIED 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Christopher Enright Architects, 1600 W. Maple for 
relief of the Ordinance to have a two-way driveway with a width of 19.11’, where Section 
40.25.03 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 24’ wide two-way driveway width until 
the meeting of January 17, 2006. 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to present his site plan to the Planning 
Commission showing a reduction in parking spaces. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Wright 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL JANUARY 17, 2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PIERRE HARIK, 690 SYLVANWOOD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land into two lots that will result in a lot width of 
77.31’ for each parcel.  This property is located in the R-1C Zoning District.  Section 
30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’ for single family 
homes in this Zoning District.       
 
Mr. Pierre Harik was present and asked that this item be postponed to allow the 
opportunity for a full Board. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if anyone in the room wished to speak on this item before it was 
postponed, but no one present wished to be heard. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Pierre Harik, 690 Sylvanwood, for relief of the 
Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land into two lots that will result in a lot width of 
77.31’ for each parcel.  This property is located in the R-1C Zoning District.  Section 
30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’ for single family 
homes in this Zoning District until the meeting of January 17, 2006.       

 
• At the request of the petitioner. 
• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JANUARY 17, 2006 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WILLIAM NICHOLS, 1080 MINNESOTA, to 
maintain a shed, constructed without first obtaining the necessary Building Permit, in the 
front yard setback along Wisconsin.  Section 40.56.03 of the Ordinance prohibits the 
placement of an accessory building in the front yard.      
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
a shed constructed in the front yard setback along Wisconsin.  This lot is a double front 
corner lot.  As such, it has a front yard setback along both Minnesota and Wisconsin.  The 
site plan submitted indicates that a shed has been constructed without first obtaining the  

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
necessary Building Permit, in the required front yard setback, 8 feet from the property line 
along Wisconsin.  Section 40.56.03 of the Ordinance prohibits the placement of an 
accessory building in a front yard.      
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the location of this shed would comply if this lot was not a corner lot.  
Mr. Stimac said that it would meet the requirements of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Nichols was present and stated that they were trying to look ahead when planning 
the location for this shed.  They like the neighborhood they are living in, however, their 
home does not have a basement, and they have three children and have run out of 
room.  They are planning to have their lot split and therefore, he does not feel he can 
place the shed at the rear of the lot.  Mr. Nicholas went on to say that they had received 
a variance to put up the privacy fence and did not know any other variances would be 
required.  Mr. Nichols said that the structure is about 75% complete including the rat 
wall and it would be very difficult to move it to another location. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked how large Mr. Nichols home was and Mr. Nichols stated that it was 
approximately 1900 square feet and had a two-car attached garage.   
 
Mr. Wright stated that the Board needs to find a hardship that runs with the land and he 
believes that the petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship.  Mr. Wright also stated that 
he thought this shed could be moved farther south on the property.  Mr. Nichols said 
that there are a 40-year-old trees in the area as well as the air conditioning unit and it 
would be difficult to move these items.  Mr. Wright said that he still did not see a 
hardship that ran with the land.  Mr. Nichols said that if they put it behind the deck they 
would have to move 1-2 trees and it would be very costly.  Mr. Wright said that financial 
considerations cannot be considered a hardship and perhaps this shed could be 
downsized and fit between the trees.   Mr. Nichols stated that taking in the split of the lot 
and a new deck there is no room to place a decent size shed.  Mr. Wright said that the 
future property split is a financial hardship not a hardship that runs with the land.   
 
Ms. Gies asked when the petitioner was planning to attempt to split this lot.  Mr. Nichols 
stated that he has a deposit down on a surveyor to come out and survey the property to 
request a split.  They are trying to look down the road and after the property is split plan 
to build a new home at the back of the lot.  Mr. Nichols also said that they need the 
space for storage and were just trying to get by for the next four years until they can 
accomplish the lot split and construction of a new home. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked how long it would take to put in for a lot split.  Mr. Nichols said that 
they are just waiting for the surveyor to come out and then they will get the request 
underway.  Mr. Hutson then asked if he could place this structure on the back half of the 
lot once the property was split.  Mr. Stimac explained that the Building Department 
could not issue a permit for an accessory structure to be the only building on a lot. 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he felt if a lot split occurred it may create more of a hardship with 
the land and suggested postponing this request for a couple of months until this occurs. 
 
Mr. Wright said that even with a lot split there would still be a shed sitting in the front 
yard setback.  Mr. Courtney said that he thought this would be a hardship because it 
would create a smaller lot with two front setbacks. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Pierre Harik asked if the Board could grant a temporary variance for the location of 
this shed.  Mr. Fejes said that the Board could not grant a temporary variance for this 
type of request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Ms. Nichols said that once they got the variance for the privacy fence they felt this area 
became their back yard and did not believe the shed would be visible to traffic driving 
by. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of William Nichols, 1080 Minnesota, to maintain a 
shed, constructed without first obtaining the necessary Building Permit, in the front yard 
setback along Wisconsin until the meeting of February 21, 2006. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to obtain a lot split on this property. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Hutson, Wright, Courtney, Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL FEBRUARY 21, 2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 (ITEM #7) -  – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LAHKMAN AL-HAKIM, 1553 E. 
MAPLE, (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new hotel 
on a B-3 zoned parcel that is 2.5 acres in size where Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 
requires a minimum 3 acre parcel; and, also to have the “tower” portion of the building 
52’-6” high, where Section 30.20.06 limits the height of buildings to no more than 40’. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new hotel.  The property in question is located in the B-3 (General Business) Zoning 
District.  Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 requires a minimum 3 acre parcel for hotels in 
the B-3 Zoning District.  This parcel is only 2.5 acres in size. 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
In addition, Section 30.20.06 limits the height of buildings in the B-3 District to no more 
than 40’ in height.  The “tower” portion of the building is 51’-6” tall as measured by the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Tarek Zoabi from Parkside Construction was present and stated that they want to 
develop this property into a three-story hotel.  The property backs up to I-75 and is 
surrounded by Commercial and Industrial property, the offices are closed by 5:00 or 
6:00 P.M., and therefore parking is not a problem.  Weekends would be the busiest 
times, he believes the configuration, and location of the property creates a unique 
hardship.  There is a lot of landscaping and trees along both I-75 and Maple Road.  The 
nearest neighbor would be approximately 200’ away from the parking lot.  The height of 
the tower is basically to get exposure from I-75.  They are hoping to put in a Holiday Inn 
Express and believe this would benefit the City of Troy. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what the height variance was and Mr. Stimac said it was 12’.  Mr. Zoabi 
said that the highway is higher and these towers would make it more visible.  Mr. Fejes 
said traffic would have to bypass this hotel anyway as there is no exit to Maple Road, so 
traffic would have to exit at 14 Mile Road or 16 Mile Road.  Mr. Zoabi said that the 
height of the tower would be more for advertising. 
 
Mr. Fejes also asked if the height of these towers would present a problem for the Fire 
Department.  Mr. Stimac said that the Fire Department is equipped with very fine 
apparatus and have ladders that reach up to 100’.  The Fire Department would have fire 
lanes all around the building and would have access to all four sides.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked what is planned to be inside of the tower and Mr. Zoabi said that 
there would not be anything in the towers.  Mr. Courtney said that he had a problem 
with the height of the towers. 
 
Mr. Wright agreed with Mr. Courtney and said that he does not see a hardship with the 
land that would require a 52’ tower.  Mr. Wright also said that the freeway in this area is 
approximately 25’ above the property and the petitioner could put up a tower that is 40’ 
in height. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if they had a signed franchise agreement with any hotel chain that 
would mandate the 52’ tower.  Mr. Zoabi said that they did not although they are 
working with Holiday Inn Express. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that in his opinion the Board did not have a problem with the 2.5-acre 
parcel, but did object to the proposed height of the towers.   
 
Mr. Zoabi conferred with Mr. Al-Hakim and stated that they wished to withdraw their 
request for the 52’ high tower. 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright  
 
MOVED, to accept Mr. Lahkman Al-Hakim, 1553 E. Maple request for withdrawal, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a new three-story hotel with a tower that has a 
building height of 52’-6”. 
 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE WITHDRAWAL REQUEST CARRIED 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Lahkman Al-Hakim, 1553 E. Maple, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a new hotel on a B-3 zoned parcel that is 2.5 acres in size where 
Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 requires a minimum 3-acre parcel. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property listed in this application. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 11



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – DRAFT DECEMBER 21, 2005 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held Wednesday, 
December 21, 2005 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to 
order at 7:45 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Paul Lin 
   Bob Miller 
   Marjorie Biglin 
 
  ABSENT: Linda Rivetto 
    
 STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
 GUEST: Brian Wattles 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2005-012-001 
Moved by Biglin  
Seconded by Hupman 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Rivetto be excused  
Yes: 6  Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin, Miller and Biglin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2005-012-002 
Moved by Harris-Freeman  
Seconded by Hupman 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 6, 2005 be approved  
Yes: 6  Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin, Miller and Biglin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

2356 E. Long Lake de-listing 
Mr. Miller strongly requested that his property be de-listed as the Preliminary 
Report and all other approvals are complete. Loraine Campbell would take his 
request to the City Attorney. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



2 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Kevin Lindsey called to order at 7:50 PM the Public Hearing to approve the Preliminary 
Report to modify the boundaries of the historic district at 3864 Livernois. 
 
Paul Lin inquired what screening the new owners of Parcel B will provide along the 
border of Parcels A and B. Brian Wattles responded that there are specifications in 
place for a boundary of coniferous trees and he has requested that a farm style fence 
also be installed. 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2005-012-003 
Moved by Hupman  
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the attached report recommending modification of the 
boundaries of the historic district located at 3864 Livernois, be submitted to City 
Council as the final report of the Troy Historic District Study Committee with 
respect to the request to modify the historic district located at 3864 Livernois. Be 
it further resolved that the Troy Historic District Study Committee approved the 
proposed amendment to Chapter 13 of the Code of the City of Troy, a copy which 
is attached hereto. 
  
Yes: 6  Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin, Miller and Biglin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Kevin Lindsey adjourned the Public Hearing at 7:58 PM. 
 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:00 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, January 3, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   December 21, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on December 21, 2005 at  
7:03 PM at the Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Alexandra Bozimowski and 
Rishi Joshi called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra Bozimowski (Co-chair) 

Maxine D’Amico 
Rishi Joshi (Co-chair) 
Jia (Lisa) Luo  
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall 
Neil Shaw  
Katie Thoenes 
Nicole Vitale  
Karen Wullaert (Secretary) 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Andrew Corey, Jessica Kraft  
VISITORS: None 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2005-12-26 
  Moved by Vitale 
  Seconded by Wullaert 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of November 30, 2005 be approved. 

   
  Yes: All – 11 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 2  - Corey, Kraft 

 
3. Attendance Report: Updated through November meeting - To note and file 
     
4. Futures Process 

Review of initial meetings and schedule of upcoming meetings. 
1. Civic Infastructure – (Shaw and Kraft)    

In the process of researching and gathering information for next 
meeting scheduled for Saturday, January 7 – 9:00am (City Hall). 

   2. Image and Feel – (Prasad and Thoenes) 
Discussed issue of division between east and west sections of city 
and how to change.  Gathering information for meeting scheduled 
on Saturday, January 14 – 9:00am (Library). 

3. Lifetime Learning – (Kristin Randall) 
No representative present.  Next meeting scheduled for Saturday, 
January 7 – 11:00am (Community Center). 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   December 21, 2005 
 
 

 2

 4. Lifestyle – (D’Amico and Luo) 
Defined Lifestyle and community group leaders.  Next meeting for 
Tuesday, January 10 – 7:00pm (Community Center). 

5. Mobility – (Bozimowski and Vitale) 
Discussion on traffic problems and the need for more sidewalks.  
Gathering information for next meeting scheduled for Thursday, 
January 5 – 7:00pm (Community Center). 

   6. Regionalism – (Corey and Niemiec) 
 No report.  Next meeting scheduled for Thursday, January 5 – 
7:00pm (Public Works Building). 

   7. Wealth Creation – (Joshi and Wulleart) 
In the process of researching and gathering information for next 
meeting scheduled for Thursday, January 5 – 7:00pm (City Hall). 

5. Visitor: 
 None 
 

6. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2005-12-27 

  Moved by D’Amico 
  Seconded by Niemiec 

  
 RESOLVED that Andrew Corey and Jessica Kraft are excused. 

   
  Yes: All - 11 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 2 – Corey, Kraft 

   
  

7. Youth Council Comments – Discussion about flyer that Jessica Kraft created for 
the naming of the Teen Room competition.    

 
8. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:47 P.M.   
(Tour of teen room followed meeting) 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Alexandra Bozimowski, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott E. Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
 
 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: January 25th at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 

 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 3, 2006 

Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:04 pm in Conference Room C at 
Troy City Hall 
 
Roll Call 
 Present:  Kelly Gu  Tom Kaszubski 
   Lulu Guo   Reuben Ellis 
   Michelle Haight Padma Kuppa  

Anju Brodbine Mark Pritzlaff 
Malini Sarma  

   Cindy Stewart, Staff Liaison  
 

Absent:  Oniell Shah  
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
Minutes from November 7, 2005 – Motion by A. Brodbine, second by P. Kuppa.  
Approved unanimously. 
 
Correspondence / Articles 
 

a. Diversity Ordinance Debated – Free Press 11/22/05 
b. We Need to Confront Our Racial Problems – Troy Eccentric 12/01/05 
c. Hmong Ring in the New Year – Detroit news 11/14/05 
d. A Season of Shared Faith by Padma Kuppa – Metro Parent – December 

2005 
e. “First People” Carry on Native Tradition by Padma Kuppa – Metro Parent 

November 2005 
 
Old Business 
  
 A. NCCJ and LINC update 
 

Working on getting money to bring the LINC program promoting 
racial harmony, justice and tolerance into the Troy Schools.  
National City Bank’s Foundation donated $10,000 to Community 
Foundation of Troy.  Foundation will fund a youth leadership 
program level one ($5,000) in Troy schools.  Tom will meet with 
Troy schools and NCCJ on Thursday, January 5 to work on a three-
year program.  National City’s foundation mission is to promote 
diversity within communities where they do business. 
 

B. EIAB goals 
 

Revised Mission Statement: 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 3, 2006 

 
“The City of Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board further enriches harmonious 
relationships and open communication in our diverse community through 
education and multicultural exchange.” 

 
 Goals: 
 

1. Work in cooperation with our School Districts to facilitate 
programs that promote diversity and multi-curriculum within our 
educational communities.   

2. Support the Troy Daze Festival Committee in relation to 
planning and executing the ethnicity component of the Troy 
Daze Festival by encouraging the participation among the many 
ethnic communities. 

 
Objectives – brainstorming ideas 
 
Work with the schools to coordinate a “Sights & Sounds” program at the 
schools.  Perhaps get 2-3 elementary schools to organize with a Middle 
School in the area.  Encourage international week – fashion shows, food 
from around the world, musical performances. 

 
Next meeting February 7, 2006 continue goals discussion and add Ethnicity 
to the agenda. 

 
C. Resource List - Make available to schools and copies for 

Kaleidoscope. 
 
 D.  Community Kaleidoscope -  January 29, 2006 from 12 – 4 pm at 

Community Center. Idea to combine Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
with EthniCity.  Padma will be contact/Malini as alternate. 

 
11 am - Set up  Padma/Michelle 
12 - l pm   Padma, Michelle 
1 - 2 pm   Malini & Mark 
2 - 3 pm   Oniell, Mark, Kelly & Lulu 
3 – 4 pm  Reuben, Kelly & Lulu 
 
Display – TV/VCR – Globes - Anju 
Misc knickknacks – Padma 
World map -  Michelle 
EIA Info flyer, Sights and sounds flyer - Cindy 
Ethnic City brochures & Sign-in sheet - Cindy 
Resource lists & Sights and sounds promo video - Cindy 
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 3, 2006 

New Business 
 
 
A. Sights and Sounds of the World – Saturday, March 11 

 
No one has committed to date.  Will send letters to contacts.  
Looking for some new countries (Japan, France, Norway, Finland, 
Sweden, Africa, Spain, Cuba, etc.)  Email form letter for 
involvement to Board. 
 

B. Senior Citizen Project 
 

Scheduled for Thursdays, April 6, 13, 20, 27 @ 12:30 p.m. Room 
303.  Idea for several generations of people to speak to the group:  
India, China, Middle East, and Jewish religion. 
 
 

Public Participation 
 
Victor Lenivov, Troy resident asked if it is possible that this Board 
would re-look at their previous idea for a Unity Plaza.  Since City is 
putting in paths throughout the Civic Center, this could be a good 
time to re-look at the Unity Plaza idea and perhaps bring to Parks 
and Recreation Department or City Council.   
 
Bring plan back to Board @ future meeting. 
 
 

Adjournment 
 
Motion to adjourn at 9:02 p.m. by Malini Sarma, Seconded by Michelle 
Haight.   Approved unanimously. 

 
 
_____________________________ 
Tom Kaszubski, Chairman 

 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         January 4, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, January 4, 2006 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Richard Sinclair 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 7, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 7, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DEMPSTER DESIGNS ON BEHALF OF THE 
MEADOW BROOK PLAZA, 5047-5137 ROCHESTER, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect 
a new 130 square foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85, the Sign 
Ordinance to erect a new ground sign, 130 square feet in area, 13’ in height and 
setback 17’ from the ultimate right of way line of Rochester Road.   Section 85.02.02 
(4a), requires ground signs of this size to be at least 30’ from the ultimate right of way 
line.  This sign would replace an existing ground sign at the same location that is 150’ in 
area and 30’ in height. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the sign would be a reduction in size as well as height.  Mr. Stimac 
also stated that the right of way line has changed since the original sign was erected. 
 
Mr. Dempster from Dempster Designs was present and said that the proposed sign 
would be in the same location as the existing sign and they would utilize the pole of the 
existing sign for the installation of the new sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated the new sign would be quite a reduction in size and height from the 
existing ground sign. 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         January 4, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the property owner would agree to move the sign at a later date if 
the City of Troy acquired additional right of way.  He stated the City of Troy would not 
want to pay to have the sign relocated.   
 
Mr. Dempster stated that he believes the owner would be in agreement to assume the 
costs for moving the sign if need be.  He stated the reason the property owner is 
erecting a new sign is to improve his property. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the location of the sign would have any impact on southbound 
Rochester Road traffic seeing the sign on the adjacent property.  Mr. Dempster stated 
the location would be fine.  He said the trees on the property have more of an impact 
than the sign would. 
 
Mr. Stimac provided a photo of the existing sign for the board to review. 
 
Mr. Dziurman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the sign would be illuminated.  Mr. Dempster stated that it would be 
illuminated from the inside. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Dempster Designs, to erect a new ground sign, 130 
square feet in area, 13’ in height, setback 17’ from the ultimate right of way of Rochester 
Road.  
 

• The property owner will be responsible for all costs of relocating the sign if 
additional right of way is acquired in the future. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this petition. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 

 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LARRY FARIDA, OF STONE AGE 
INVESTMENTS, 1613 LIVERNOIS, for relief of Chapter 85 to expand a legal non-
conforming sign. 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         January 4, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance for a 
sign that is located on the northwest corner of Livernois and W. Maple.  The petitioner is  
requesting relief to expand a legal non-conforming sign.  Section 85.01.07 B3 states 
that a non-conforming sign may be continued as long as it is not expanded.  The current 
sign is 78 square feet in area and 25’ high.  The petitioner is requesting to add an 
additional 24 square foot electronic changeable message board to the bottom of the 
sign.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the sign was in the City right of way and Mr. Stimac confirmed 
that the existing sign is located in the future right of way. 
 
The petitioner stated that he would rather have the additional signage on the ground 
sign instead of the wall of the building, as it would be difficult to read the message if it 
were placed on the building.  He also stated that the sign would still be high enough not 
to block the view of any traffic at the corner. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked at what time frame would the message change.  The petitioner stated 
it would change once every 30 minutes. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the owner would assume responsibility and costs if in the future 
the right of way was expanded.  The petitioner said that he would and also stated that 
any further purchase of right of way at this location would probably eliminate the 
business. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Larry Farida, of Stone Age Investments, relief of Chapter 85 to install 
an additional 24 square foot electronic changeable message board to the bottom of the 
existing ground sign. 
 

• Petitioner agrees to move sign if the right of way is increased in the future. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
 

Yeas:  All –5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         January 4, 2006 

ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  METRO DETROIT SIGNS, 3129 – 3149 
CROOKS, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 198 square foot ground sign. 
 
The petitioner asked that this request be moved to the end of the Agenda as his 
architect was not in the room. 
 
The Chairman moved this request to Item #6. 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  GARDNER SIGNS, 801-803 W. BIG BEAVER, 
for relief of Chapter 85 to erect (4) wall signs at the above location. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
erect (3) wall signs, 189.43 square feet each and one additional wall sign 133 square  
feet in area.  Section 85.02.05 3(a) permits one wall sign for each building not to exceed 
10% of the front of the structure to a maximum size of 200 square feet in area.  The 
proposed signs exceed the number and the amount of wall signage as permitted by the 
Sign Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that an additional document that was left out of the Board’s packet 
was provided to the board today to show the placement of the proposed signs on the 
building. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the total area of all of the signs permitted was 200 square feet.  
Mr. Stimac explained that only one sign was permitted and based on the square footage 
of the front of the structure could not exceed 200 square feet in area. 
 
Chris Snyder of Huntington Bank was present along with Scott Gardner and Jeff 
Gardner of Gardner Signs.  Mr. Snyder stated that the bank has been in business for 22 
years at this location.  His request is to improve and enhance the signage at this 
building.  The bank is changing its name from Huntington Banks to Huntington Bank 
and has modified its logo for the company. 
 
Mr. Scott Gardner stated that the request for the signs will provide visibility from I-75, 
Crooks, and Big Beaver.  He stated that the signage is less than 4% of the square 
footage of the front of the building. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if this was one or two buildings.  Mr. Stimac stated it was a single 
building. 
 
Mr. Dziurman had a question on the location of the signs as depicted on the drawings 
and what was shown in the site plan.  Mr. Gardner stated the signs could be altered. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the letters on the plans were to scale and why they were requesting 
larger letters.  Mr. Gardner stated they needed the larger letters for visibility from 
northbound and southbound I-75 traffic. Mr. Kessler stated he recently checked the site  
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         January 4, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
and had no problem identifying the building.  Mr. Kessler also asked if this was a multi-
tenant building and Mr. Gardner said that it was.  Mr. Kessler stated the other tenants in 
the building would not be able to provide signage to identify their location to the I-75 
traffic. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that there was a variance granted by Troy City Council on February 
13, 1992 for the second wall sign that is currently on the building.  The signs approved 
by City Council were each 164 square feet in area.  Mr. Stimac explained that the signs 
were box style signs instead of individual letters as currently requested by the petitioner.  
Mr. Stimac also explained that the box for the existing sign is 4’ high and the letters in 
the box were probably 3’ high. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he also checked the site and did not see any problem with 
visibility.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Gardner Signs, relief of Chapter 85 for 801-803 W. Big Beaver to 
erect 3 wall signs on the upper levels of the building and to deny the request or the wall 
sign requested on the north elevation of the 803 W. Big Beaver. 
 

• Location is clearly visible. 
• Sign on north elevation is not necessary for visibility of 803 W. Big Beaver. 

 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE 3 WALL SIGNS AND DENY THE SIGN ON THE NORTH 
ELEVATION OF 803 W BIG BEAVER CARRIED 
 
Mr. Sinclair left the meeting after item #5 was completed. 
 
ITEM #6 (ITEM #4) – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  METRO DETROIT SIGNS, 3129 – 
3149 CROOKS, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 198 square foot ground sign with a 
26’ setback from the public rights of way of both Crooks Road and Wilshire Boulevard. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 198 
square foot sign.  Section 85.02.05 of the Sign Ordinance requires that a sign of this 
size be placed at a 30’ minimum setback from the public right-of-way.  The site plan  

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         January 4, 2006 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
submitted shows a 26’ setback from the public rights of way of both Crooks Road and 
Wilshire Blvd.  Mr. Stimac stated that section 85.02.05 of the Sign Ordinance requires 
signs over 100 square feet must have a 30’ setback from the public right of ways.   
 
The owner, Mr. Mike Boggio stated that because of the size of the site and all of the 
easements on the property it would be difficult to meet the required setbacks.  He also 
stated if they would be allowed this size of a sign they would not request the additional 
36 square foot ground sign that would be permitted because they are on a major 
thoroughfare. 
 
He also stated he revised the site plan and is requesting to install the sign at a 24’ 
setback from the Wilshire Blvd right of way and 16’ setback from the Crooks right of 
way. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he would have to stay at the 26’ setback if he wished to continue 
with this variance.  He stated the change would require the Building Department to re-
advertise the request based on the new dimensions. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was anyone present that wished to speak. 
 
Mr. Friedman from Finsilver Management was present.  He stated he managed the 
building northwest of this site.  He objected to the variance because he felt that it would 
affect the visibility to northbound Crooks Rd. traffic and also traffic on Wilshire Blvd.  He 
stated he did not see the hardship required for the variance. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if we rescheduled the hearing would Mr. Friedman still object to the 
variance?   Mr. Stimac advised that Mr. Friedman could still make his objections at the 
next scheduled meeting in February. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the corner clearance would have to be maintained.  He also 
indicated there are a lot of easements on the property and that may be more of a 
hardship. 
 
The petitioner stated there is a traffic light at this intersection. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that this item would have to be postponed until the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of February 1, 2006 to allow the Building Department to re-publish 
the Public Hearing Notice with the new setback as proposed by the petitioner. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
 
 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         January 4, 2006 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Metro Detroit Signs, 3129 – 3149 Crooks, for relief 
of Chapter 85 to erect a 198 square foot ground sign with a 26’ setback from the public 
rights of way of both Crooks Road and Wilshire Boulevard until the meeting of February 
1, 2006. 
 
 

• Petitioner to submit new site plans to indicate where sign will be erected. 
• To allow the Building Department the opportunity to publish a new Public Hearing 

Notice indicating the location of the proposed sign. 
 
Yeas:  All – 4  
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS ITEM UNTIL THE FEBRUARY 1, 2006 MEETING 
CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:44 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Marlene Struckman, 

Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 

 7



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Jan. 5, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Jan. 5 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at  
1 PM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair David Ogg, Member 
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Pauline Noce, Member 
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Jo Rhoads, Member, excused   
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Barbary Fowler, Sue Werpetinski 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-1-001 
Moved by Merrill Dixon  
Seconded by James Berar 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Dec. 1, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 6       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Barbara Fowler introduced herself and discussed a few of the special programs offered by the 
Troy School District. 
 
Paula Fleming reported on some upcoming Troy School District programs. 
 
Sue Werpetinski introduced herself as a member of the Advisory Committee for persons with 
disabilities.  
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill reported that the budget has been approved and now 
the bid award has to be approved by City Council – probably in April - for two shuffleboard and 
two bocce courts to be  constructed this year. 
  
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that staff is working on a 
proposal that the caterer offer a discount to non-profit groups.   Jo Ann reported that the 
committee has made staff and city council aware of their concerns and their recommendation 
that non-profit groups be allowed to bring refreshments into any room at the Community 
Center.    

campbellld
Text Box
J-01t



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Jan. 5, 2006 

2 

 
Visits to Other Community Centers:  Jo Ann reported that Bill Weisgerber visited the Royal 
Oak Center and had passed some information on to her. 
 
New Business 
 
Troy Visions Task Force:  David Ogg is on the Troy Vision 2020 Task Force - Lifestyle 
Subcommittee, and he asked Committee members for their input about what they would like to 
see in Troy to improve their lifestyle. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board did not meet in December.  Their 
meeting date has been changed to the third Thursday. 
 
Medi-Go:  No report 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that there will be a Medicare Prescription Drug enrollment 
day at the Troy Community Center on January 31.   The U of D Mobile Law Office will visit the 
Community Center on the second Tuesday of each month beginning January 10. 
 
OLHSA:  No report  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one comment that a senior is stealing 
exercise equipment during chair exercise and stretch and tone.  Unfortunately, the suggestion 
was not signed, but the instructors will be asked to keep an eye out for the alleged perpetrator. 
 
Comments:   
 
JoAnn commented about having her driveway plowed in when the streets are plowed.  Others 
have this problem, too, and some are physically unable to remove the snow.  Carla will check 
with the Streets Department to confirm their policy on this.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:05 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair               
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft JANUARY 9, 2006 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, January 9, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
5:01 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 4, 2005  
 
Resolution # EC-2006-01-1 
Motion by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of October 4, 2005, are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 

Approval of Elimination of Precinct 31 
 
Resolution #EC-2006-01-2 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That City of Troy Election Commission hereby APPROVES the elimination of 
Precinct 31, Oakland Park Towers, with the voters to be absorbed into Precinct 30 located 
at St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church at 2160 E. Maple, effective with the August 8, 
2006 Primary Election. 
 
Yes: All-3 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:10 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

holmesba
Text Box

holmesba
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-01u



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



DATE:        January 3, 2006

TO:             John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued during the Year 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 4 $2,171,950.00 $15,191.00
Add/Alter 61 $8,105,530.00 $50,593.00
Temp. Office Trailer 1 $0.00 $35.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00
Parking Lot 2 $9,000.00 $230.00

Sub Total 69 $10,286,480.00 $66,149.00

COMMERCIAL
New 6 $3,713,126.00 $24,938.00
Fnd. New 1 $299,000.00 $2,238.00
Shell New 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Fnd./Shell New 4 $2,747,500.00 $17,150.00
Completion (New) 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Completion Less Tenant 2 $801,000.00 $5,897.00
Tenant Completion 30 $4,358,000.00 $29,498.00
Accessory Structure 1 $5,000.00 $85.00
Add/Alter 240 $29,998,899.00 $202,418.00
Wreck 5 $0.00 $500.00
Parking Lot 3 $230,408.00 $1,913.00
Repair 1 $23,484.00 $313.00
Fire Repair 1 $60,000.00 $565.00
Kiosk 2 $9,000.00 $155.00

Sub Total 298 $42,445,417.00 $287,360.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 215 $43,811,171.00 $279,611.00
Add/Alter 379 $9,673,577.00 $99,056.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 76 $532,802.00 $9,514.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 47 $993,409.00 $10,675.00
Repair 7 $286,873.00 $2,519.00
Fire Repair 9 $1,032,909.00 $6,857.00
Temporary Sales Trailer 1 $2,500.00 $55.00
Wreck 60 $3,000.00 $3,180.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 2 $2,275.00 $145.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 4 $28,000.00 $535.00

Sub Total 800 $56,366,516.00 $412,147.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 48 $7,516,315.00 $54,089.00
Add/Alter 67 $409,471.00 $7,035.00

Sub Total 115 $7,925,786.00 $61,124.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 7 $115,682.00 $1,464.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $8,400.00 $195.00
Repair 1 $975.00 $230.00
Parking Lot $0.00 $0.00
Sub Total 9 $125,057.00 $1,889.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Shell 1 $6,500,000.00 $34,645.00
Completion $0.00 $0.00
Add/Alter 22 $15,277,960.00 $83,195.00

Sub Total 23 $21,777,960.00 $117,840.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 4 $1,502,000.00 $9,735.00
Parking Lot 1 $670,205.00 $4,842.00

Sub Total 5 $2,172,205.00 $14,577.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 13 $115,000.00 $1,580.00
Signs 533 $0.00 $55,800.00
Fences 156 $0.00 $2,495.00

Sub Total 702 $115,000.00 $59,875.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 $1,020,961.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED DURING 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 502 $5,020.00
Cert. of Occupancy 616 $39,792.65
Plan Review 1857 $115,387.80
Microfilm 409 $4,775.00
Building Permits 2023 $1,020,961.00
Electrical Permits 2572 $178,969.00
Heating Permits 2181 $111,262.00
Air Cond. Permits 863 $38,908.00
Refrigeration Permits 8 $595.00
Plumbing Permits 1437 $135,421.00
Storm Sewer Permits 313 $11,635.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 299 $10,389.00
Sewer Taps 303 $103,450.00

TOTAL 13383 $1,776,565.45

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 456 $2,280.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 389 $5,835.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 252 $252.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 50 $2,500.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 78 $780.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 33 $495.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 32 $320.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 221 $2,210.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 30 $450.00

TOTAL 1541 $15,122.00

Page 3



DATE:         January 3, 2006
TO:             John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued July through December 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 4 $2,171,950.00 $15,191.00
Add/Alter 26 $2,283,900.00 $17,378.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00
Parking Lot 2 $9,000.00 $230.00

Sub Total 33 $4,464,850.00 $32,899.00

COMMERCIAL
New 4 $2,783,126.00 $20,068.00
Fnd. New 1 $299,000.00 $2,238.00
Shell New 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Fnd./Shell New 2 $1,450,000.00 $10,440.00
Completion (New) 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Completion Less Tenant 2 $801,000.00 $5,897.00
Tenant Completion 14 $2,644,000.00 $19,113.00
Add/Alter 111 $16,968,673.00 $132,394.00
Wreck 5 $0.00 $500.00
Parking Lot 2 $178,408.00 $1,543.00
Repair 1 $23,484.00 $313.00
Fire Repair 1 $60,000.00 $565.00

Sub Total 145 $25,407,691.00 $194,761.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 79 $15,624,613.00 $117,921.00
Add/Alter 181 $4,734,704.00 $53,233.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 43 $304,820.00 $5,889.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 23 $584,869.00 $6,244.00
Repair 2 $206,700.00 $1,739.00
Fire Repair 2 $274,214.00 $1,900.00
Wreck 25 $0.00 $1,330.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 2 $2,275.00 $145.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 2 $17,000.00 $305.00

Sub Total 359 $21,749,195.00 $188,706.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 31 $5,012,515.00 $39,649.00
Add/Alter 32 $227,261.00 $4,113.00

Sub Total 63 $5,239,776.00 $43,762.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 2 $77,000.00 $829.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $8,400.00 $195.00
Repair 1 $975.00 $230.00

Sub Total 4 $86,375.00 $1,254.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
New 1 $6,500,000.00 $34,645.00
Add/Alter 5 $2,130,000.00 $15,635.00

Sub Total 6 $8,630,000.00 $50,280.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $875,000.00 $6,270.00
Parking Lot 1 $670,205.00 $4,842.00

Sub Total 2 $1,545,205.00 $11,112.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 2 $35,000.00 $470.00
Signs 293 $0.00 $30,405.00
Fences 75 $0.00 $1,215.00

Sub Total 370 $35,000.00 $32,090.00

TOTAL 982 $67,158,092.00 $554,864.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 87 $870.00
Cert. of Occupancy 268 $21,404.45
Plan Review 919 $60,031.80
Microfilm 183 $2,369.00
Building Permits 982 $554,864.00
Electrical Permits 1288 $89,769.00
Heating Permits 1016 $55,009.00
Air Cond. Permits 497 $22,608.00
Refrigeration Permits 2 $180.00
Plumbing Permits 718 $70,726.00
Storm Sewer Permits 145 $7,854.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 135 $4,741.00
Sewer Taps 131 $46,792.00

TOTAL 6371 $937,218.25

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 308 $1,540.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 141 $2,115.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 109 $109.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 24 $1,200.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 36 $360.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 11 $165.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 18 $180.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 124 $1,240.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 9 $135.00

TOTAL 780 $7,044.00

Page 3



DATE:        January 3, 2006
TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of December 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 6 $356,000.00 $3,258.00

Sub Total 6 $356,000.00 $3,258.00

COMMERCIAL
Completion (New) 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Completion Less Tenant 1 $680,000.00 $4,905.00
Tenant Completion 3 $491,000.00 $3,872.00
Add/Alter 18 $2,611,426.00 $20,609.00
Repair 1 $23,484.00 $313.00

Sub Total 24 $3,905,910.00 $30,544.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 11 $2,197,680.00 $17,016.00
Add/Alter 13 $486,690.00 $5,157.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $29,500.00 $355.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $110.00

Sub Total 27 $2,713,870.00 $22,638.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 3 $13,558.00 $325.00

Sub Total 3 $13,558.00 $325.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
New 1 $6,500,000.00 $34,645.00

Sub Total 1 $6,500,000.00 $34,645.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 24 $0.00 $2,450.00
Fences 6 $0.00 $90.00

Sub Total 30 $0.00 $2,540.00

TOTAL 91 $13,489,338.00 $93,950.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Cert. of Occupancy 40 $4,255.40
Plan Review 107 $12,650.00
Microfilm 31 $353.00
Building Permits 91 $93,950.00
Electrical Permits 198 $13,222.00
Heating Permits 146 $7,734.00
Air Cond. Permits 65 $3,420.00
Plumbing Permits 70 $8,235.00
Storm Sewer Permits 10 $1,596.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 18 $624.00
Sewer Taps 17 $9,022.00

TOTAL 793 $155,061.40

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 41 $205.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 28 $420.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 10 $10.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 5 $250.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 2 $20.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 1 $15.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 1 $10.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 8 $80.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 97 $1,025.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2004 2004 2005 2005

JANUARY 100 $5,235,481.00 93 $6,617,765.00

FEBRUARY 130 $21,354,496.00 133 $8,586,755.00

MARCH 158 $9,372,242.00 143 $19,405,253.00

APRIL 178 $14,158,227.00 234 $16,039,899.00

MAY 232 $11,511,644.00 229 $8,974,377.00

JUNE 232 $16,224,865.00 207 $14,432,280.00

JULY 178 $19,788,711.00 176 $7,490,327.00

AUGUST 224 $11,179,780.00 202 $13,132,327.00

SEPTEMBER 198 $13,582,037.00 207 $11,424,698.00

OCTOBER 197 $11,540,976.00 169 $12,606,760.00

NOVEMBER 161 $6,232,506.00 137 $9,014,642.00

DECEMBER 148 $7,316,487.00 91 $13,489,338.00

TOTAL 2136 $147,497,452.00 2021 $141,214,421.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2005

3

22

38

53

9 11 15
8

14
20

11 11

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Jan 3, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2005Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER G-211  250,000.00HERMAN/STEWART CONTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 1450 W LONG LAKE 250  110,000.00DAVE DIESON
Commercial, Add/Alter 2800 LIVERNOIS 275  300,000.00PATRICK RYAN
Commercial, Add/Alter 100 W BIG BEAVER 500  138,000.00DAVE DIESON
Commercial, Add/Alter 360 JOHN R  301,426.00DEJAGER CONSTRUCTION INC
Commercial, Add/Alter 911 WILSHIRE  1,000,000.00KRUSE & MUER RESTAURANTS
Commercial, Add/Alter 755 W BIG BEAVER 2020  250,000.00SYNERGY GROUP, INC.

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  2,349,426.00

Commercial, Compl. less Tenant 1985 W BIG BEAVER  680,000.00MARC COOKE

Commercial, Compl. less TenantTotal  680,000.00

Commercial, Tenant Completion 4916 JOHN R  200,000.00VASKO PERKOVIC
Commercial, Tenant Completion 3059 ROCHESTER  231,000.00LOUIS C DORTCH JR

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  431,000.00

Industrial, Add/Alter 1785 MAPLELAWN  200,000.00CHARLES BENNETT

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  200,000.00

Inst./Hosp., New Construction 925 W SOUTH BLVD  6,500,000.00LASALLE GEN CONTRACTORS

Inst./Hosp., New ConstructionTotal  6,500,000.00

Total Valuation:  10,160,426.00Records  13



campbellld
Text Box
J-02e











 

 

 

January 11, 2006 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance and Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Agenda Item – Liberty Information Management Systems Enterprise Wide 

Content Management Software - Update 
 
SUMMARY: 
City Management has begun the implementation of the Liberty Information Management 
Software, LibertyNet, approved on August 15, 2005.  Attached is a detailed project plan 
of what has been completed to date.  Below is a general summary of that plan. 
 

1. All hardware and required software has been purchased and installed. 
 
2. Pilot Project Complete 

a. City Clerk’s Office live with  
i. Council Agendas and Minutes.  These are available on the City’s 

intranet site for searching and viewing by City staff. 
ii. Birth and Death Certificates.   These are being scanned and indexed 

as they are received.  In addition, requests for copies are being 
electronically recorded, and then the image is resized and printed on 
safety paper, along with certification verbiage. 

b. Building Inspection closed building permits setup complete.  We are working 
with the State contract vendor, Graphic Sciences, to evaluate the cost of 
converting existing closed documents.  We are initially going to convert about 
83,000 permits and related documents.  Building Inspection staff will begin to 
scan current documents as the permit/project closes.   

 
3. A presentation of the pilot project was made to the Document Imaging Steering 

Committee on January 4, 2006.  The group made the decision to accept the pilot and 
move forward with implementation in the rest of the City.  The next step will be to 
obtain formal training for City staff, and then evaluate additional documents in the 
City Clerk’s Office and Building Inspection before moving on to other departments.  

 
3. Total expenditures to date:  $208,375.83   

Total budget:  $542,000 

BACKGROUND 
Resolution #2005-08-400 approved the purchase of an Enterprise-wide Content 
Management (ECM) System from Liberty Information Management Systems and Ricoh 
Business Systems, along with approval to purchase additional hardware, software and 
services to complete the implementation through REMC and State of Michigan contracts.   
 
 
Prepared by Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02f



ID Task Name

1 Enterprise Content Management 

2 Convene Document Imaging Committee

3 Council Approval

4 Purchase Hardware

5 Issue PO to HP for hardware

6 Schedule Install

7 Receive hardware

8 Install

9 Purchase Software

10 Issue PO to EDS for Server software

11 Issue PO to HP for Backup Software

12 Issue PO to EDS for install

13 Schedule install

14 Install Software

15 Backup software HP DataProtector

16 SQL Server

17 Initial Pilot Project

18 Issue PO to Ricoh 

19 Conference Call

20 City Clerk

21 Review forms and processes

22 Document and send to Ricoh

23 Liberty/Ricoh on site

24 Birth Records

25 Set up Forms/Folders/Views

26 Develop Special Processes

27 Print Requests

28 Record Requests

29 Death Records

30 Set up Forms/Folders/Views

31 Develop Special Processes

32 Print varying size forms

33 Agendas

34 Set up Forms/Folders/Views

35 Develop Special Processes

36 Make available on Intranet

37 Convert from working to final

38 Meeting Minutes

39 Set up Forms/Folders/Views

40 Develop Special Processes

41 Make available on Intranet

42 Testing

8/15

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

9/21

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

8/14 8/21 8/28 9/4 9/11 9/18 9/25 10/2 10/9 10/16 10/23 10/30 11/6 11/13 11/20 11/27 12/4 12/11 12/18 12/25 1/1 1/8 1/15 1/22
September October November December January

Page 1



ID Task Name

43 Building Inspection

44 Review forms and processes

45 Liberty on site

46 Building Permits

47 Set up Forms/Folders/Views

48 Develop Special Processes

49 Develop scanning process

50 Build Index Lookup to Equalizer

51 Build Application Enabler for Equalizer

52 Testing

53 Review of Pilot

54 Meet with Steering Committee

55 Make a final decision to move forward

56 Attend training classes

57 Complete Initial Departments

58 City Clerk

59 Building Inspection

60 Additional Departments

61 Assessing

62 Purchasing

63 Fire

64 Police

65 Building Operations

66 City Attorney

67 City Manager

68 Community Affairs

69 Engineering

70 Traffic Engineering

71 Finance

72 Human Resources

73 Library

74 Museum

75 Nature Center

76 Parks and Recreation

77 Planning

78 Real Estate and Development

79 Risk Management

80 Public Works

81 Streets

82 Water

83 Solid Waste

84 Treasurer

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

8/14 8/21 8/28 9/4 9/11 9/18 9/25 10/2 10/9 10/16 10/23 10/30 11/6 11/13 11/20 11/27 12/4 12/11 12/18 12/25 1/1 1/8 1/15 1/22
September October November December January

Page 2



  

 
DATE:  January 18, 2006 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark S. Stimac, Building and Zoning Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL (SP 

921) – Briggs Park Condominium, east side of Rochester, north 
side of Lamb, Section 14 – R-1T, E-P and R-1C 

 
At the December 13, 2005 Regular meeting, the Planning Commission granted 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval to Briggs Park Condominium.   
 
An appeal of the Planning Commission’s administrative decision to grant 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval was filed with the Board of Zoning Appeals on 
January 3, 2006.  According to the application, the applicant is a resident of the 
Shallowbrook Subdivision and is also a representative of the Shallowbrook 
Subdivision Homeowners Association.   
 
Section 43.70.01 of the Zoning Ordinance provides the Board of Zoning Appeals 
with the authority “to hear, and decide appeals from any decision of the Director 
of Building and Zoning in the enforcement of this Chapter which falls within the 
jurisdiction of the Board of Zoning Appeals”.   
 
The item was considered by the Board of Zoning Appeals at the January 17, 
2006, meeting.  The Board of Zoning Appeals passed a resolution to take no 
further action on the appeal request as it was determined by the City Attorney’s 
Office that they had no jurisdiction to act on the request.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Briggs Park Condominium Maps and Plans 
2. Minutes from December 13, 2005 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Application for Hearing Board of Zoning Appeals. 
4. Letter from City Attorney, dated January 12, 2006. 
5. Draft minutes (excerpt) from January 17, 2006 BZA meeting. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/SP-921 Briggs Park Condominiums 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 921 Briggs Park Condominiums Sec 14\Briggs Park CC Update Memo 01 23 06.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02g



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROP. CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT



LAMB

R
E

IL
LY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

BARCLAY

LONGFELLOW

RANDALL

W
IL

LO
W

 C
R

E
E

K

C
LA

R
K

E

H
A

R
O

LD

HOLL
Y

SHADOW

THURBER

ROBERTSON

MAYO

P
O

E

REILL
Y C

T

BARCLAY CT

LORENZO CT

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED BRIGGS PARK CONDOMINIUM
NORTHEAST CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & LAMB
SEC. 14 (SP-921)

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 921) – Proposed Briggs Park Condominium, North side 
of Lamb, East side of Rochester Road, Section 14 – R-1T, R-1C and E-P 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Briggs Park Condominium, and reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted with the 
condition that the 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road is 
concrete, as opposed to asphalt as shown on the site plan.   
 
Mr. Savidant provided clarification on the setbacks.   
 
The petitioner, Brad Byarski of Michigan Homes Builders, 13400 Canal, Sterling 
Heights, was present.  Mr. Byarski provided a brief history of the site and 
addressed a previous submission of which the Planning Commission had 
concerns relating to density, sidewalks, guest parking, and an easement 
variance.  Mr. Byarski reviewed the new site plan and presented drawings and 
elevations of the proposed development.  He agreed to change the sidewalk on 
the east side of Rochester Road from asphalt to concrete.   
 
[Mr. Kulesza arrived at 8:35 p.m.] 
 
Discussion followed with respect to guest parking, on-street parking, snow 
removal, and storm water management.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-194 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Briggs Park Condominium, located on the north side of Lamb, east of Rochester, 
located in Section 14, on approximately 12.13 acres, within the R-1T, E-P and R-
1C zoning districts, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road shall be 

concrete, as per City of Troy Engineering Standards. 
2. That on-street parking is provided opposite the fire hydrants especially in the 

area on the north side of the island. 
3. Provide bioswales. 
 
Discussion. 
 
Members of the audience asked to speak.  Chair Strat said public comment on a 
site plan review is at the discretion of the Chair, and the floor would not be 
opened at this time.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman 
No: Strat, Wright 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Vleck abstained because he thought the public should have an opportunity to 
speak on the matter.   
 
Mr. Wright indicated his no vote was for the same reason.   
 
Chair Strat voted no because the petitioner did not adhere to the 
recommendations of the Environmental Specialist as relates to storm water 
management.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-195 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider the issue with public input, not limited to what the 
Chairman chooses. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the submission has been before this body three times, with 
no participation from the public yet.  They have had three times to give their 
piece.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Jim McCauley of 4435 Harold, Troy, was present.  Mr. McCauley is President of the 
Shallowbrook Homeowners Association.  He said they have been before this body 
at the time of the rezoning requests, but notices were not sent out on the proposed 
development and site plan review.  Mr. McCauley provided a brief history of the 
previous rezoning requests, in which an agreement was worked out with the 
developer to provide a buffer for the single family homes in the area.  Mr. McCauley 
distributed an informational handout to the members and addressed potential 
violations/conflicts with the Zoning Ordinance, specifically Article 12.50.05 as 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
 

relates to a required 60-foot right of way for property over 10 acres in size and 
Article 12.50.08 as relates to rear perimeter setbacks.  Mr. McCauley said they are 
not against condominiums but they want an appropriate buffer zone provided 
between the medium density and single family homes, as originally negotiated.   
 
John Moran of 1110 Robertson, Troy, was present.  Mr. Moran expressed concern 
with the 8-foot retention pond, specifically the potential danger to children.  He said 
there is not a market for condominiums and he would prefer to see site 
condominiums going in there.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked for comment from the Assistant City Attorney on the 
setback concern addressed by the first speaker. 
 
Mr. Motzny replied that he discussed the setback matter with the Planning 
Director, and Mr. Miller indicated that the setback provisions are being complied 
with.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that a yard is measured from the structure to the property line, 
and noted that the definition of yard is in the definition section of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  Mr. Miller said there is nothing in the ordinance that requires the 
subject property to be under all one zoning district.  He said the proposed 
setback is equal to, or greater than, the single family setback requirement. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts questioned why residents were not notified of the meeting.  
 
Mr. Miller replied that site plan approval does not require public notification.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she shares the concern of the 8-foot depth of the pond. 
 
Mr. Miller said there are provisions for ponds as long as certain engineering 
standards are met.  Mr. Miller said the depth of a pond is not a zoning issue but 
is regulated under the engineering development standards. 
 
Chair Strat shared his concern with the pond’s accessibility and potential 
vulnerability.  Chair Strat said there are many areas of the site plan that could be 
improved upon. 
 
It was noted that the site plan indicates a 1:6 slope on the pond and no fence 
would be required.   
 
Mr. Khan stated that people pay premiums to purchase lots that back up to lakes 
and he has no problem with the pond. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-12-196 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Briggs Park Condominium, located on the north side of Lamb, east of Rochester, 
located in Section 14, on approximately 12.13 acres, within the R-1T, E-P and R-
1C zoning districts, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The 8-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of Rochester Road shall be 

concrete, as per City of Troy Engineering Standards. 
2. The water mains will be moved to the outside of the island area to provide for 

on-street parking within the island area.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Vleck, Wright 
No: Strat 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat voted no because none of the environmental standards requested by 
the Environmental Specialist are being implemented into the site plan.   
 









BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                              JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #11 – (taken out of order) – INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  JIM 
MCCAULEY, REPRESENTING THE SHALLOWBROOK SUBDIVISION 
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, REGARDING THE PROPOSED BRIGGS 
PARK CONDOMINIUMS, for an interpretation on the validity of a site plan 
approval for the Briggs Park Condominium Development granted by the Planning 
Commission under the R-1T (One-Family Attached Residential) provisions of the 
Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Fejes explained that the Board had received a memo from the City Attorney 
indicating that this Board did not have jurisdiction to act on this request. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to take no action on the Interpretation Request, Jim McCauley, 
representing the Shallowbrook Subdivision Homeowners Association, regarding 
the proposed Briggs Park Condominiums, for an interpretation on the validity of a 
site plan approval for the Briggs Park Condominium Development granted by the 
Planning Commission under the R-1T (One-Family Attached Residential) 
provisions of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• City Attorney determined that this Board did not have jurisdiction to act on 

this request. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO TAKE NO ACTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that if anyone at the meeting had questions, they could talk to 
the City Attorney. 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02h

































campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



stewartc
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06







campbellld
Text Box
J-07


	AGENDA:  January 23, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a) Certificate of Appreciation to Retiring City Employee Ardath Labriola


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1  No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5028 Abington
	D-2 Vote on Reconsidered Rezoning Application – Northeast Co

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Proposed
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  S�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  B�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  B�
	f\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  B�
	g\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  E�

	E-5 Private Agreement for National City Bank – Project No. 0
	E-6 Troy Historical Society Agreement
	E-7 Request for Approval to Sell City-Owned Surplus Remnant 
	E-8 Certified Local Government Application
	E-9 Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – S
	E-10 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Long L

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Dis
	F-2 Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment
	F-3 Approval of Poverty Exemption Guidelines
	F-4 Proposal from The Mercer Group, Inc. for Executive Recru
	F-5 Request for Closed Session for the Purpose of Performanc
	F-6 PROTEC Membership

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) NextEnergy Exemptions – February 20,�
	b\) Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for T�

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a) Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy City Code


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling Requested that Staff Compile a L

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Election Commission/Final – October 4, 2005
	Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 20, 2005
	Troy Youth Council/Final – October 26, 2005
	Planning Commission/Draft – November 29, 2005
	Planning Commission/Final – November 29, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 1, 2
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 6, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 6, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft Decem
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Dec
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 7, 2005
	Planning Commission/Draft – December 13, 2005
	Planning Commission/Final – December 13, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Decem
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 20, 2005
	Troy Historic District Study Committee/Draft – December 21, 
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – December 21, 2005
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 3, 2006
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 4, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 5, 20
	Election Commission/Draft – January 9, 2006

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Manager’s Office – Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel 
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2005
	Building Department – Permits Issued July through December 2
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Dec
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auc
	Information Technology – Liberty Information Management Syst
	Planning Department – Preliminary Site Plan Approval (SP 921
	Manager’s Office – City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report –

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Kevin Sagan, Madison He
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Pastor David Loma
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Gloria Gold, in Appreci
	Letter of Thanks to Mark Miller from John Secco, Allegra Dev

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Letter from Robert C. Bendzinski, CIPFA, of Bendzinski 
	J-7  Letter from National League of Cities Regarding Robin B

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



